
 

Individuals addressing the Council are asked to step to the microphone and clearly state their name and 
address before speaking. In accordance with ADA guidelines, if you need special accommodations to 

attend any city meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s Office at 417-732-3101 at least three days prior to 
the scheduled meeting. All meetings are recorded for public viewing. 

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Eric Gerke, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
Christopher Updike, Ward III 

Jennifer Mitchell, Ward IV 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Brandon Self, Ward III 
Clint Gerlek, Ward IV 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
City Council Meeting 

Municipal Court Building, 540 Civic Blvd  

August 16, 2022 at 6:00 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

Opening Prayer 

Pledge of Allegiance to the United States Flag 

Citizen Participation 

Consent Agenda 

1. Approve July 26, 2022 City Council Minutes. 

2. As per RSMo. 109.230(4), City records that are on file in the City Clerk’s office and have met the 
retention schedule will be destroyed in compliance with the guidelines established by the 
Secretary of State’s office. 

3. Approve Vendor List. 

4. Approve Utility Billing Adjustments. 

5. 22-R-41 A Resolution of the City Council Awarding the Bid for Waterline Materials for the 
Remainder of 2022 Through 2023 to Core & Main LP. 

6. 22-R-42 A Resolution of the City Council Awarding the Bids for Aggregate Supply for the 
Remainder of 2022 Through 2023 to Bailey Quarries, Inc., Capital Materials, LLC., Conco Quarries, 
and Westside Stone Company, LLC. 

7. 22-R-43 A Resolution of the City Council Awarding the Bids for Asphalt Supply for the Remainder 
of 2022 through 2023 to APAC Central Inc., Blevins Asphalt Construction Co., Inc., Capital 
Materials, LLC., and Emery Sapp & Sons, Inc. 

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 
City Council Meeting  August 23, 2022 
Board of Adjustment Meeting September 1, 2022 
City Council Meeting  September 6, 2022 
Planning & Zoning Meeting September 12, 2022 

Old Business and Tabled Items 

8. 22-48 An Ordinance of the City Council Amending Bill No. 21-65  to Authorize Execution of a 
Revised Intergovernmental Agreement with Missouri Department of Social Services Family 
Support Division for the Low Income Household Water Assistance Program. 

New Business (First Reading of Ordinances) 

9. A Public Hearing of the City Council Setting the 2022 Property Tax Levies for the City of Republic, 
Missouri. 

10. 22-49 An Ordinance of the City Council Setting the 2022 Property Tax Levies for the City of 
Republic, Missouri. 

1



 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

11. 22-R-44 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing a Three-Year Agreement with Ring Central 

for Voice-Over Internet Phone Services for the City until 2025. 

12. 22-R-45 A Resolution of the City Council Appointing Authorized Signers for the Municipal Court 

Account with Arvest Bank. 

13. 22-R-46 A Resolution of the City Council Appointing Authorized Signers for the General Operating 
Account and Bond Proceeds Account with Arvest Bank. 

Finance Report 

Reports from Staff 

Executive Session:  No further action, other than announcing adjournment by the Mayor, shall take place 
after an Executive Session that is scheduled as the last matter on the Agenda unless otherwise stated on 
the Agenda or as allowed per RSMo. 610.02. 

   1.    RSMo 610.021.1 Pending and/or potential litigation. Closed session. Closed vote. Closed record. 

   2.    RSMo 610.021.2 Real estate acquisition. Closed session. Closed vote. Closed record. 

   3.    RSMo 610.021.3 Hiring, firing, promotion, or disciplining personnel. Closed session. Closed vote. 
Closed record. 

Adjournment 
 
 

2



 

 
1 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  S p e c i a l  S e s s i o n  M e e t i n g ,  J u l y  2 6 ,  2 0 2 2  

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Eric Gerke, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
Christopher Updike, Ward III 

Jennifer Mitchell, Ward IV 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Brandon Self, Ward III 
Clint Gerlek, Ward IV 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
City Council Special Session Meeting 

Municipal Court Building, 540 Civic Blvd  

July 26, 2022 at 6:00 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

The special session meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri, was called 
to order by Mayor Matt Russell at 6:00 p.m. Council Members present included Eric Franklin, Garry Wilson, 
Eric Gerke, Gerry Pool, Chris Updike, Clint Gerlek, and Brandon Self. Others in attendance were: City 
Administrator David Cameron, City Attorney Megan McCullough, Assistant City Administrator Jared 
Keeling, Police Lieutenant Jamie Burks, Finance Manager Kyle Sutton, BUILDS Administrator Andrew 
Nelson, Fire Chief Duane Compton, Engineering Manager Garrett Brickner, Chief of Staff Lisa Addington, 
IT Director Chris Crosby, Assistant Parks and Recreation Director Jennafer Mayfield, and City Clerk Laura 
Burbridge. 

Opening Prayer 

Opening prayer was led by City Administrator David Cameron. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Matt Russell. 

Citizen Participation 

Mayor Russell opened citizen participation at 6:01 p.m. 

Earline Minier, 124 E Brooks Street, requested additional yard waste dates be added to address the 
brush and limbs in people's yards, which she feels could be a fire hazard.    

Mayor Russell closed citizen participation  at 6:02 p.m. 

Consent Agenda 

Motion was made by Council Member Pool and seconded by Council Member Updike to approve the 
consent agenda. The vote was 7 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Pool, Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion 
Carried. 

1. Approve July 19, 2022 City Council Minutes. 

2. As per RSMo. 109.230(4), City records that are on file in the City Clerk’s office and have met the 
retention schedule will be destroyed in compliance with the guidelines established by the 
Secretary of State’s office. 

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 
Board of Adjustment Meeting         August 4, 2022 
Planning & Zoning Meeting          August 8, 2022-Cancelled 
City Council Meeting                  August 16, 2022 
City Council Meeting                  August 23, 2022 

Old Business and Tabled Items 

3. 22-42 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing Execution of a Second Supplemental STP-
Urban Program Agreement with the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission for the 
Design and Right of Way Acquisition on Extending the Shuyler Creek Trail. 

3

Item 1.



 

 
 2 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  S p e c i a l  S e s s i o n  M e e t i n g ,  J u l y  2 6 ,  2 0 2 2  

Motion was made by Council Member Updike and seconded by Council Member Franklin to have 
the second reading of Bill 22-42 by title only. The vote was 7 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Pool, 
Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Garrett Brickner was available for questions from 
Council.  Council Member Pool motioned for the passage of Bill 22-42. Council Member Updike 
seconded. A roll call vote was taken. The vote was 7 Aye-Wilson, Gerlek, Self, Franklin, Pool, Gerke, 
and Updike. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  

4. 22-43 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Amendment of the Zoning Classification of 
Approximately One Point Three Eight (1.38) Acres, Located at the 3400 Block of East U.S. 
Highway 60, From Agricultural (AG) to General Commercial (C-2). 

Motion was made by Council Member Franklin and seconded by Council Member Gerke to have 
the second reading of Bill 22-43 by title only. The vote was 7 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Pool, 
Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Andrew Nelson was available for questions from 
Council.  Council Member Updike motioned for the passage of Bill 22-43. Council Member Pool 
seconded. A roll call vote was taken. The vote was 7 Aye-Self, Franklin, Gerlek, Wilson, Pool, Gerke, 
and Updike. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  

5. 22-44 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing Execution of an Engineering Services 
Agreement with Olsson Inc. for the Planning, Design, and Construction Inspection of the 
Highway MM Expansion. 

Motion was made by Council Member Updike and seconded by Council Member Pool to have the 
second reading of Bill 22-44 by title only. The vote was 7 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Pool, Self, 
Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Garrett Brickner was available for questions from 
Council.  Council Member Updike motioned for the passage of Bill 22-44. Council Member Wilson 
seconded. A roll call vote was taken. The vote was 7 Aye-Updike, Gerke, Self, Wilson, Gerlek, 
Franklin, and Pool. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  

6. 22-45 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving a Special Use Permit for Josan Properties 
Arkansas LLC to Operate a Boat, Vehicle, and Self-Storage Facility on Real Property Located at 
3020 U.S. Highway 60. 

Motion was made by Council Member Pool and seconded by Council Member Updike to have the 
second reading of Bill 22-45 by title only. The vote was 7 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Pool, Self, 
Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Andrew Nelson was available for questions from 
Council.  Council Member Wilson motioned for the passage of Bill 22-45. Council Member Updike 
seconded. A roll call vote was taken. The vote was 7 Aye-Gerke,  Gerlek, Self, Wilson, Franklin, 
Pool, and Updike. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  

7. 22-46 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Amendment of the Zoning Code and Official 
Map by Changing the Classification of Approximately 28.88 Acres of Property, Located at the 
7200 Block of West Farm Road 170, from Agricultural (AG) and General Commercial (C-2) to 
Kirkwood Estates Planned Development District (PDD). 

Motion was made by Council Member Pool and seconded by Council Member Franklin to have 
the second reading of Bill 22-46 by title only. The vote was 7 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Pool, 
Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Andrew Nelson was available for questions from 
Council.  Council Member Updike motioned for the passage of Bill 22-46. Council Member Franklin 
seconded. A roll call vote was taken. The vote was 6 Aye-Wilson, Gerlek, Updike, Pool, Franklin, 
and Gerke. 0 Nay.  1 Abstain-Self. Motion Carried.  

4

Item 1.



 

 
 3 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  S p e c i a l  S e s s i o n  M e e t i n g ,  J u l y  2 6 ,  2 0 2 2  

8. 22-47 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Execution of a Developer Agreement with 

Republic 63, LLC for the Continued Development of the Hankins Farm Planned Development 

District. 

Motion was made by Council Member Pool and seconded by Council Member Franklin to have 
the second reading of Bill 22-47 by title only. The vote was 7 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Pool, 
Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Andrew Nelson was available for questions from 
Council.  Council Member Updike motioned for the passage of Bill 22-47. Council Member Franklin 
seconded. A roll call vote was taken. The vote was 7 Aye-Gerlek, Wilson, Updike, Pool, Self, 
Franklin, and Gerke. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  

New Business (First Reading of Ordinances) 

9. 22-48 An Ordinance of the City Council Amending Bill No. 21-65 to Authorize Execution of a 
Revised Intergovernmental Agreement with Missouri Department of Social Services Family 
Support Division for the Low Income Household Water Assistance Program. 

Motion was made by Council Member Pool and seconded by Council Member Updike to have the 
first reading of Bill 22-48 by title only. The vote was 7 Aye-Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Pool, Self, 
Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Kyle Sutton provided an overview of the bill.  Mayor 
Russell reminded Council that this is a first read and to get with staff before the next meeting with 
any questions. 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

10. 22-R-38 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the City Administrator to Execute an 

Agreement with OpenEdge Payments LLC for Credit Card Processing Services. 

Motion was made by Council Member Pool and seconded by Council Member Updike to approve 
Resolution 22-R-38. Kyle Sutton provided an overview of the Resolution. The vote was 7 Aye-
Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Pool, Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  

11. 22-R-39 A Resolution of the City Council Awarding the Bid for Waterline Borings at Hankins Farm 

Industrial Park Subdivision to On-Side Construction LLC. 

Motion was made by Council Member Self and seconded by Council Member Updike to approve 
Resolution 22-R-39. Garrett Brickner provided an overview of the Resolution. The vote was 7 Aye-
Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Pool, Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  

12. 22-R-40 A Resolution of the City Council Awarding the Bid for Wastewater Infrastructure 
Installation at Hankins Farm Industrial Park Subdivision to Hamilton and Dad, Inc. 

Motion was made by Council Member Pool and seconded by Council Member Updike to approve 
Resolution 22-R-40. Garrett Brickner provided an overview of the Resolution. The vote was 7 Aye-
Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Pool, Self, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  

Reports from Staff 

City Administrator David Cameron reminded everyone to vote next week.  Mr. Cameron invited Jared 
Keeling to present the ballot items a final time to Council.  Jared Keeling presented the two sales tax 
initiatives, the first for general operations, and the second for capital improvement projects.  Mr. Keeling 
reminded everyone that both are existing taxes that expire in 2024.  Mr. Keeling reported we will be 
paying off the large capital projects from the previous Parks Capital Improvement Project ballot in the 
next two years.  This Capital Improvement Project proposal would be for expansion of the Republic 

5

Item 1.



 

 
 4 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  S p e c i a l  S e s s i o n  M e e t i n g ,  J u l y  2 6 ,  2 0 2 2  

Aquatics Center, the addition of JR Martin Boulevard at JR Martin Park, and a regional sports complex.  Mr. 
Keeling reminded everyone to get out and vote on August 2nd. 

City Administrator David Cameron thanked Jared Keeling and Jennafer Mayfield for their work on this 
ballot measure.  Mr. Cameron praised the documentation done by Parks to educate the voters and be 
available for questions.  Mr. Cameron added they have done an excellent job, just as they did last year 
with the public safety sales tax.  Mr. Cameron noted that clear ballot language is appreciated by citizens, 
adding it is difficult with one being an operating expense, but they have done a fantastic job.  Mr. Cameron 
also noted that he heard nothing but fantastic reports about Have a Blast. 

City Administrator David Cameron welcomed Mr. Gerlek to Council and welcomed back Mr. Self. Mr. 
Cameron added we have a lot of exciting things going on and it is nice to have a fully seated Council.  Mr. 
Cameron reminded everyone of the importance of having a quorum.  Mr. Cameron reported it is great to 
be back in the office, adding he took a nice break after a busy legislative session. Mr. Cameron reminded 
everyone that the City was informed  the wastewater treatment plant improvements would cost $150 
million and since then, staff have been working  to secure that funding.  Mr. Cameron added he 
appreciates the work Andrew Nelson did to cover the City Administrator duties while he was away. 

City Administrator David Cameron said he is often asked about what is going on in Republic.  He attributed 
it to the use of Development Agreements.  He added we began to partner with developers to have skin in 
the game and were able to leverage the ARPA money on the Hankins Farm project.  Mr. Cameron 
commended Council for the big picture decisions made regarding Developer Agreements, which brings 
Whataburger, Andy's, and other exciting projects to Republic.    

City Administrator David Cameron reported while out, the Governor signed House Bill 3020, which 
allocated 25 million dollars to the City of Republic for wastewater treatment plant improvements.  Mr. 
Cameron added the City was laughed at when we asked for 100 million dollars..  He shared we believe in 
what we are doing, and the state's funds have grown by 17 million dollars per year or more due to our 
growth.  Mr. Cameron acknowledged some of the people in Jefferson City who did the heavy lifting for 
us.  Representative Jared Taylor is the one that stood up in the House for Republic.  Representative Bishop 
Davidson came along with us through the process.  Representative Curtis Trent was also instrumental in 
helping our community receive these funds.  Mr. Cameron reported this funding represents a 15% 
increase in billing that citizens would have incurred had we not received this allocation.  Representative 
Alex Riley, Representative Bill Owen, Representative Craig Fishel, Representative John Black, Budget Chair 
Cody Smith, and Budget Vice-Chairman Dirk Deaton had a face to face meeting the first day they were at 
the Capitol. Representative Bishop Davidson was instrumental in getting into the Governor's office, and 
Mr. Cameron expressed his appreciation for all the work these Representatives did for us.  Senator Jay 
Wasson came to our office and made calls for us and Senator Lincoln Hough carried it across the finish 
line as a representative for Springfield, understanding the regional impact this has.  Mr. Cameron 
reminded everyone it is not about us growing too fast and needing to increase capacity, this is paying to 
comply with an order the city did not meet in 2011.  They carried this for our citizens, and we didn't get a 
vote.  Mr. Cameron thanked them publicly because if this had not passed, our citizens would be paying at 
least 15% more on their bills.  Mr. Cameron reminded everyone we still have 25 million dollars more we 
need to secure to do all the updates necessary to comply with the Department of Natural Resources, 
otherwise the rates will continue to go up to meet the compliance issue.  Mr. Cameron also thanked 
Representative Doug Richey and Representative Scott Cupps.  Mr. Cameron emphasized that we want to 
minimize the cost impact to our citizens.  Mr. Cameron announced we will start again in Jefferson City 
when the next legislative session begins.  Mr. Cameron thanked everyone that voted yes to pass this.  Mr. 
Cameron thanked Council for allowing and encouraging us to go advocate for this funding.  Mr. Cameron 
thanked the staff that had to cover while they were gone.  Mr. Cameron acknowledged that Jared Keeling 

6

Item 1.



 

 
 5 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  S p e c i a l  S e s s i o n  M e e t i n g ,  J u l y  2 6 ,  2 0 2 2  

and his staff carried their own ballot measure while he was away.  He added this will have a huge impact 
to our community.  Mr. Cameron shared it is great to be back and thank you to Council for serving.   

City Administrator David Cameron congratulated Andrew Nelson for making “10 for the next 10” in 417 
Biz.  Mr. Cameron added we are surrounded by the rock stars of the organization and Andrew would gladly 
replace his picture with any employee.  Mr. Cameron noted it was well deserved. 

Council Member Franklin thanked Whataburger for inviting staff and citizens to their groundbreaking.  Mr. 
Franklin added he was sad to lose Meeks but was excited to have the Chamber there to celebrate. 

Mayor Matt Russell noted that staff pulled off something special with this 25 million dollars in 
funding.  Mayor Russell thanked David Cameron for quarterbacking the play, adding that when everyone 
laughed at us, Mr. Cameron got it done.  Mayor Russell thanked everyone that helped, adding that Mr. 
Cameron was the one that pushed it through and had faith. 

Mayor Russell shared that his boys are in 5th and 6th grade this year and get to practice together at 
football camp.  Last night, for the first time ever, he got to see his oldest son pass the ball to his youngest 
son in a practice.  Mayor Russell added he won't get to see that again until high school.  Mayor Russell 
shared he asked Alex why he threw it to Nick, and he said he knew Nick would catch the ball.  

Executive Session:  No further action, other than announcing adjournment by the Mayor, shall take place 
after an Executive Session that is scheduled as the last matter on the Agenda unless otherwise stated on 
the Agenda or as allowed per RSMo. 610.02. 

   1.    RSMo 610.021.1 Pending and/or potential litigation. Closed session. Closed vote. Closed record. 

   2.    RSMo 610.021.2 Real estate acquisition. Closed session. Closed vote. Closed record. 

   3.    RSMo 610.021.3 Hiring, firing, promotion, or disciplining personnel. Closed session. Closed vote. 
Closed record. 

Motion was made by Council Member Franklin and seconded by Council Member Updike at 6:38 p.m. to 
go into Executive session under RSMo 610.021.3 Hiring, firing, promotion, or disciplining personnel. 
Closed session. Closed vote. Closed record.  The vote was 7 Aye-Self, Pool, Wilson, Updike, Franklin, 
Gerke, and Gerlek. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  

Motion was made by Council Member Updike and seconded by Council Member Franklin to adjourn 
the meeting at 7:05 p.m. The vote was 7 Aye-Self, Franklin, Wilson, Gerlek, Gerke, Pool, and Updike.  0 
Nay. Motion Carried. 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________         ___________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk                                    Matt Russell, Mayor 
 

7

Item 1.



                                           Record Destruction Request Form  

Page 1 of 1 August 16, 2022 

MISSOURI RETENTION MANUAL CODE NAME/DATE OF RECORDS TO BE 
DISPOSED 

DATE(S) OF 
DOCUMENTS 

RETENTION TIME 
NEEDED FOR 

RECORD 

GS 114 Temporary Employee Files  Seasonal and intern employee files 1997-2016 5 years  

GS 068 Payroll Records Payroll  2014-2016 5 years 

GS 328 Time and Attendance Records Timesheets 2018 3 years plus audit 

 

8

Item 2.



8/2/2022 9:28:56 AM Page 1 of 1

Vendor Audit Report
City of Republic For Date Range 07/01/2022 - 07/31/2022

Vendor Added Added User Deleted Deleted User

07891 - 417 Lawn and Home 07/05/2022 SHERRI WOODS

07892 - Joshua Lewis-Evans 07/06/2022 SHERRI WOODS

07893 - Juan Espinal 07/06/2022 SHERRI WOODS

07894 - Mark F Eul 07/06/2022 SHERRI WOODS

07895 - The Cattywampus Photographer 07/06/2022 SHERRI WOODS

07897 - Charissa Fuhr 07/11/2022 SHERRI WOODS

07898 - Hundred Acre Wood Inc 07/11/2022 SHERRI WOODS

07900 - Down South Fried Fish Co 07/12/2022 SHERRI WOODS

07901 - Cheyenne Gilroy 07/13/2022 SHERRI WOODS

07902 - Sac River Stables LLC 07/13/2022 SHERRI WOODS

07904 - Joseph Sneddon 07/13/2022 SHERRI WOODS

07905 - Taylor Birch 07/19/2022 SHERRI WOODS

07906 - Rost Ready Mix Inc 07/21/2022 SHERRI WOODS

07907 - Springfield Petroleum Service LLC 07/21/2022 SHERRI WOODS

07908 - Dennis Oil Company 07/21/2022 SHERRI WOODS

07909 - Ecotire Treading Co LLC 07/26/2022 SHERRI WOODS

07910 - Ben Burnett 07/26/2022 SHERRI WOODS

Vendor Count: (17)

9

Item 3.



Date Customer Overread/Leak Leak In

 Water 

Gallons 

Adjusted 

Amount 

Adjusted

 Sewer 

Gallons 

Adjusted 

Amount 

Adjusted
7/11/2022 Helen Byrne Leak Service Line           17,450             62.66           34,900           389.83 

7/11/2022 Hood Methodist Church Leak Irrigation           17,440             62.09           34,880           389.61 

7/11/2022 Matthew Morlan Leak City Side Leak             4,900             17.59             4,900             54.73 

7/11/2022 Matthew Morlan Leak City Side Leak             9,100             32.68             5,500 

7/11/2022 Richard W Neal Leak Irrigation leak             4,160             14.94 

7/11/2022 Ralena J Martin Leak Toilet Leak             4,000             14.36 

7/11/2022 Ralena J Martin Leak Toilet Leak             7,300             26.22 

7/15/2022 Lelia Legacy Leak Pipe Burst                500               1.80             1,000             11.17 

7/15/2022 Carrie & Mark Burns Leak Toilet Leak             2,895             10.40             2,895             32.34 

7/15/2022 Carrie & Mark Burns Leak Toilet Leak             3,305             11.87             3,305             36.92 

7/15/2022 Dalton M Hatton Leak Leak under driveway           20,422             73.34           40,843           456.22 

7/15/2022

Shandrea & Patrick 

Holloway Leak Main Line         111,875           401.76 

7/18/2022 Linda & Lance Carlson Leak Leak under house             7,800             28.01           11,500           128.46 

7/18/2022 Linda & Lance Carlson Leak Leak under house             9,900             35.55           11,500           128.46 

7/19/2022 Kacey & Mike Maguire Leak Toilet Leak             4,100             14.73             8,200             91.59 

7/19/2022 Kacey & Mike Maguire Leak Toilet Leak             3,275             11.76             6,550             73.16 

7/19/2022 Edward & Karen Begley Leak Leak on City side           12,600             45.25 

7/20/2022 Cronkhite Homes LLC Overread Overread           50,000           194.20           50,000           558.50 

7/20/2022 Charles & Linda Brown Leak Toilet Leak             2,150               7.72             2,150             24.02 

7/20/2022 Charles & Linda Brown Leak Toilet Leak             2,300               8.26             2,300             25.69 

7/20/2022 Kerri & Daylon Tillman Leak Toilet Leak             7,800             28.01             7,800             87.13 

7/20/2022 Kerri & Daylon Tillman Leak Toilet Leak             5,350             19.22             5,350             59.76 

7/22/2022 Norma & O'Dell Peck Leak Shutoff valve leaking             3,467             12.45             6,933             77.44 

7/22/2022 Norma & O'Dell Peck Leak Shutoff valve leaking             1,217               4.37             2,433             27.18 

Utility Billing Adjustments

10

Item 4.



7/22/2022 Deborah Rumisek Leak Hot water heater             2,182               7.84             4,363             48.73 

7/22/2022 Helen Byrne Leak Service Line           20,550             73.80 

7/22/2022 Ray R Young Leak Main service line             8,975             32.23           13,800           154.15 

7/22/2022 Ray R Young Leak Main service line             7,145             25.66           13,800           154.15 

7/29/2022 Jimmy D Clark Leak Service Line             4,865             17.47 

11

Item 4.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 22-R-41 A Resolution of the City Council Awarding the Bid for Waterline 
Materials for the Remainder of 2022 Through 2023 to Core & Main LP. 

Submitted By: Garrett Brickner, Engineering Manager 

Date: August 16, 2022 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To award the above stated bid to Core & Main LP. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City requested bids to supply waterline materials for the rest of 2022 and all of 2023. The City 

received 1 bid, from Core & Main LP. The prices for materials can be seen on the attached exhibits. 

Certain items Core & Main cannot guarantee prices on, and they provided dates on which the prices can 

no longer be confirmed or stated as such. Therefore, the City shall only purchase materials at the rates 

listed in this bid. The City Shall follow the applicable purchasing policy for acquiring materials via three 

quotes or sealed bid as applicable if the prices on this sealed bid cannot be met.   

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

12

Item 5.



RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-41 

  
RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-41 1 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AWARDING THE BID FOR WATERLINE MATERIALS FOR THE 
REMAINDER OF 2022 THROUGH 2023 TO CORE & MAIN LP 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City recently solicited sealed bids for supplying the City its waterline materials for 
the remainder of 2022 through 2023 (“Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City received one bid from Core & Main LP, which provided prices on certain 

materials up to specified dates after which time the price(s) could fluctuate; and  
 

WHEREAS,  based on the recommendations of City staff, the Council finds that Core & Main LP is 

a qualified bidder capable of meeting the City’s waterline materials supply needs and should thus be 

awarded the Project.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: Core & Main LP is awarded the Project at the rates listed in its bid, attached 
hereto and labeled “Exhibit 1”.   To the extent materials cannot be provided by 
Core & Main LP at the prices shown on Exhibit 1, the City shall follow the 
applicable provisions of the Purchasing and Disposal Policy for obtaining such 
materials. 

 
Section 2: The City Administrator, and/or his designee, is authorized to take the necessary 

steps to execute this Resolution. 
 
Section 3: The WHEREAS clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Section 4: This Resolution shall become effective on and after the date of passage and 

approval as provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2022. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
        Matt Russell, Mayor 
Attest: 
 

____________________________________ 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

 

 

13

Item 5.



RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-41 

  
RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-41 2 
 

Approved as to Form:   

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 

 
 

 

 

14

Item 5.



Costs 

City of Republic - Invitation for Bid 
Waterline Material Bulk bid for the Remainder of 2022 and 

through 2023 

SEALED BIDS MUST BE PHYSICALLY RECEIVED AT REPUBLIC CITY HALL PRIOR TO 3:15 P.M. on Monday, 
August 1, 2022. Bids will be opened by the City at Republic City Hall at said time and place. 

BIDS SHOULD BE ADDRESSED AS FOLLOWS: 

City of Republic 
cf o City Clerk, Laura Burbridge 
213 N. Main Avenue 
Republic, MO 65738 

Bids must be submitted on the forms provided and must be manually signed by the individual authorized 
to legally bind the Bidder. Bidders can add their own sheets for clarification of pricing on certain products 
if they choose. 

• Bids shall be submitted with the Invitation for Bid ("IFB") project name or item clearly indicated 
on the outside of the mailing envelope. 

• Bids received after the opening date and time will be rejected. 
• The attached Terms and Conditions shall become part of any contract, agreement or award 

resulting from this Invitation for Bid. 

• FAXED/EMAILED BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. 

• You are invited to submit your Bid to furnish the materials and/or services described herein. 
Please submit your prices/fees net of all discounts. Bidders do not necessarily need to bid all 
requested categories, but it is encouraged. · 

• August 16th, 2022 until December 31'1, 2023 or until superseded by another bid. 

• City intends to award all responsive bidders to the on-call list for service so if the lowest bidder 

is unable to provide material/service in an acceptable time, the next lowest bidder may be used. 
• Bids will be taken to City Council for approval on Tuesday August 16, 2022. Notice to proceed 

shall follow immediately upon and following approval granted by City Council. 

DESCRIPTION: 
Waterline materials and accessories furnishing and delivery as listed in bid sheet. 

As part of this Bid, a fuel index or surcharge shall be permitted however, needs to be outlined in this bid. Please outline 
fuel cost adjustment method in the space provided under bid table. E.g. - "if Diesel price exceeds $7.00 per gallon, an 
additional $2.00 will be added to per/CY cost." Or, attach table with adjustment values based on cost of fuel. 

The City of Republic will utilize the U.S. Energy Information Administration Weekly Retail Gasoline and Diesel Prices for 
the Midwest region (PADD 2), to verify adjustments as necessary. 

https://www.eia.gov/dnav/pet/PET PRI GND A EPD2D PTE DPGAL W.htm 

15

Item 5.



Inquiries: All inquiries for information should be directed to: 

Garrett Brickner, Engineering Manager 
BUILDS Department, City of Republic 
gbrickner@republicmo.com 
(417) 732-3405 

Important Notice Regarding Competitive Bidding: 

It is the City's intent and desire that this Invitation for Bid promotes competitive Bidding. To the extent 
any language, requitements, terms and/or requests contained within this Invitation for Bid result in the 
elimination of all but one source from which a responsive and respo.nsible Bid may be submitted, such 
restriction/limitation is not intended by the City, but is merely an unintentional error. In the event such error 
is discovered by any potential Bidder, the potential Bidder-must notify the City contact listed above of the error, 
in writing, no later than three (3) days prior to the Bid opening day. Upon receipt of any such notice, the City 
will take reasonable efforts to correct the error and resubmit the Invitation for Bid once corrected. 

16

Item 5.



TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

01. Opening Location: Bids submitted in response to this Invitation for Bid ("IFB") will be opened at Republic City 
Hall, located at 213 N. Main Avenue, on 3:15 P.M. on Monday. August 1, 2022. All Bidders (individually, 
"Bidder"; collectively, "Bidders") and/or their authorized representative(s) are permitted to attend the opening 
of the Bids. 

02. IFB Delivery Requirements: Any Bids received after the above stated time and date will not be considered. It 
shall be the sole responsibility of the Bidder to have their Bid delivered to Republic City Hall for receipt on or 
before the due date and time indicated. 

a. If a Bid is sent by U.S. Mail, the Bidder shall be responsible for its timely delivery to Republic City Hall. 
b. Bids delayed by mail shall not be considered, shall not be opened, and shall be rejected. 
c. Arrangements may be made for their return at the Bidder's request and expense. 
d. Bids may be mailed to Republic City Hall and accepted if the signed Bid form and requiredinformation 

was mailed and received prior to the due date and time. 
e. Bids sent by email will not be accepted. 

Sealed and Marked: If sent by mail, one original signed Bid shall be submitted in one sealed package, clearly 
marked on the outside of the package with the IFB project name clearly indicated on the outside of the mailing 
envelope and addressed to: 

City of Republic 
C/O City Clerk, Laura Burbridge 
213 N. Main 

Republic MO 65738 

03. Legal Name and Signature: Bids shall clearly indicate the legal name, address, and telephone number of the 
Bidder (company, firm, corporation, partnership, or individual). 

a. Bids shall be manually signed above the printed name and title of signer on the Affidavit of Compliance 
page. 

b. The signer shall have the authority to bind the Bidder to the submitted Bid. 
c. Failure to properly sign the Bid form shall inva.lidate the Bid, and it shall not be considered for award. 

04. Corrections: No erasures are permitted. 

a. In the event a correction is necessary, in order for the City to consider the correction, the following 
formatting must be applied: 

1. A single line (strike-through) to the entered text needing correction, and 
2. The corrected text written above the strike-through text, and 
3. The signer(s) of the Bid must initial all corrections. 

05. Clarification and Addenda: Bidders are expected to examine all documents attached to and/or provided by the 
City with this IFB, and prior to submitting any Bid in response to this IFB, make any necessary and/or reasonable 
inquiries of the City to ensure all such Bidders understand the entirety of the documents. 

a. Any inquiries or suggestions concerning interpretation, clarification, or other additional information 
pertaining to the IFB shall be made through the listed City contact in writing (email is permitted). 

b. The City of Republic shall not be responsible for verbal interpretations or other information given by 
any individual purporting to be employed by or otherwise representing the City. 

c. The issuance of written addenda is the official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or 
additional information can be given. 

d. It shall be the responsibility of each Bidder, prior to submitting their Bid, to direct any inquiries to the 
listed City contact. 

17

Item 5.



06. IFB Expenses: There is no expressed or implied obligation for the City of Republic to reimburse responding 
Bidders and the City will not reimburse for any expenses incurred in preparing responses to this IFB. 

07. Bid Security: All Bids must be accompanied by a Bid Security, which shall constitute the Bidder's guarantee that, 
if awarded the contract under this IFB, the Bidder will promptly execute all contract documents and other 
documents required under this IFB, and will furnish good and sufficient bond for the performance of the same. 

a. The Bid Security shall consist of a certified check, cashier's check or a Bid bond, guaranteed by a surety 
company authorized by the Director of the Missouri Department of Insurance and Commerce to conduct 
surety business in the state of Missouri, in an amount no less than ten percent (10%) of the Bid, and 
made payable to the City of Republic. 

b. Bids submitted without the required Bid Security will not be considered for award under this IFB. 

c. The Bid Securities of all Bidders, except for the three apparent lowest Bidders, will be returned as soon 
as reasonably possible after the opening and review of Bids. 

d. The City shall have the right to retain the Bid Security of the three apparent lowest Bidders until either: 
(1) all contract documents have been duly executed and all required bonds and proof of insurance, 
including certificates of insurance, have been furnished by the Bidder to the City; or (2) all Bids have 
been rejected, whichever occurs first. 

08. Irrevocable Offer: Any Bid may be withdrawn up until the due date and time set for opening of the IFB. Any 
Bid not so withdrawn shall, upon opening, constitute an irrevocable offer for a minimum period of ninety (90) 
days to provide to the City the goods or services set forth in the IFB, until one or more of the Bids have been 
duly accepted by the City. 

09. Responsive and Responsible Bidder: To be a responsive Bidder, a Bidder shall submit a Bid which conforms in 
all material respects to the requirements set forth in the IFB. To be a responsible Bidder, the Bidder shall have 
the capability in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements, and the tenacity, perseverance, 
experience, integrity, reliability, capacity, facilities, equipment and credit which will ensure good faith 
performance. The lowest responsible Bidder shall mean the Bidder who makes the lowest Bid to sell goods or 
services of a quality which conforms closest to the quality of goods or services set forth in the specifications or 
otherwise required by the City and who is known to be fit and capable to perform the Bid as made. 

10. Reserved Rights: The City reserves the right to make such investigations as it deems necessary to make the 
determination of the Bidder's responsiveness and responsibility. Such information may include, but shall not be 
limited to: current financial statement, verification of availability of equipment and personnel, and past 
performance records. 

11. The Right to Audit: The Bidder agrees to furnish supporting detail as may be required by the City to support 
charges or invoices, to make available for audit purposes all records covering charges pertinent tothe purchase, 
and to make appropriate adjustments in the event discrepancies are found. 

a. The City shall have the right to audit the Bidder's records pertaining to the work/product for a period of 
three (3) years after final payment. 

b. The cost of any audit conducted pursuant to this term will be paid by the City. 

12. Applicable Law: All applicable laws and regulations of the State of Missouri and the City including the City 
Procurement Regulations and Procedures will apply to any resulting agreement, contract, or purchase order 
entered into under the terms of this IFB. Any involvement with the City Procurement shall be ih accordance 
with the Procurement Regulations and Procedures. 

13. Right to Protest: Appeals and remedies are provided for in the City Procurement Regulations. 

18

Item 5.



a. Protesters shall seek resolution of their complaints initially with the City Purchasing Agent. 
b. Any protest shall state the basis upon which the solicitation or award is contested and shall be submitted 

within ten (10) calendar days after such aggrieved person knew or could have reasonably been expected 
to know of the facts giving rise thereto. 

14. Ethical Standards Applicable: With respect to this IFB, if any Bidder violates or is a party to a violation of the 
general ethical standards of the City Procurement Code or the State of Missouri Statues, such Bidder will be 
disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Bid is submitted and shall be further disqualified 
from submitting any future Bids. 

15. Collusion Absolutely Prohibited: All Bidders offering a submission in response to this IFB hereby expressly 
acknowledge and certify that they have not divulged, discussed, or compared their Bid to the Bids of any other 
Bidder(s), and further that they have not colluded or conspired with any other Bidder or parties to this IFB, to 
violate the terms and conditions governing submission of responses to this IFB whatsoever. All Bidders offering 
a submission in response to this IFB additionally promise that: 

a. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have been arrived at independently, without consultation, 
communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to 
such prices and/or cost data, with any other Bidder or with any competitor. 

b. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have not knowingly been disclosed by the Bidder and will not 
knowingly be disclosed by the Bidder prior to the scheduled opening directly or indirectly to any other 
Bidder or to any competitor. 

c. No attempt has been made or will be made by the Bidder to induce any other person or firm to submit 
or not to submit a Bid for the purpose of restricting competition. 

d. The only person or persons interested in this Bid, principal or principals are named therein and that no 
person other than therein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in any contract awarded under this 
IFB. No person or agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure the contract awarded under 
this IFB upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 
fee exempting bona fide employees or established commercial agencies maintained by the Purchaser 
for the purpose of doing business. 

16. Contract Forms: Any agreement, contract, or purchase order resulting from the acceptance of a Bid shall be on 
forms either supplied by or approved by the City. 

17. Liability and Indemnity: 
a. In no event shall the City be liable to the successful Bidder for special, indirect, liquidated, incidental, or 

consequential damages, except those caused by the City's gross negligence or willful or wanton 
misconduct arising out of or in any way connected with a breach of any agreement or contract under the 
terms of this IFB. The maximum liability of the City shall be limited to the amount of money to be paid or 
received by the City under any agreement or contract awarded under the terms of this IFB. 

b. The successful Bidder shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City, its elected or appointed 
officials, agents and employees from and against any and all liability, suits, damages, costs (including 
attorney fees), losses, outlays, expenses, and claims, caused or allegedly caused by, or arising out of or 
related in any way whatsoever to (1) any agreement or contract awarded under this IFB, or (2) the work 
performed pursuant to such contract or agreement .or any subcontract thereunder (the successful Bidder 
expressly acknowledging and assuming full responsibility for its subcontractors), including, but not 
limited to, claims for personal injuries, death, property damage, or for any other alleged damages. 

c. The successful Bidder shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from all wages or overtime 
compensation due any employees in rendering services pursuant to this agreement or any subcontract, 
including payment of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs in the defense of any claim made under the 
Fair Labor Standards Act, the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law or any other federal or state law. 

18. IFB Forms, Variances, and Alternates: Bids must be submitted on the forms attached to this IFB as provided by 
the City; however, additional information may be attached. Bidders must indicate any variances from the City 

19

Item 5.



requested specifications and/or terms and conditions, on the IFB Affidavit of Compliance. Otherwise, Bidders 
must fully comply with the City requested specifications and terms and conditions. Alternate Bids may or may 
not be considered at the sole discretion of the City Purchasing Agent. 

19. Bid Form: All blank spaces must be completed with the appropriate response. 
a. Bidders must state the price, written in ink, for what is proposed to complete each item of the project. 
b. Bidders must insert the words "no Bid" in the space provided for any item for which no Bid is made. 
c. Bidders must submit an executed Bid form, affidavit of compliance with other requested documents. 

20. Modifications or Withdrawal of Bid: A modification of a Bid already submitted will be considered only if the 
modification is received prior to the time announced for opening of Bids, and is made in writing; executed and 
submitted on the same form and manner as the or1ginal Bid. Modifications submitted by telephone, fax, or email 
will not be considered. 

21. No Bid: If not submitting a Bid, respond by returning the "Statement of No Bid" no later than the statedBid 
opening time and date, and explain the reason in the space provided. 

22. Errors in Bids: Bidders are expected to fully inform themselves as to the conditions, requirements, and 
specifications before submitting Bids; failure to do so will be at the Bidder's own risk. Applicable law and 
regulations do not make allowance for errors either of omission or inclusion on the. part of Bidders. In case an 
error regarding extension of prices in the Bid, the unit price shallgovern. 

23. Prices: Bids must include both unit price and extended total.-
a. Price must be stated in units of quantity specified in the Bidding specifications. In case of discrepancy in 

computing the amount of the Bid, the unit price of the Bid will govern. 
b. All prices shall be F.O.B. destination, freight prepaid (unless otherwise stated in special conditions). FOB, 

as used in this IFB, shall mean that the successful Bidder, at their own expense, shall transport the 
equipment and/or materials and bear the risk of loss from successful Bidder's location to a specified 
location in. the City of Republic. City shall not take title to the materials or equipment until it is delivered 
and accepted by City at the address specified within the City of Republic. 

c. Each item must be Bid separately and no attempt is to be made to tie any item or items in with any other 
item or items. 

d. If a Bidder offers a discount on payment terms, the discount time will be computed from the date of 
satisfactory delivery at place of acceptance and receipt of correct invoice at the office specified. 

e. Payment terms shall be Net 30 if not otherwise specified. 
f. Pre-payment terms are not acceptable. 

24. Discounts: Any and all discounts, except cash discounts for prompt payments, must be incorporated as a 
reduction in the Bid price and not shown separately. The price as shown on the Bid shall be the price used in the 
City's determination of award(s). 

25. Descriptive Information: All equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the product/work coveredby 
this IFB are to be new and of suitable grade for the purpose intended. 

a. Brand or trade names referenced in specifications are for comparison purposes only. 
b. Bidders may submit Bids on items manufactured by an individual/entity other than the manufacturer 

specified so long as an "or equal" is expressly stated. 

26. Deviations to Specifications and Requirements: When Bidding on an "or equal," Bids must be accompanied 
with all descriptive information necessary for an evaluation of the proposed material orequipment such as the 
detailed drawings and specifications, certified operation and test data, and experience records. 

a. Failure of-any Bidder to furnish the data necessary to determine whether the product is equivalent, may 
be cause for rejectioh of the specific item(s) to which it pertains. 

b. All deviations from the specifications must be noted in detail by the Bidder on the Affidavit of Compliance 

20

Item 5.



form, at the time of submittal of Bid. 
c. The absence of listed deviations at the time of submittal of the Bid will hold the Bidder strictly 

accountable to the specifications as written. 
d. Any deviation from the specifications as written and accepted by the City may be grounds for rejection 

of the material and/or equipment when delivered. 

27. Quality Guaranty: If any product delivered does not meet applicable specifications or otherwise fails to compare 
with the quality represented by the Bidder, the Bidder shall retrieve the product from the City as its own 
expense. The Bidder shall refund to the City any money the City has remitted to the Bidder for same. In the 
event the successful Bidder fails or refuses to retrieve the product and refund to the City any money previously 
remitted to the Bidder for such product in accord with the terms of this paragraph, the Bidder shall be 
responsible for the City's attorney fees and other costs it incurs in enforcing its rights under this paragraph. 

28. Quality Terms: The City reserves the right to reject any or all materials if, in its judgment, the item reflects 
unsatisfactory workmanship, manufacturing, or shipping damages. 

29. Tax-Exempt: The City is exempt from sales taxes and Federal Excise Taxes: Missouri Tax ID Number 12492990. 

30. Bid Awards: Awards will be made to the Bidder whose Bid (1) meets the specifications and all other 
requirements of the IFB and (2) is the lowest and best Bid, considering price, delivery, responsibility of the 
Bidder, and all other relevant factors. 

a. Unless otherwise stated in the IFB, cash discounts for prompt payment of invoices will not be considered 
in the evaluation of prices. However, such discounts are encouraged to motivate prompt payment. 

b. As the best interest of the City may require, the right is reserved to make awards by item, group(s) of 
items, all or none or a combination thereof; and to reject any and all Bids or waive any minor or non
material irregularity or technicality in Bids received. 

31. Authorized Product Representation: The successful Bidder(s) by virtue of submitting the name and 
specifications of a manufacturer's product will be required to furnish the named manufacturer's product. By 
virtue of submission of the stated documents, it will be presumed by the City that the Bidder(s) is legally 
authorized to submit and the successful Bidder(s} will be legally bound to perform according to the documents. 

32. Regulations: It shall be the responsibility of each Bidder to assure compliance with OSHA, EPA, Federal, State 
of Missouri, and City rules, regulations, or other requirements, as each may apply. 

a. E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS: All contractors or subcontractors to be utilized by 
Bidder on contracts exceeding five thousand dollars shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program 
with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services and affirm 
that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with 
the contracted services. 

b. Bidders are herein informed that the work to be performed under this IFB is subject to the 
requirements of Section 292.675, RSMo., which requires all contractors or subcontractors 
perform work such to provide and require its on-site employees to complete a ten (lO)hour 
course in construction safety and health approved by the Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration ("OSHA") or a simil.ar program approved by the Missouri Department of Labor 
and Industrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program. The 
training must be completed within sixty (60) days of the date work on the Project commences. 
On-siteemployees found on the worksite without documentation of the required training shall 
have twenty (20) days to produce such documentation. 

c. Pursuant to Section 292.675 RSMo., the successful Bidder shall forfeit to the City as a penalty 
two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00), plus one hundred dollars ($100.00} for each on
site employee employed by it, or any contractors or subcontrc;1ctors hired by it, for each 
calendar day, or portion thereof, Such on-site employee isemployed without the construction 

21

Item 5.



safety training required in the above paragraph. 
d. Section 208.009 RSMo. shall apply to any contracts awarded under this Bid. 

33. Termination of Award: Any failure of the Bidder to satisfy the requirements of the City shall be reason 
fortermination of the award. Any Bid may be rejected in whole or in part for any reason by the City. 

34. Royalties and Patents: The successful Bidder(s) shall pay all royalties and license fees for equipment or 
processes in conjunction with the equipment being furnished. Bidder shall defend all suits or claims for 
infringement of any patent right and shall hold the City harmless from loss on account or cost and 
attorney's fees incurred. 

35. Equal Employment Opportunity Clause: The City of Republic, in accordance with the provision of Title 
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252) and the Regulations of the Department of Commerce (15 
CFR,Part 8) issued pursuant to the aforementioned Civil Rights Act, hereby notifies all Bidders that the 
City takes all reasonably necessary steps to affirmatively ensure that all Bidders, including minority 
businesses, will be afforded full opportunity to submit Bids in response to this IFB and that no Bidder 
will be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in determining the 
successful Bidder for award. 

36. Insurance Requirements: For the duration of any contract awarded under this IFB, (which, for projects 
including any labor, means until the work is completed and accepted by the City; and which, for projects 
involving supply of materials only, means until the materials are delivered and accepted by the City), 
the successful Bidder is required to maintain certain insurance to protect it and the City against risks of 
loss in connection with the Project, as defined more fully below. The Successful Bidder will be required 
to provide the City with proof of insurance that satisfies the requirements stated below, unless 
otherwise specified by the City. The insurance requirements below may be modified or waived by the 
City at the City's sole discretion. 

a. Workers' Compensation: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Employers Liability and Workers 
Compensation Insurance for all persons it will employ or retain to perform any work in 
connection with a contract awarded under this IFB, and in the event the Successful Bidder will 
sublet or subcontract any such work, the Successful Bidder shall require the subcontractor to 
provide similar Workers Compensation Insurance for the subcontractor's employees, unless 
such employees are covered by the Successful Bidder's coverage. Workers Compensation 
coverage shall meet the minimum requirements under Missouri law of $500,000 each 
employee and $500,000 each accident. 

b. Commercial General Liability: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Commercial General 
liability coverage for personal and advertising injury, bodily injury including accidental death, 
and broad-form property damage, which may arise from the performance of any contract 
awarded under this IFB, in an aggregate amount of not less than $2,000,000 each occurrence 
and $1,000,000 each person. 

c. Commercial Automobile liability (applies only to projects involving the Successful Bidder's 
operation of vehicles in performing the work awarded under this IFS): The Successful Bidder 
shall maintain Commercial Automo.bile Liability coverage of not less than $2,000,000 each 
occurrence and $1,000,000 each person for "any auto" on an occurrence basis. 

37. Performance Bond and Labor & Materials Payment Bond (applies only to projects involving labor}: 
Pursuant to Section 107.170, RSMo., if the total cost of the project is estimated to exceed $50,000.00, 
the successful Bidder shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Bond and a Labor and Materials 
Payment Bond with surety, approved by the City and on forms approved by the City, each bond shall be 
in the amount of the total project cost , conditioned upon the full and faithful performance of all major 

22

Item 5.



terms and conditions of the IFB and payment of all labor and material supplies. 

38. Nonresident/Foreign Contractors: To the extent the successful Bidder utilizes non-resident/foreign 
contractors to provide services or supplies in connection with this IFB, the successful Bidder shall 
procure and maintain: 

a. A certificate of authority to transact business in the State of Missouri from the Secretary of 
State, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 351.570, RS Mo. 

b. A certificate from the Missouri Director of Revenue evidencing compliance with the transient 
employer financial assurance law, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 285.230, 
RSMo. 

39. Bid Tabulation: Bidders may request a copy of the Bid tabulation of the IFB. 

40. Budgetary Constraints: The City reserves the right to reduce or increase the quantity, retract any item 
from the Bid, or upon notification, terminate entire agreement without any obligations or penalty based 
upon availability of funds. 

41. Additional Purchases by Other Public Agencies: By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, the Bidder 
authorizes other publicagencies to "Piggy-Back" or purchase equipment and services being proposed in 
this IFB unless otherwise noted on the Affidavit of Compliance Form. 

42. Order of Precedence: Any and all Special/General Conditions and Specifications attached hereto, which 
varies from the instruction to Bidders, shall take precedence. 

43. Affidavit for Service Contracts: The successful Bidderrepresents, in accordance with Secti'on 285.530.2, 
RSMo., that it has not employed, or subcontracted with, unauthorized aliens in connection with the 
scope of work to be done under this IFB and agrees to provide an affidavit to the City of Republic 
affirming that it has not, and will not at any point in time relating to this IFB, knowingly employ, or 
subcontract with, any person who is an unauthorized alien. 

44. Inspection and Acceptance: No item(s) received by the City pursuant to any agreement or contract 
awarded under this IFB shall be deemed accepted by the City until the City has had reasonable 
opportunity to inspect the item(s). 

a. Any item(s) which are discovered to be defective, or which do not conform to any warranty of 
the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the itetn(s), upon inspection, may be 
returned by the City to the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s) for 
full credit and reimbursement or replacement. 

b. If, at a later time, any defect is discovered which was not ascertainable upon the initial 
inspection, the City may also return the defective item(s) to the successful Bidder and/or 
entity/individual who sold the item(s) for full credit and reimbursement or replacement. 

c. The City's return of defective items shall not exclude any other legal, equitable or contractual 
remedies the City has under applicable Missouri or Republic law and/or any agreement or 
contract awarded under this IFB. 

45. Davis-Bacon Act: If the Instructions to Bidders have indicated that the Project is financed, in whole or 
in part, from Federal funds, then all work performed pursuant to any contract awarded under this IFB 
shall be subject to all applicable federal statutes, rules and regulations, including provisions of the 
Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. §3141 et seq., and the "Federal Labor Standards Provisions," incorporated 
into this any agreement or contract awarded under this IFB .. Where the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law 
and the Davis-Bacon Act require payment of different wages for work performed pursuant to any 
contract awarded under this IFB, all contractors, subcontractors and other individuals/entities hired by 
the successful Bidder to perform work under this IFB shall pay the greater of the wages required under 

either law. 

23

Item 5.



46. Jurisdiction and Venue: This IFB and any executed agreement required pursuant to the terms of this 
IFB,. shall be taken and deemed to have been fully executed and made by the parties herein and 
governed by the laws of the State of Missouri for all purposes and intents. Venue under this 
Agreement or any disputes that come from it shall be in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri. 
THE PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL UNDER ANY APPLICABLE STATUTE, 
COMMON LAW OR FEDERAL OR STATE CONSTITUTION. 

47. Conflict of Interest: By participating in this lFB and/or accepting an agreement pursuant to the IFB's 
terms, the successful Bidder certifies that no salaried officer or employee of the City, and no member 
of the City Council or Mayor of the City of Republic, has a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this 
Agreement. Any federal regulations and applicable provisions in Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo. shall 
not be violated. 

48. Sovereign Immunity: In no event shall any language or requirement in this IFB or any Agreement that 
comes from this IFB be construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of City's defenses with regard 
to sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, or official immunity under federal or state 
constitutions, states, and/or laws. 

49. Terms: The City of Republic reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received from this Bid. It 
further has the right to negotiate with any qualified source, or to cancel in part or in its entirety this 
Bid. The City also reserves the right to modify, suspend, or terminate at its sole discretion any and all 
aspects of this bud process, to obtain further information from any and all respondents, and to waive 
any defectsas to form or content of the Bid or any submissions by any firm. This bud does not commit 
the City to award a contract, to defray any costs incurred in the preparation of a response to this 
request, or to procure or contract for services. All submissions become the property of the City as 
public record. All submissions may be subject to public review upon request. 

24

Item 5.



ATTACHMENT A- BID SUBMISSION FORM 

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: 

Item Description of Work Price 

• Waterline Material Bulk bid 

• All Bids to include: 

0 Travel Expenses 

0 Delivery Costs 

0 Administrative costs 

• This bid shall serve from execution, expected on August 
16th, 2022 until December 3i5t, 2023 or until superseded by 

$ Fill out Table on next 

another bid. ~ 

Base Bid Please note any of the following: 

• Any labor personnel requests of the City of Republic 
for this project. 

• Any other requests or responsibilities of the City 

of Republic for this project. 

In compliance with this Invitation for Bid and to all terms, conditions, and specifications imposed therein and hereby 
incorporated by reference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the goods and/or services described herein. 

25

Item 5.



Item Description and Manufacturer Unit$ PRICE FIRM DATE 

Hersey Water Meter S/8"xl/2" 

Hersey Water Meter 1" 

Hersey Water Meter 2" 

Meter Setter S/8"x 1/2" 

Meter Setter 1" 

Meter Setter 1-1/2" 

Meter Setter 2" 

Corp Stqp 3/4" AWWA x 3/4" CTS Compression $34.57 \'i•('}',;':{i:1.2/3';1i/,2:,(,)23?°'X' i'}i,Y" 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitti ng 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

2" FNPT X FNPT 45 $20.04 J)t:~~dt:-,~~7/30tZ02i:'.,!:E;)it''r't"'.' 
3]~} Ftil'Pft;i;'FN@;:'G:o'qp)lng:iJ-1~f,;~"{j:f,t'2{:!;~",;itf':;;'li!~ 1'{!J~2;~t+.tft IJ'-;{ .,,,r., •• _ , , , (, 1,f,~W::t/,}t,/0 o/.t~:olt6l,mei;'(¼,', ~";''' 

26

Item 5.



Item 
Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Pitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Fitting 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Item 
Saddles 

Description and Manufacturer Unit$ 

1-1/2" x 2" Bushing $9.54 i:tr\i];;;_1;';{,;_i;i,f'.3_~/,ZPz3/t;t·:/~J~.\ 
i~\~!~t~ait~fii'P~1:itijJft·t0~i~;;t~i:;g,ti~_ppJ:·;if1i}f~:'.f;:ti/B:i ~?-r~ ~ ~ff4Jl ·-~,~- -.. ,···· .. ···\}:::·,:~_ S~{f1~?f:f}:;1J:ttl~,P/:~fr/!3J~;io/f/tBJ{:\. 
3/4" x 1" Bushing $2.96 

2" FIP Tee $25.23 7/30/2023 

1-1/2" Street45 $17.04 7/30/2023 

2" FIP Cap $12.88 7/30/2023 

1-1/2" FNPT Cap $7.59 7/30/2023 

1" FIP Cap $3.71 7/30/2023 

3/4" FIP Cap $2.37 7/30/2023 

1/2" FIP Cap $1.79 7/30/2023 

a1/;4~~x,~1/iPk1;~Jflj{iJ;'f:iiJ~bjif,y~]~~',\~}tJ}if:~~1d;:.,~:£: §{$S~t*-Ot!~ ;,, ,, '. <".h:i.; :;ntifit~1;~:12Zst}4oi-s:Lr;~~/:1•'.''':,' 
1" x 1" FNPT strait ball valve $84.56 \:}'.;;''•,~:tl>i-it~1:noi3,1;:,;~/~~;;,,t 

8" IPS x 3/4" AWWA Hinged $68.93 i:tt~t,1f.:\:/iltfifl:U/ZPJ3~2i()f{>;:'. 
s1f '.1 r,six~iits-~iM!irifg'eJ~tl!;ifft~i2~ ~-~:k~1w:::lt1;; 1fas-<{a;.$.3lr .-,~. · :,<,1. , ,J. 1;llrfW1J';;~Jtl3'[7.~02.$;::,:*'&t:1't: · 

Description and Manufacturer Unit$ 

12" IPS X 111 AWWA Hinged $176.90 12/31/2023 

27

Item 5.



Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddle~ 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Saddles 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Item 

4" DIPS x 1" AWWA Double Strap $29.04 

~\:i;1Jgl 23t~•fi~WW4'.W-P:ifoti:}~tf.~~~·,t~l'lllt{i?};!ti1 ¥sf~3-,~i,~~:~10 
611 DIPS x 1" AWWA Double Strap $33.36 

28

Item 5.



Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps-

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Item 
Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

1-1/2" DIPS 226 Style 7 1/2" Long 

Smith-Blair 

S.mith-

10" PV 

Smith-B 

no quote 

29

Item 5.



Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Clamps 

Tap saddle 

Tap saddle 

Tap saddle 

Tap saddle 

Tap saddle 

Tap saddle 

Tap saddle 

Tap.saddle 

Tap saddle 

Tap Saddle 

Valve 

Valve 

Valve 

Valve 

Valve 

Valve 

Valve 

Valve 

Valve 

Valve 

Valve 

Valve 

Screw Type Valve Box 

Foster Adaptor 

Foster Adaptor 

Foster Adaptor 

Foster Adaptor 

Foster Adaptor 

Midco 

MJ Restraint 

MJ Restraint 

MJ Restraint 

MJ Restraint 

MJ Restraint 

MJ Restraint 

MJ Restraint 

MJ Restraint 

MJ Restraint 

Item 

MJ Restraint 

Hymax Grip 

Hymax Grip 

Hymax Grip 

Hymax Grip 

Hymax Grip 

Hyrnax Grip $693.58 

30

Item 5.



Fire Hydrant 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fittfng 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

MJ Fitting 

31

Item 5.



Pipe 

Stiffeners 

Stiffeners 

Pipe 

Pfpe 

Pipe 

Pipe 

Pipe 

.Pipe 

Pipe 

Pipe 

Pipe 

Pipe 

Pipe 

Pipe 

Pipe 

Pipe 

Pipe 

Meter Pit 

Meter Pit 

Meter Pit 

Meter Pit 

Meter Pit lid 

Meter Ring 

Meter Ring 

Meter Ring 

Tracer Wire 

Wire Nuts 

32

Item 5.



Gasket 

Gasket 

Gasket 

Gasket 

Gasket 

Gasket 

Gasket 

Gasket 

Gasket 

Gasket 

Gasket 

Gasket 

Bolts 

BRASS ITEMS MUST BE: 

2" MJ 

4" MJ 

6"MJ 

811 MJ 

10" MJ 

12" MJ 

Tee Bolt MJ fittings 3/4X4 t-head 

AV McDonald, Ford, Muller, or Equivalent 

MJ FITTINGS MUST BE: 

Taylor-Sigma or equivalent 

GATE VALVES MUST BE: 

Clow, Muller 

HYDRANTS MUST BE: 

Clow, Muller 
MJ RESTRAINTS MUST BE: 

Mege Lug or equivalent 

$4.70 

$5.64 

$5.64 

$6.11 

$8.45 

$9.39 

$2.03 

12/31/2023 

12/31/2023 

12/31/2023 

12/31/2023 

12/31/2023 

12/31/2023 

12/31/2023 

12/31/2023 

12/31/2023 

12/31/2023 

12/31/2023 

12/31/2023 

12/31/2023 

33

Item 5.



Please outline Fuel adjustment method here or attach (if choosing to do so): 

A 

City of Republic, Missouri r-mpany Legal Name, 

I IFB for: Cone Waterline Material Bulk bid rete as 
requested 8/16/22 through 12/31/23 rddms, 

I 
213 N Main Street 

Republic, MO 65738 

Signature: 

Name and Title: 

Telephone: Dated: 

Cellular: Bidder's Federal ID Number: 

Email: 

34

Item 5.



NOTICE AND INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS/VENDORS 

Regarding Sections 285.525 through 285.550 RSMo., effective January 1, 2009, 

and Section 292.675 RSMo., effective August 28, 2009 

Effective January 1. 2009 and pursuant to Section 285.530(1) of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, "[n]o business entity 

or employer shall knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work 

within the state of Missouri." 

State law additionally provides that, as a condition for the award of any contract or grant in excess of five thousand 

dollars by the state or by any political subdivision of the state (e.g., the City of Republic) to a business entity (e.g., 

potential bidders in response to this IFB), the business entity (Company) shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 

documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the 

employees working in connection with the contracted services. Every such business entity shall sign an affidavit affirming 

that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services. 

See § 285.530(2), RSMo. 

Section 285.530 RSMo. pertains to all solicitations for services over $5,000, but does not apply to solicitations for goods 
only. If a solicitation is for a combination of services and goods, Section 285.530 RSMo. applies if the services portion of 
the solicitation is over $5,000. 

35

Item 5.



1. Required Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00 (US) - Effective 1-1-2009, the company (submitting a 
Bid) shall comply with the provisions of Section 285.525 through 285.550, RSMo., which require certain 
statements to be made under penalty of perjury pertaining to employment of unauthorized aliens. The award 
of any contract under this IFB is expressly contingent on the company (submitting a Bid) providing an 
acceptable, notarized affidavit, stating as follows: 

a. that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with resp.eel 
to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 

b. that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection 
with the contracted services. 

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et 
seq. 

2. Additionally, Company must provide documentation evidencing current enrollment in a federal work 
authorization program (e.g. electronic signature page from E-Verify Program's Memo of Understanding 
(MOU). See attached sample. 

A copy of the required affidavit is included on the following page. A digital copy of the affidavit can also 
be accessed and downloaded from the City of Republic's official website, URL address: 
https://www.republicmo.com/DocumentCenterNiew/77/Affidavit-of-Compliance-with-Section-285500-RSMO
PDF?bidld= 

The City of Republic is an E-Verify employer. The City of Republic encourages companies that are not already enrolled 
and participating in a federal work authorization program to do so. E-Verify is an example of a federal work authorization 
program. Information regarding E-Verify is available at http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify or by calling 888-464-4218. 

36

Item 5.



I\EPUBLIC 
1\.1 I S S () U R l 

G R O W IN G TO G[ T H f:R 

CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 285.500 R.S.MO., ET SEQ. 
FOR ALL AGREEMENTS IN EXCESS OF $5,000.00 

EFFECTIVE 1/1/2009 

STATE OF OKLAHOMA ) 
} ss. 

COUNTY OF _RO_G_E_R_S ___ ) 

Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for the County of _R_O_G_E_R_S'-------' 
State of OKLAHOMA , personally appeared JERRY POPE (Name) 
who is. DISTRICT MANAGER (Title) of _C_O_R_E_~ ___ ~_M_AI_N_L_P _______ _ 
(Name of company}, (corporation), (partnership} , (sole proprietorship), (limited liability company} , and 
after being duly sworn did depose and say: 

(1) that said company is enrolled in and participates fn a federal work authorization program 
with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 

(2) that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien 
in connection with the contracted services. 

The terms used in th is affidavit sha ll have the meaning set forth ln Section 285 .500 R.S, Mo. , et seq . 

Do_cum_entation of participation in a federal work authori~,-~n program is attached to this 

aff1dav1t. ~ . J~-- .. 
Sig ure 
J Y POPE 

Printed Name 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this d9 day-eh...:a..,;.d~=~~--· ,~o{. 
, (" // ) 

(,.. "- , 

.... ----_____ __Jlo{ary Pub lie 

My commission expires : 3 l 1Kla0::1b r.,:!~~-~~~=~~~==!!il 
1 l LEONA MAR IE WOODSON 

Notery Public , Stat e of Olc'llihom• 
Commln ion • 13002609 

My Commission E•11ires 03· 18-Z02tl 

37

Item 5.



Company ID Number:40635 Client Company ID Number:1219073 

THE E-VERIFY 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

FOR EMPLOYERS USING A WEB SERVICES E-VERIFY EMPLOYER AGENT 

ARTICLE I 

PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY 

The parties to this agreement are the Department of Homeland Security (OHS), the Core & Main (Employer}, and the 
Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent. The purpose of this agreement is to set forth terms and conditions which the 
Employer and the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent will follow whi le participating in E-Verify. 

E-Verlfy ls a program that electronically confirms an employee's eligibility to work in the United States after 
completion of Form 1-9, Employment Eligibility Verification (Form 1-9). This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
explains certain features of the E-Verify program and describes specific responsibilities of the Employer, the E-Verify 
Employer Agent, the Social Security Administratiort (SSA), and OHS. 

References in this MOU to the Employer include the Web Services. E-Verify Employer Agent when acting on behalf of 
the Empt.ayer. 

For purposes of this MOU, the E-Verify browser refers to the website that provides direct access to the E-Verify 
system: https:/fe-verify.uscis.gov/emp. You may access E-Verify directly free of charge via the E-Verify browser. 

Authority for the E-Verify program is found in Title IV, Subtitle A, of the Illegal Immigration Reform and Immigrant 
Responsibility Act of 1996 {IIRIRA), Pub. L. 104-208, 110 Stat. 3009, as amended (8 U.S.C. § 1324a note). The 
Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) Subpart 22.18, "Employment Elfgibility Verification" and Executive Order 
12989, as amended, provide authority for Federal contractors and subcontractors (Federal contractor) to use E
Verify to verify the employment eligibility of certain employees working on Federal contracts. 

A, RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE EMPLOYER 

ARTICLE II 

RESPONSIBILITIES 

1. For purposes of this MOU, references to the Employer include the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent 
when acting on behalf of the Employer. 

2. By enrolling in E-Verify and signing the applicable MOU, the Employer asserts that It is a legitimate company 
which intends to use E-Verify for legitimate purposes only and in accordance with the laws, regulations and 
OHS policies and procedures relating to the use of E-Verjfy. 

3. The Employer agrees to display the following notices supplied by OHS (though the Web Services E-Verify 
Employer Agent) in a prominent place that is clearly visible to prospective employees and all employees 
who are to be verified through the system: 

A. Notice of E-Verify Participation 

B. Notice of Right to Work 

4. The Employer agrees to provide to the SSA and OHS the names. titles. ,addresses, and telephone numbers of 
the Employer representatives to be contacted about E-Verify. The Employer also agrees to keep such 
information current by providing updated information to SSA and OHS whenever the representatives' 
contact information changes. 

5. The Employer agrees to become familiar with and comply with the most recent version of theE-Verify User 
Manual. The Employer will obtain the E-Verify User Manual from the. Web ServicesE-Verify Employer· Agent, 
and will be notified by the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent when a new version of the E-Verify Use·r 
Manual becomes available. 

6. The Employer agrees to comply with current Form 1-9 procedures, with two exceptions: 

A. lfan employee presents a "List B" identity document, the Employer agrees to only accept "List B" 
documents that conta in a photo. (List B documents identified in 8 C.F.R. 274a.2(b)(l)(.B)) can be 
presented during the Form 1-9 process to establish identity.) If an employee objects to the photo 

Page l of 17 I E-Verify MOU for Employers Using a Web Services Employer Agent I Revision Dat e 06/01/13 

38

Item 5.



Company ID Number:40635 Client Company ID Number:1219073 

requirement for religious reasons, the Employer should conta.ct E-Verify at 888-464-4218. 

B. If an employee presents a OHS Form 1-551 (Permanent Resident Card), Form 1-766 (Employment 
Authorization Document), or U.S. Passport or Passport Card to complete Form 1-9, the Employer 
agrees to make a photocopy of the document and to retain the photocopy with the employee's Form 
1-9. The Employer will use the photocopy to verify the photo and to assist OHS with its review of 
photo mismatches that employees contest. OHS may In the future designate other documents that 
activate the photo screening tool. 

Note: Subject only to the exceptions noted previously in this paragraph, employees stil l retain the right to 
present any List A, or List B and List C, document(sJ to complete the Form 1-9. 

7. The Employer agrees to record the case verification number on the employee's Form 1-9 or to print the 
screen containing the case verification number and attach It to the employee's Form 1-9. 

8. The Employer agrees that, although it participates in E-Verify, the Employer has a responsibility to 
complete, retain, and make available for inspection Forms 1-9 that relate to its employees, or from other 
requirements of applicable regulations or laws, including the obligation to comply with the antidiscrimination 
requirements of section 274B of the INA with respect to Form 1-9 procedures. 

A. The following modified requirements are the only exceptions to an Employer's obligation to not 
employ unauthorized workers and comply with the anti-discrimination provision of the INA: (1) List B 
identity documents must have photos, as described in paragraph 6 above; (2) When an Employer 
confirms the identity and employment ellgibllity of newly hired employee using E-Verify procedures, 
the Employer establishes a rebuttable presumption that it has not violated section 274A(a)( l)(A) of 
the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA) with respect to the hiring of that employee; (3) If the 
Employer receives a final nonconfirmation for an employee, but continues to employ that person, 
the Employer must notify OHS and the Employer is subject to a civil money penalty between $550 
and $1,100 for each failure to notify OHS of continued employment following a fina l 
nonconfirmation; (4) If the Employer continues to employ an employee after receiving a final 
nonconflrmation, then the Employer is subject to a rebuttable presumption that it has knowingly 
employed an unauthorized alien in violation of section 274A(a)(l }(A); and (5) no E-Verlfy participant 
is clvilly or criminally liable under any law for any action taken in good faith based on information 
provided through the E.-Verify. 

B. OHS reserves the rtght to conduct Form 1-9 compliance inspections. as well as any other 
enforcement or compliance activity authorized by law, including site v isits, to ensure proper use of 
E-Verify. 

9. The Employer is strictly prohibited from creating an E-Verify case before the employee has been hired, 
meaning that a firm offer of employment was extended and accepted and Form 1-9 was completed. The 
Employer agrees to create an E-Verify case for new employees within three Employer business days after 
each employee has been hired (after both Sections 1 and 2 of Form 1-9 have been completed). and to 
complete as many steps of the E-Verify process as are necessary according to the E-Verify User Manual. If E
Verify is temporarily unavailable, the three-day time period will be extended until ft is again operational in 
order to accommodate the Employer's attempting, in good faith, to make inquiries during the period of 
unavailability. 

10. The Employer agrees not to use E-Verify for pre-employment screening of job applicants, in support of any 
unlawful employment practice, or for any other use that this MOU or the E-Verify User Manual does not 
authorize. 

11. The Employer must use E-Verify (through its Web Services E-Verlfy Employer Agent) for all new employees. 
The Employer will not verify selectively and will not verify employees hired before the effective date of this 
MOU. Employers who are Federal contractors may qualify for exceptions to this requirement as described In 
Article 11.B of this MOU. 

12. The Employer agrees to folio~ appropriate procedures (see Article Ill below) regarding tentative 
nonconfirmatlons. The Employer must promptly notify employees in private of the finding and provide them 
with the notice and letter containing information specific to the employee's E-Verify case. The Employer 
agrees to provide both the English and the translated notice and letter for employees witt, limited English 
proficiency to employees. The Employer agrees to provide written referral instructions to employees and 
Instruct affected employees to bring the English copy of the letter to the SSA. The Employer must allow 
employees to contest the finding, and not take adverse action against employees if they choose to contest 
the finding, while their case is still pending .. Further, when employees contest a tentative nonconfirmation 
based upon a photo mismatch, the Employer must take additional steps (see Article 111.B below) to contact 
OHS with information necessary to resolve the challenge. 

13. The Employer agrees not to take any adverse action against an employee based upon the employee's 
perceived employment eligibility status while SSA or OHS Is processing the verification request unless the 

Page 2 of 17 I E-Verlty MOU for Employers Using a Web Services Employer Agent I Revision Date 06/01/13 

39

Item 5.



· E-Verify: __________ .~.~ 
Company ID Number:40635 Oient Company ID Number:1219073 

Employer obtains knowledge (as defined in 8 C.F.R. § 274a .l(I)) that the. employee Is not work authorized. 
The Employer understands that an initial Inability of the SSA or OHS automated verification system to verify 
work authorization, a tentative nonconfirmatlon. a case in continuance (indicating the need for additional 
time for the government to resolve a case). or the finding of a photo mismatch, does not establish, and 
should not be interpreted as, evidence that the employee is not work authorized. In any of such cases, the 
e.mployee must be provided a full and fair opportuni ty to contest the finding, and if he or she does so, the 
employee may not be terminated or suffer any adverse emp loyment consequences based upon the 
employee's perceived employment eligibi lity status (Including denying, reducing, or extending work hours, 
delaying or preventing training, requiring an employee to work in poorer conditions, withholding pay, 
refusing to assign the employee to a Federal contract or other assignment, or otherwise assuming that he or 
she is unauthorized to work) until and unless secondary verification by SSA or OHS has been completed and 
a final nonconfirmation has been issued. If the employee does not choose to contest a tentative 
nonconflrmation or a photo mismatch or if a secondary verification is completed and a final nonconfirmation 
is Issued, then the Employer can find the employee Is not work authorized and terminate the employee's 
employment. Employers or employees with questions about a fina l nonconflrmation may call E-Verify at 1-
888-464-4218 (customer service) or 1-888-897-7781 (worker hotline). 

14. The Employer agrees to comply with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and section 2748 of the INA as 
applicable by not discriminating unlawfully against any individual In hiring, firing, employment eligibility 
verification. or recruitment or referral practices because of his or her national origin or citizenship status. or 
by committing discriminatory documentary practices. The Employer understands that such illegal practices 
can include selective verification or use of E-Verify except as provided in part D below. or discharging or 
refusing to hire employees because they appear or sound "foreign" or have received tentative 
nonconfirmatlons. The Employer further understands that any violation of the immigration-related unfair 
employment practices provisions In section 274B of the INA could subject the Employer to civil penalties. 
back pay awards, and other sanctions, and violations of Title VII could subject the Employer to back pay 
awards, compensatory and punitive damages. Violations of either section 2748 of the INA or Title VII may 
also lead to the termination of its participation In E-Verify. If the Employer has any questions relating to the 
anti-discrimination provision, It should contact OSC at 1-800-255-8155 or 1-800-237-2515 (TDD). 

15. The Employer agrees that it will use the Information it receives from E-Verify (through its Web Services E
Verify Employer Agent) only to confirm the employment eligibility of employees as authorized by this MOU. 
The Employer agrees that i t will safeguard this information. and means of access to it (such as Personal 
Identification Numbers and passwords), to ensure that It is not used for any other purpose and as necessary 
to protect its confidentiality, Including ensuring that it is not disseminated to any person other than 
employees of the Employer who are authorized to perform the Employer's responsibilities under this MOU 
except for such dissemination as may be authorized in advance by SSA or OHS for legitimate purposes. 

16. The Employer agrees to notify OHS immediately in the event of a breach of personal information. Breaches 
are defined as loss of control or unauthorized access to E-Verlfy personal data. All suspected or confirmed 
breaches should be reported by calling 1-888-464-4218 or via email at E-Verify@dhs.gov. Please use 
"Privacy Incident - Password" in the subject line of your email when sending a breach report to E-Verify. 

17. The Employer acknowledges that the information it receives from SSA through its Web ServicesE-Verify 
Employer Agent is governed by the Privacy Act (5 U.S.C. § 552a(i)(l) and (3)) and the Social Security Act (42 
U.S.C. l306(a)). Any person who obtains this Information under false pretenses or uses it for any purpose 
other than as provided for In this MOU may be subject to criminal penalt1es. 

18. The Employer agrees to cooperate with OHS and SSA In their compliance monitoring and evaluation of E
Verify, which lndudes permitting OHS, SSA, their contractors and other agents, upon reasonable notice, to 
review Forms 1-9 and other employment records and to interview it and its employees regarding the 
Employer's use of E-Verify, and to respond In a prompt and accurate manner to OHS requests for 
information relating to their participation jn E-Verify. 

19. The Employer shall not make any false or unauthorized claims or references about its participation in E
Verify on its website. in advertising materials, or other media. The Employer shall not describe its services 
as federally-approved, federally-certified, or federally-recognized, or use language with a similar intent on 
its website or other materials provided to the public. Entering into this MOU does not mean that E-Verify 
endorses or authorizes your E-Verify services and any cla im to that effect Is false . 

20. The Employer shall not state in its website or other public documents that any language used therein has 
been provided or approved by OHS, USCIS or the Verification Division. without first obtaining the prior 
written consent of OHS. 

21. The Employer agrees that E-Verify trademarks and logos may be used only under license by DHS/USCIS (see 
M-795 (w.e.b.l) and, other than pursuant to the specific terms of such license, may not be used in any 
manner that might imply that the Employer's services, products, websites, or publications are sponsored by, 
endorsed by, licensed by, or affiliated with OHS, USCIS. or E-Verlfy. 

22. The Employer understands that If It uses E-Verlfy procedures for any purpose other than as authorized by 

Page 3 of 17 I E-Verlfy MOU for Employers Uslhg a Web Services Employer.Agent t Revision Date 06/01/13 

40

Item 5.



Company ID Number:40635 Client Company ID Number:1219073 

this MOU, the Employer may be subject to appropriate legal action and termination of its participation in E
Verify according to this MOU. 

B. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE WEB SERVICES E-VERIFY EMPLOYER AGENT 

1. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to complete its Web Services Interface no later than six 
months after the date the Web Services User signs this MOU. E-Verify considers your interface to be 
complete once it has been buift pursuant to the Interface Control Agreement (ICA). submitted to E-Verify for 
testing, and approved for system access. 

2. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to perform sufficient maintenance on the Web Services 
interface in accordance with the requirements listed in the ICA. These requirements include, but are not 
limited to, updating the Web Services interface to ensure that any updates .or enhancements are 
incorporated no later than six months after the issuance of an ICA. Web Services E-Verify Employer Agents 
should be aware that this will require the investment of t ime and resources. Compliance with the 
requirements of the ICA must be carried out to the satisfaction of OHS and or its assignees. 

3. The Web services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to provide to SSA and/or OHS the names, titles, 
addresses, e-mail addresses, and telephone numbers of the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent 
representative who will access information. as well as ensure cooperation, communication, and coordination 
with E-Verify. In addition, Web Services E-Verify Employer Agents must provide to SSA and/or OHS the 
names, titles, addresses, and telephone numbers of its clients and their staff who will access Information 
through E-Verify. Web Services E-Verify Employer Agents must ensure the contact information is updated 
with SSA and OHS whenever the points of contact change. 

4. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to become familiar with and comply with theE-Verify User 
Manual and provide a copy of the most current version of t he manual to the Employer so that the Employer 
can become familiar with and comply with E-Verify policy and procedures. The Web Services E-Verify 
Employer Agent agrees to obtain a revised E-Verify User Manual as it becomes available and to provide a 
copy of the revised version to the Employer no later than 30 days after the manual becomes available. 

5 . The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees that any person accessing E-Verify on its behalf is trained 
on the most recent E-Verify policy and procedures. 

6. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees that any of its representatives who will perform 
employment verification cases will complete the E-Verify Tutorial before that individual initiates any cases. 

A. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees that all of its representatives will take the 
refresher tutorials initiated by E-Verify as a condition of continued use of E-Verify, including any 
tutorials for Federal contractors, if any of the Employers represented by the Web Services E-Verify 
Employer Agent is a Federal contractor. 

B, Failure to complete a refresher tutoria l will prevent the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent and 
Employer from continued use of E-Verlfy. 

7. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to grant E-Verlfy access only to current employees who 
need E-Verify access. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent must promptly terminate an employee's E
Verify access If the employee.is separated from the company or no longer needs access to E-Verify. 

8. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to obtain the necessary equipment to use E- Verify as 
required by the E-Verify rules and regulations as modified from time to time. 

9. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to, consistent with applicable laws, regulations, and 
policies. commit sufficient personnel and resources to meet the requ irements of th1s MOU. 

10. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to provide its clients with t raining on E-Verify processes, 
policies, and procedures. The E-Verify Employer Agent also agrees to provide its clients with ongoing E
Verify training as needed. E-Verify is not responsible for providing training to clfents of E-Verify Employer 
Agents. 

11. The Web Serv.ices E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to provide the Employer with the notices described in 
Article 11.B.2 below. 

12. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to create E-Verify cases for the Employer it represents in 
accordance with the E-Verify Manual, the E-Verify Web-Based Tutorial and all ot her published E-Verlfy rules 
and procedures. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent will createE-Verify cases using information 
provrded by the Employer and will immediately communicate the response back to the Employer. If E-Verify' 
is temporarily unavailable, the three-day time period will be extended until it is again operational in order to 
accommodate the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent's attempting, in good faith, to make inquiries on 
behalf of the Employer during the period of unavailability. If, however, the Web Services Interface is 
unavailable due to no fault of E-Verify, then the three-day time period is not extended. In such a case. the 
Web Services E-Verify Emplo~er Agent must use the E-Verify browser during the outage. 

Page 4 of 17 I E-Verlfy MOU for Employers Using a Web Services Employer Agent I Revision Di!ite 06/01/13 

41

Item 5.



Company ID Number:40635 Client Company ID Number:1219073 

13. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to ensure that all notices, referral letters and any other 
materials otherwise including Instructions regarding tentative nonconfirmations, will be consistent with the 
most current E-Verify tentative nonconfirmation notices and referral fetters, which are available on E-Verify's 
website. 

14. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees that any system or interface It develops will follow the 
steps for creating E-Verify cases and processing tentative nonconfirmations, as laid out in the ICA. this MOU 
and the User Manual, including but not limited to allowing an employer to close an invalid case w.here 
appropriate, allowing an employer to refer a tentative nonconfirmation only when an employee chooses to 
contest a tentative nonconfirmation (no automatic referrals), and referring a tenta tive nonconfirmation to 
the appropriate agency at the time the employer prints the referral letter and provides the letter to the 
employee. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent understands that any failure to make Its system or 
interface consistent with proper E-Verify procedures can result in DHS terminating the Web Services E-Verify 
Employer Agent's agreement and access with or without notice. 

15. When the Web Services E-Verlfy Employer Agent receives notice from a client company that it has received 
a contract with t he FAR clause, then the Web Services E-Verlfy Employer Agent must update the company's 
E-Verify profile within 30 day5 of the contract award date. 

16. If data is transmitted b.etween the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent and its client. then the Web 
Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to protect personally identifiable information during transmission 
to and from the Web Services E-Verify Emploter Agent. 

17. Toe Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to notify DHS immediately in the event of a breach of 
personal information. Breaches are defined as loss of control or unauthorized access toE-Verify pers-onal 
data. All suspected or confirmed breaches should be· reported by calling 1-888-464-4218 or via email at . 
Please use "Privacy Incident - Password" in the subject line of your email when sending a breach report to E
Verify. 

18. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to fully cooperate with DHS and SSA in their compliance 
monitoring and evaluation of E-Verify, including permitting DHS. SSA, their contractors and other agents, 
upon reasonable notice, to review Forms 1-9, employment records, and all records pertaining to the Web 
Services E-Verify Employer Agent's use of E-Verify, and to interview it and its employees regarding the use 
of E-Verify, and to respond in a timely and accurate manner to DHS requests for information relating to their 
participation in E-Verify. 

A. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to cooperate With DHS If OHS requests 
Information about the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent's interface, including requests by DHS 
to view the actual interface operated by the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent as well as 
related business documents. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to demonstrate for 
DHS the functionality of its interface to E-Verify upon request. 

B. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to demonstrate, If requested by DHS, that it has 
provided tra ining to its clients that meets E-Verify standards. Tra ining programs must provide a 
focused study of the topics covered in the E-Verify User Manual and pertinent Supplemental Guides. 
Furthermore, training programs and materials must be updated as E-Verify changes occur. The Web 
Services E-Verlfy Employer Agent is encouraged to incorporate information from existing E-Verify 
materials, Including the Enrollment Quick Reference •Guide, the E-Verify Employer Agent Client 
Handbook (formerly known as the Designated Agent Client Handbook), and existing tutorials and 
manuals into their training program. E-Verify als.o encourages the Web Services E-Verify Employer 
Agent to supervise first-time use of the E-Verl fy browser or Web Services interface by its staff and 
Employer clients as part of any training program. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees 
to submit its training program materials to OHS for review upon request. 

Failure to provide adequate training could, in some instances, lead to penalties as described In 
Article V.F.l. ofthis MOU. 

19. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent shall not make any false or unauthorize.d claims or references 
about its participation in E-Verify on its website, in advertising materials, or other media. The Web Services 
E-Verify Employer Agent shall not describe its services as federally-approved, federa lly-certified, or 
federally-rec.ognized, or use language with a similar intent on its website or Other materials provided to the 
public. Entering into this MOU does not mean that E-Verify endorses or authorizes your Web Services E
Verify Employer Agent services and any claim to that effect is false. 

2.0. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent shall not state in its website or other public documents that any 
language used therein has been provided or approved by DHS, USCIS or the Verification Division, without 
first obtaining the prior written consent of DHS. 

21. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees that E-Verlfy t rademarks and logos may be used only 
under license by DHS/USCIS (see ) and, other than pursuant to the specific terms of such lltense, may not 

Page 5 of 17 I E-Verlfy MOU for Employers Using .a Web Services Employer Agent I Revision Date 06/01/13 

42

Item 5.



Company 10 Number:40635 Client Company ID Number:1219073 

be used in any manner that might imply that the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent's services, products, 
websites, or publications are sponsored by, endorsed by, licensed by, or affiliated with OHS, USCIS., or E· 
Verify. . 

22. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent understands that If it uses E-Verify procedures for any purpose 
other than as authorized by this MOU, the Web 'Services E-Verify Employer Agent may be subject to 
appropriate legal action and termination of its participation in E-Verify according to this MOU. 

C. RESPONSIBILITIES OF FEDERAL CONTRACTORS 

The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent shall ensure that the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent and the 
Employers it represents carry out the following responsibilities if the Employer Is a Federal contractor or becomes a 
federal contractor. The Web Services E-Verlfy Employer Agent should instruct the client to keep the Web Services E
Verify Employer Agent informed about any changes or updates related to federal contracts, It is the Web Services E
Verify Employer Agent's responsibility to ensure that its clients are in compliance with all E-Verify policies and 
procedures. 

l. If the Employer is a Federal contractor with the FAR E-Verify clause subject to the employment verification 
terms in Subpart 22.18 of the FAR, it will become. familiar with and comply with the most current version of 
the E-Verify User Manual for Federal Contractors as well as th.e E-Verify Supplemental Guide for Federal 
Contractors. 

2. In addition to the respons-ibilities of every employer outlined in this MOU, the Employer understands that if it 
is a Federal contractor subject to the employment verification terms in .Subpart 22.18 of'the FAR it must 
verify the employment eligibility of any "employee assigned to the contract" (as defined in FAR 22.1801). 
Once an employee has been verified through E-Verify by the Employer, the Employer may not reverify the 
employee through E-Verify. 

A. An Employer that is not enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal contractor at the time of a contract award 
must enroll as a Federal contractor in the E-Verify program within 30 calendar days of contract 
award and, within 90 days of enrollment, begin to verify employment eligibility of new hires using E· 
Verify. The Employer must verify those employees who are working in the United States, Whether or 
not they are assigned to the contract. Once the Employer begins verifying new hires, such 
verification of new hires must be initiated within three business days after the hire date. Once 
enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal contractor, the Employer must begin verification of employees 
assigned to the contract within 90 calendar days after the date of enrollment or within 30 days of an 
employee's assignment to the contract, whichever date is later. 

8. Employers enrol led In E-Verify as a Federal contractor for 90 days or more at the time of a contract 
award must use E-Verify to begin verification of employment elig ibility for new hires of the Employer 
who are working In the United States, whether or not assigned to the contract, within three business 
days after the date of .hire. If the Employer is enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal contractor for 90 
calendar days or less at the time of contract award, the Employer must, within 90 days of 
enrollment, begin to use E-Verify to initiate verification of new hires of the contractor who are 
working In the United States, whether or not assigned to the contract. Such verification of new hires 
must be initiated within three b.usiness days after the date of hire. An Employer enrolled as a 
Federal contractor in E-Verify must begin verification of each employee assigned to the contract 
within 90 calendar days after date of contract award or within 30 days after assignment to the 
contract, whichever is later. 

C. Federal contractors that are institutions of higher education (as defined at 20 U.S.C. lOOl(a)). state 
or local governments, governments of Federally recognized Indian tribes, or sureties performing 
under a takeover agreement entered into with a Federal agency under a performance bond may 
choose to only verify new and existing employees assigned to the Federal contract. Such Federal 
contractors may, however, elect to verify all new hires, and/or all existing employees hired after 
November 6, 1986. Employers in this category must begin verification of employees assigned to the 
contract Within 90 ca lendar days after the date of enrollment or within 30 days of an employee's 
assignment to the contract, whichever date is later. 

0. Upon enrollment. Employers who are Federal contractors may elect to verify employment eligibility 
of all existing employees working in the United States who were hired after November 6, 1986, 
instead of verifying only those employees assigned to a covered Federal contract. After enrollment, 
Employers must elect to verify existing staff following OHS procedures and begin E-Verify 
verification of all existing employees within 180 days after the election. 

E. The Employer may use a previously completed Form 1-9 as the basis for creating an E-Verify case for 
an employee assigned to a contract as long as: 

i. That Form 1-9 is complete (including the SSN) and complies with Article 11.A,6, 

Ii. The employee's work authorization has not expired, and 
Page 6 of 17 I E-Verify MOU for Employers Usirig a Web Services Employer Agent I Revlslo.n Date 06/01/13 

43

Item 5.



Company ID Number:40635 Client Company ID Number:1219073 

ii.i. The Employer has reviewed the information reflected in the Form 1-9 either in person or in 
communications with the employee to ensure that the employee's Section 1, Form 1-9 
attestation has not changed (including, but not limited to. a lawful permanent resident alien 
having become a naturalized U.S. citizen). 

F. The· Employer shall cqmplete a new Form 1-9 consistent with Article 11.A.6 or update the previous 
Form 1-9 to provide the necessary information if: 

I. The Employer cannot determine that Form 1-9 complies "with Article 11.A.6, 

ii. The employee's basis for work authorization as attested in Section l has expired or changed, 
or 

iii. The Form 1-9 co.ntains no SSN or is otherwise incomplete. 

Note: If Section l of Form 1-9 Is otherwise valid and up-to-date and the f.orm otnerwise 
complies with Article 11.C.5, but reflects documentation (such as a U.S. passport or Form 1-
551) that expired after completing Form 1-9, the Employer shall not require the production of 
additional documentation. or use the photo screening tool described in Article 11.A.S, subject 
to any additional or superseding instructions that may be provided on this subject in the E
Verify User Manual. 

G. Toe Employer agrees not to require a second verification using E-Verify of any assigned employee 
who has previously been verified as a newly hired employee under this MOU or to authorize 
verification of any existing employee by any Employer that is not a Federal contractor based on this 
Article. 

3. The Employer understands that if it is a Federal contractor, its compliance with this MOU is a performance 
requirement under the terms of the Federal contract or subcontract, and the Employer consents to the 
release of Information relc1ting to compliance with its verification responsibilities under this MOU to 
contracting officers or other officials authorized to review the Employer's compliance with Federal 
contracting requirements. · 

D. RESPONSIBILITIES OF SSA 

l. SSA agrees to allow OHS to compare data provided by the employer- (through the E-Verify Employer Agent) 
against SSA's database. SSA sends OHS confirmation that the data sent either matches or does not match 
the information in SSA's database. 

2. SSA agrees to safeguard the Information the Employer provides (through the !:-Verify Employer Agent) 
through E-Verify procedures. SSA also agrees to limit access to such information, as is appropriate by law, to 
individuals responsible for the verification of Social Security numbers or responsible for evaluation of E
Verify or such other persons or entities who may be authorized by SSA as governed by the Privacy Act (5 
U.S.C. § 552a). the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 1306(a)). ar\d SSA regulations (20 CFR Part 401) . 

3. SSA agrees to provide case results from its database within three Federal Government work days of the 
initial inquiry. E-Verify provides the information to the E-Verify Employer Agent. 

4. SSA agrees to update SSA records as necessary If the employee who contests the SSA tentative 
nonconfirmatlon visits an SSA field office and provides the required evidence. If the employee visits an SSA 
field office within the eight Federal Government work days from the date of referral to SSA, SSA agrees to 
update SSA records, if appropriate, within the eight-day period unless SSA determines that more than eight 
days may be necessary. In such cases, SSA will provide additional instructions to the employee. If the 
employee does not visit SSA In the time allowed, E-Verify may provide a final nonconfirmation to the E-Verify 
Employer Agent. 

Note: If an Employer experiences technical problems, or has a policy .. question, the employer should contact 
E-Verify at 1-888-464-4218. 

E. RESPONSIBILITIES OF OHS 

1. OHS agrees to provide the Employer with selected data from OHS databases to enable the Employer 
(through the E-Verify Employer Agent) to conduct, to the extent authorized by th is MOU: 

A. Automated verification checks on alien employees by electronic means, and 

B. Photo verification checks (when available) on employees. 

2. OHS agrees to assist the E-Verify Employer Agent with operational problems associated with its participation 
in E-Verify. OHS agrees to provide the E-Verify Employer Agent names, titles, addresses, and telephone 
numbers of OHS representatives to be contacted during the E-Verify process. 

3. OHS agrees to provide to the E-Verify Employer Agent with access to E-Verify training materials as well as 

Page 7 of 17 I E-Verlfy MOU for Employers Using a Web Services Employer Agent I Revision Date 06/01/13 

44

Item 5.



Company ID Number:40635 Client Company ID Number:1219073 

an E-Verlfy User Manual that contain instructions on E-Verify policies. procedures, and requirements for both 
SSA and OHS. including restrictions on the use of E-Verffy. 

4. OHS agrees to train E-Verify Employer Agents on all important changes made to E-Verlfy through the use of 
mandatory refresher tutorials and updates to the E-Verlfy User Manual. Even without changes to E-Verify. 
OHS reserves the right to require E-Verify Employer Agents to take mandatory refresher tutorials. 

5. OHS agrees to provide to the Employer (through the E-Verify Employer Agent) a notice, which indicates the 
Employer's participation in E-Verify. OHS also agrees to provide to the Employer anti-discrimination notices 
issued by the Office of Special Counsel for Immigration-Related Unfair Employment Practices (OSC). Civil 
Rights Division, U.S. Department of Justice. 

6. OHS agrees to issue each of the E-Verify Employer Agent's E-Verify users a unique user identification 
number and password that permits them to log in to E-Verify. 

7. OHS agrees to safeguard the information the Employer provides (through the E-Verify Employer Agent). and 
to limit access to such information to Individuals responsible for the verification process, for evaluation of E
Verify, or to such other persons or entities as may be authorized by applicable law. Information will be used 
only to verify the accuracy of Social Security numbers and employment eligibility, to enforce the INA and 
Federal criminal laws, and to administer Federal contracting requirements. 

8. OHS agrees to provide a means of automated verification that provides (in conjunction with SSA verification 
procedures) confirmation or tentative nonconfirmation of employees' employment eligibility within three 
Federal Government work days of the initial Inquiry. 

9. OHS agrees to provide a means of secondary verification (Including updating OHS records) for employees 
who contest OHS tentative nonconfirmations and photo mismatch tentative nonconfirmations. This provides 
final confirmation or nonconfirmation of the employees' employment eliglbillty within 10 Federal 
Government work days of the date of referral to OHS, unless OHS determines that more than 10 days may 
be necessary. In such cases, OHS will provide additional verification instructions. 

ARTICLE 111 

REFERRAL OF INDIVIDUALS TO SSA AND OHS 

A. REFERRAL TO SSA 

1. If the Employer receives a tentative nonconfirmation Issued by SSA, the Employer must print the notice as 
directed by E-Verify. The Employer must promptly notify employees in private of the finding and provide 
them with the notice and letter containing information specific to the employee's· E-Verify case. The 
Employer also agrees to provide both the English and the translated notice and letter for employees with 
limited English proffciency to employees. The Employer agrees to provide written referral instructions to 
employees and instruct affected employees to bring the English copy of the letter to the SSA. The Employer 
must allow employees to contest the finding, and not take adverse action against employees if they choose 
to contest the finding, while their case is still pending. 

2. The Employer agrees to obtain the employee's response about whether he or she will contest the tentative 
nonconfirmation as soon as possible after the Employer receives the tentative nonconfirmation. Only the 
employee may determine whe.ther he or she will contest the tentative nonconfirmatlon. 

3. After a tentative nonconfirmation. the Employer will refer employees to SSA field offices only as directe·d by 
E-Verify. The Employer must record the case verification number, review the employee information 
submitted to E-Verlfy to identify any errors, and find out whether the employee contests the tentative 
nonconfirmation. The Employer will transmit the Social Security number, or any other corrected employee 
information that SSA requests , to SSA for verification again if this review indicates a need to do so. 

4. The Employer will instruct the employee to visit an SSA office within eight Federal Government work days. 
SSA will electronically transmit the result of the referral to the Employer within 10 Federal Government work 
days of the referral unless It determines that more than 10 days is necessary. 

s . While waiting for case results, the Employer agrees to check the E-Verlfy system regular ly for case updates. 

6. The Employer agrees not to ask the employee to obtain a printout from the Social Security Administration 
number database (the Numident) or other written verification of the SSN from the SSA. 

B. REFERRAL TO OHS 

1. If the Employer receives a tentative nonconfirmation issued by OHS. the Employer must promptly notify 
employees in private of the finding and provide them with the notice and letter containing information 
specific to the employee's E-Verify case. The Employer also agrees to provide both the English and the 
translated notice and letter for employees with limited English proficiency to employees. The Employer must 
allow employees to contest the finding, and not take adverse action against employees if they choose to 

Page 8 of 17 ·1 E-Verffy MOU for Employers Using a Web Services Employer Agent l Revision Date 06/01/13 

45

Item 5.



E-Verif~ _______ ia .. ~ 
Company ID Number:40635 Client Company ID Number:1219073 

contest the finding, while their case is still pending. 

2. The Employer agrees to obtain the employee's response about whether he or she wil l contest the tentative 
nonconfirmation as soon as possible after the Employer receives the tentative nonconfi rmation. Only t he 
employee may determine whether he or she will contest the tentative nonconfi rmation. 

3. The Employer agrees to refer individuals to OHS only when the. employee chooses t o contest a tentative 
nonconflrmation. 

4. It the employee contests a tentative nonconfirmation issued by OHS, the Employer will instruct the 
employee to contact OHS through its toll-free hotline (as found on the referra l letter) wi thin eight Federal 
Government work days. 

5. If the Employer finds a photo mismatch, the Employer must provide the photo mismatch tentative 
nonconfirmation notice and follow the instructions outlined in paragraph 1 of this section for tentative 
nonconfirmations, generally. 

6. The Employer agrees that if an employee contests a tentative nonconfirmation based upon a photo 
mismatch, the Employer will send a copy of the employee's Form 1-551, Form 1-766, U.S. Passport, or 
passport card to OHS for review by: 

A. Scanning and uploading the document, or 

B. Sending a photocopy of the document by express mail (furnished and paid for by the employer). 

7. The Employer understands that if it cannot determine whether there is a photo match/mismatch, the 
Employer must forward the employee's documentation to OHS as described in the preceding paragraph. The 
Employer agrees to resolve the case as specified by the OHS representative who will determine the photo 
match or mismatch. 

8. OHS will electronically transmit the result of the referral to the Employer within 10 Federal Government work 
days of the referral unless it determines that more than 10 days is necessary. 

9. While waiti ng for case results, the Employer agrees to check the E-Verlfy system regularly for case updates. 

A. NO SERVICE FEES 

ARTICLE IV 

SERVICE PROVISIONS 

1. SSA and OHS will not charge the Employer or the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent for verification 
services performed under this MOU. The Employer is responsible for providing equipment needed to make 
inquiries. To access E-Verify, an Employer will need a personal computer with Jnternet access. 

ARTICLE V 

SYSTEM SECURITY AND MAINTENANCE 

A. DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 

1. Software developed by Web Services E-Verify Employer Agents must comply with federally-mandated 
Information security policies and industry security standards to include but not limited to: 

2. Public Law 107-347, "E-Government Act of 2002, Title 111., Federal Informat ion Security Management Act 
(FISMA)," December 2002. 

3. Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Memorandum (M-10-15). " FY 2010 Reporting Instructions for the 
Federal Information Security Management Act and Agency Privacy Management," April 2010. 

4. National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) Special Publication (SP) and Federal Information 
Processing Standards Publication (FIPS). 

5. International Organization for Standardization/International Electrotechnical Commission (150/IEC) 27002, 
Information Technology - Security Techniques - Code of Practice for Information Securi ty Management. 

6. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to update its Web Services interface to reflect system 
enhancements within six months from the date OHS notifies the Web Services User of the system update. 
The Web Services User will receive notice from DHS in the form of an Interface Control Agreement (ICA). The 
Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to institute changes to its Interface as identified in the ICA, 
including all functionality identified and all data elements detailed therein. 

7. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to demonstrate progress of Its efforts to update its Web 
Services interface if and when DHS requests such progress reports. 

Page 9 of l 7 I E,Verify MOU for Employers Using a Web Services Employer Agent I Revision Date 06/01/13 

46

Item 5.



Company ID Number:40635 Client Company ID Number:1219073 

8. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent acknowledges that if its system enhancements are not 
completed to the satisfaction of OHS or its assignees within six months from the date OHS notifies the Web 
Services User of the system update, then the Web Services User's E-Verify account may be suspended, and 
support for previous releases of E-Verify may no longer be available to the Web Services User. The Web 
Services E-Verify Employer Agent also acknowledges that OHS may suspend the Web Services User·s 
account after the six-month period has elapsed. 

9. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to incorporate error handling logic into Its development 
or so~ware to accommodate and act In a timely fashion should an error code be returned. 

10. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to complete the technical requ irements testing which is 
confirmed upon receiving approval of test data and connectivity between the Web Services E-Verify 
Employer Agent and OHS. 

11. OHS will not reimburse any Web Servlces E-Verify Employer Agent or software developer who has expended 
resources in the development or maintenance of a Web Services interface if that party is unable, or 
becomes unable, to meet any of the requirements set forth in this MOU. 

12. Housing, development, infrastructure, maintenance, and testing of the Web Services app.lications may take 
place outside the United States and Its territories, but testing must be cohducted to ensure that the code is 
correct and secure. 

l3, If the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent includes an electronic Form 1-9 as part of its interface, then it 
must ccim_ply with the standards for electronic retention of Form 1-9 found In 8 CFR 274a.2(e). 

8. INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

Web Services E-Verify Employer Agents performing verification services under this MOU must ensure that 
information that Is shared between the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent and OHS is appropriately protected 
comparable to the protection provided when the informaUon is within the OHS environment [0MB Circular A-130 
Appendix Ill]. 

To achieve this level of information se.curity, the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to institute the 
following procedures: 

1. Conduct periodic assessments of risk, Including the magnitude of harm that could result from the 
unauthortzed access, use, disclosure, disruption, modification, or destruction of information and information 
systems that support the operatlons and assets of the OHS, SSA, and the Web S.ervicesE-Verify Employer 
Agent and Its clients; 

2. Develop policies and procedur:es that are based on risk assessments, cost-effectively reduce information 
security risks to an acceptable ievel, and ensure that information security is addressed throughout the life 
cycle of each organizational information system; 

3. Implement subordinate plans for providing adequate information security for networks, facilities. information 
systems, or groups of i'nformation systems, as appropriate; 

4. Conduct security awareness training to inform the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent's personnel 
(including Contractors and other users of information systems that support the operations and assets of the 
organization) of the Information security risks associated with their activities and their responsibi lities in 
complying with organizational policies and procedures designed to reduce these risks; 

5. Develop perio.dic testing and evaluation of the effectiveness of information security policies, procedures, 
practices, and security controls to be performed with a frequency depending on risk, but no less than once 
per year; 

6, Develop a process for planning, implementing, evaluating, and documenting remedial actions to address 
any deficiencies in the information security policies, procedures, and practices of the organization; 

7. Implement procedures for detecting, reporting, and responding to security incidents; 

8. Create plans and procedures to ensure continuity of operations for information systems that support the 
operations and assets of the organization; 

9. In information-sharing environments, the informatl'on owner is responsible for establ ishing the rules fo r 
appropriate use and protection of the subject in formation and retains that responsibility even when the 
information is shared with or provided to other organizations (NIST SP 800-37]. 

10. OHS reserves th.e right to restrict Web Services calls from certain IP addresses. 

11. DHS reserves the right to audit the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent's application. 

12. Web Services E-Verify Employer Agents and Software Developers agree to cooperate willingly with the DHS 
assessment of information security and privacy practices used by the company to develop and maintain the 

Page 10 of 17 I E-Verify MOU for E'mployers Using a Web Services Employer Agent I Revision Date 06/0l/13 

47

Item 5.



company ID Number:40635 Client Company ID Number:1219073 

software. 

C. DATA PROTECTION AND PRIVACY REQUIREMENTS 

1. Web services E-Verify Employer Agents must practice proper Internet s.ecurity; this means using HTTP over 
SSLJTLS (also known as HTTPS) when accessing DHS information resources such as E-Verlfy [NIST SP 800-
95). Internet security practices like this are necessary because Simple Object Access Protocol (SOAP}, which 
provides a basic messaging frc1mework on which Web Services can be built. allows messages to be viewed 
or modified by attackers as messages traverse the Internet and is not Independently designed with all the 
necessary security protocols for E-Verify use. 

2. In accordance with DHS standards, the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to maintain. physical, 
electronic, and procedural safeguards to appropriately protect the informatfon shared under this MOU 
against loss, theft, misuse, unauthorized access, and improper disclosure, copying use, modification or 
deletion. 

3. Any data transmission requiring encryption shall comply with the following standards: 

A. Products using FIPS 197 Advanced Encryption Standard (AES} algorithms with at least 256-bit 
encryption that has been validated under FIPS 140-2. 

B. NSA Type 2 or Type 1 encryption. 

4. User ID Management (Set Standard): All information exchanged between the parties under this MOU will be 
done only through authorized Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent representatives identified above. 

5. The Web Services E-Verffy Employer Agent agrees to use the E-Verlfy browser Instead of its own Interface if 
it has not yet upgraded its interface to comply with the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) system 
changes. In addition, Web Services E-Verify Employer Agents whose interfaces do not support the Form 1-9 
from 2/2/2009 or 8/7/2009 should also use the E-Verify browser until the system upgrade is completed. 

6. The Web Servfces E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to us.e the E-Verlfy browser Instead of Its own interface if 
it has not completed updates t.o its system within six months from the date DHS notifies the Web Services E
Verify Employer Agent of the system update. The Web Services E-VerHy Employer Agent can resume use of 
Its Interface once ft Is up-to-date, unless the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent has been suspended or 
terminated from continued use of the system. 

D, COMMUNICATIONS 

1. Web Services E-Verify Employer Agents and Software Developers agree to develop an electronic system 
that is not subject to any agreement that would restrict access to and use of by an agency of the United 
States. 

2. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to develop effective controls to ensure the integrity, 
accuracy and reliability of its electronic system. 

3. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to develop an inspection and quality assurance program 
that regularly, .at least once per year, evaluates the electronic system, and includes periodic checks of 
electronically stored information. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to share the results of 
its regular inspection and quality assurance program with OHS upon request. 

4. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to develop an electronic system with the ability to 
produce legible copies of applicable notices, letters, etc. 

5. All information exchanged between the parties under this MOU will be In accordance with applicable laws, 
regulations, and policies, Including but not limited to, information security guidelines of the sending party 
with respect to any informatior:i that is deemed fSersonalfy Identifiable Information {PII), including but not 
limited to the employee or applicant's Social Security number, alien number, date of birth, or other 
information that may be used to 'identify the individual. 

6. Suspected and confirmed information security breaches must be reported to DHS according to Article 
lf.A.17. Reporting such breache.s does not relieve the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent from further 
requirements as directed by state and local law. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent is subject to 
applicable state laws regarding data protection and incident reporting in addition to the requirements 
herein. 

E, SOFTWARE DEVELOPER RESTRICTIONS 

1. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees that if it develops a Web Services .interface and sells such 
interface, then it can be held liable for any misuse by the company that purchases the Interface. It is the 
responsibility of the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent to ensure that its interface is used In accordance 
with E-Verify policies and procedures. 

Page 11 of 17 IE-Verify MOU for Employers Using a Web Services Employer Agent I Revision Oate 06/01/13 

48

Item 5.



Company ID Number:40635 Client Company ID Number:1219073 

2. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to provide software updates to each client who purchases 
its software, Because of the frequency Web Services updates, an ongoing relationship between the so*ware 
developer and the client is necessary. 

3. DHS reserves the right to terminate the access of any software developer with or without notice who creates 
or uses an interface that does not comply with E-Verify procedures. 

4. Web Services Software Developers pursuing software development independent of serving clients as a Web 
Services E-Verify Employer Agent are not eligible to receive an !CA. At this time. E-Verify does not per mit 
Web Services software development without also being a Web Services E-Verjfy Employer Agent or Web 
Services Employer. 

F. PENALTIES 

1. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees that any failure on its part to comply with the terms of 
the MOU may result in account suspension, termination, or other adverse action. 

2. OHS is not liable for any financial losses to Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent, Its clients, or any other 
party as a result of your account suspension or termination. 

A. MODIFICATION 

ARTICLE VI 

MODIFICATION AND TERMINATION 

1. This MOU Is effective upon the signature of all parties and shall continue in effect for as long as the SSA and 
OHS operates the Esverify program unless modified in writing by the mutual consent of all parties. 

2. Any and all E-Verify system enhancements by OHS or SSA, including but not limited to E-Verify checking 
against additional data sources and instituting new verification policies or procedures, will be covered under 
t his MOU and will not cause the need for a supplemental MOU that outlines these changes. 

B. TERMINATION 

1. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent may terminate this MOU and its participation in E-Verify at any 
time upon 30 days prior written notice to the other parties. In addition, any Employer represented by the 
Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent may voluntarily t!,lrminate its MOU upon giving OHS 30 days' written 
notice. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent may not refuse to terminate the Employer based upon an 
outstanding bill for verification services. 

2. Notwithstanding Article V, part A of this MOU, OHS may terminate this MOU, and thereby the Web Services 
E-Verify Employer Agent's participation in E-Verlfy. with or without notice at any time if deemed necessary 
because of the requ irements of law or policy, or upon a determination by SSA or DHS that there has been a 
breach of system integrity or security by the Web Services E-Verify 'Employer Agent or Employer, or a failure 
on the part of either party to comply with established E-Verify procedures and/or legal requirements, The 
Employer understands that if it is a Federal contractor, termination of this MOU by any party for any reason 
may negatively affect the performance of its contractual responsibilities . Similarly, the Employer 
understands that if ft is in a state where E-Verify is mandatory, termination of this by any party MOU may 
negatively affect the Employer.'s business. 

3. A Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent for an Employer that is a Federal contractor may terminate this 
MOU when the Federal contract that requires its participation in E-Verify is terminated or completed. In such 
cases, the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent must provide written notice to DHS. If the Web Services E
Verify' Employer Agent fails to provide such notice, then that Employer will remain an E-Verify participant, 
will remain bound by the terms of this MOU that apply to non-Federal contractor participants, and will be 
required to use the E-Verify procedures to verify the employment ellgiblllty of all newly hired employees. 

4, The Web Services E-Verlfy Employer Agent agrees that E-Verify is not fiable for any losses, financ ial or 
otherwis.e, If the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent or the Employer is terminated from E-Verify. 

ARTICLE VII 

PARTIES 

A. Some or all SSA and OHS responsibili ties under this MOU may be performed by contractor(s). and SSA and 
DHS may adjust verification responsibilities between each other as necessary. By separate agreement with 
DHS, SSA has agreed to perform its responsibilities as described in this MOU. 

B. Nothing in this MOU is Intended, or should be construed, to create any right or benefit, substantive or 
procedural, enforceable at law by any third party against the United States. its agencies, officers. or 
employees, or against the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent, its agents, officers, or employees. 

Page 12 of 17 I E-Verlfy MOU for Ert>ployers Using a Web Services Employer Agent I Revision Date 06/01/13 

49

Item 5.



Company ID Ni.Jmber:40635 Client Company ID Number:1219073 

C. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent may not assign, directly or indirectly, whether by operation of 
law, change of control or merger, all or any part of its rights or obligations under this MOU without the prior 
written consent of OHS, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Any attempt to 
subllcense, assign, or transfer any of the rights, duties, or obligations herein is void. 

D. Each party shall be solely responsible for defending any _claim or action against it arising out of or related to 
E-Verify or this MOU, whether civil or crimina l, and for any liability wherefrom, Including (but not limited to) 
any dispute between the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent or the Employer and any other person or 
entity regarding the applicability of Section 403(d) of IIRIRA to any action taken or allegedly taken by the 
Web Services !:-Verify Employer Agent or the Employer. 

E. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent understands that its participation in E-Verify is not confidential 
information and may be disclosed as authorized or required by law and OHS or SSA policy, including but not 
limited to, Congressional oversight, E-Verify publicity and media inquiries, determinations of compliance 
with Federal contractua l requirements, and responses to inquiries under the Freedom of Information Act 
(FOIA). 

F. The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enter into this MOU on 
behalf of the Employer, the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent and DHS respectively. The Web Services 
E-Verify Employer Agent understands that any inaccurate statement, representation, data or other 
Information provided to OHS may subj,ect the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent, as the case may be, its 
subcontractors, Its employees, or Its representatives to: (1) prosecution for false statements pursuant to 18 
U.S.C. 1001 and/or; (2) immediate termination of .its MOU and/or; (3) possible debarment or suspension. 

G. The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this. subject between OHS, the Employer, and the E-Verify 
Employer Agent. Core & Main (Employer) hereby designates and appoints Marcos Medina (E- Verify 
Employer Agent). including its officers and employees. as the E-Verify Employer Agent for the purpose of 
carrying out (Employer) responsibilities under the MOU between the Employer, the E-Verify Employer Agent, 
and OHS. 

Page 13 of l 7 I E-Verify MOU for Employers Using a Web Services Employer Agent I Revis.ion Date 06/01/13 

50

Item 5.



-----
OocuSign=pe 1~168~B1-2806-4641-88~67HAAOF443 • ; \'~'\ :·;:.-ver-1a-y;_.. _______ -..... ,./ \ )!!.t ) 

Company ID Number:40635 Client Company ID Number.1219073 

If you have any questions, contact E-Verify at 1-888-464-4218. 

Approved by: 

Employer 

Core & Main LP 

Name (Please Type or Print). 
Laura ~1::hn'ei d~r: 

:Signati.J~~ . 

. . ,A.fa~( -
E~\/erlfy Empl_oyerAge·nt . · -

Naifie (-Pl~as~_T-ype or Pffnt) · 

Marcos Medina 

Signati:rr.e · · 

Ele~tror:i!~aUy Signed· 
. ' ,:.! _., ·; ·, . . •'· .. . .· 

s19natu(e 

_ "Director; NVoc': . . _uSc -

Title 
VP, HR 

Date 

10/2~/2018 

ltle 

Date 

September 29, 2017 

itle 

Qate 

Page 14 of 17 I E-Verify MOU for Empl u · b 
eyers s,ng a We . Services Employer Agent I Revision Date 06/01713 

51

Item 5.



Company ID Number:40635 Client Comp·any ID Number. 1219073 

. Information Required· for the .E-Verify Program 

lnf~rmation rel'ating to your·Company: 

Company,N'a~e 

Cor:npany .facility Address .· 
• • M . • • • 

. ,• ·,. -~ ·:,:· . ·'. :· 
... 

.• . : · · - · .:.; -i~ -- , ; - ·-. . '< .': .' .. _ 

Campa ny. Aitern ate·. 'Acid ress 

County 6f Pari~h 
. . . ,.-... ~ . - :· 

Einployi,irldehtlfii::~tion Number 
~ ;.• ... . . . 

f'Jorj;h,Arr,1~r:1:c~~ ·iq~,q~t~ tta~?lfic~tlori · 
Systei ns(,:·o.d~.-· .. ····•·. , · · ·. ;_ · · . 

. ,·., : 

Core & Ma ir-, , 

18.3"0 Grai!f Park Court 

: . Sai,tit·t ~·uis> ti-1 ~ 63:!46 
._ . ·· ' · .. 

.. . .,. 

1830. Cra(g-Pir-kA::6llft 

Saint loufs, _M O 631'46 .. 

· sai'nt' Louis City 

03-055.0887 

'suildi f:i.G Met~r.ial 0And Garden Equipment And Supplies Dea lers 
(444) . . . . · . . . . . . . 

247 

Page 15 or 17 I E-Verlfy MOU for Employers Using a Web Services Emplbyer Agent I Revision Date 06/01/13 

52

Item 5.



Company ID Number:40635 Client Company ID Number:1219073 

Are you verifying for more than 1 site? If yes, please provide the number of sites verified for in each 
State: 

C'.alifoi:niii' . \ - . 
Kentucky · · 
Nortb pakot;a _ 
North CaroJJna . , 

Ar'izon:a : , .. , · ... , ,. 

lllirtols -. ., .. 

utan · .. , _. 

New York 
Alas'ka . 

Virginia 
Oklahoma.''· 

' 2 - . 

2 
12 
3 

6 . 
25 
9 

8 
4 
2 . 
4 
5 
1 

9 
2 
4 
5 , 
3 

. ·: 2 . .-· . 
4 
1 . .· . .. 

3 

l 
3 

Page 16 of 17 I E-Verify MOU for Employers Using a Web Services Employer Agent I ·Revision Date 06/01/13 

53

Item 5.



Comp,my 10 Number:40635 Cl ient Company ID Number:1219073 

Information relating to the Program Administrator(s) for your Company on policy questions or 
operational problems: 

NNf:l~ - : .. :, :~~ ·" ,, 0arta G.ud¢n:rn,1~h · 

pnon~::NV.fu~:ec· '. /''\'(,~$~tQ'.9$'-;9114'. ' -~-- . c, · .) .• : ' · .'. >:', :;.,,: ; C'. 
fa~_t{i:l.i:n.h.l.r:/~ :_: . , .: '••. · 

Page 17 of 17 I E-Verify MOU for Employers Using a Web Services Employer Agent [ Revl~_ion Date 06/01/13 

54

Item 5.



City of Republic, Missouri 

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH INVITATION FOR BID 

To be submitted with all Bids in response to this IFB 

__ We DO NOT take exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements. 

_½_we TAKE exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements as follows: 

/( P,;rrrl-Y BAC/c II WE 1)0 /JOI Av.I~IZ-,/2.{; Pv/l-C~P.ff:1 B V o1 J.J.Ff.. A6-f/wtlES~ 
IB I c:.E ~ A.~ F, fLrn pnz. DAfES L1 ft:@ o N B.IP 

I have carefully examined the Invitation for Bid and agree to abide by all submitted pricing, delivery, terms and 
conditions of this IFB unless otherwise stipulated herein. 

Campa 

Telephone Number f]/6 - -z.7,..q -9bo1f 
Fax Number fJ/6. - -z_-z.,q ..-q601 

Date 07 / 7- CJ / 7.,, 7.,. 

ADDENDA 

Offerer acknowledges receipt of the following addendum: 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Email -------------- - -
Federal Tax ID No. ------------
DBE Vendor (Yes/No): --- Minority Owned: __ 

Women Owned: 
Veteran Owned: 

55

Item 5.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 22-R-42 A Resolution of the City Council Awarding the Bids for 
Aggregate Supply for the Remainder of 2022 Through 2023 to Bailey 
Quarries, Inc., Capital Materials, LLC., Conco Quarries, and Westside 
Stone Company, LLC. 

Submitted By: Garrett Brickner, Engineering Manager 

Date: August 16 ,2022 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To award the above stated bid to Bailey Quarries Inc., Capital Materials, LLC., Conco Quarries, and 

Westside Stone Company, LLC. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City requested bids to supply various types of aggregates for the rest of 2022 and all of 2023.   

The City had 4 bidders, Bailey Quarries Inc., Capital Materials, LLC., Conco Quarries, and Westside Stone 

Company, LLC. The prices for materials, as well as the method for fuel adjustment for each supplier can 

be seen on the attached exhibits. The City intends to approve these four at the prices they have listed so 

that if the lowest priced supplier cannot provide the requested materials, the City can move on to the 

next lowest bidder and so on. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

56

Item 6.



RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-42    

  
RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-42    1 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AWARDING THE BIDS FOR AGGREGATE SUPPLY FOR THE 
REMAINDER OF 2022 THROUGH 2023 TO BAILEY QUARRIES INC., CAPITAL MATERIALS, LLC., CONCO 

QUARRIES, AND WESTSIDE STONE COMPANY, LLC  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 
Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City recently solicited sealed bids for supplying the City its aggregates for the 
remainder of 2022 through 2023 (“Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City received four bids from the following companies: Bailey Quarries Inc., Capital 

Materials, LLC., Conco Quarries, and Westside Stone Company, LLC; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City intends to approve all four entities who submitted a bid at the prices listed on 

their respective bids, each of which is attached hereto, and subsequently obtain the requested materials 

from the lowest bidder capable of providing said materials; and   

WHEREAS,  based on the recommendations of City staff, the Council finds that the Project may 

be awarded to Bailey Quarries Inc., Capital Materials, LLC., Conco Quarries, and Westside Stone Company, 

LLC. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The following four suppliers are awarded the Project at the rates shown in their 
respective bids, attached hereto and labeled consecutively as follows:  Bailey 
Quarries Inc. (“Exhibit 1”), Capital Materials, LLC. (“Exhibit 2”), Conco Quarries 
(“Exhibit 3”) and Westside Stone Company, LLC (“Exhibit 4”).  The City shall obtain 
the requested supplies from the lowest capable provider among the four 
suppliers approved herein.  

 
Section 2: The City Administrator, and/or his designee, is authorized to take the necessary 

steps to execute this Resolution. 
 
Section 3: The WHEREAS clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Section 4: This Resolution shall become effective on and after the date of passage and 

approval as provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2022. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
        Matt Russell, Mayor 
 
 

57

Item 6.



RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-42    

  
RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-42    2 
 

Attest: 
 

____________________________________ 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form:   

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

 

Final Passage and Vote: 
 

 
 

 

 

 

58

Item 6.



Agency Name City of Republic

Bid Number IFB-019-0-2022/GB

Bid Name Bulk Rock

Bid Due Date 8/1/2022 3:15

Company 3/8" Stone± 1/4"

5/8" 

Stone± 

1/4"

3/4"-1" 

Clean 

Stone

2"-4" 

Clean 

Stone

3/16 

Chips 

(Mixing 

w/ Salt)

MoDOT 

Base 

Rock 

Type 1

MoDOT 

Base 

Rock 

Type 5

Shot Rock 3"-6" 

(MoDOT type 1 

Rock Ditch 

Linear)

Shot 

Rock 6"-

10" 

(MoDOT 

type 2 

Rock 

Ditch 

Linear)

Shot 

Rock 

12"-20" 

(MoDOT 

type 3 

Rock 

Ditch 

Linear)

Shot 

Rock 

19"-28" 

(MoDOT 

type 4 

Rock 

Ditch 

Linear)

Bailey Quarries
Picked Up $14.50 $14.50 $13.50 $11.25 $7.25 $8.50 $8.50 $14.00 NB NB NB

Delivered $20.25 $20.25 $19.25 $17.00 $13.00 $14.25 $14.25 $19.75 NB NB NB

Capital Materials
Picked Up $17.50 $15.50 $15.50 $13.75 $16.00 $10.00 $10.50 $13.75 NB $22.00 $22.00

Delivered $23.50 $21.50 $21.50 $19.75 $22.00 $16.00 $16.50 $19.75 NB $28.00 $28.00

Conco Quarries, Inc.
Picked Up $13.15 $13.90 $13.90 $13.15 NB $9.15 $9.60 $13.15 NB NB $18.80

Delivered $18.40 $19.15 $19.15 $18.40 NB $14.40 $14.85 $18.40 NB NB $26.05

Westside Stone
Picked Up $15.00 NB $14.80 $16.20 NB $9.75 $9.75 NB NB NB $22.00

Delivered 19.5 NB 19.3 20.7 NB 14.25 14.25 NB NB NB 26.5

59

Item 6.



Rock Type 
Price Per Ton 

Picked Up Delivered 

3/8" Stone± 1/4" $15.00 $19.50 

5/8" Stone± 1/4" No Bid No Bid 

3/4"-1" Clean Stone $14.80 $19.30 

2"-4" Clean Stone $16.20 $20.70 

3/16 Chips (Mixing w/ Salt) No Bid No Bid 

MoDOT Base Rock Type 1 $9.75 $14.25 

MoDOT Base Rock Type 5 $9.75 $14.25 

Shot Rock 3"-6" (MoDOTtype 1 Rock Ditch Linear) No Bid No Bid 

Shot Rock 6"-10" (MoDOT type 2 Rock Ditch Linear) No Bid No Bid 

Shot Rock 12"-20" (MoDOTtype 3 Rock Ditch Linear) No Bid No Bid 

Shot Rock 19"-28" (MoDOT type 4 Rock Ditch Linear) $22.00 $26.50 
please fill out all categories above you wish to put a bulk bid in for. If you do not w ish to bid a certain item please enter N/A. 

Please outline Fuel adjustment method here or attach (if choosing to do so): 

Prices are based on $4.69 per gallon diesel fuel. Every increase in diesel by $.25 will result in an increase of 

$.10 per ton of each material. 

City of Republic, Missouri Company Legal Name: 
Westside Stone Comnanv LLC 

IFB for: Rock/Stone as requested 8/16/22 
through 12/31/23 Address: 

213 N Main Street 
1001 N. Haseltine Rd 
Springfield, Mo 65802 

Republic, MO 65738 

!signature: ~ 
Name and Title: 
Scott Crabtree, Aggregates Operations Manager 

rTelephone: 417 .87 4.1400 Dated: 7.29.22 

~ellular: 417.425.1404 Bidder's Federal ID Number: 38-3927314 

Email: scrabtree@erlengroup.com 

60

Item 6.



NOTICE AND INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS/VENDORS 

Regarding Sections 285.525 through 285.550 RSMo., effective January 1, 2009, 

and Section 292.675 RSMo., effective August 28, 2009 

Effective January 1, 2009 and pursuant to Section 285.530(1) of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, " [n]o business entity 

or employer shall knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work 

within the state of Missouri." 

State law additionally provides that, as a condition for the award of any contract or grant in excess of five thousand 

dollars by the state or by any political subdivision of the state (e.g., the City of Republic) to a business entity (e.g., 

potential bidders in response to this IFB), the business entity (Company) shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 

documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the 

employees working in connection with the contracted services. Every such business entity shall sign an affidavit affirming 

that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services. 

See§ 285.530(2), RSMo. 

Section 285.530 RSMo. pertains to all solicitations for services over $5,000, but does not apply to solicitations for goods 
only. If a solicitation is for a combination of services and goods, Section 285.530 RSMo. applies if the services portion of 
the solicitation is over $5,000. 

61

Item 6.



1. Required Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00 (US) - Effective 1-1-2009, the company (submitting a 
Bid) shall comply with the provisions of Section 285.525 through 285.550, RSMo., which require certain 
statements to be made under penalty of perjury pertaining to employment of unauthorized aliens. The award 
of any contract under this IFB is expressly contingent on the company (submitting a Bid) providing an 
acceptable, notarized affidavit, stating as follows: 

a. that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with respect 
to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 

b. that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection 
with the contracted services. 

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et 
seq. 

2. Additionally, Company must provide documentation evidencing current enrollment in a federal work 
authorization program (e.g. electronic signature page from E-Verify Program's Memo of Understanding 
(MOU). See attached sample. 

A copy of the required affidavit is included on the following page. A digital copy of the affidavit can also 
be accessed and downloaded from the City of Republic's official website, URL address: 
https://www.republicmo.com/DocumentCenterNiew/77/Affidavit-of-Compliance-with-Section-285500-RSMO
PDF?bidld= 

The City of Republic is an E-Verify employer. The City of Republic encourages companies that are not already enrolled 
and participating in a federal work authorization program to do so. E-Verify is an example of a federal work authorization 
program. Information regarding E-Verify is available at http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify or by calling 888-464-4218. 

62

Item 6.



Affidavit of Compliance with Section 285.500, RSMo., et seq. 

for all agreements providing services in excess of $5,000.00 

Effective 1/1/2009 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
) SS. 

COUNTY OF GREENE ) 

Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for the County of ________ , State of 
_____________ , personally appeared ____________ (Name) who is __ _ 
__________ (Title) of ______________ ___ (Name of company) , a (circle 
one) corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, limited liability company, and is competent and authorized to make 
this affidavit, and being duly sworn upon oath deposes and says as follows: 

(1) that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with 
respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 

(2) that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in 
connection with the contracted services. 

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo. , et seq. 

Documentation of participation in a federal work authorization program is attached to this affidavit. 

Signature 

Printed Name 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ______ day of ________ _ 

Notary Public 

My commission expires: ________ _ 

63

Item 6.



Company ID Number: XXXXXX 

The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between the SSA, OHS (Department of Homeland 
Security), and the Employer. 

The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enter into this Memorandum of 
Understanding on behalf of the Employer and OHS respectively. 

To be accepted as a participant in E-Verify, you should only sign the Employer's Section of the signature page. If you have 
any questions, contact E-Verify Operations at 888-464-4218. 

\~ 
EmPIOV@I, You, Company Namer .> -', \ 5 5 ) 9 ~ 

:) __,.l 

64

Item 6.



City of Republic, Missouri 

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH INVITATION FOR BID 

To be submitted with all Bids in response to this IFS 

_x_we DO NOT take exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements. 

__ We TAKE exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements as follows: 

I have carefully examined the Invitation for Bid and agree to abide by all submitted pricing, delivery, terms and 
conditions of this IFB unless otherwise stipulated herein. 

Company Name Westside Stone Company LLC 

By _________________ _ 

(Authorized Person's Signature) 
Company Address 1001 N. Haseltine Rd 

Springfield, Mo 65802 

Telephone Number __ 4_1_7_.8_7_4_. _14_0_0 ____ _ 

Fax Number ______________ _ 

Date __ 7_._29_._2_2 __________ _ 

ADDENDA 

Offeror acknowledges receipt of the following addendum: 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Email scrabtree@erlengroup.com 

Federal Tax ID No. 38-3927314 -------- ------

DBE Vendor (Yes/No): ____ Minority Owned: __ 

Women Owned: 
Veteran Owned: 

65

Item 6.



City of Republic, Missouri 

STATEMENT OF "NO PROPOSAL"/ "NO BID" 

RETURN THIS PAGE ONLY IF YOUR COMPANY PROVIDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVICES BEING BID AND DECLINES TO DO SO. 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE DECLINED TO BID ON YOUR IFB FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON(S): 

_____ SPECIFICATIONS ARE TOO "TIGHT," I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER 

ONLY(PLEASE EXPLAIN IN THE " REMARKS" SECTION BELOW). 

_____ INSUFFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID. 

_____ OUR PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PERFORM. 

_____ UNABLE TO MEET SPECIFICATIONS. 

_____ UNABLE TO MEET INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. 

_ _ ___ SPECIFICATIONS UNCLEAR (PLEASE EXPLAIN IN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW). 

_____ OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY IN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW). 

REMARKS: 

COMPANY NAME: ___________________ _ 

ADDRESS: _____________________ _ 

TITLE: ______________________ _ 

SIGNATURE: ____________________ _ 

TELEPHONE NUMBER: _________________ _ 

DATE: _______ _ 

66

Item 6.



State of Missouri 
EXEMPTION FROM MISSOURI SALES AND USE TAX ON PURCHASES 

Replace this page with pdf of tax exempt form 

Issued to : 

CITY OF REPUBLIC 
213 N. MAIN AVENUE REPUBLIC, MO 65738 

Missouri Tax ID Number : 12 49 2 9 9 0 
Effective Date : 

07/11/2002 

Your application for sales/use tax exempt status has been 
approved, pursuant to Section 144.030 . 1, RSMo. This letter is 
issued as documentation of your exempt status. 

Purchases by your Agency are not subject to sales or use 
taxif within the conduct of your Agency's exempt functions 
and activities. When purchasing with this exemption , 
furnishall sellers or vendors a copy of this letter. This 
exemptionmay not be used by individuals making personal 
purchases . 

A contractor may purchase and pay for construction materials 
exemptfrom sales tax when fulfilling a contract with your Agency 
only if your Agency issues a project exemption certificate and 
thecontractor makes purchases in compliance with the provisions of 
Section 144.062 , RSMo . 

Sales by your Agency are subject to all applicable state 
and local sales taxes . If you engage in the business of 
selling tangible personal property or taxable services at 
retail , you must obtain a Missouri Retail Sales Tax License 
and collect andremit sales tax . 

This is a continuing exemption subject to legislative 
changes and review by the Director of Revenue . If your 
Agency ceases to qualify as an exempt entity , this 
exemption will cease to bevalid . This exemption is not 
assignable or transferable . 

It is an exemption from sales and use taxes only and is not 
an exemption from real or personal property tax . 

Any alteration to this exemption letter renders it invalid. 

If you have any questions regarding the use of this letter, 
pleasecontact the Division of Taxation and Collection , P.O. Box 
3300 , Jefferson City , MO 65105-3300, phone 573-751 - 2836 . 

!PIUJO) 

67

Item 6.



MISSOURI PROJECT EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE 

Authorization for Purchasing Construction Materials for Tax Exempt Project 
(The Form and Content of this Exemption Certificate have been approved by the Missouri Department of 

Revenue) 

EXEMPT ENTITY ISSUING CERTIFICATE 
Name: City of Republic, Missouri 
Address: 213 N. Main Avenue 
City/State/Zip: Republic, Missouri 65738 

MO Tax Exempt 1.0. #: 12492990 
Contract Date: 
Contract#: ______ _ 
Project Description: _______ _ 

Project Location: _______ _ 

Project Completion Date: _________ _ 
Auth. Signature: ____________ _ 

Date: 

Letter Effective Date: 
Certificate Expiration Date: 
Revised Expiration Date: 

The Missouri exempt entity named above hereby authorizes the purchase, without sales tax, of tangible personal 
propertyto be incorporated or consumed in the construction of the project identified herein and no other, pursuant to 
Section 144.62, RSMo. 

PURCHASING CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR 
Name: _____________________ _ 

Address: ____________________ _ 

City/State/Zip: _________________ _ 

INSTRUCTIONS 

EXEMPT ENTITY - A signed copy of this certificate, along with your MO Tax Exemption Letter, must be furnished 
to each contractor and/or subcontractor who will be purchasing tangible personal property for use in the project. It is 
the exempt entity's responsibility to ensure the validity of the certificate. You must issue a certificate with a Revised 
Expiration Date if purchases will be required to complete the project beyond the original Project Exemption Date. 

CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR - The contractor shall furnish a completed copy of this exemption 
certificate, along with a copy of the exempt entity's MO Tax Exemption Letter, to all subcontractors, and any contractor 
or subcontractor purchasing materials shat I present copies of such documents to all material suppliers as authorization 
to purchase, on behalf of the exempt entity, all tangible personal property and materials to be incorporated or consumed 
in the construction of that project and no other on a tax-exempt basis. A copy of each certificate must be retained by the 
purchaser for a period of five years. 

MATERIAL SUPPLIER - A completed copy of this exemption certificate, along with the MO Tax Exemption Letter 
of the exempt entity contracting for the project, must be obtained from the contractor or subcontractor making purchases 
of tangible personal property for use in the project, and retained for audit purposes. Invoices issued for such purchases 
must reflect the name of the exempt entity and the project number assigned by the exempt entity shown above. 

68

Item 6.



City of Republic - Invitation for Bid 
Rock/Stone as Requested for the Remainder of 2022 and 

through 2023 

SEALED BIDS MUST BE PHYSICALLY RECEIVED AT REPUBLIC CITY HALL PRIOR TO 3:15 P.M. on Monday, 

August 11 2022. Bids will be opened by the City at Republic City Hall at said time and place. 

BIDS SHOULD BE ADDRESSED AS FOLLOWS: 

City of Republic 
c/o City Clerk, Laura Burbridge 

213 N. Main Avenue 
Republic, MO 65738 

Bids must be submitted on the forms provided and must be manually signed by the individual authorized 
to legally bind the Bidder. Bidders can add their own sheets for clarification of pricing on certain products 
if they choose. 

• Bids shall be submitted with the Invitation for Bid ("IFB") project name or item clearly indicated 
on the outside of the mailing envelope. 

• Bids received after the opening date and time will be rejected. 

• The attached Terms and Conditions shall become part of any contract, agreement or award 
resulting from this Invitation for Bid. 

• FAXED/ EMAILED BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. 

• You are invited to submit your Bid to furnish the materials and/ or services described herein. 
Please submit your prices/fees net of all discounts. Bidders do not necessarily need to bid all 
requested categories, but it is encouraged. 

• August 161
\ 2022 until December 31'1, 2023 or until superseded by another bid. 

• City intends to award all responsive bidders to the on-call list for service so if the lowest bidder 
is unable to provide material/ service in an acceptable time, the next lowest bidder may be used. 

• Bids will be taken to City Council for approval on Tuesday August 16, 2022. Notice to proceed 
shall follow immediately upon and following approval granted by City Council. 

DESCRIPTION: 
Rock or Stone as requested by City of Republic of in the below listed categories, priced to be picked up 

or delivered if available. 

• 3/8" Stone ± 1/ 4" 

• 5/8" Stone ± 1/4" 

• 3/ 4"-1" Clean Stone 

• 2"-4" Clean Stone 

• 3/16 Chips (Mixing w/ Salt) 
• MoDOT Base Rock Type 1 

• MoDOT Base Rock Type 5 
• Shot Rock 3"-6" (MoDOTtype 1 Rock Ditch Linear) 

• Shot Rock 6"-10" (MoDOT type 2 Rock Ditch Linear) 

69

Item 6.



• Shot Rock 12"-20" (MoDOT type 3 Rock Ditch Linear) 
• Shot Rock 19"-28" (MoDOT type 4 Rock Ditch Linear) 

Costs 
As part of this Bid, a fuel index or surcharge shall be permitted however, needs to be outlined in this bid. Please outline 
fuel cost adjustment method in the space provided under bid table. E.g. - " if Diesel price exceeds $7.00 per gallon, an 
additional $2.00 will be added to per/ton cost." Or, attach table with adjustment values based on cost of fuel. 

The City of Republic will utilize the U.S. Energy Information Administration Weekly Retail Gasoline and Diesel Prices for 
the Midwest region (PADD 2), to verify adjustments as necessary. 

https://www.eia .gov/dnav/pet/PET PRI GND A EPD2D PTE DPGAL W.htm 

Inquiries: All inquiries for information should be directed to: 

Garrett Brickner, Engineering Manager 
BUILDS Department, City of Republic 
gbrickner@republicmo.com 
(417) 732-3405 

Important Notice Regarding Competitive Bidding: 

It is the City's intent and desire that this Invitation for Bid promotes competitive Bidding. To the extent 
any language, requirements, terms and/or requests contained within this Invitation for Bid result in the 
elimination of all but one source from which a responsive and responsible Bid may be submitted, such 
restriction/limitation is not intended by the City, but is merely an unintentional error. In the event such error 
is discovered by any potential Bidder, the potential Bidder must notify the City contact listed above of the error, 
in writing, no later than three (3) days prior to the Bid opening day. Upon receipt of any such notice, the City 
will take reasonable efforts to correct the error and resubmit the Invitation for Bid once corrected . 

70

Item 6.



TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

01. Opening Location: Bids submitted in response to this Invitation for Bid ("IFB") will be opened at Republic City 
Hall, located at 213 N. Main Avenue, on 3:15 P.M. on Monday, August 1, 2022. All Bidders (individually, 
"Bidder"; collectively, "Bidders") and/or their authorized representative(s) are permitted to attend the opening 
of the Bids. 

02. IFB Delivery Requirements: Any Bids received after the above stated time and date will not be considered. It 
shall be the sole responsibility of the Bidder to have their Bid delivered to Republic City Hall for receipt on or 
before the due date and time indicated. 

a. If a Bid is sent by U.S. Mail, the Bidder shall be responsible for its timely delivery to Republic City Hall. 
b. Bids delayed by mail shall not be considered, shall not be opened, and shall be rejected. 
c. Arrangements may be made for their return at the Bidder's request and expense. 
d. Bids may be mailed to Republic City Hall and accepted if the signed Bid form and required information 

was mailed and received prior to the due date and time. 
e. Bids sent by email will not be accepted. 

Sealed and Marked: If sent by mail, one original signed Bid shall be submitted in one sealed package, clearly 
marked on the outside of the package with the IFB project name clearly indicated on the outside of the mailing 
envelope and addressed to: 

City of Republic 
C/O City Clerk, Laura Burbridge 
213 N. Main 

Republic MO 65738 

03. Legal Name and Signature: Bids shall clearly indicate the legal name, address, and telephone number of the 
Bidder (company, firm, corporation, partnership, or individual). 

a. Bids shall be manually signed above the printed name and title of signer on the Affidavit of Compliance 
page. 

b. The signer shall have the authority to bind the Bidder to the submitted Bid. 
c. Failure to properly sign the Bid form shall invalidate the Bid, and it shall not be considered for award. 

04. Corrections: No erasures are permitted. 
a. In the event a correction is necessary, in order for the City to consider the correction, the following 

formatting must be applied: 
1. A single line (strike-through) to the entered text needing correction, and 
2. The corrected text written above the strike-through text, and 
3. The signer(s) of the Bid must initial all corrections. 

OS. Clarification and Addenda: Bidders are expected to examine all documents attached to and/or provided by the 
City with this IFB, and prior to submitting any Bid in response to this IFB, make any necessary and/or reasonable 
inquiries of the City to ensure all such Bidders understand the entirety of the documents. 

a. Any inquiries or suggestions concerning interpretation, clarification, or other additional information 
pertaining to the IFB shall be made through the listed City contact in writing (email is permitted). 

b. The City of Republic shall not be responsible for verbal interpretations or other information given by 
any individual purporting to be employed by or otherwise representing the City. 

c. The issuance of written addenda is the official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or 

additional information can be given. 
d. It shall be the responsibi lity of each Bidder, prior to submitting their Bid, to direct any inquiries to the 

listed City contact. 

71

Item 6.



06. IFB Expenses: There is no expressed or implied obligation for the City of Republic to reimburse responding 
Bidders and the City will not reimburse for any expenses incurred in preparing responses to this IFB. 

07. Bid Security: All Bids must be accompanied by a Bid Security, which shall constitute the Bidder's guarantee that, 
if awarded the contract under this IFB, the Bidder will promptly execute all contract documents and other 
documents required under this IFB, and will furnish good and sufficient bond for the performance of the same. 

a. The Bid Security shall consist of a certified check, cashier's check or a Bid bond, guaranteed by a surety 
company authorized by the Di rector of the Missouri Department of I nsu ranee and Commerce to conduct 
surety business in the state of Missouri, in an amount no less than ten percent (10%) of the Bid, and 
made payable to the City of Republic. 

b. Bids submitted without the required Bid Security will not be considered for award under this IFB. 

c. The Bid Securities of all Bidders, except for the three apparent lowest Bidders, will be returned as soon 
as reasonably possible after the opening and review of Bids. 

d. The City shall have the right to retain the Bid Security of the three apparent lowest Bidders until either: 
(1) all contract documents have been duly executed and all required bonds and proof of insurance, 
including certificates of insurance, have been furnished by the Bidder to the City; or (2) all Bids have 
been rejected, whichever occurs first. 

08. Irrevocable Offer: Any Bid may be withdrawn up until the due date and time set for opening of the IFB. Any 
Bid not so withdrawn shall, upon opening, constitute an irrevocable offer for a minimum period of ninety (90) 
days to provide to the City the goods or services set forth in the IFB, until one or more of the Bids have been 
duly accepted by the City. 

09. Responsive and Responsible Bidder: To be a responsive Bidder, a Bidder shall submit a Bid which conforms in 
all material respects to the requirements set forth in the IFB. To be a responsible Bidder, the Bidder shall have 
the capability in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements, and the tenacity, perseverance, 
experience, integrity, reliability, capacity, facilities, equipment and credit which will ensure good faith 
performance. The lowest responsible Bidder shall mean the Bidder who makes the lowest Bid to sell goods or 
services of a quality which conforms closest to the quality of goods or services set forth in the specifications or 
otherwise required by the City and who is known to be fit and capable to perform the Bid as made. 

10. Reserved Rights: The City reserves the right to make such investigations as it deems necessary to make the 
determination of the Bidder's responsiveness and responsibility. Such information may include, but shall not be 
limited to: current financial statement, verification of availability of equipment and personnel, and past 
performance records. 

11. The Right to Audit: The Bidder agrees to furnish supporting detail as may be required by the City to support 
charges or invoices, to make available for audit purposes all records covering charges pertinent tothe purchase, 
and to make appropriate adjustments in the event discrepancies are found. 

a. The City shall have the right to audit the Bidder's records pertaining to the work/product for a period of 

three (3) years after final payment. 
b. The cost of any audit conducted pursuant to this term will be paid by the City. 

12. Applicable Law: All applicable laws and regulations of the State of Missouri and the City including the City 
Procurement Regulations and Procedures will apply to any resulting agreement, contract, or purchase order 
entered into under the terms of this IFB. Any involvement with the City Procurement shall be in accordance 

with the Procurement Regulations and Procedures. 

13. Right to Protest: Appeals and remedies are provided for in the City Procurement Regulations. 

72

Item 6.



a. Protestors shall seek resolution of their complaints initially with the City Purchasing Agent. 
b. Any protest shall state the basis upon which the solicitation or award is contested and shall be submitted 

within ten (10) calendar days after such aggrieved person knew or could have reasonably been expected 
to know of the facts giving rise thereto. 

14. Ethical Standards Applicable: With respect to this IFB, if any Bidder violates or is a party to a violation of the 
general ethical standards of the City Procurement Code or the State of Missouri Statues, such Bidder will be 
disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Bid is submitted and shall be further disqualified 
from submitting any future Bids. 

15. Collusion Absolutely Prohibited: All Bidders offering a submission in response to this IFB hereby expressly 
acknowledge and certify that they have not divulged, discussed, or compared their Bid to the Bids of any other 
Bidder(s), and further that they have not colluded or conspired with any other Bidder or parties to this IFB, to 
violate the terms and conditions governing submission of responses to this IFB whatsoever. All Bidders offering 
a submission in response to this IFB additionally promise that: 

a. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have been arrived at independently, without consultation, 
communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to 
such prices and/or cost data, with any other Bidder or with any competitor. 

b. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have not knowingly been disclosed by the Bidder and will not 
knowingly be disclosed by the Bidder prior to the scheduled opening directly or indirectly to any other 
Bidder or to any competitor. 

c. No attempt has been made or will be made by the Bidder to induce any other person or firm to submit 
or not to submit a Bid for the purpose of restricting competition. 

d. The only person or persons interested in this Bid, principal or principals are named therein and that no 
person other than therein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in any contract awarded under this 
IFB. No person or agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure the contract awarded under 
this IFB upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 
fee exempting bona fide employees or established commercial agencies maintained by the Purchaser 
for the purpose of doing business. 

16. Contract Forms: Any agreement, contract, or purchase order resulting from the acceptance of a Bid shall be on 
forms either supplied by or approved by the City. 

17. Liability and Indemnity: 
a. In no event shall the City be liable to the successful Bidder for special, indirect, liquidated, incidental, or 

consequential damages, except those caused by the City's gross negligence or willful or wanton 
misconduct arising out of or in any way connected with a breach of any agreement or contract under the 
terms of this IFB. The maximum liability of the City shall be limited to the amount of money to be paid or 
received by the City under any agreement or contract awarded under the terms of this IFB. 

b. The successful Bidder shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City, its elected or appointed 
officials, agents and employees from and against any and all liability, suits, damages, costs (including 
attorney fees), losses, outlays, expenses, and claims, caused or allegedly caused by, or arising out of or 
related in any way whatsoever to (1) any agreement or contract awarded under this IFB, or (2) the work 
performed pursuant to such contract or agreement or any subcontract thereunder (the successful Bidder 
expressly acknowledging and assuming full responsibility for its subcontractors), including, but not 
limited to, claims for personal injuries, death, property damage, or for any other alleged damages. 

c. The successfu l Bidder shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from all wages or overtime 
compensation due any employees in rendering services pursuant to this agreement or any subcontract, 
including payment of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs in the defense of any claim made under the 
Fair Labor Standards Act, the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law or any other federal or state law. 

18. IFB Forms, Variances, and Alternates: Bids must be submitted on the forms attached to this IFB as provided by 
the City; however, additional information may be attached. Bidders must indicate any variances from the City 

73

Item 6.



requested specifications and/or terms and conditions, on the IFB Affidavit of Compliance. Otherwise, Bidders 
must fully comply with the City requested specifications and terms and conditions. Alternate Bids may or may 
not be considered at the sole discretion of the City Purchasing Agent. 

19. Bid Form: All blank spaces must be completed with the appropriate response. 
a. Bidders must state the price, written in ink, for what is proposed to complete each item of the project. 
b. Bidders must insert the words "no Bid" in the space provided for any item for which no Bid is made. 
c. Bidders must submit an executed Bid form, affidavit of compliance with other requested documents. 

20. Modifications or Withdrawal of Bid: A modification of a Bid already submitted will be considered only if the 
modification is received prior to the time announced for opening of Bids, and is made in writing; executed and 
submitted on the same form and manner as the original Bid. Modifications submitted by telephone, fax, or email 
will not be considered. 

21. No Bid: If not submitting a Bid, respond by returning the "Statement of No Bid" no later than the stated Bid 
opening time and date, and explain the reason in the space provided. 

22. Errors in Bids: Bidders are expected to fully inform themselves as to the conditions, requirements, and 
specifications before submitting Bids; failure to do so will be at the Bidder's own risk. Applicable law and 
regulations do not make allowance for errors either of omission or inclusion on the part of Bidders. In case an 
error regarding extension of prices in the Bid, the unit price shallgovern. 

23. Prices: Bids must include both unit price and extended total. 
a. Price must be stated in units of quantity specified in the Bidding specifications. In case of discrepancy in 

computing the amount of the Bid, the unit price of the Bid will govern. 
b. All prices shall be F.0 .B. destination, freight prepaid (unless otherwise stated in special conditions). FOB, 

as used in this IFB, shall mean that the successful Bidder, at their own expense, shall transport the 
equipment and/or materials and bear the risk of loss from successful Bidder's location to a specified 
location in the City of Republic. City shall not take title to the materials or equipment until it is delivered 
and accepted by City at the address specified within the City of Republic. 

c. Each item must be Bid separately and no attempt is to be made to tie any item or items in with any other 
item or items. 

d. If a Bidder offers a discount on payment terms, the discount time will be computed from the date of 
satisfactory delivery at place of acceptance and receipt of correct invoice at the office specified. 

e. Payment terms shall be Net 30 if not otherwise specified. 
f. Pre-payment terms are not acceptable. 

24. Discounts: Any and all discounts, except cash discounts for prompt payments, must be incorporated as a 
reduction in the Bid price and not shown separately. The price as shown on the Bid shall be the price used in the 

City's determination of award(s). 

25. Descriptive Information: All equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the product/work coveredby 
this IFB are to be new and of suitable grade for the purpose intended. 

a. Brand or trade names referenced in specifications are for comparison purposes only. 
b. Bidders may submit Bids on items manufactured by an individual/entity other than the manufacturer 

specified so long as an "or equal" is expressly stated. 

26. Deviations to Specifications and Requirements: When Bidding on an "or equal," Bids must be accompanied 
with all descriptive information necessary for an evaluation of the proposed material orequipment such as the 
detailed drawings and specifications, certified operation and test data, and experience records. 

a. Failure of any Bidder to furnish the data necessary to determine whether the product is equivalent, may 

be cause for rejection of the specific item(s) to which it pertains. 
b. All deviations from the specifications must be noted in detail by the Bidder on the Affidavit of Compliance 

74

Item 6.



form, at the time of submittal of Bid. 
c. The absence of listed deviations at the time of submittal of the Bid will hold the Bidder strictly 

accountable to the specifications as written. 
d. Any deviation from the specifications as written and accepted by the City may be grounds for rejection 

of the material and/or equipment when delivered. 

27. Quality Guaranty: If any product delivered does not meet applicable specifications or otherwise fails to compare 
with the quality represented by the Bidder, the Bidder shall retrieve the product from the City as its own 
expense. The Bidder shall refund to the City any money the City has remitted to the Bidder for same. In the 
event the successful Bidder fails or refuses to retrieve the product and refund to the City any money previously 
remitted to the Bidder for such product in accord with the terms of this paragraph, the Bidder shall be 
responsible for the City's attorney fees and other costs it incurs in enforcing its rights under this paragraph. 

28. Quality Terms: The City reserves the right to reject any or all materials if, in its judgment, the item reflects 
unsatisfactory workmanship, manufacturing, or shipping damages. 

29. Tax-Exempt: The City is exempt from sales taxes and Federal Excise Taxes: Missouri Tax ID Number 12492990. 

30. Bid Awards: Awards will be made to the Bidder whose Bid (1) meets the specifications and all other 
requirements of the IFB and (2) is the lowest and best Bid, considering price, delivery, responsibility of the 
Bidder, and all other relevant factors. 

a. Unless otherwise stated in the IFB, cash discounts for prompt payment of invoices will not be considered 
in the evaluation of prices. However, such discounts are encouraged to motivate prompt payment. 

b. As the best interest of the City may require, the right is reserved to make awards by item, group(s) of 
items, all or none or a combination thereof; and to reject any and all Bids or waive any minor or non
material irregularity or technicality in Bids received. 

31. Authorized Product Representation: The successful Bidder(s) by virtue of submitting the name and 
specifications of a manufacturer' s product will be required to furnish the named manufacturer's product. By 
virtue of submission of the stated documents, it will be presumed by the City that the Bidder(s) is legally 
authorized to submit and the successful Bidder(s) will be legally bound to perform according to the documents. 

32. Regulations: It shall be the responsibility of each Bidder to assure compliance with OSHA, EPA, Federal, State 
of Missouri, and City rules, regulations, or other requirements, as each may apply. 

a. E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS: All contractors or subcontractors to be utilized by 
Bidder on contracts exceeding five thousand dollars shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program 
with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services and affirm 
that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with 
the contracted services. 

b. Bidders are herein informed that the work to be performed under this IFB is subject to the 
requirements of Section 292.675, RSMo., which requires all contractors or subcontractors 
perform work such to provide and require its on-site employees to complete a ten (lO)hour 
course in construction safety and health approved by the Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration ("OSHA") or a similar program approved by the Missouri Department of Labor 
and Industrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program. The 
training must be completed within sixty (60) days of the date work on the Project commences. 
On-siteemployees found on the worksite without documentation of the required training shall 
have twenty (20) days to produce such documentation. 

c. Pursuant to Section 292.675 RSMo., the successful Bidder shall forfeit to the City as a penalty 
two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00), plus one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each on
site employee employed by it, or any contractors or subcontractors hired by it, for each 
calendar day, or portion thereof, Such on-site employee isemployed without the construction 

75

Item 6.



safety training required in the above paragraph. 
d. Section 208.009 RSMo. shall apply to any contracts awarded under this Bid. 

33. Termination of Award: Any failure of the Bidder to satisfy the requirements of the City shall be reason 
fortermination of the award. Any Bid may be rejected in whole or in part for any reason by the City. 

34. Royalties and Patents: The successful Bidder(s) shall pay all royalties and license fees for equipment or 
processes in conjunction with the equipment being furnished. Bidder shall defend all suits or claims for 
infringement of any patent right and shall hold the City harmless from loss on account or cost and 
attorney's fees incurred. 

35. Equal Employment Opportunity Clause: The City of Republic, in accordance with the provision of Title 
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252) and the Regulations of the Department of Commerce (15 
CFR,Part 8) issued pursuant to the aforementioned Civil Rights Act, hereby notifies all Bidders that the 
City takes all reasonably necessary steps to affirmatively ensure that all Bidders, including minority 
businesses, will be afforded full opportunity to submit Bids in response to this IFB and that no Bidder 
will be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in determining the 
successful Bidder for award. 

36. Insurance Requirements: For the duration of any contract awarded under this IFB, (which, for projects 
including any labor, means until the work is completed and accepted by the City; and which, for projects 
involving supply of materials only, means until the materials are delivered and accepted by the City), 
the successful Bidder is required to maintain certain insurance to protect it and the City against risks of 
loss in connection with the Project, as defined more fully below. The Successful Bidder will be required 
to provide the City with proof of insurance that satisfies the requirements stated below, unless 
otherwise specified by the City. The insurance requirements below may be modified or waived by the 
City at the City's sole discretion. 

a. Workers' Compensation: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Employers Liability and Workers 
Compensation Insurance for all persons it will employ or retain to perform any work in 
connection with a contract awarded under this IFB, and in the event the Successful Bidder will 
sublet or subcontract any such work, the Successful Bidder shall require the subcontractor to 
provide similar Workers Compensation Insurance for the subcontractor's employees, unless 
such employees are covered by the Successful Bidder's coverage. Workers Compensation 
coverage shall meet the minimum requirements under Missouri law of $500,000 each 
employee and $500,000 each accident. 

b. Commercial General Liability: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Commercial General 
Liability coverage for personal and advertising injury, bodily injury including accidental death, 
and broad-form property damage, which may arise from the performance of any contract 
awarded under this IFB, in an aggregate amount of not less than $2,000,000 each occurrence 
and $1,000,000 each person. 

c. Commercial Automobile Liability (applies only to projects involving the Successful Bidder's 

operation of vehicles in performing the work awarded under this IFB): The Successful Bidder 
shall maintain Commercial Automobile Liability coverage of not less than $2,000,000 each 
occurrence and $1,000,000 each person for "any auto" on an occurrence basis. 

37. Performance Bond and Labor & Materials Payment Bond (applies only to projects involving labor): 

Pursuant to Section 107.170, RSMo., if the total cost of the project is estimated to exceed $50,000.00, 
the successful Bidder shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Bond and a Labor and Materials 
Payment Bond with surety, approved by the City and on forms approved by the City, each bond shall be 
in the amount of the total project cost, conditioned upon the full and faithful performance of all major 

76

Item 6.



terms and conditions of the IFB and payment of all labor and material supplies. 

38. Nonresident/Foreign Contractors: To the extent the successful Bidder utilizes non-resident/ foreign 
contractors to provide services or supplies in connection with this IFB, the successful Bidder shall 
procure and maintain: 

a. A certificate of authority to transact business in the State of Missouri from the Secretary of 
State, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 351.570, RSMo. 

b. A certificate from the Missouri Director of Revenue evidencing compliance with the transient 
employer financial assurance law, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 285.230, 
RSMo. 

39. Bid Tabulation: Bidders may request a copy of the Bid tabulation of the IFB. 

40. Budgetary Constraints: The City reserves the right to reduce or increase the quantity, retract any item 
from the Bid, or upon notification, terminate entire agreement without any obligations or penalty based 
upon availability of funds. 

41. Additional Purchases by Other Public Agencies: By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, the Bidder 
authorizes other publicagencies to "Piggy-Back" or purchase equipment and services being proposed in 
this IFB unless otherwise noted on the Affidavit of Compliance Form. 

42. Order of Precedence: Any and all Special/General Conditions and Specifications attached hereto, which 
varies from the instruction to Bidders, shall take precedence. 

43. Affidavit for Service Contracts: The successful Bidder represents, in accordance with Section 285.530.2, 
RSMo., that it has not employed, or subcontracted with, unauthorized aliens in connection with the 
scope of work to be done under this IFB and agrees to provide an affidavit to the City of Republic 
affirming that it has not, and will not at any point in time relating to this IFB, knowingly employ, or 
subcontract with, any person who is an unauthorized alien. 

44. Inspection and Acceptance: No item(s) received by the City pursuant to any agreement or contract 
awarded under this IFB shall be deemed accepted by the City until the City has had reasonable 
opportunity to inspect the item(s). 

a. Any item(s) which are discovered to be defective, or which do not conform to any warranty of 
the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s), upon inspection, may be 
returned by the City to the successful Bidder and/or entity/ individual who sold the item(s) for 
full credit and reimbursement or replacement. 

b. If, at a later time, any defect is discovered which was not ascertainable upon the initial 
inspection , the City may also return the defective item(s) to the successful Bidder and/ or 
entity/individual who sold the item(s) for full credit and reimbursement or replacement. 

c. The City' s return of defective items shall not exclude any other legal, equitable or contractual 
remedies the City has under applicable Missouri or Republic law and/ or any agreement or 
contract awarded under this IFB. 

45. Davis-Bacon Act: If the Instructions to Bidders have indicated that the Project is financed , in whole or 
in part, from Federal funds, then all work performed pursuant to any contract awarded under this IFB 
shall be subject to all applicable federal statutes, rules and regulations, including provisions of the 
Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. §3141 et seq., and the "Federal Labor Standards Provisions," incorporated 
into this any agreement or contract awarded under this IFB .. Where the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law 
and the Davis-Bacon Act require payment of different wages for work performed pursuant to any 
contract awarded under this IFB, all contractors, subcontractors and other individuals/ entities hired by 
the successful Bidder to perform work under this IFB shall pay the greater of the wages required under 

either law. 

77

Item 6.



46. Jurisdiction and Venue: This IFB and any executed agreement required pursuant to the terms of this 
IFB, shall be taken and deemed to have been fully executed and made by the parties herein and 
governed by the laws of the State of Missouri for all purposes and intents. Venue under this 
Agreement or any disputes that come from it shall be in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri. 
THE PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL UNDER ANY APPLICABLE STATUTE, 

COMMON LAW OR FEDERAL OR STATE CONSTITUTION. 

47. Conflict of Interest: By participating in this IFB and/or accepting an agreement pursuant to the IFB's 
terms, the successful Bidder certifies that no salaried officer or employee of the City, and no member 
of the City Council or Mayor of the City of Republic, has a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this 
Agreement. Any federal regulations and applicable provisions in Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo. shall 
not be violated. 

48. Sovereign Immunity: In no event shall any language or requirement in this IFB or any Agreement that 
comes from this IFB be construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of City's defenses with regard 
to sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, or official immunity under federal or state 
constitutions, states, and/or laws. 

49. Terms: The City of Republic reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received from this Bid. It 
further has the right to negotiate with any qualified source, or to cancel in part or in its entirety this 
Bid. The City also reserves the right to modify, suspend, or terminate at its sole discretion any and all 
aspects of this bud process, to obtain further information from any and all respondents, and to waive 
any defectsas to form or content of the Bid or any submissions by any firm . This bud does not commit 
the City to award a contract, to defray any costs incurred in the preparation of a response to this 
request, or to procure or contract for services. All submissions become the property of the City as 
public record. All submissions may be subject to public review upon request. 

78

Item 6.



ATTACHMENT A - BID SUBMISSION FORM 

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: 

Item Description of Work Price 

• Rock/ stone as requested 

• All Bids t o include: 

0 Travel Expenses 

0 Delivery Cost s 

0 Administrative costs 

• This bid shall serve from execution, expected on August 
16th

, 2022 until December 31'\ 2023 or until superseded by 
$ Fill out Table on next 

another bid . ~ 

Base Bid Please note any of the following: 

• Any labor personnel requests of the City of Republic 
for this project. 

• Any other requests or responsibilities of the City 
of Republic for this project. 

In compliance with t his Invitation for Bid and to all terms, condit ions, and specifications imposed therein and hereby 
incorporated byreference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the goods and/or services described herein. 

79

Item 6.



Rock Type 
Picked Up 

Price Per Ton 

Delivered 

3/8" Stone± 1/4" 

5/8" Stone± 1/4" 

3/4"-1" Clean Stone ,, 
2"-4" Clean Stone 

3/16 Chips (Mixing w/ Salt) 

MoDOT Base Rock Type 1 

MoDOT Base Rock Type 5 
I 1 Shot Rock 3"-6" (MoDOT type 1 Rock Ditch Linear) 

Shot Rock 6"-10" (MoDOT type 2 Rock Ditch Linear) 

Shot Rock 12"-20" (MoDOT type 3 Rock Ditch Linear) 

Shot Rock 19"-28" (MoDOT type 4 Rock Ditch Linear) 
please fill out all categories above you wish to put a bulk bid in for. If you do not wish to bid a certain item please enter N/A. 

Please outline Fuel adjustment method here or attach (if choosing to do 

:\\ 

City of Republic, Missouri 

IFB for: Rock/Stone as requested 8/16/22 
through 12/31/23 

213 N Main Street 

Republic, MO 65738 

elephone:lf 11 - b9y- 'tlo3£o 
ellular: lJ \ 1 - 3 ci 1] - ~ fa 6 \ 

Dated: "] - \, '8'.-d{ill 
Bidder's Federal ID Number: 5 '&- I ':J.·() \(l fcg 

80

Item 6.



Cenco Quarries 
PO Box 50685 
Springfield, MO 658055 
Phone: 417-831-7622 
Fax: 417-831-7236 

Fuel Price Range 

3.350 

3.500 

3.650 

3.800 

3.950 

4.100 

4.250 

4.400 

4.550 

4.700 

4.850 

5.000 

5.150 

5.300 

5.450 

5.600 

5.750 

5.900 

6.050 

6.200 

6.350 

6.500 

6.650 

6.800 

3.499 

3.649 

3.799 

3.949 

4.099 

4.249 

4.399 

4.549 

4.699 

4.849 

4.999 

5.149 

5.299 

5.449 

5.599 

5.749 

5.899 

6.049 

6.199 

6.349 

6.499 

6.649 

6.799 

6.949 

Adjustment Frequency 

co 

Energy/Fuel Surcharge Table 
Aggregate Delivery 

Energy/ fuel Surcharge Energy/Fuel Surcharge 

PerTon % of base rate 

$0.00 0.00% 

$0.05 1.06% 

$0.10 2.12% 

$0.15 3.18% 

$0.20 4.24% 

$0.25 5.29% 

$0.30 6.35% 

$0.35 7.41% 

$0.40 8.47% 

$0.45 9.53% 

$0.50 10.59% 

$0.55 11.65% 

$0.60 12.71% 

$0.65 13.76% 

$0.70 14.82% 

$0.75 15.88% 

$0.80 16.94% 

$0.85 18. 00°/o 
$0.90 19.06% 

$0.95 20.12% 

$1.00 21.18% 

$1.05 22.24% 

$1.10 23.30% 

$1.15 24.36% 

Monthly Weekly 

When published (rack) fuel prices exceed $3.500 per gallon, there will be an energy surcharge 

applied as shown in the table above. 

The adjustment on materials will be reset monthly and the adjustment on delivery charges will 

be reset on Monday of each week, based on the average weekly retail price of #2 diesel fuel 

for the Midwest region (PADD 2) published on the 1st Monday of the each Month . 

link to site: https ://www.eia .gov/dnav/pet/PET PRI GND A EPD2D PTE DPGAL W.htm 

81

Item 6.



NOTICE AND INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS/VENDORS 

Regarding Sections 285.525 through 285.550 RSMo., effective January 1, 2009, 

and Section 292.675 RSMo., effective August 28, 2009 

Effective January 1, 2009 and pursuant to Section 285.530(1) of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, "[n]o business entity 

or employer shall knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work 

within the state of Missouri." 

State law additionally provides that, as a condition for the award of any contract or grant in excess of five thousand 

dollars by the state or by any political subdivision of the state (e.g., the City of Republic) to a business entity (e.g., 

potential bidders in response to this IFB), the business entity (Company) shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 

documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the 

employees working in connection with the contracted services. Every such business entity shall sign an affidavit affirming 

that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services. 

See§ 285.530(2), RSMo. 

Section 285.530 RSMo. pertains to all solicitations for services over $5,000, but does not apply to solicitations for goods 
only. If a solicitation is for a combination of services and goods, Section 285.530 RSMo. applies if the services portion of 
the solicitation is over $5,000. 

82

Item 6.



1. Required Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00 (US) - Effective 1-1-2009, the company (submitting a 
Bid) shall comply with the provisions of Section 285.525 through 285.550, RSMo., which require certain 
statements to be made under penalty of perjury pertaining to employment of unauthorized aliens. The award 
of any contract under this IFS is expressly contingent on the company (submitting a Bid) providing an 
acceptable, notarized affidavit, stating as follows: 

a. that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with respect 
to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 

b. that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection 
with the contracted services. 

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et 
seq. 

2. Additionally, Company must provide documentation evidencing current enrollment in a federal work 
authorization program (e.g. electronic signature page from E-Verify Program's Memo of Understanding 
(MOU). See attached sample. 

A copy of the required affidavit is included on the following page. A digital copy of the affidavit can also 
be accessed and downloaded from the City of Republic's official website, URL address: 
https://www.republicmo.com/DocumentCenterNiew/77/Affidavit-of-Compliance-with-Section-285500-RSMO
PDF?bidld= 

The City of Republic is an E-Verify employer. The City of Republic encourages companies that are not already enrolled 
and participating in a federal work authorization program to do so. E-Verify is an example of a federal work authorization 
program. Information regarding E-Verify is available at http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify or by calling 888-464-4218. 

83

Item 6.



Affidavit of Compliance with Section 285.500, RSMo., et seq. 

for all agreements providing services in excess of $5,000.00 

Effective 1/1/2009 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF GREENE ) 

. Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for the County of GR,(:£,<!£ , State of 
h1 /.55 uur.' , personally appeared l<e. ,Jb 5-le. v<"s (Name) who is __ _ 
.5::; {e.s IY1a na ~< c (Title) of L(z!'.) <,o Gva cc."cs (Name of company), a (circle 

one) corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, limited liability company, and is competent and authorized to make 
this affidavit, and being duly sworn upon oath deposes and says as follows: 

(1) that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with 
respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 

(2) that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in 
connection with the contracted services. 

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et seq. 

Documentation of participation in a federal work authorization program is attached to this affidavit. 

Signature 

20 2-2-Subscribed and sworn to before me this __ ;)_l,_1_"-__ day of 1lf 
~L~-~=-=----
Notary ¢ubllc 

My commission expires: __ ..,_f_,/'--7..,_/_2_0_2_S __ 
DARRIN 

Ncffi~ 
Greene 

My CornmlNion 

84

Item 6.



Company ID Number: XXXXXX 

The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between the SSA, OHS (Department of Homeland 
Security), and the Employer. 

The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enter into this Memorandum of 
Understanding on behalf of the Employer and OHS respectively. 

To be accepted as a participant in E-Verify, you should only sign the Employer's Section of the signature page. If you have 
any questions, contact E-Verify Operations at 888-464-4218. 

\~ 
EmPl9Yer- You, Company Namer .> -,;. \ 5 5 ) P ::;./ 

:) ...,~ 

85

Item 6.



City of Republic, Missouri 

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH INVITATION FOR BID 

To be submitted with all Bids in response to this IFB 

__ We DO NOT take exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements. 

__ We TAKE exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements as follows: 

I have carefully examined the Invitation for Bid and agree to abide by all submitted pricing, delivery, terms and 
conditions of this IFB unless otherwise stipulated herein. 

Company Name _____________ _ 

By __________________ _ 

(Authorized Person's Signature) 
Company Address ____________ _ 

Telephone Number ___________ _ 

Fax Number ______________ _ 

Date _________________ _ 

ADDENDA 

Offeror acknowledges receipt of the following addendum: 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Email _________________ _ 

Federal Tax ID No. -------- ------
DBE Vendor (Yes/No): __ _ Minority Owned: __ 

Women Owned: 
Veteran Owned: 

86

Item 6.



City of Republic, Missouri 

STATEMENT OF "NO PROPOSAL"/ "NO BID" 

RETURN THIS PAGE ONLY IF YOUR COMPANY PROVIDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVICES BEING BID AND DECLINES TO DO SO. 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE DECLINED TO BID ON YOUR IFB FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON(S): 

_ ____ SPECIFICATIONS ARE TOO "TIGHT," I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER 

ONLY(PLEASE EXPLAIN IN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW). 

_____ INSUFFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID. 

_____ OUR PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PERFORM. 

_____ UNABLE TO MEET SPECIFICATIONS. 

_____ UNABLE TO MEET INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. 

_____ SPECIFICATIONS UNCLEAR (PLEASE EXPLAIN IN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW). 

_____ OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY IN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW). 

REMARKS: 

COMPANY NAME: ___________________ _ 

ADDRESS: ______________________ _ 

TITLE: _______________________ _ 

SIGNATURE: _____________________ _ 

TELEPHONE NUMBER: __________________ _ 

DATE: _______ _ 

87

Item 6.



State of Missouri 
EXEMPTION FROM MISSOURI SALES AND USE TAX ON PURCHASES 

Replace this page with pdf of tax exempt form 

Issued to : 

CITY OF REPUBLIC 
213 N. MAIN AVENUE REPUBLIC , MO 65738 

Missouri Tax ID Number : 12 4 92 990 
Effective Date : 

07/11/2002 

Your application for sales/use tax exempt status has been 
approved , pursuant to Section 144 . 030 . 1 , RSMo. This letter is 
issued as documentation of your exempt status . 

Purchases by your Agency are not subject to sales or use 
taxif within the conduct of your Agency ' s exempt functions 
and activities . When purchasing with this exemption , 
f urnishall sellers or vendors a copy of this letter. This 
exemptionmay not be used by individuals making personal 
purchases . 

A contractor may purchase and pay for con struction materials 
exemptfrom sales tax when fulfilling a contract with your Agen cy 
only if your Agency issues a project exemption certificate and 
thecontractor makes purchases in compliance with the provisions of 
Section 144 . 062 , RSMo . 

Sa l es by you r Agency are subject to all appl i cable state 
and local sales taxes . If you engage in the business of 
selling tangible personal property or taxable services at 
retail , you must obtain a Missouri Retail Sales Tax License 
and collect andremit sales tax . 

This i s a continuing exemption subject to legi slative 
chan ges a n d r eview by the Director of Revenue . If your 
Age n cy ceases to qualify as an exempt entity , th i s 
exemption wi ll cease to bevalid . This exemption is not 
assignable or transferable . 

It is an exemption from sales and use taxes only and is not 
an exemption from real or personal property tax . 

Any alteration to this exemption letter renders it invalid . 

If you have any questions regarding the use of this letter , 
pleasecontact the Division of Taxation and Collection , P . O . Box 
3300 , Jefferson City , MO 65105 - 3300 , phone 573 - 751 - 2836 . 

1PI U J0) 

88

Item 6.



MISSOURI PROJECT EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE 

Authorization for Purchasing Construction Materials for Tax Exempt Project 
(The Form and Content of this Exemption Certificate have been approved by the Missouri Department of 

Revenue) 

EXEMPT ENTITY ISSUING CERTIFICATE 
Name: City of Republic, Missouri 
Address : 213 N. Main Avenue 
City/State/Z ip: Republic, Missouri 65738 

MO Tax Exempt 1.D. #: 12492990 
Contract Date: 
Contract#: ______ _ 
Project Description: _______ _ 

Project Location: _ ______ _ 

Project Completion Date: _________ _ 
Auth. Signature: _____________ _ 
Date: 

Letter Effective Date: 
Certificate Expiration Date: 
Revised Expiration Date: 

The Missouri exempt entity named above hereby authorizes the purchase, without sales tax, of tangible personal 
propertyto be incorporated or consumed in the construction of the project identified herein and no other, pursuant to 
Section 144.62, RSMo. 

PURCHASING CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR 
Name: ______________________ _ 

Address: ____________________ _ 

City/State/Z ip: __________________ _ 

INSTRUCTIONS 

EXEMPT ENTITY - A signed copy of this certificate, along with your MO Tax Exemption Letter, must be furnished 
to each contractor and/or subcontractor who will be purchasing tangible personal property for use in the project. It is 
the exempt entity's responsibility to ensure the validity of the certificate. You must issue a certificate with a Revised 
Expiration Date if purchases will be required to complete the project beyond the original Project Exemption Date. 

CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR - The contractor shall furnish a completed copy of this exemption 
certificate, along with a copy of the exempt entity's MO Tax Exemption Letter, to all subcontractors, and any contractor 
or subcontractor purchasing materials shall present copies of such documents to all material suppliers as authorization 
to purchase, on behalf of the exempt entity, all tangible personal property and materials to be incorporated or consumed 
in the construction of that project and no other on a tax-exempt basis. A copy of each certificate must be retained by the 
purchaser for a period of five years . 

MATERIAL SUPPLIER - A completed copy of this exemption certificate, along with the MO Tax Exemption Letter 
of the exempt entity contracting for the project, must be obtained from the contractor or subcontractor making purchases 
of tangible personal property for use in the project, and retained for audit purposes. Invoices issued for such purchases 
must reflect the name of the exempt entity and the project number assigned by the exempt entity shown above. 

89

Item 6.



City of Republic - Invitation for Bid 
Rock/Stone as Requested for the Remainder of 2022 and 

through 2023 

SEALED BIDS MUST BE PHYSICALLY RECEIVED AT REPUBLIC CITY HALL PRIOR TO 3:15 P.M . on Monday, 

August 1, 2022. Bids wi ll be opened by the City at Republ ic City Hall at said time and place. 

BIDS SHOULD BE ADDRESSED AS FOLLOWS: 

City of Republic 

c/o City Clerk, Laura Burbridge 
213 N. Main Avenue 
Republic, MO 65738 

Bids must be submitted on the forms provided and must be manually signed by the individua l authorized 
to legally bind the Bidder. Bidders can add their own sheets for clarification of pricing on certain products 
if t hey choose. 

• Bids shall be submitted with t he Invitation for Bid ("IFB") project name or item clearly indicated 
on the outside of the mailing envelope. 

• Bids received after the opening date and time will be rejected. 

• The attached Terms and Conditions shall become part of any contract, agreement or award 
resulting from this Invitation for Bid. 

• FAXED/EMAILED BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. 
• You are invited to submit your Bid to furnish the materials and/or services described herein. 

Please submit your prices/ fees net of all discounts. Bidders do not necessarily need to bid all 
requested categories, but it is encouraged. 

• August 16th
, 2022 until December 31st

, 2023 or until superseded by another bid. 
• City intends to award all responsive bidders t o the on-call list for service so if t he lowest bidder 

is unable to provide material/service in an acceptable time, the next lowest bidder may be used. 
• Bids wil l be taken to City Council for approva l on Tuesday August 16, 2022. Notice to proceed 

shall follow immediately upon and following approval granted by City Council. 

DESCRIPTION: 

Rock or Stone as requested by City of Republic of in the below listed categories, priced to be picked up 
or delivered if available. 

• 3/8" St one ± 1/4" 
• 5/8" St one ± 1/ 4" 

• 3/4"-1" Clean Stone 

• 2"-4" Clean Stone 

• 3/16 Chips (Mixing w/ Salt) 
• MoDOT Base Rock Type 1 

• MoDOT Base Rock Type 5 

• Shot Rock 3"-6" (MoDOT type 1 Rock Ditch Linear) 
• Shot Rock 6"-10" (MoDOT type 2 Rock Ditch Linear) 

90

Item 6.



• Shot Rock 12"-20" (MoDOT type 3 Rock Ditch Linear) 

• Shot Rock 19"-28" (MoDOT type 4 Rock Ditch Linear) 

Costs 
As part of this Bid, a fuel index or surcharge shall be permitted however, needs to be outlined in this bid. Please outline 
fuel cost adjustment method in the space provided under bid table. E.g. - " if Diesel price exceeds $7 .00 per gallon, an 
additional $2.00 will be added to per/ton cost." Or, attach table with adjustment values based on cost of fuel. 

The City of Republic will utilize the U.S. Energy Information Administration Weekly Retail Gasoline and Diesel Prices for 
the Midwest region (PADD 2), to verify adjustments as necessary. 

https://www.eia.gov/dnav/pet/PET PRI GND A EPD2D PTE DPGAL W.htm 

Inquiries: All inquiries for information should be directed to: 

Garrett Brickner, Engineering Manager 
BUILDS Department, City of Republic 
gbrickner@republicmo.com 
(417) 732-3405 

Important Notice Regarding Competitive Bidding: 

It is the City's intent and desire that this Invitation for Bid promotes competitive Bidding. To the extent 
any language, requirements, terms and/or requests contained within this Invitation for Bid result in the 
elimination of all but one source from which a responsive and responsible Bid may be submitted, such 
restriction/limitation is not intended by the City, but is merely an unintentional error. In the event such error 
is discovered by any potential Bidder, the potential Bidder must notify the City contact listed above of the error, 
in writing, no later than three (3) days prior to the Bid opening day. Upon receipt of any such notice, the City 
will take reasonable efforts to correct the error and resubmit the Invitation for Bid once corrected. 

91

Item 6.



TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

01. Opening Location: Bids submitted in response to this Invitation for Bid ("IFB") will be opened at Republic City 
Hall, located at 213 N. Main Avenue, on 3:15 P.M. on Monday, August 1, 2022. All Bidders (individually, 
"Bidder"; collectively, "Bidders") and/or their authorized representative(s) are permitted to attend the opening 
of the Bids. 

02. IFB Delivery Requirements: Any Bids received after the above stated time and date will not be considered. It 
shall be the sole responsibility of the Bidder to have their Bid delivered to Republic City Hall for receipt on or 
before the due date and time indicated. 

a. If a Bid is sent by U.S. Mail, the Bidder shall be responsible for its timely delivery to Republic City Hall. 
b. Bids delayed by mail shall not be considered, shall not be opened, and shall be rejected. 
c. Arrangements may be made for their return at the Bidder's request and expense. 
d. Bids may be mailed to Republic City Hall and accepted if the signed Bid form and requiredinformation 

was mailed and received prior to the due date and time. 
e. Bids sent by email will not be accepted. 

Sealed and Marked: If sent by mail, one original signed Bid shall be submitted in one sealed package, clearly 
marked on the outside of the package with the IFB project name clearly indicated on the outside of the mailing 
envelope and addressed to: 

City of Republic 
C/O City Clerk, Laura Burbridge 
213 N. Main 

Republic MO 65738 

03. Legal Name and Signature: Bids shall clearly indicate the legal name, address, and telephone number of the 
Bidder (company, firm, corporation, partnership, or individual). 

a. Bids shall be manually signed above the printed name and title of signer on the Affidavit of Compliance 
page. 

b. The signer shall have the authority to bind the Bidder to the submitted Bid. 
c. Failure to properly sign the Bid form shall invalidate the Bid, and it shall not be considered for award. 

04. Corrections: No erasures are permitted. 
a. In the event a correction is necessary, in order for the City to consider the correction, the following 

formatting must be applied: 
1. A single line (strike-through) to the entered text needing correction, and 
2. The corrected text written above the strike-through text, and 
3. The signer(s) of the Bid must initial all corrections. 

05. Clarification and Addenda: Bidders are expected to examine all documents attached to and/or provided by the 
City with this IFB, and prior to submitting any Bid in response to this IFB, make any necessary and/or reasonable 
inquiries of the City to ensure all such Bidders understand the entirety of the documents. 

a. Any inquiries or suggestions concerning interpretation, clarification, or other additional information 
pertaining to the IFB shall be made through the listed City contact in writing (email is permitted). 

b. The City of Republic shall not be responsible for verbal interpretations or other information given by 
any individual purporting to be employed by or otherwise representing the City. 

c. The issuance of written addenda is the official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or 
additional information can be given. 

d. It shall be the responsibility of each Bidder, prior to submitting their Bid, to direct any inquiries to the 
listed City contact. 

92

Item 6.



06. IFS Expenses: There is no expressed or implied obligation for the City of Republic to reimburse responding 
Bidders and the City will not reimburse for any expenses incurred in preparing responses to this IFB. 

07. Bid Security: All Bids must be accompanied by a Bid Security, which shall constitute the Bidder's guarantee that, 
if awarded the contract under this IFB, the Bidder will promptly execute all contract documents and other 
documents required under this IFB, and will furnish good and sufficient bond for the performance of the same. 

a. The Bid Security shall consist of a certified check, cashier's check or a Bid bond, guaranteed by a surety 
company authorized by the Director of the Missouri Department of Insurance and Commerce to conduct 
surety business in the state of Missouri, in an amount no less than ten percent (10%) of the Bid, and 
made payable to the City of Republic. 

b. Bids submitted without the required Bid Security will not be considered for award under this IFB. 

c. The Bid Securities of all Bidders, except for the three apparent lowest Bidders, will be returned as soon 
as reasonably possible after the opening and review of Bids. 

d. The City shall have the right to retain the Bid Security of the three apparent lowest Bidders until either: 
(1) all contract documents have been duly executed and all required bonds and proof of insurance, 
including certificates of insurance, have been furnished by the Bidder to the City; or (2) all Bids have 
been rejected, whichever occurs first. 

08. Irrevocable Offer: Any Bid may be withdrawn up until the due date and time set for opening of the IFB. Any 
Bid not so withdrawn shall, upon opening, constitute an irrevocable offer for a minimum period of ninety (90) 
days to provide to the City the goods or services set forth in the IFB, until one or more of the Bids have been 
duly accepted by the City. 

09. Responsive and Responsible Bidder: To be a responsive Bidder, a Bidder shall submit a Bid which conforms in 
all material respects to the requirements set forth in the IFB. To be a responsible Bidder, the Bidder shall have 
the capability in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements, and the tenacity, perseverance, 
experience, integrity, reliability, capacity, facilities, equipment and credit which will ensure good faith 
performance. The lowest responsible Bidder shall mean the Bidder who makes the lowest Bid to sell goods or 
services of a quality which conforms closest to the quality of goods or services set forth in the specifications or 
otherwise required by the City and who is known to be fit and capable to perform the Bid as made. 

10. Reserved Rights: The City reserves the right to make such investigations as it deems necessary to make the 
determination of the Bidder's responsiveness and responsibility. Such information may include, but shall not be 
limited to: current financial statement, verification of availability of equipment and personnel, and past 
performance records. 

11. The Right to Audit: The Bidder agrees to furnish supporting detail as may be required by the City to support 
charges or invoices, to make available for audit purposes all records covering charges pertinent tothe purchase, 
and to make appropriate adjustments in the event discrepancies are found. 

a. The City shall have the right to audit the Bidder's records pertaining to the work/product for a period of 
three (3) years after final payment. 

b. The cost of any audit conducted pursuant to this term will be paid by the City. 

12. Applicable Law: All applicable laws and regulations of the State of Missouri and the City including the City 
Procurement Regulations and Procedures will apply to any resulting agreement, contract, or purchase order 
entered into under the terms of this IFB. Any involvement with the City Procurement shall be in accordance 
with the Procurement Regulations and Procedures. 

13. Right to Protest: Appeals and remedies are provided for in the City Procurement Regulations. 

93

Item 6.



a. Protestors shall seek resolution of their complaints initially with the City Purchasing Agent. 
b. Any protest shall state the basis upon which the solicitation or award is contested and shall be submitted 

within ten (10) calendar days after such aggrieved person knew or cou ld have reasonably been expected 
to know of the facts giving rise thereto. 

14. Ethical Standards Applicable: With respect to this IFB, if any Bidder violates or is a party to a violation of the 
general ethical standards of the City Procurement Code or the State of Missouri Statues, such Bidder will be 
disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Bid is submitted and shall be further disqualified 
from submitting any future Bids. 

15. Collusion Absolutely Prohibited: All Bidders offering a submission in response to this IFB hereby expressly 
acknowledge and certify that they have not divulged, discussed, or compared their Bid to the Bids of any other 
Bidder(s), and further that they have not colluded or conspired with any other Bidder or parties to this IFB, to 
violate the terms and conditions governing submission of responses to this IFB whatsoever. All Bidders offering 
a submission in response to this IFB additionally promise that: 

a. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have been arrived at independently, without consultation, 
communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to 
such prices and/or cost data, with any other Bidder or with any competitor. 

b. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have not knowingly been disclosed by the Bidder and will not 
knowingly be disclosed by the Bidder prior to the scheduled opening directly or indirectly to any other 
Bidder or to any competitor. 

c. No attempt has been made or will be made by the Bidder to induce any other person or firm to submit 
or not to submit a Bid for the purpose of restricting competition. 

d. The only person or persons interested in this Bid, principal or principals are named therein and that no 
person other than therein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in any contract awarded under this 
IFB. No person or agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure the contract awarded under 
this IFB upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 
fee exempting bona fide employees or established commercial agencies maintained by the Purchaser 
for the purpose of doing business. 

16. Contract Forms: Any agreement, contract, or purchase order resulting from the acceptance of a Bid shall be on 
forms either supplied by or approved by the City. 

17. Liability and Indemnity: 

a. In no event shall the City be liable to the successfu l Bidder for special, indirect, liquidated, incidental, or 
consequential damages, except those caused by the City's gross negligence or willful or wanton 
misconduct arising out of or in any way connected with a breach of any agreement or contract under the 
terms of this IFB. The maximum liability of the City shall be limited to the amount of money to be paid or 
received by the City under any agreement or contract awarded under the terms of this IFB. 

b. The successful Bidder shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City, its elected or appointed 
officials, agents and employees from and against any and all liability, suits, damages, costs (including 
attorney fees), losses, outlays, expenses, and claims, caused or allegedly caused by, or arising out of or 
related in any way whatsoever to (1) any agreement or contract awarded under this IFB, or (2) the work 
performed pursuant to such contract or agreement or any subcontract thereunder (the successful Bidder 
expressly acknowledging and assuming full responsibility for its subcontractors), including, but not 
limited to, claims for personal injuries, death, property damage, or for any other alleged damages. 

c. The successful Bidder sha ll indemnify and hold the City harmless from all wages or overtime 
compensation due any employees in rendering services pursuant to this agreement or any subcontract, 
including payment of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs in the defense of any claim made under the 
Fair Labor Standards Act, the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law or any other federal or state law. 

18. IFB Forms, Variances, and Alternates: Bids must be submitted on the forms attached to this IFB as provided by 
the City; however, additional information may be attached. Bidders must indicate any variances from the City 

94

Item 6.



requested specifications and/or terms and conditions, on the IFB Affidavit of Compliance. Otherwise, Bidders 
must fully comply with the City requested specifications and terms and conditions. Alternate Bids may or may 
not be considered at the sole discretion of the City Purchasing Agent. 

19. Bid Form: All blank spaces must be completed with the appropriate response. 
a. Bidders must state the price, written in ink, for what is proposed to complete each item of the project. 
b. Bidders must insert the words "no Bid" in the space provided for any item for which no Bid is made. 
c. Bidders must submit an executed Bid form, affidavit of compliance with other requested documents. 

20. Modifications or Withdrawal of Bid: A modification of a Bid already submitted will be considered only if the 
modification is received prior to the time announced for opening of Bids, and is made in writing; executed and 
submitted on the same form and manner as the original Bid. Modifications submitted by telephone, fax, or email 
will not be considered. 

21. No Bid: If not submitting a Bid, respond by returning the "Statement of No Bid" no later than the statedBid 
opening time and date, and explain the reason in the space provided. 

22. Errors in Bids: Bidders are expected to fully inform themselves as to the conditions, requirements, and 
specifications before submitting Bids; failure to do so will be at the Bidder's own risk. Applicable law and 
regulations do not make allowance for errors either of omission or inclusion on the part of Bidders. In case an 
error regarding extension of prices in the Bid, the unit price sha llgovern. 

23. Prices: Bids must include both unit price and extended total. 
a. Price must be stated in units of quantity specified in the Bidding specifications. In case of discrepancy in 

computing the amount of the Bid, the unit price of the Bid will govern. 
b. All prices shall be F.O.B. destination, freight prepaid (unless otherwise stated in special conditions). FOB, 

as used in this IFB, shall mean that the successful Bidder, at their own expense, shall transport the 
equipment and/or materials and bear the risk of loss from successful Bidder's location to a specified 
location in the City of Republic. City sha ll not take title to the materials or equipment until it is delivered 
and accepted by City at the address specified within the City of Republic. 

c. Each item must be Bid separately and no attempt is to be made to tie any item or items in with any other 
item or items. 

d. If a Bidder offers a discount on payment terms, the discount time will be computed from the date of 
satisfactory delivery at place of acceptance and receipt of correct invoice at the office specified. 

e. Payment terms shall be Net 30 if not otherwise specified. 
f. Pre-payment terms are not acceptable. 

24. Discounts: Any and all discounts, except cash discounts for prompt payments, must be incorporated as a 
reduction in the Bid price and not shown separately. The price as shown on the Bid shall be the price used in the 
City's determination of award(s). 

25. Descriptive Information: All equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the product/work coveredby 
this IFB are to be new and of suitable grade for the purpose intended. 

a. Brand or trade names referenced in specifications are for comparison purposes only. 
b. Bidders may submit Bids on items manufactured by an individual/entity other than the manufacturer 

specified so long as an "or equal" is expressly stated. 

26. Deviations to Specifications and Requirements: When Bidding on an "or equal," Bids must be accompanied 
with all descriptive information necessary for an evaluation of the proposed material orequipment such as the 
detailed drawings and specifications, certified operation and test data, and experience records. 

a. Failure of any Bidder to furnish the data necessary to determine whether the product is equivalent, may 
be cause for rejection of the specific item(s) to which it pertains. 

b. All deviations from the specifications must be noted in detail by the Bidder on the Affidavit of Compliance 

95

Item 6.



form, at the time of submittal of Bid. 
c. The absence of listed deviations at the time of submittal of the Bid will hold the Bidder strictly 

accountable to the specifications as written. 
d. Any deviation from the specifications as written and accepted by the City may be grounds for rejection 

of the material and/or equipment when delivered. 

27. Quality Guaranty: If any product delivered does not meet applicable specifications or otherwise fails to compare 
with the quality represented by the Bidder, the Bidder shall retrieve the product from the City as its own 
expense. The Bidder shall refund to the City any money the City has remitted to the Bidder for same. In the 
event the successful Bidder fails or refuses to retrieve the product and refund to the City any money previously 
remitted to the Bidder for such product in accord with the terms of this paragraph, the Bidder shall be 
responsible for the City's attorney fees and other costs it incurs in enforcing its rights under this paragraph. 

28. Quality Terms: The City reserves the right to reject any or all materials if, in its judgment, the item reflects 
unsatisfactory workmanship, manufacturing, or shipping damages. 

29. Tax-Exempt: The City is exempt from sales taxes and Federal Excise Taxes: Missouri Tax ID Number 12492990. 

30. Bid Awards: Awards will be made to the Bidder whose Bid (1) meets the specifications and all other 
requirements of the IFB and (2) is the lowest and best Bid, considering price, delivery, responsibility of the 
Bidder, and all other relevant factors. 

a. Unless otherwise stated in the IFB, cash discounts for prompt payment of invoices will not be considered 
in the evaluation of prices. However, such discounts are encouraged to motivate prompt payment. 

b. As the best interest of the City may require, the right is reserved to make awards by item, group(s) of 
items, all or none or a combination thereof; and to reject any and all Bids or waive any minor or non
material irregularity or technicality in Bids received. 

31. Authorized Product Representation: The successful Bidder(s) by virtue of submitting the name and 
specifications of a manufacturer's product will be required to furnish the named manufacturer's product. By 
virtue of submission of the stated documents, it will be presumed by the City that the Bidder(s) is legally 
authorized to submit and the successful Bidder(s) will be legally bound to perform according to the documents. 

32. Regulations: It shall be the responsibility of each Bidder to assure compliance with OSHA, EPA, Federal, State 
of Missouri, and City rules, regulations, or other requirements, as each may apply. 

a. E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS: All contractors or subcontractors to be utilized by 
Bidder on contracts exceeding five thousand dollars shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program 
with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services and affirm 
that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with 
the contracted services. 

b. Bidders are herein informed that the work to be performed under this IFB is subject to the 
requirements of Section 292.675, RSMo., which requires all contractors or subcontractors 
perform work such to provide and require its on-site employees to complete a ten {lO)hour 
course in construction safety and health approved by the Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration ("OSHA") or a similar program approved by the Missouri Department of Labor 
and Industrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program. The 
training must be completed within sixty (60) days of the date work on the Project commences. 
On-siteemployees found on the worksite without documentation of the required training shall 
have twenty (20) days to produce such documentation. 

c. Pursuant to Section 292.675 RSMo., the successful Bidder shall forfeit to the City as a penalty 
two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00), plus one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each on
site employee employed by it, or any contractors or subcontractors hired by it, for each 
calendar day, or portion thereof, Such on-site employee isemployed without the construction 

96

Item 6.



safety training required in the above paragraph. 
d. Section 208.009 RS Mo. shall apply to any contracts awarded under this Bid. 

33. Termination of Award: Any failure of the Bidder to satisfy the requirements of the City shall be reason 
fortermination of the award. Any Bid may be rejected in whole or in part for any reason by the City. 

34. Royalties and Patents: The successful Bidder(s) shall pay all royalties and license fees for equipment or 
processes in conjunction with the equipment being furnished. Bidder shall defend all suits or claims for 
infringement of any patent right and shall hold the City harmless from loss on account or cost and 
attorney's fees incurred. 

35. Equal Employment Opportunity Clause: The City of Republic, in accordance with the provision of Title 
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252) and the Regulations of the Department of Commerce (15 
CFR,Part 8) issued pursuant to the aforementioned Civil Rights Act, hereby notifies all Bidders that the 
City takes all reasonably necessary steps to affirmatively ensure that all Bidders, including minority 
businesses, will be afforded full opportunity to submit Bids in response to this IFB and that no Bidder 
will be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in determining the 
successful Bidder for award. 

36. Insurance Requirements: For the duration of any contract awarded under this IFB, (which, for projects 
including any labor, means until the work is completed and accepted by the City; and which, for projects 
involving supply of materials only, means until the materials are delivered and accepted by the City), 
the successful Bidder is required to maintain certain insurance to protect it and the City against risks of 
loss in connection with the Project, as defined more fully below. The Successful Bidder will be required 
to provide the City with proof of insurance that satisfies the requirements stated below, unless 
otherwise specified by the City. The insurance requirements below may be modified or waived by the 
City at the City's sole discretion. 

a. Workers' Compensation: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Employers Liability and Workers 
Compensation Insurance for all persons it will employ or retain to perform any work in 
connection with a contract awarded under this IFB, and in the event the Successful Bidder will 
sublet or subcontract any such work, the Successful Bidder shall require the subcontractor to 
provide similar Workers Compensation Insurance for the subcontractor's employees, unless 
such employees are covered by the Successful Bidder's coverage. Workers Compensation 
coverage shall meet the minimum requirements under Missouri law of $500,000 each 
employee and $500,000 each accident. 

b. Commercial General Liability: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Commercial General 
Liability coverage for personal and advertising injury, bodily injury including accidental death, 
and broad-form property damage, which may arise from the performance of any contract 
awarded under this IFB, in an aggregate amount of not less than $2,000,000 each occurrence 
and $1,000,000 each person. 

c. Commercial Automobile Liability (applies only to projects involving the Successful Bidder's 
operation of vehicles in performing the work awarded under this IFB): The Successful Bidder 
shall maintain Commercial Automobile Liability coverage of not less than $2,000,000 each 
occurrence and $1,000,000 each person for "any auto" on an occurrence basis. 

37. Performance Bond and Labor & Materials Payment Bond (applies only to projects involving labor): 
Pursuant to Section 107.170, RSMo., if the total cost of the project is estimated to exceed $50,000.00, 
the successful Bidder shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Bond and a Labor and Materials 
Payment Bond with surety, approved by the City and on forms approved by the City, each bond shall be 
in the amount of the total project cost, conditioned upon the full and faithful performance of all major 

97

Item 6.



terms and conditions of the IFB and payment of all labor and material supplies. 

38. Nonresident/Foreign Contractors: To the extent the successful Bidder utilizes non-resident/foreign 
contractors to provide services or supplies in connection with this IFB, the successful Bidder shall 
procure and maintain: 

a. A certificate of authority to transact business in the State of Missouri from the Secretary of 
State, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 351.570, RSMo. 

b. A certificate from the Missouri Director of Revenue evidencing compliance with the transient 
employer financial assurance law, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 285.230, 
RSMo. 

39. Bid Tabulation: Bidders may request a copy of the Bid tabulation of the IFB. 

40. Budgetary Constraints: The City reserves the right to reduce or increase the quantity, retract any item 
from the Bid, or upon notification, terminate entire agreement without any obligations or penalty based 
upon availability of funds. 

41. Additional Purchases by Other Public Agencies: By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, the Bidder 
authorizes other publicagencies to "Piggy-Back" or purchase equipment and services being proposed in 
this IFB unless otherwise noted on the Affidavit of Compliance Form. 

42. Order of Precedence: Any and all Special/General Conditions and Specifications attached hereto, which 
va ries from the instruction to Bidders, shall take precedence. 

43. Affidavit for Service Contracts: The successful Bidder represents, in accordance with Section 285.530.2, 
RSMo., that it has not employed, or subcontracted with, unauthorized aliens in connection with the 
scope of work to be done under this IFB and agrees to provide an affidavit to the City of Republic 
affirming that it has not, and will not at any point in time relating to this IFB, knowingly employ, or 
subcontract with, any person who is an unauthorized alien. 

44. Inspection and Acceptance: No item(s) received by the City pursuant to any agreement or contract 
awarded under this IFB shall be deemed accepted by the City until the City has had reasonable 
opportunity to inspect the item(s). 

a. Any item(s) which are discovered to be defective, or which do not conform to any warranty of 
the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s), upon inspection, may be 
returned by the City to the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s) for 
full credit and reimbursement or replacement. 

b. If, at a later time, any defect is discovered which was not ascertainable upon the initial 
inspection, the City may also return the defective item(s) to the successful Bidder and/or 
entity/individual who sold the item(s) for full credit and reimbursement or replacement. 

c. The City's return of defective items shall not exclude any other legal, equitable or contractual 
remedies the City has under applicable Missouri or Republic law and/or any agreement or 
contract awarded under this IFB. 

45. Davis-Bacon Act: If the Instructions to Bidders have indicated that the Project is financed, in whole or 
in part, from Federal funds, then all work performed pursuant to any contract awarded under this IFB 
shall be subject to all applicable federal statutes, rules and regulations, including provisions of the 
Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. §3141 et seq., and the "Federal Labor Standards Provisions," incorporated 
into this any agreement or contract awarded under this IFB .. Where the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law 
and the Davis-Bacon Act require payment of different wages for work performed pursuant to any 
contract awarded under this IFB, all contractors, subcontractors and other individuals/entities hired by 
the successful Bidder to perform work under this IFB shall pay the greater of the wages required under 
either law. 

98

Item 6.



46. Jurisdiction and Venue: This IFB and any executed agreement required pursuant to the terms of this 
IFB, shall be taken and deemed to have been fully executed and made by the parties herein and 
governed by the laws of the State of Missouri for all purposes and intents. Venue under this 
Agreement or any disputes that come from it shall be in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri. 
THE PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL UNDER ANY APPLICABLE STATUTE, 

COMMON LAW OR FEDERAL OR STATE CONSTITUTION. 

47. Conflict of Interest: By participating in this IFB and/or accepting an agreement pursuant to the IFB's 
terms, the successful Bidder certifies that no salaried officer or employee of the City, and no member 
of the City Council or Mayor of the City of Republic, has a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this 
Agreement. Any federal regulations and applicable provisions in Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo. shall 
not be violated. 

48. Sovereign Immunity: In no event shall any language or requirement in this IFB or any Agreement that 
comes from this IFB be construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of City's defenses with regard 
to sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, or official immunity under federal or state 
constitutions, states, and/or laws. 

49. Terms: The City of Republic reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received from this Bid. It 
further has the right to negotiate with any qualified source, or to cancel in part or in its entirety this 
Bid. The City also reserves the right to modify, suspend, or terminate at its sole discretion any and all 
aspects of this bud process, to obtain further information from any and all respondents, and to waive 
any defectsas to form or content of the Bid or any submissions by any firm. This bud does not commit 
the City to award a contract, to defray any costs incurred in the preparation of a response to this 
request, or to procure or contract for services. All submissions become the property of the City as 
public record. All submissions may be subject to public review upon request. 

99

Item 6.



ATTACHMENT A - BID SUBMISSION FORM 

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: 

Item Description of Work Price 

• Rock/stone as requested 

• All Bids to include: 

0 Travel Expenses 

0 Delivery Costs 

0 Administrative costs 

• This bid shall serve from execution, expected on August 

16th
, 2022 until December 3l5t, 2023 or until superseded by 

$ Fill out Table on next 

another bid. ~ 

Base Bid Please note any of the following: 

• Any labor personnel requests of the City of Republic 
for this project. 

• Any other requests or responsibilities of the City 
of Republic for this project. 

In compliance with this Invitation for Bid and to all terms, conditions, and specifications imposed therein and hereby 
incorporated byreference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furni sh the goods and/or services described herein . 

100

Item 6.



Rock Type 
Price Per Ton 

Delivered 

3/8" Stone± 1/4" 

5/8" Stone± 1/4" 

3/4"-1" Clean Stone 

2"-4" Clean Stone 

3/16 Chips (Mixing w/ Salt) 

Mo DOT Base Rock Type 1 

MoDOT Base Rock Type 5 

Shot Rock 3"-6" (MoDOT type 1 Rock Ditch Linear) 

Shot Rock 6"-10" (MoDOT type 2 Rock Ditch Linear) 

Shot Rock 12"-20" (Mo DOT type 3 Rock Ditch Linear) 

Shot Rock 19"-28" (Mo DOT type 4 Rock Ditch Linear) 
please fi ll out al l ca tegories above you wish to put a bu lk bid in fo r. If you do not wish to bid a certain item please enter N/A. 

Please outline Fuel adjustment method here or attach (if choosing to do so): 

City of Republic, Missouri 

IFB for: Rock/Stone as requested 8/16/22 !

Company Le_gjlN/me: t ~ / . cq D,~ _ Mq_er1q_.{' 

' 
through 12/31/23 

213 N Main Street 

Republic, MO 65738 

elephone: 4/f/- (;i1 -l/t-f 81-
Cellular: 4/2, 90~ -qrc.r2 
Email: C'Mo rt, s © c~ Pf I-" I lb1tl rr11 Is fi.1~ I , C,lr • 

Dated: _ _ _______ ____ _ 

Bidder's Federal ID Number: 

101

Item 6.



Affidavit of Compliance with Section 285.500, RSMo., et seq . 

for all agreements providing services in excess of $5,000.00 

Effective 1/1/2009 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF GREENE ) 

Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for , State of 
< , 
\ , pers9A,:JIIY ap ar d ·':, (Name) who is _ _ _ 

-A+":J.L~P-l.f:::::..---2lL..L!::..i_ (Title} of (__~ ' (Name of company), a (circle 
on orp ation, partnership, sole proprietors ip, 'mited liability compan and is competent and authorized to make 
this affidavit, and being duly sworn upon oath deposes and says as follows: 

(1) that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with 
respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 

(2) that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in 
connection with the contracted services. 

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et seq. 

Documentation of participation in a federal work authorizati 

ignature 

drJ,~1,tf rJ1!. VD '5 
Printed Name 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this __ rz-__ q __ _ 

My commission expires: l -2,-- ?J:>21) 
BRANDI CULBERTSON 

Notarv Public - NotarY Seal 
STATE OF MISSOURI 

Chrldan County 
My COIMliMion ExpirN Jan. 2, 2025 

Commilalon t13430566 

102

Item 6.



City of Republic - Invitation for Bid 
Rock/Stone as Requested for the Remainder of 2022 and 

through 2023 

SEALED BIDS MUST BE PHYSICALLY RECEIVED AT REPUBLIC CITY HALL PRIOR TO 3:15 P.M . on Monday, 

August 1, 2022. Bids will be opened by the City at Republic City Hall at said time and place. 

BIDS SHOULD BE ADDRESSED AS FOLLOWS: 

City of Republic 

c/o City Clerk, Laura Burbridge 
213 N. Main Avenu e 

Republ ic, MO 65738 

Bids must be submitted on the forms provided and must be manually signed by the individual authorized 
to legally bind the Bidder. Bidders can add their own sheets for clar ification of pricing on certain products 
if they choose. 

• Bids shall be submitted with the Invitation for Bid ("IFB") project name or item clearly indicated 
on the outside of the mailing envelope. 

• Bids received after the opening date and time will be rejected . 
• The attached Terms and Conditions shall become part of any contract , agreement or award 

resulting from this Invitation for Bid. 

• FAXED/EMAILED BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. 

• You are invited to submit your Bid to furnish the materials and/or services described herein. 
Please submit your prices/fees net of all discounts. Bidders do not necessarily need to bid all 
requested categories, but it is encouraged. 

• August 161
\ 2022 until December 31' 1, 2023 or until superseded by another bid. 

• City intends to award all responsive bidders to the on-call list for service so if the lowest bidder 
is unable to provide material/service in an acceptable time, the next lowest bidder may be used. 

• Bids will be t aken to City Council for approval on Tuesday August 16, 2022. Notice to proceed 
shall fol low immediately upon and following approval granted by City Counci l. 

DESCRIPTION: 
Rock or Stone as requested by City of Republic of in the below listed categories, priced to be picked up 

or delivered if available. 

• 3/8" Stone ± 1/ 4" 

• 5/8" Stone ± 1/4" 

• 3/4"-1" Clean Stone 

• 2"-4" Clean Stone 

• 3/16 Chips {M ixing w/ Salt) 
• MoDOT Base Rock Type 1 

• Mo DOT Base Rock Type 5 
• Shot Rock 3"-6" {Mo DOT type 1 Rock Ditch Linear) 

• Shot Rock 6"-10" {MoDOT type 2 Rock Ditch Linear) 

103

Item 6.



MISSOURI PROJECT EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE 

Authorization for Purchasing Construction Materials for Tax Exempt Project 
(The Form and Content of this Exemption Certificate have been approved by the Missouri Department of 

Revenue) 

EXEMPT ENTITY ISSUING CERTIFICATE 
Name: City of Republic, Missouri 
Address: 213 N. Main Avenue 
City/State/Zip: Republic, Missouri 65738 

MO Tax Exempt I.D. # : 12492990 
Contract Date: 
Contract#: _ _____ _ 
Project Description: _______ _ 

Project Location: ___ ___ _ _ 
Project Completion Date: ___ ______ _ 
Auth. Signature: _ ___ _ ___ _ ____ _ 
Date: 

Letter Effective Date: 
Certificate Expiration Date: 
Revised Expiration Date: 

The Missouri exempt entity named above hereby authorizes the purchase, without sales tax, of tangible personal 
propertyto be incorporated or conswned in the construction of the project identified herein and no other, pw-suant to 
Section 144.62, RSMo. 

PURCHASING CONTRACTOR QR SUBCONTRACTOR 
Name: _ ___ ___ _________ _ _ ___ _ _ 

Address: _ _ _ ___ ___ _____ ____ _ _ _ _ 

City/State/Zip: __________________ _ 

INSTRUCTIONS 

EXEMPT ENTITY - A signed copy of this certificate, along with your MO Tax Exemption Letter, must be furnished 
to each contractor and/or subcontractor who will be purchasing tangible personal property for use in the project. It is 
the exempt entity's responsibility to ensure the validity of the certificate. You must issue a certificate with a Revised 
Expiration Date if purchases will be required to complete the project beyond the original Project Exemption Date. 

CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR - The contractor shall fw-nish a completed copy of this exemption 
certificate, along with a copy of the exempt entity's MO Tax Exemption Letter, to all subcontractors, and any contractor 
or subcontractor purchasing materials shall present copies of such documents to all material suppliers as authorization 
to pw-chase, on behalf of the exempt entity, all tangible personal property and materials to be incorporated or conswned 
in the construction of that project and no other on a tax-exempt basis. A copy of each certificate must be retained by the 
purchaser for a period of five years. 

MATERIAL SUPPLIER - A completed copy of this exemption certificate, along with the MO Tax Exemption Letter 
of the exempt entity contracting for the project, must be obtained from the contractor or subcontractor making purchases 
of tangible personal property for use in the project, and retained for audit purposes. Invoices issued for such purchases 
must reflect the name of the exempt entity and the project number assigned by the exempt entity shown above. 

104

Item 6.



State of Missouri 
EXEMPTION FROM MISSOURI SALES AND USE TAX ON PURCHASES 

Replace this page with pdf o= tax exempt form 

Issued to : 

CITY OF REPUBLIC 
213 N . MAIN AVENUE REPUBLIC , MO 65738 

Missouri Tax ID Number : 12492990 
Effective Date : 

07/11/2002 

Your application for sales/use tax exempt status has been 
approved , pursuant to Section 144 . 030 . 1 , RSMo . This letter is 
issued as documentation of your exempt status . 

Purchases by your Agency are not subject to sales or use 
taxif within the conduct of your Agency ' s exempt functions 
and activities . When purchasing with this exemption , 
furnishall sellers o r vendors a copy of this letter . This 
exemptionmay not be used by individuals making personal 
purchases . 

A contractor may purchase and pay for construction materials 
exemptfrom sales tax when fulfilling a contract with your Agency 
only if your Agency issues a project exemption certificate and 
thecontractor makes purchases i n compliance with the provisions of 
Section 144 . 062 , RSMo . 

Sales by your Agency are subject to all applicable state 
and local sales taxes . If you engage in the business of 
selling tangible personal property or taxable services at 
retail , you must obtain a Missouri Retail Sales Tax License 
and collect andremit sales tax . 

This is a cont inuing exemption subject to legislative 
changes and review b y the Director o f Revenue . If your 
Agency ceases to qu a lify as an exempt entity , this 
exemption will cease to bevalid . This exemption is not 
assignable or transferable . 

It is an exemption from sales and use taxes only and is not 
an exemption from real or personal property tax . 

Any alteration to this exemption letter renders it invalid . 

If you have any questions regarding the use of this letter , 
pleasecontact the Division of Taxation and Collection , P . O . Box 
3300 , Jefferson City , MO 65105-3300 , phone 573-751-2836 . 

!PIUJO) 

105

Item 6.



• Shot Rock 12"-20" (MoDOT type 3 Rock Ditch Linear) 
• Shot Rock 19"-28" (MoDOT type 4 Rock Ditch Linear) 

Costs 
As part of this Bid, a fuel index or surcharge shall be permitted however, needs to be outlined in this bid. Please outline 
fuel cost adjustment method in the space provided under bid table. E.g. - "if Diesel price exceeds $7.00 per gallon, an 
additional $2.00 wil l be added to per/ton cost." Or, attach table with adjustment values based on cost of fuel. 

The City of Republic will utili ze the U.S. Energy Information Administration Weekly Retail Gasoline and Diesel Prices for 
the Midwest region (PADD 2), to verify adjustments as necessary. 

https://www.eia.gov/dnav/pet/PET PRI GND A EPD2D PTE DPGAL W.htm 

Inquiries: All inquiries for information should be directed to: 

Garrett Brickner, Engineering Manager 
BUILDS Department, City of Republic 
gbrickner@republicmo.com 
(417) 732-3405 

Important Notice Regarding Competitive Bidding: 

It is the City's intent and desire that this Invitation for Bid promotes competitive Bidding. To the extent 
any language, requirements, terms and/or requests contained within this Invitation for Bid result in the 
el imination of all but one source from which a responsive and responsible Bid may be submitted, such 

restriction/limitation is not intended by the City, but is merely an unintentional error. In the event such error 
is discovered by any potential Bidder, the potential Bidder must notify the City contact listed above of the error, 
in writing, no later than three (3) days prior to the Bid opening day. Upon receipt of any such notice, the City 
will take reasonable efforts to correct the error and resubmit the Invitation for Bid once corrected. 

106

Item 6.



TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

01. Opening Location: Bids submitted in response to this Invitation for Bid ("IFB") will be opened at Republic City 
Hall, located at 213 N. Main Avenue, on 3:15 P.M . on Monday, August 1, 2022. All Bidders (individually, 
"Bidder"; collectively, "Bidders") and/or their authorized representative(s) are permitted to attend the opening 
of the Bids. 

02. IFB Delivery Requirements: Any Bids received after the above stated time and date will not be considered. It 
shall be the sole responsibi lity of t he Bidder to have their Bid delivered to Republic City Hall for receipt on or 
before the due date and t ime indicated. 

a. If a Bid is sent by U.S. Mail, the Bidder shall be responsible for its timely delivery ta Republ ic City Hall . 
b. Bids delayed by mail shall not be considered, shall not be opened, and shall be rejected. 
c. Arrangements may be made for their return at the Bidder's request and expense. 
d. Bids may be mailed to Republic City Hall and accepted if the signed Bid form and requ ired information 

was mailed and received prior to the due date and t ime. 
e. Bids sent by email will not be accepted. 

Sealed and Marked: If sent by mail, one original signed Bid shall be submitted in one sealed package, clearly 
marked on the outside of the package with the IFB project name clearly indicated on the outside of the mailing 
envelope and addressed to: 

City of Republic 
C/0 City Clerk, Laura Burbridge 
213 N. Main 

Republic MO 65738 

03. Legal Name and Signature: Bids shall clearly indicate the legal name, address, and telephone number of the 
Bidder (company, firm, corporation, partnership, or individual). 

a. Bids shall be manually signed above the printed name and tit le of signer on the Affidavit of Compliance 
page. 

b. The signer shall have the authority to bind the Bidder to the submitted Bid. 
c. Failure to properly sign the Bid form sha ll invalidate the Bid, and it shall not be considered fo r award. 

04. Corrections: No erasures are permitted. 
a. In the event a correction is necessary, in order for the City to consider the correction, t he following 

formatting must be appl ied: 
1. A single line (strike-through) to the entered text needing correction, and 
2. The corrected text written above the strike-th rough text, and 
3. The signer(s) of the Bid must initial al l corrections. 

OS. Clarification and Addenda: Bidders are expect ed to examine all documents attached to and/or provided by the 
City with this IFB, and prior to submitting any Bid in response to this IFB, make any necessary and/or reasonab le 
inquiries of the City to ensure all such Bidders understand the entirety of the documents. 

a. Any inquiries or suggestions concerning interpretation, clarificat ion, or other additional information 
pertaining to the IFB shall be made through the listed City contact in writing (email is permitted). 

b. The City of Republic shall not be responsible for verbal interpretations or other information given by 
any individual purporting to be employed by or otherwise representing the City. 

c. The issuance of written addenda is the official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or 

additiona l information can be given. 
d. It shall be the responsibility of each Bidder, prior to submitting their Bid, to direct any inquiries to the 

listed City contact. 

107

Item 6.



06. IFB Expenses: There is no expressed or impl ied obligation fo r t he City of Republic to re imburse responding 
Bidders and the City will not reimburse for any expenses incurred in preparing responses to this IFB. 

07. Bid Security: All Bids must be accompanied by a Bid Security, which sha ll constitute the Bidder's guarantee that, 
if awarded the contract under this IFB, the Bidder will promptly execute all cont ract documen':s and other 
documents required under this IFB, and will furnish good and sufficient bond for the performance of the same. 

a. The Bid Security shall consist of a certified check, cashier's check or a Bid bond, guaranteed by a surety 
company authorized by the Director of the Missouri Department of Insurance and Commerce to conduct 
surety business in the state of Missouri, in an amount no less than t en percent (10%) of the Bid, and 
made payable to t he City of Republic. 

b. Bids submitted without the required Bid Security will not be considered for award under t his IFB. 

c. Th e Bid Securities of all Bidders, except for t he three apparent lowest Bidders, will be returned as soon 
as reasonably possible after the opening and review of Bids. 

d. The City shall have the right to retain the Bid Security of the three apparent lowest Bidders until either: 
(1) all contract documents have been duly executed and all required bonds and proof of insurance, 
including certificates of insurance, have been furnished by the Bidder to t he City; or (2) all Bids have 
been rejected, whichever occurs first. 

08. Irrevocable Offer: Any Bid may be withdrawn up until the due date and time set for opening of the IFB. Any 
Bid not so withdrawn shall, upon opening, constitute an irrevocable offer for a minimum period of ninety (90) 
days to provide to the City the goods or services set forth in the I FB, until one or more of the Bids have been 
duly accepted by the City. 

09. Responsive and Responsible Bidder: To be a responsive Bidder, a Bidder shall submit a Bid which conforms in 
all material respects to the requirements set forth in the IFB. To be a responsible Bidder, the Bidcer shall have 
the capabi lity in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements, and the tenacity, perseverance, 
experience, integrity, reliability, capacity, facilities, equipment and credit w hich will ensure good faith 
performance. The lowest responsible Bidder sha ll mean the Bidder who makes the lowest Bid to sel l goods or 
services of a qua lity which conforms closest to the quality of goods or services set forth in the specifications or 
otherwise required by the City and who is known to be fit and capable to perform the Bid as madP. 

10. Reserved Rights: The City reserves t he right to make such investigations as it deems necessary to make the 

determination of the Bidder's responsiveness and responsibility. Such information may include, but shall not be 
limited to: current financial stat ement, verification of availability of equipment and personnel, and past 

performance records. 

11. The Right to Audit: The Bidder agrees to furnish supporting detail as may be required by the Ci ty to support 
charges or invoices, t o make available for audit purposes all records covering charges pertinent tothe purchase, 

and to make appropriate adjustments in t he event discrepancies are found. 
a. The City shall have the right to audit the Bidder's records pertaining to the work/product for a period of 

three (3) years after fina l payment. 
b. The cost of any audit conducted pursuant to this t erm wi ll be paid by the City. 

12. Applicable Law: All applicable laws and regulations of the State of Missouri and the City including the City 
Procurement Regulations and Procedures will apply to any resulting agreement, contract, or purchase order 
entered into under the terms of this IFB. Any involvement with the City Procurement shall be in accordance 

with t he Procurement Regulations and Procedures. 

13. Right to Protest: Appeals and remedies are provided fo r in the City Procurement Regulations. 

108

Item 6.



a. Protestors shall seek resolution of their complaint s initially with the City Purchasing Agent. 
b. Any protest shall st ate the basis upon which the solicitation or award is contested and shall be submitted 

within ten (10) calendar days after such aggrieved person knew or could have reasonably been expected 
to know of t he facts giving rise thereto. 

14. Ethical Standards Applicable: With respect to this IFB, if any Bidder violates or is a party to a violation of the 
general ethical standards of the City Procurement Code or the State of Missouri Statues, such Bidder will be 
disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Bid is submitted and shall be further disqua lified 
from submitting any future Bids. 

15. Collusion Absolutely Prohibited: All Bidders offering a submission in response to this IFB hereby expressly 
acknowledge and certify that they have not divulged, discussed, or compared their Bid to the Bids of any other 
Bidder(s), and further that they have not colluded or conspired with any other Bidder or parties to t his IFB, to 
violate the terms and conditions governing submission of responses to this IFB whatsoever. All Bidders offering 
a submission in response to this IFB additionally promise that: 

a. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have been arrived at independently, without consultation, 
communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to 
such prices and/or cost data, with any other Bidder or with any competitor. 

b. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have not knowingly been disclosed by the Bidder and wil l not 
knowingly be disclosed by the Bidder prior to the scheduled opening directly or indirectly to any ot her 
Bidder or to any competitor. 

c. No attempt has been made or wil l be made by the Bidder to induce any other person or firm to submit 
or not to submit a Bid for the purpose of restricting competition. 

d. The only person or persons interested in t his Bid, principal or principals are named therein and that no 
person other than therein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in any contract awarded under this 
IFB. No person or agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure the contract awarded under 
t his IFB upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 
fee exempting bona fide employees or established commercial agencies maintained by the Purchaser 

for the purpose of doing business. 

16. Contract Forms: Any agreement, contract, or purchase order resulting from the acceptance of a Bid sha ll be on 
forms either supplied by or approved by the City. 

17. Liability and Indemnity: 
a. In no event shall the City be liable to the successful Bidder for special, indirect, liquidated, incidental, or 

consequential damages, except those caused by the City's gross negligence or willfu l or wanton 
misconduct arising out of or in any way connected with a breach of any agreement or contr,1ct under the 
terms of this IFB. The maximum liability of the City shall be limited to the amount of money to be paid or 
received by the City under any agreement or contract awarded under the terms of this IFB. 

b. The successful Bidder shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City, its elected or appointed 
officials, agents and employees from and against any and all liability, suits, damages, costs (including 
attorney fees), losses, outlays, expenses, and claims, caused or allegedly caused by, or arising out of or 
related in any way whatsoever to (1) any agreement or contract awarded under this IFB, or (2) the work 
performed pursuant t o such contract or agreement or any subcontract thereunder (the successful Bidder 
expressly acknowledging and assuming fu ll responsibi lity for its subcontract ors), including, but not 
limited to, claims for personal injuries, death, property damage, or for any other alleged damages. 

c. The successful Bidder shall indemnify and hold t he City harmless from all wages or overtime 
compensat ion due any employees in rendering services pursuant to this agreement or any subcontract, 
including payment of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs in the defense of any claim made under the 
Fai r Labor Standards Act, the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law or any other federal or state law. 

18. IFB Forms, Variances, and Alternates: Bids must be submitted on the forms attached to this IFB a~; provided by 
the City; however, additional information may be attached. Bidders must indicate any variances from the City 

109

Item 6.



requested specifications and/or terms and conditions, on the IFB Affidavit of Compliance. Otherwise, Bidders 
must fully comply with the City requested specifications and terms and condit ions. Alternate Bids may or may 
not be considered at t he sole discretion of the City Purchasing Agent. 

19. Bid Form: All blank spaces must be completed with the appropriate response. 
a. Bidders must state the price, written in ink, for what is proposed to complete each item of t he project . 
b. Bidders must insert t he words "no Bid" in the space provided fo r any item for which no Bid is made. 
c. Bidders must submit an executed Bid form, affidavit of compliance with other requested documents. 

20. Modifications or Withdrawal of Bid: A modification of a Bid already submitted will be considered on ly if the 
modification is received prior to the t ime announced for opening of Bids, and is made in writing; executed and 
submitted on the same form and manner as the original Bid. Modifications submitted by telephone, fax, or email 
w ill not be considered. 

21. No Bid: If not submitting a Bid, respond by returning the "Statement of No Bid" no later than t he statedBid 
opening time and date, and explain the reason in t he space provided. 

22. Errors in Bids: Bidders are expect ed to fully inform themse lves as to the conditions, requiri~ments, and 
specifications before submitting Bids; fa ilure to do so will be at the Bidder's own risk. Appliec1ble law and 
regulations do not make allowance for errors either of omission or inclusion on the part of Bidders. In case an 
error regarding extension of prices in the Bid, the unit price shallgovern. 

23. Prices: Bids must include both unit price and extended total. 
a. Price must be stated in units of quantity specified in the Bidding specifications. In case of discrepancy in 

computing the amount of the Bid, the unit pr ice of the Bid wi ll govern. 
b. All prices shall be F.O.B. dest ination, freight prepaid (unless otherwise stated in special conditions). FOB, 

as used in this IFB, shall mean that the successful Bidder, at their own expense, shall transport the 
equipment and/or materials and bear the risk of loss from successfu l Bidder's location to a specified 
location in the City of Republ ic. City shall not take title to the materials or equipment until it is delivered 
and accepted by City at the address specified within the City of Republic. 

c. Each item must be Bid separately and no attempt is to be made to tie any item or items in with any other 
item or items. 

d. If a Bidder offers a discount on payment t erms, t he discount time wi ll be computed from the date of 
satisfactory delivery at place of acceptance and recei pt of correct invoice at t he office specified. 

e. Payment terms shall be Net 30 if not otherwise specified. 
f . Pre-payment terms are not acceptable. 

24. Discounts: Any and all discounts, except cash discounts for prompt payments, must be incorporated as a 
reduction in the Bid price and not shown separately. The price as shown on the Bid shall be the price used in the 
City's determination of award(s). 

25. Descriptive Information: All equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the product/work coveredby 
this IFB are to be new and of suitable grade for the purpose intended. 

a. Brand or trade names referenced in specifications are for comparison purposes only. 
b. Bidders may submit Bids on items manufactured by an individual/entity other t han the manufacturer 

specified so long as an "or equal" is expressly stated. 

26. Deviations to Specifications and Requirements: When Bidding on an "or equal," Bids must be accompanied 
with al l descriptive information necessary for an evaluation of the proposed material orequipment such as the 
detailed drawings and specificat ions, certified operation and test data, and experience records. 

a. Fai lu re of any Bidder to furnish the data necessary to determine whether the product is equivalent, may 
be cause for rejection of the specific item(s) to which it pertains. 

b. All deviations from the specifications must be noted in detail by the Bidder on the Affidavit of Compliance 

110

Item 6.



form, at t he time of submittal of Bid. 
c. The absence of listed deviations at the time of submittal of the Bid will hold the Bidder strictly 

accountable to the specifications as written. 
d. Any deviation from the specifications as written and accept ed by the City may be ground~. for rejection 

of the material and/or equipment when delivered. 

27. Quality Guaranty: If any product de livered does not meet appl icable specifications or otherwise fa i Is to compare 
with the quality represented by the Bidder, the Bidder shall retrieve the product from the City as its own 
expense. The Bidder shall refund to the City any money the City has remitted t o the Bidder for ,ame. In the 
event the successful Bidder fails or refuses to retrieve the product and refund to the City any money previously 
remitted to the Bidder for such product in accord with the terms of this paragraph, the Bidder shall be 
responsible for t he City's attorney fees and other costs it incurs in enforcing its rights under this paragraph. 

28. Quality Terms: The City reserves the right to reject any or all materials if, in its j udgment, the item reflects 
unsatisfactory workmanship, manufacturing, or shipping damages. 

29. Tax-Exempt: The City is exempt from sales taxes and Federal Excise Taxes: Missouri Tax ID Number 12492990. 

30. Bid Awards: Awards w ill be made to the Bidder whose Bid (1) meets the specifications and all other 
requirements of the IFB and (2) is the lowest and best Bid, considering price, delivery, responsibility of the 
Bidder, and all other relevant factors. 

a. Un less otherwise stated in t he IFB, cash discounts for prompt payment of invoices will not be considered 
in t he evaluation of prices. However, such discounts are encouraged to motivate prompt payment. 

b. As the best interest of the City may require, the r ight is reserved to make awards by item, group(s) of 
items, all or none or a combination thereof; and to reject any and all Bids or waive any minor or non
material irregularity or technicality in Bids received. 

31. Authorized Product Representation: The successful Bidder(s) by virtue of submitting the name and 
specifications of a manufacturer's product wil l be required to furnish the named manufacturer's product . By 
virtue of submission of the stated documents, it will be presumed by the City that the Bidder(s) is lega lly 
authorized to submit and the successful Bidder(s) wi ll be lega lly bound to perform according to the documents. 

32. Regulations: It shall be t he responsibi lity of each Bidder to assure compliance wit h OSHA, EPA, Federal, State 
of M issouri, and City rules, regulations, or other requirements, as each may apply. 

a. E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS: All contract ors or subcontractors to be utilized by 
Bidder on contracts exceeding five thousand do llars shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program 
with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services and affirm 
that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with 
the contracted services . 

b. Bidders are herein informed that the work to be performed under this IFB is subject to the 
requirements of Section 292.675, RSMo., which requires all contractors or subcontractors 
perform work such to provide and require its on-site employees to complete a ten (l 0)hour 
course in construction safety and health approved by the Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration ("OSHA") or a similar program approved by the Missouri Department of Labor 
and Industrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program. The 
training must be completed within sixty {60) days of the date work on the Project commences. 
On-siteemployees found on the worksite without documentation of the required training sha ll 
have twenty (20) days to produce such documentation. 

c. Pursuant to Section 292.675 RSMo., the successful Bidder shall forfe it to the City as a penalty 
two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00), plus one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each on
site employee employed by it, or any contractors or subcontractors hired by it, for each 
ca lendar day, or portion thereof, Such on-site employee isemployed without the construction 

111

Item 6.



safety training required in the above paragraph. 
d. Section 208.009 RSMo. shall apply to any contracts awarded under this Bid. 

33. Termination of Award: Any failure of the Bidder to satisfy the requirements of the City shall be reason 
fortermination of the award. Any Bid may be rejected in whole or in part for any reason by the City. 

34. Royalties and Patents: The successful Bidder(s) shall pay all royalties and license fees for equipment or 
processes in conjunction with the equipment being furnished. Bidder shall defend all suits or claims for 
infringement of any patent right and shall hold the City harmless from loss on account or cost and 
attorney's fees incurred. 

35. Equal Employment Opportunity Clause: The City of Republic, in accordance with the provision of Title 
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252) and the Regulations of the Department of Commerce (15 
CFR,Part 8) issued pursuant to the aforementioned Civil Rights Act, hereby notifies all Bidders that the 
City takes all reasonably necessary steps to affirmatively ensure t hat all Bidders, including minority 
businesses, will be afforded full opportunity to submit Bids in response to this IFB and that no Bidder 
will be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in determining the 
successful Bidder for award. 

36. Insurance Requirements: For the duration of any contract awarded under th is IFB, (which, for projects 
including any labor, means until the work is completed and accepted by the City; and which, for projects 
involving supply of materials only, means until the materials are delivered and accepted by the City), 
the successful Bidder is required to maintain certain insurance to protect it and the City against risks of 
loss in connection with the Project, as defined more fully below. The Successful Bidder will be required 
to provide the City with proof of insurance that satisfies the requirements stated below, unless 
otherwise specified by the City. The insurance requirements below may be modified or waived by the 
City at the City's sole discretion. 

a. Workers' Compensation: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Employers Liability and Workers 
Compensation Insurance for all persons it wi ll employ or retain to perform any work in 
connection with a contract awarded under this IFB, and in t he event the Successful Bidder will 
sublet or subcontract any such work, the Successful Bidder shall require the subcontractor to 
provide similar Workers Compensation Insurance for the subcontractor's employees, unless 
such employees are covered by the Successful Bidder's coverage. Workers Compensation 
coverage shall meet the minimum requirements under Missouri law of $500,000 each 
employee and $500,000 each accident. 

b. Commercial General Liability: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Commercial General 
Liability coverage for personal and advertising injury, bodily injury including accidental death, 
and broad-form property damage, which may arise from the performance of any contract 
awarded under this IFB, in an aggregate amount of not less than $2,000,000 each occurrence 
and $1,000,000 each person. 

c. Commercial Automobi le Liability (applies only to projects involving the Successful Bidder's 

operation of vehicles in performing the work awarded under this IFB): The Succe:;sful Bidder 
shall maintain Commercial Automobile Liability coverage of not less than $2,000,000 each 
occurrence and $1,000,000 each person for "any auto" on an occurrence basis. 

37. Performance Bond and Labor & Materials Payment Bond (applies only to projects involving labor): 

Pursuant to Section 107 .170, RSMo., if the total cost of the project is estimated to exceed '.;50,000.00, 
the successful Bidder shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Bond and a Labor and Materials 
Payment Bond with surety, approved by the City and on forms approved by the City, each bond shall be 
in the amount of t he total project cost, conditioned upon the full and faithful performance of all major 

112

Item 6.



terms and conditions of the IFB and payment of all labor and material supplies. 

38. Nonresident/Foreign Contractors: To the extent t he successful Bidder util izes non-resident/foreign 
contractors to provide services or supplies in connection with this IFB, the successful Bidder shall 
procure and maintain: 

a. A certificate of authority to transact business in the State of Missouri from the Secretary of 
State, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 351.570, RSMo. 

b. A cert ificate from the M issouri Director of Revenue evidencing compliance with the transient 
employer financial assurance law, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 285.230, 
RSMo. 

39. Bid Tabulation: Bidders may request a copy of the Bid tabulation of the IFB. 

40. Budgetary Constraints: The City reserves the right to reduce or increase the quantity, retract any item 
from the Bid, or upon notification, terminate entire agreement without any obligations or pena lty based 

upon ava ilability of fu nds. 

41. Additional Purchases by Other Public Agencies: By submitting a Bid in response to t his IFB, t he Bidder 
authorizes other publ icagencies to "Piggy-Back" or purchase equipment and services being proposed in 
this IFB unless otherwise noted on the Affidavit of Compliance Form. 

42. Order of Precedence: Any and al l Special/General Conditions and Specificat ions attached hereto, w hich 
varies from the instruction to Bidders, shall take precedence. 

43. Affidavit for Service Contracts: The successful Bidder represents, in accordance with Section 285.530.2, 
RSMo., that it has not employed, or subcontracted with, unauthorized aliens in connection with the 
scope of work to be done under this IFB and agrees to provide an affidavit to the City of Republic 
affi rming that it has not, and wi ll not at any point in t ime relating to this IFB, knowingly employ, or 
subcontract with, any person who is an unauthorized alien. 

44. Inspection and Acceptance: No item(s) received by the City pursuant to any agreement or contract 
awarded under this IFB shall be deemed accepted by the City until the City has had reasonable 
opportunity to inspect the it em(s). 

a. Any item(s) which are discovered to be defective, or which do not conform to any v,arranty of 
the successful Bidder and/or entity/ind ividual who sold the item(s), upon inspection, may be 
returned by the City to the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s) for 
fu ll credit and reimbursement or replacement. 

b. If, at a later t ime, any defect is discovered which was not ascertainable upon the initial 
inspection, the City may also return the defective item(s) to the successful Bidder and/or 
entity/individual who sold the item(s) for f ull credit and reimbursement or replacement. 

c. The City's return of defective items shall not exclude any other legal, equitable or contractual 
remedies the City has under applicable Missouri or Republic law and/or any agreement or 

contract awarded under this IFB. 

45. Davis-Bacon Act: If the Instructions to Bidders have indicated that the Project is financed, in whole or 
in part, from Federal fu nds, then all work performed pursuant to any contract awarded under t his IFB 
shall be subject to all applicable federal statutes, rules and regulations, including provis ons of the 
Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. §3141 et seq., and the "Federal Labor Standards Provisions," incorporated 
into this any agreement or contract awarded under this IFB .. Where the M issouri Prevailing Wage Law 
and the Davis-Bacon Act requi re payment of different wages for work performed pursLant to any 
contract awarded under this IFB, all contractors, subcontractors and other individuals/entit ies hired by 
the successful Bidder to perform work under this IFB shall pay the greater of the wages required under 

either law. 

113

Item 6.



46. Jurisdiction and Venue: This IFB and any executed agreement required pursuant to t he terms of this 
IFB, sha ll be taken and deemed to have been fu lly executed and made by t he parties here in and 
governed by the laws of the State of Missouri for all purposes and intents. Venue under this 
Agreement or any disputes that come from it shal l be in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri. 
THE PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL UNDER ANY APPLICABLE STATUTE, 

COMMON LAW OR FEDERAL OR STATE CONSTITUTION. 

47. Conflict of Interest: By participating in this IFB and/or accepting an agreement pursuant to the IFB's 
terms, the successful Bidder certifies that no salaried officer or employee of the City, and ro member 
of the City Council or Mayor of the City of Republic, has a financial interest, di rect o r indirect, in t his 
Agreement. Any federal regulations and applicable provisions in Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo. shall 
not be violated. 

48. Sovereign Immunity: In no event shall any language or requirement in this IFB or any Agreement that 
comes from this IFB be construed as or constit ute a waiver or limitation of City's defenses with regard 
to sovereign immunity, govern mental immunity, or officia l immunity under federal or state 
constitutions, states, and/or laws. 

49. Terms: The City of Republic reserves the r ight to reject any and all proposals received frorn this Bid. It 
further has the r ight to negotiate with any qualified source, or to cancel in part or in its entirety this 
Bid. The City also reserves the right to modify, suspend, or terminate at it s sole discretion any and all 
aspects of this bud process, to obtain further information from any and all respondents, and to waive 
any defectsas to form or content of the Bid or any submissions by any firm. This bud does not commit 
t he City to award a contract, to defray any costs incurred in the preparation of a response to this 
request, or to procure or contract for services. All submissions become the property of the City as 
public record. All submissions may be subject to public review upon request. 

114

Item 6.



ATTACHMENT A- BID SUBMISSION FORM 

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION : 

Item Description of Work Price 

• Rock/stone as requested 

• All Bids to include : 

0 Travel Expenses 

0 Delivery Costs 

0 Administrative costs 

• This bid shall serve from execution, expected on August 

16th
, 2022 until December 3151, 2023 or until superseded by 

$ Fill out Table on next 

another bid. ~ 

Base Bid Please note any of the following: 

• Any labor personnel requests of the City of Republic 
for this project. 

• Any other requests or responsibilities of the City 
of Republic for this project. 

In compl iance with this Invi tation for Bid and to al l t erms, con ditions, and specificat ions imposed th erein and hereby 
incorporated byreference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furn ish the goods and/o r services described herein. 

115

Item 6.



NOTICE AND INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS/VENDORS 

Regarding Sections 285.525 through 285.550 RSMo., effective January 1, 2009, 

and Section 292.675 RSMo., effective August 28, 2009 

Effective January 1, 2009 and pursuant to Section 285.530(1) of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, "[n]o business entity 

or employer shal l knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work 

within the state of Missouri." 

State law additional ly provides that, as a condit ion for the award of any contract or grant in excess of f ive thousand 

dollars by the st ate or by any polit ica l subdivision of the state (e.g., the City of Republic) to a business entity (e.g., 

potential bidders in response to this IFB), t he business entity {Company) shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 

documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the 

employees working in connection with th e contracted services. Every such business entity shall sign an affidavit affirming 

that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services. 

See§ 285.530(2), RSMo. 

Section 285.530 RSM o. pertains to all solicitations for services over $5,000, but does not apply to solicitations for goods 
only. If a solicitation is for a combination of services and goods, Section 285.530 RS Mo. applies if the services portion of 

the solicitation is over $5,000. 

116

Item 6.



1. Required Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00 (US) - Effective 1-1-2009, the company (submitting a 
Bid} shall comply with the provisions of Section 285.525 through 285.550, RSMo., which require certain 
statements to be made under penalty of perjury pertaining to employment of unauthorized aliens. The award 
of any contract under this IFB is expressly contingent on the company (submitting a Bid) providing an 
acceptable, notarized affidavit, stating as follows: 

a. that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with respect 
to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 

b. that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection 
with the contracted services. 

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et 
seq. 

2. Additionally, Company must provide documentation evidencing current enrollment in a federal work 
authorization program (e.g. electronic signature page from E-Verify Program's Memo of Understanding 
(MOU). See attached sample. 

A copy of the required affidavit is included on the following page. A digital copy of the affidavit can also 
be accessed and downloaded from the City of Republic's official website, URL address: 

https://www.republicmo.com/DocumentCenterNiew/77/Affidavit-of-Compliance-with-Section-285500--RSMO
PDF?bidld= 

The City of Republic is an E-Verify employer. The City of Republic encourages companies that are not already enrolled 
and participating in a federal work authorization program to do so. E-Verify is an example of a federal work authorization 
program. Information regarding E-Verify is available at http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify or by calling 888-464-4218. 

117

Item 6.



City of Republic, Missouri 

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH INVITATION FOR BID 

/ To be submitted with all Bids in response to this IFB 

_V __ WWPe r DO NOT take exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements. 

__ We TAKE exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements as follows: 

I have carefully examined the Invitation for Bid and agree to abide by all submitted pricing, deliverv, terms and 
conditions of this IFB unless otherwise stipulated herein. 

Company Na 7 L) I I le//'rt;b ADDENDA .. 
By __ ,,,,___~~_..,,__~-~------- Offerer acknowledges receipt of the following addendum: 

(Autho · 

C -:.,..,,.....c...::""--i......,A-.-...---#-''+-";:.i~1~~.f,=-"',~t,..J- Addendum No. 

__.M..-+-':......_>,--=-+--+-=---l''---'--''--'=-H-J...L.>,,'--l"q__,~~......._~L...M..~'t Addendum No. 

Telephone Number ~'/i~'/~2_-~5]_0_/_-_J./~"J_8'_L __ Addendum No. 

Fax Number ______________ _ Addendum No. 

Date---""'[---'-/'----_____ 'J-.tJ--"'-)___,_) ___ _ 

DBE Vendor (Yes/No) : J.}O Minority Owned : __ 
Women Ow1ed : 
Veteran Owned: 

118

Item 6.



Company ID Number: 964670 

Approved by: 

Employer 
CAPITAL MATERIALS LLC 

Name (Please Type or Print) Title 

Donita Shelton 

3rgnatt1re uatt: 

Electronically Signed 04/19/2016 

Oepartment of Homeland Security - Verification Division 

Name (Please Type or Print) rrn1e 

USCIS Verification Division 

Signature Date 

Electronically Signed 04/19/2016 

Page 13 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers I Revision Date 06/01/13 

119

Item 6.



Company ID Number: 964670 

THE E-VERIFY 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

FOR EMPLOYERS 

ARTICLE I 

PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY 

The parties to this .agreement are the Department of Homeland Security (OHS) and the 
CAPITAL MATERIALS LLC (Employer). The purpose of this agreement is to set forth terms and 

----P.0flEliti0ns-whieM--the-Emfll0yeF-WilHel!ew-wt-iile-part+eipaHng--in-&Veri ·. 

E-Verify is a program that electronically confirms an employee's eligibility to work in the United States 
after completion of Form 1-9, Employment Eligibility Verification (Form 1-9). This Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) explains certain features of the E-Verify program and describes specific 
responsibilities of the Employer, the Social Security Administration (SSA), and OHS. 

Authority for the E-Verify program is found in Title IV, Subtitle A, of the Illegal Immigration Reform and 
Immigrant Responsibility Act of 1996 {IIRIRA), Pub. L. 104-208, 11 O Stat. 3009, as amended (8 U.S.C. 
§ 1324a note). The Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) Subpart 22.18, "Employment Eligibility 
Verification" and Executive Order 12989, as amended, provide authority for Federal contractors and 
subcontractors (Federal contractor) to use E-Verify to verify the employment eligibility of certain 
employees working on Federal contracts. 

ARTICLE II 

RESPONSIBILITIES 

A. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE EMPLOYER 

1. The Employer agrees to display the following notices supplied by DHS in a prominent place that is 
clearly visible to prospective employees and all employees who are to be verified through the system: 

a. Notice of E-Verify Participation 

b. Notice of Right to Work 

2. The Employer agrees to provide to the SSA and OHS the names, titles, addresses, and telephone 
numbers of the Employer representatives to be contacted about E-Verify. The Employer also agrees to 
keep such information current by providing updated information to SSA and OHS whenever the 
representatives' contact information changes. 

3. The Employer agrees to grant E-Verify access only to current employees who need E-Verify access. 
Employers must promptly terminate an employee's E-Verify access if the employer is separated from 
the company or no longer needs access to E-Verify. 

Page 1 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers I Revision Date 06/01/13 

120

Item 6.



(BaiCey Quarries, Inc. 
P.O. Box 430 Republic MO 65738 
Office Phone (417) 732-8286 

Fax (417) 732-8888 

QUOTE 
I Quote # BQ00882 

DATE: July 26, 2022 

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 10th Month Following 

TO: City of Republic 
ATTENTION: Garrett Brickner 

ADDRESS: 
CITY: 
STATE: ZIP: 

PHONE: 
FAX: 
EMAIL: gbrickner@republicmo.com 
Cell: 

TONS DESCRIPTIION 

1. *Type 1 & 5 Base Rock (52) 
2. *3/8" Chips (31) 
3. *5/8" Chips (62) 
4. *1 ½" Clean Rock (57) 
5. *3" Screened Rock (23) 
6. *3/16" Chips (30) 
7. *2 x 6 Gabion-Type 1 (26) 

NOTES: F.O.B. Job Site 

*All products are subject to availability. 

QUOTE:. 2022-23 Aggregate Quote 

SALES TAX RATE: Taxable 6.725% 
W/ Exemption Certificate 

QUOTE GIVEN BY: Sam Crutcher 

QUOTE GIVEN TO: 

QUOTE GOOD UNTIL: December 31 , 2023 

PRICE HAUL TOTAL 

8.50 5.75 14.25 
14.50 5.75 20.25 
14.50 5.75 20.25 
13.50 5.75 19.25 
11.25 5.75 17.00 
7.25 5.75 13.00 

14.00 5.75 19.75 

Please check in advance for available inventory. 
No quantities are guaranteed 

121

Item 6.



City of Republic - Invitation for Bid 
Rock/Stone as Requested for the Remainder of 2022 and 

through 2023 

SEALED BIDS MUST BE PHYSICALLY RECEIVED AT REPUBLIC CITY HALL PRIOR TO 3:1S P.M. on Monday, 
August 1, 2022. Bids will be opened by the City at Republic City Hall at said time and place. 

BIDS SHOULD BE ADDRESSED AS FOLLOWS: 

City of Republic 
c/o City Clerk, Laura Burbridge 
213 N. Main Avenue 
Republic, MO 65738 

Bids must be submitted on the forms provided and must be manually signed by the individual authorized 
to legally bind the Bidder. Bidders can add their own sheets for clarification of pricing on certain products 
if they choose. 

• Bids shall be submitted with the Invitation for Bid ("IFB") project name or item clearly indicated 
on the outside of the mailing envelope. 

• Bids received after the opening date and time will be rejected. 
• The attached Terms and Conditions shall become part of any contract, agreement or award 

resulting from this Invitation for Bid. 

• FAXED/EMAILED BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. 
• You are invited to submit your Bid to furnish the materials and/or services described herein. 

Please submit your prices/fees net of all discounts. Bidders do not necessarily need to bid all 

requested categories, but it is encouraged. 

• August 16th, 2022 until December 31st
, 2023 or until superseded by another bid. 

• City intends to award all responsive bidders to the on-call list for service so if the lowest bidder 

is unable to provide material/service in an acceptable time, the next lowest bidder may be used. 
• Bids will be taken to City Council for approval on Tuesday August 16, 2022. Notice to proceed 

shall follow immediately upon and following approval granted by City Council. 

DESCRIPTION: 
Rock or Stone as requested by City of Republic of in the below listed categories, priced to be picked up 

or delivered if available. 

• 3/8" Stone ± 1/4" 

• 5/8" Stone ± 1/4" 
• 3/4"-1" Clean Stone 

• 2"-4" Clean Stone 

• 3/16 Chips (Mixing w/ Salt) 

• MoDOT Base Rock Type 1 

• MoDOT Base Rock Type 5 
• Shot Rock 3"-6" (MoDOT type 1 Rock Ditch Linear) 

• Shot Rock 6"-10" (MoDOT type 2 Rock Ditch Linear) 

122

Item 6.



• Shot Rock 12"-20" (MoDOT type 3 Rock Ditch Linear) 
• Shot Rock 19"-28" (MoDOT type 4 Rock Ditch Linear) 

Costs 
As part of this Bid, a fuel index or surcharge shall be permitted however, needs to be outlined in this bid. Please outline 
fuel cost adjustment method in the space provided under bid table. E.g. - "if Diesel price exceeds $7.00 per gallon, an 
additional $2.00 will be added to per/ton cost." Or, attach table with adjustment values based on cost of fuel. 

The City of Republic will utilize the U.S. Energy Information Administration Weekly Retail Gasoline and Diesel Prices for 
the Midwest region (PADD 2), to verify adjustments as necessary. 

https://www.eia.gov/dnav/pet/PET PRI GND A EPD2D PTE DPGAL W.htm 

Inquiries: All inquiries for information should be directed to: 

Garrett Brickner, Engineering Manager 
BUILDS Department, City of Republic 
gbrickner@republicmo.com 
(417) 732-3405 

Important Notice Regarding Competitive Bidding: 

It is the City's intent and desire that this Invitation for Bid promotes competitive Bidding. To the extent 
any language, requirements, terms and/or requests contained within this Invitation for Bid result in the 
elimination of all but one source from which a responsive and responsible Bid may be submitted, such 
restriction/limitation is not intended by the City, but is merely an unintentional error. In the event such error 
is discovered by any potential Bidder, the potential Bidder must notify the City contact listed above of the error, 
in writing, no later than three (3) days prior to the Bid opening day. Upon receipt of any such notice, the City 
will take reasonable efforts to correct the error and resubmit the Invitation for Bid once corrected. 

123

Item 6.



TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

01. Opening Location: Bids submitted in response to this Invitation for Bid ("IFB") will be opened at Republic City 
Hall, located at 213 N. Main Avenue, on 3:15 P.M. on Monday, August 1, 2022. All Bidders (individually, 
"Bidder"; collectively, "Bidders") and/or their authorized representative(s) are permitted to attend the opening 
of the Bids. 

02. IFB Delivery Requirements: Any Bids received after the above stated time and date will not be considered. It 
shall be the sole responsibility of the Bidder to have their Bid delivered to Republic City Hall for receipt on or 
before the due date and time indicated. 

a. If a Bid is sent by U.S. Mail, the Bidder shall be responsible for its timely delivery to Republic City Hall. 
b. Bids delayed by mail shall not be considered, shall not be opened, and shall be rejected. 
c. Arrangements may be made for their return at the Bidder's request and expense. 
d. Bids may be mailed to Republic City Hall and accepted if the signed Bid form and required information 

was mailed and received prior to the due date and time. 
e. Bids sent by email will not be accepted. 

Sealed and Marked: If sent by mail, one original signed Bid shall be submitted in one sealed package, clearly 
marked on the outside of the package with the IFB project name clearly indicated on the outside of the mailing 

envelope and addressed to: 

City of Republic 
C/O City Clerk, Laura Burbridge 
213 N. Main 
Republic MO 65738 

03. Legal Name and Signature: Bids shall clearly indicate the legal name, address, and telephone number of the 
Bidder (company, firm, corporation, partnership, or individual}. 

a. Bids shall be manually signed above the printed name and title of signer on the Affidavit of Compliance 

page. 
b. The signer shall have the authority to bind the Bidder to the submitted Bid. 
c. Failure to properly sign the Bid form shall invalidate the Bid, and it shall not be considered for award. 

04. Corrections: No erasures are permitted. 
a. In the event a correction is necessary, in order for the City to consider the correction, the following 

formatting must be applied: 
1. A single line (strike-through) to the entered text needing correction, and 
2. The corrected text written above the strike-through text, and 
3. The signer(s) of the Bid must initial all corrections. 

OS. Clarification and Addenda: Bidders are expected to examine all documents attached to and/or provided by the 
City with this IFB, and prior to submitting any Bid in response to this IFB, make any necessary and/or reasonable 
inquiries of the City to ensure all such Bidders understand the entirety of the documents. 

a. Any inquiries or suggestions concerning interpretation, clarification, or other additional information 
pertaining to the IFB shall be made through the listed City contact in writing (email is permitted). 

b. The City of Republic shall not be responsible for verbal interpretations or other information given by 
any individual purporting to be employed by or otherwise representing the City. 

c. The issuance of written addenda is the official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or 

additional information can be given. 
d. It shall be the responsibility of each Bidder, prior to submitting their Bid, to direct any inquiries to the 

listed City contact. 

124

Item 6.



06. IFB Expenses: There is no expressed or implied obligation for the City of Republic to reimburse responding 
Bidders and the City will not reimburse for any expenses incurred in preparing responses to this IFB. 

07. Bid Security: All Bids must be accompanied by a Bid Security, which shall constitute the Bidder's guarantee that, 
if awarded the contract under this IFB, the Bidder will promptly execute all contract documents and other 
documents required under this IFB, and will furnish good and sufficient bond for the performance of the same. 

a. The Bid Security shall consist of a certified check, cashier's check or a Bid bond, guaranteed by a surety 
company authorized by the Director of the Missouri Department of Insurance and Commerce to conduct 
surety business in the state of Missouri, in an amount no less than ten percent (10%) of the Bid, and 
made payable to the City of Republic. 

b. Bids submitted without the required Bid Security will not be considered for award under this IFB. 

c. The Bid Securities of all Bidders, except for the three apparent lowest Bidders, will be returned as soon 
as reasonably possible after the opening and review of Bids. 

d. The City shall have the right to retain the Bid Security of the three apparent lowest Bidders until either: 
(1) all contract documents have been duly executed and all required bonds and proof of insurance, 
including certificates of insurance, have been furnished by the Bidder to the City; or (2) all Bids have 
been rejected, whichever occurs first. 

08. Irrevocable Offer: Any Bid may be withdrawn up until the due date and time set for opening of the IFB. Any 
Bid not so withdrawn shall, upon opening, constitute an irrevocable offer for a minimum period of ninety (90) 
days to provide to the City the goods or services set forth in the IFB, until one or more of the Bids have been 
duly accepted by the City. 

09. Responsive and Responsible Bidder: To be a responsive Bidder, a Bidder shall submit a Bid which conforms in 
all material respects to the requirements set forth in the IFB. To be a responsible Bidder, the Bidder shall have 
the capability in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements, and the tenacity, perseverance, 
experience, integrity, reliability, capacity, facilities, equipment and credit which will ensure good faith 
performance. The lowest responsible Bidder shall mean the Bidder who makes the lowest Bid to sell goods or 
services of a quality which conforms closest to the quality of goods or services set forth in the specifications or 
otherwise required by the City and who is known to be fit and capable to perform the Bid as made. 

10. Reserved Rights: The City reserves the right to make such investigations as it deems necessary to make the 
determination of the Bidder's responsiveness and responsibility. Such information may include, but shall not be 
limited to: current financial statement, verification of availability of equipment and personnel, and past 

performance records. 

11. The Right to Audit: The Bidder agrees to furnish supporting detail as may be required by the City to support 
charges or invoices, to make available for audit purposes all records covering charges pertinent tothe purchase, 
and to make appropriate adjustments in the event discrepancies are found. 

a. The City shall have the right to audit the Bidder's records pertaining to the work/product for a period of 

three (3) years after final payment. 
b. The cost of any audit conducted pursuant to this term will be paid by the City. 

12. Applicable Law: All applicable laws and regulations of the State of Missouri and the City including the City 
Procurement Regulations and Procedures will apply to any resulting agreement, contract, or purchase order 
entered into under the terms of this IFB. Any involvement with the City Procurement shall be in accordance 

with the Procurement Regulations and Procedures. 

13. Right to Protest: Appeals and remedies are provided for in the City Procurement Regulations. 

125

Item 6.



a. Protestors shall seek resolution of their complaints initially with the City Purchasing Agent. 
b. Any protest shall state the basis upon which the solicitation or award is contested and shall be submitted 

within ten (10) calendar days after such aggrieved person knew or could have reasonably been expected 
to know of the facts giving rise thereto. 

14. Ethical Standards Applicable: With respect to this IFS, if any Bidder violates or is a party to a violation of the 
general ethical standards of the City Procurement Code or the State of Missouri Statues, such Bidder will be 
disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Bid is submitted and shall be further disqualified 
from submitting any future Bids. 

15. Collusion Absolutely Prohibited: All Bidders offering a submission in response to this IFS hereby expressly 
acknowledge and certify that they have not divulged, discussed, or compared their Bid to the Bids of any other 
Bidder(s), and further that they have not colluded or conspired with any other Bidder or parties to this IFS, to 
violate the terms and conditions governing submission of responses to this IFS whatsoever. All Bidders offering 
a submission in response to this IFS additionally promise that: 

16. 

17. 

18. 

a. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have been arrived at independently, without consultation, 
communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to 
such prices and/or cost data, with any other Bidder or with any competitor. 

b. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have not knowingly been disclosed by the Bidder and will not 
knowingly be disclosed by the Bidder prior to the scheduled opening directly or indirectly to any other 
Bidder or to any competitor. 

c. No attempt has been made or will be made by the Bidder to induce any other person or firm to submit 
or not to submit a Bid for the purpose of restricting competition. 

d. The only person or persons interested in this Bid, principal or principals are named therein and that no 
person other than therein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in any contract awarded under this 
IFB. No person or agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure the contract awarded under 
this IFB upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 
fee exempting bona fide employees or established commercial agencies maintained by the Purchaser 
for the purpose of doing business. 

Contract Forms: Any agreement, contract, or purchase order resulting from the acceptance of a Bid shall be on 
forms either supplied by or approved by the City. 

Liability and Indemnity: 
a. In no event shall the City be liable to the successful Bidder for special, indirect, liquidated, incidental, or 

consequential damages, except those caused by the City's gross negligence or willful or wanton 
misconduct arising out of or in any way connected with a breach of any agreement or contract under the 
terms of this IFB. The maximum liability of the Oty shall be limited to the amount of money to be paid or 
received by the City under any agreement or contract awarded under the terms of this IFB. 

b. The successful Bidder shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City, its elected or appointed 
officials, agents and employees from and against any and all liability, suits, damages, costs (including 
attorney fees), losses, outlays, expenses, and claims, caused or allegedly caused by, or arising out of or 
related in any way whatsoever to (1) any agreement or contract awarded under this IFB, or (2) t he work 
performed pursuant to such contract or agreement or any subcontract thereunder (the successful Bidder 
expressly acknowledging and assuming full responsibility for its subcontractors), including, but not 
limited to, claims for personal injuries, death, property damage, or for any other alleged damages. 

c. The successful Bidder shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from all wages or overtime 
compensation due any employees in rendering services pursuant to this agreement or any subcontract, 
including payment of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs in the defense of any claim made under the 
Fair Labor Standards Act, the Missour'i Prevafflng Wage Law or any other federal or state law. 

IFB Forms, Variances, and Alternates: Bids must be submitted on the forms attached to this IFB as provided ?Y 
the City; however, additional information may be attached. Bidders must indicate any variances from the City 

126

Item 6.



requested specifications and/or terms and conditions, on the IFB Affidavit of Compliance. Otherwise, Bidders 
must fully comply with the City requested specifications and terms and conditions. Alternate Bids may or may 
not be considered at the sole discretion of the City Purchasing Agent. 

19. Bid Form: All blank spaces must be completed with the appropriate response. 
a. Bidders must state the price, written in ink, for what is proposed to complete each item of the project. 
b. Bidders must insert the words "no Bid" in the space provided for any item for which no Bid is made. 
c. Bidders must submit an executed Bid form, affidavit of compliance with other requested documents. 

20. Modifications or Withdrawal of Bid: A modification of a Bid already submitted will be considered only if the 
modification is received prior to the time announced for opening of Bids, and is made in writing; executed and 
submitted on the same form and manner as the original Bid. Modifications submitted by telephone, fax, or email 
will not be considered. 

21. No Bid: If not submitting a Bid, respond by returning the "Statement of No Bid" no later than the statedBid 
opening time and date, and explain the reason in the space provided. 

22. Errors in Bids: Bidders are expected to fully inform themselves as to the conditions, requirements, and 
specifications before submitting Bids; failure to do so will be at the Bidder's own risk. Applicable law and 
regulations do not make allowance for errors either of omission or inclusion on the part of Bidders. In case an 
error regarding extension of prices in the Bid, the unit price shallgovern. 

23. Prices: Bids must include both unit price and extended total. 
a. Price must be stated in units of quantity specified in the Bidding specifications. In case of discrepancy in 

computing the amount of the Bid, the unit price of the Bid will govern. 
b. All prices shall be F.0.B. destination, freight prepaid (unless otherwise stated in special conditions). FOB, 

as used in this IFB, shall mean that the successful Bidder, at their own expense, shall transport the 
equipment and/or materials and bear the risk of loss from successful Bidder's location to a specified 
location in the City of Republic. City shall not take title to the materials or equipment until it is delivered 
and accepted by City at the address specified within the City of Republic. 

c. Each item must be Bid separately and no attempt is to be made to tie any item or items in with any other 
item or items. 

d. If a Bidder offers a discount on payment terms, the discount time will be computed from the date of 
satisfactory delivery at place of acceptance and receipt of correct invoice at the office specified. 

e. Payment terms shall be Net 30 if not otherwise specified. 
f. Pre-payment terms are not acceptable. 

24. Discounts: Any and all discounts, except cash discounts for prompt payments, must be incorporated as a 
reduction in the Bid price and not shown separately. The price as shown on the Bid shall be the price used in the 
City's determination of award(s). 

25. Descriptive Information: Alf equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the product/work coveredby 
this IFB are to be new and of suitable grade for the purpose intended. 

a. Brand or trade names referenced in specifications are for comparison purposes only. 
b. Bidders may submit Bids on items manufactured by an individual/entity other than the manufacturer 

specified so long as an "or equal" is expressly stated. 

26. Deviations to Specifications and Requirements: When Bidding on an "or equal," Bids must be accompanied 
with all descriptive information necessary for an evaluation of the proposed material orequipment such as the 
detailed drawings and specifications, certified operation and test data, and experience records. 

a. Failure of any Bidder to furnish the data necessary to determine whether the product is equivalent, may 

be cause for rejection of the specific item(s) to which it pertains. 
b. All deviations from the specifications must be noted in detail by the Bidder on the Affidavit of Compliance 

127

Item 6.



form, at the time of submittal of Bid. 
c. The absence of listed deviations at the time of submittal of the Bid will hold the Bidder strictly 

accountable to the specifications as written. 
d. Any deviation from the specifications as written and accepted by the City may be grounds for rejection 

of the material and/or equipment when delivered. 

27. Quality Guaranty: If any product delivered does not meet applicable specifications or otherwise fails to compare 
with the quality represented by the Bidder, the Bidder shall retrieve the product from the City as its own 
expense. The Bidder shall refund to the City any money the City has remitted to the Bidder for same. In the 
event the successful Bidder fails or refuses to retrieve the product and refund to the City any money previously 
remitted to the Bidder for such product in accord with the terms of this paragraph, the Bidder shall be 
responsible for the City's attorney fees and other costs it incurs in enforcing its rights under this paragraph. 

28. Quality Terms: The City reserves the right to reject any or all materials if, in its judgment, the item reflects 
unsatisfactory workmanship, manufacturing, or shipping damages. 

29. Tax-Exempt: The City is exempt from sales taxes and Federal Excise Taxes: Missouri Tax ID Number 12492990. 

30. Bid Awards: Awards will be made to the Bidder whose Bid (1) meets the specifications and all other 
requirements of the IFB and (2) is the lowest and best Bid, considering price, delivery, responsibility of the 
Bidder, and all other relevant factors. 

a. Unless otherwise stated in the IFB, cash discounts for prompt payment of invoices will not be considered 
in the evaluation of prices. However, such discounts are encouraged to motivate prompt payment. 

b. As the best interest of the City may require, the right is reserved to make awards by item, group(s) of 
items, all or none or a combination thereof; and to reject any and all Bids or waive any minor or non
material irregularity or technicality in Bids received. 

31. Authorized Product Representation: The successful Bidder(s) by virtue of submitting the name and 
specifications of a manufacturer's product will be required to furnish the named manufacturer's product. By 
virtue of submission of the stated documents, it will be presumed by the City that the Bidder(s) is legally 
authorized to submit and the successful Bidder(s) will be legally bound to perform according to the documents. 

32. Regulations: It shall be the responsibility of each Bidder to assure compliance with OSHA, EPA, Federal, State 
of Missouri, and City rules, regulations, or other requirements, as each may apply. 

a. E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS: All contractors or subcontractors to be utilized by 
Bidder on contracts exceeding five thousand dollars shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program 
with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services and affirm 
that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with 
the contracted services. 

b. Bidders are herein informed that the work to be performed under this IFB is subject to the 
requirements of Section 292.675, RSMo., which requires all contractors or subcontractors 
perform work such to provide and require its on-site employees to complete a ten (lO)hour 
course in construction safety and health approved by the Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration ("OSHA") or a similar program approved by the Missouri Department of Labor 
and Industrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program. The 
training must be completed within sixty (60} days of the date work on the Project commences. 
On-siteemployees found on the worksite without documentation of the required training shall 
have twenty (20) days to produce such documentation. 

c. Pursuant to Section 292.675 RSMo., the successful Bidder shall forfeit to the City as a penalty 
two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00}, plus one hundred dollars ($100.00} for each on
site employee employed by it, or any contractors or subcontractors hired by it, for each 
calendar day, or portion thereof, Such on-site employee isemployed without the construction 

128

Item 6.



safety training required in the above paragraph. 
d. Section 208.009 RSMo. shall apply to any contracts awarded under this Bid. 

33. Termination of Award: Any failure of the Bidder to satisfy the requirements of the City shall be reason 
fortermination of the award. Any Bid may be rejected in whole or in part for any reason by the City. 

34. Royalties and Patents: The successful Bidder(s) shall pay all royalties and license fees for equipment or 
processes in conjunction with the equipment being furnished. Bidder shall defend all suits or claims for 
infringement of any patent right and shall hold the City harmless from loss on account or cost and 
attorney's fees incurred. 

35. Equal Employment Opportunity Clause: The City of Republic, in accordance with the provision of Title 
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252) and the Regulations of the Department of Commerce (15 
CFR,Part 8) issued pursuant to the aforementioned Civil Rights Act, hereby notifies all Bidders that the 
City takes all reasonably necessary steps to affirmatively ensure that all Bidders, including minority 
businesses, will be afforded full opportunity to submit Bids in response to this IFB and that no Bidder 
will be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in determining the 
successful Bidder for award. 

36. Insurance Requirements: For the duration of any contract awarded under this IFB, (which, for projects 
including any labor, means until the work is completed and accepted by the City; and which, for projects 
involving supply of materials only, means until the materials are delivered and accepted by the City), 
the successful Bidder is required to maintain certain insurance to protect it and the City against risks of 
loss in connection with the Project, as defined more fully below. The Successful Bidder will be required 
to provide the City with proof of insurance that satisfies the requirements stated below, unless 
otherwise specified by the City. The insurance requirements below may be modified or waived by the 
City at the City's sole discretion. 

a. Workers' Compensation: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Employers Liability and Workers 
Compensation Insurance for all persons it will employ or retain to perform any work in 
connection with a contract awarded under this IFB, and in the event the Successful Bidder will 
sublet or subcontract any such work, the Successful Bidder shall require the subcontractor to 
provide similar Workers Compensation Insurance for the subcontractor's employees, unless 
such employees are covered by the Successful Bidder's coverage. Workers Compensation 
coverage shall meet the minimum requirements under Missouri law of $500,000 each 
employee and $500,000 each accident. 

b. Commercial General liability: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Commercial General 
Liability coverage for personal and advertising injury, bodily injury including accidental death, 
and broad-form property damage, which may arise from the performance of any contract 
awarded under this IFB, in an aggregate amount of not less than $2,000,000 each occurrence 
and $1,000,000 each person. 

c. Commercial Automobile Liability (applies only to projects involving the Successful Bidders 
operation of vehicles in performing the work awarded under this IFS): The Successful Bidder 
shall maintain Commercial Automobile Liability coverage of not less than $2,000,000 each 
occurrence and $1,000,000 each person for "any auto" on an occurrence basis. 

37. Performance Bond and Labor & Materials Payment Bond (applies only to projects involving labor): 
Pursuant to Section 107 .170, RSMo., if the total cost of the project is estimated to exceed $50,000.00, 
the successful Bidder shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Bond and a Labor and Materials 
Payment Bond with surety, approved by the City and on forms approved by the City, each bond shall be 
in the amount of the total project cost, conditioned upon the full and faithful performance of all major 

129

Item 6.



terms and conditions of the IFB and payment of all labor and material supplies. 

38. Nonresident/Foreign Contractors: To the extent the successful Bidder utilizes non-resident/foreign 
contractors to provide services or supplies in connection with this IFB, the successful Bidder shall 
procure and maintain: 

a. A certificate of authority to transact business in the State of Missouri from the Secretary of 
State, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 351.570, RSMo. 

b. A certificate from the Missouri Director of Revenue evidencing compliance with the transient 
employer financial assurance law, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 285.230, 
RSMo. 

39. Bid Tabulation: Bidders may request a copy of the Bid tabulation of the IFB. 

40. Budgetary Constraints: The City reserves the right to reduce or increase the quantity, retract any item 
from the Bid, or upon notification, terminate entire agreement without any obligations or penalty based 
upon availability of funds. 

41. Additional Purchases by Other Public Agencies: By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, the Bidder 
authorizes other publicagencies to "Piggy-Back" or purchase equipment and services being proposed in 
this IFB unless otherwise noted on the Affidavit of Compliance Form. 

42. Order of Precedence: Any and all Special/General Conditions and Specifications attached hereto, which 
varies from the instruction to Bidders, shall take precedence. 

43. Affidavit for Service Contracts: The successful Bidder represents, in accordance with Section 285.530.2, 
RSMo., that it has not employed, or subcontracted with, unauthorized aliens in connection with the 
scope of work to be done under this IFB and agrees to provide an affidavit to the City of Republic 
affirming that it has not, and will not at any point in time relating to this IFB, knowingly employ, or 
subcontract with, any person who is an unauthorized alien. 

44. Inspection and Acceptance: No item(s) received by the City pursuant to any agreement or contract 
awarded under this IFB shall be deemed accepted by the City until the City has had reasonable 
opportunity to inspect the item(s). 

a. Any item(s) which are discovered to be defective, or which do not conform to any warranty of 
the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s), upon inspection, may be 
returned by the City to the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s) for 
full credit and reimbursement or replacement. 

b. If, at a later time, any defect is discovered which was not ascertainable upon the initial 
inspection, the City may also return the defective item(s) to the successful Bidder and/or 
entity/individual who sold the item(s) for full credit and reimbursement or replacement. 

c. The City's return of defective items shall not exclude any other legal, equitable or contractual 
remedies the City has under applicable Missouri or Republic law and/or any agreement or 

contract awarded under this IFB. 

45. Davis-Bacon Act: If the Instructions to Bidders have indicated that the Project is financed, in whole or 
in part, from Federal funds, then all work performed pursuant to any contract awarded under this IFB 
shall be subject to all applicable federal statutes, rules and regulations, including provisions of the 
Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. §3141 et seq., and the "Federal Labor Standards Provisions," incorporated 
into this any agreement or contract awarded under this IFB .. Where the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law 
and the Davis-Bacon Act require payment of different wages for work performed pursuant to any 
contract awarded under this IFB, all contractors, subcontractors and other individuals/entities hired by 
the successful Bidder to perform work under this IFB shall pay the greater of the wages required under 

either law. 

130

Item 6.



46. Jurisdiction and Venue: This IFB and any executed agreement required pursuant to the terms of this 
IFB, shall be taken and deemed to have been fully executed and made by the parties herein and 
governed by the laws of the State of Missouri for all purposes and intents. Venue under this 
Agreement or any disputes that come from it shall be in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri. 
THE PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL UNDER ANY APPLICABLE STATUTE, 
COMMON LAW OR FEDERAL OR STATE CONSTITUTION. 

47. Conflict of Interest: By participating in this IFB and/or accepting an agreement pursuant to the IFB's 
terms, the successful Bidder certifies that no salaried officer or employee of the City, and no member 
of the City Council or Mayor of the City of Republic, has a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this 
Agreement. Any federal regulations and applicable provisions in Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo. shall 
not be violated. 

48. Sovereign Immunity: In no event shall any language or requirement in this IFB or any Agreement that 
comes from this IFB be construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of City's defenses with regard 
to sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, or official immunity under federal or state 
constitutions, states, and/or laws. 

49. Terms: The City of Republic reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received from this Bid. It 
further has the right to negotiate with any qualified source, or to cancel in part or in its entirety this 
Bid. The City also reserves the right to modify, suspend, or terminate at its sole discretion any and all 
aspects of this bud process, to obtain further information from any and all respondents, and to waive 
any defectsas to form or content of the Bid or any submissions by any firm. This bud does not commit 
the City to award a contract, to defray any costs incurred in the preparation of a response to this 
request, or to procure or contract for services. All submissions become the property of the City as 
public record. All submissions may be subject to public review upon request. 

131

Item 6.



ATTACHMENT A- BID SUBMISSION FORM 

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: 

Item Description of Work Price 

• Rock/stone as requested 

• All Bids to include: 

0 Travel Expenses 

0 Delivery Costs 

0 Administrative costs 

• This bid shall serve from execution, expected on August 

16th
, 2022 until December 31'\ 2023 or until superseded by $ Fill out Table on next 

another bid . ~ 

Base Bid Please note any of the following: 

• Any labor personnel requests of the City of Republic 
for this project. 

• Any other requests or responsibilities of the City 
of Republic for this project. 

In compliance with this Invitation for Bid and to all terms, conditions, and specifications imposed therein and hereby 
incorporated byreference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the goods and/or services described herein. 

132

Item 6.



Rock Type 
Picked Up Del ivered 

Price Per Ton 

3/8" Stone± 1/4" 

5/8" Stone± 1/4" 

G. 3/4" 1" Clea11 Stone 

3/16 Chips (Mixing w/ Salt) 

MoDOT Base Rock Type 1 

MoDOT Base Rock Type 5 J '-I, 'J-S 
<JA-O 11111 Shot Rock 3"-6" (MoDOT type 1 Rock Ditch Linear) / q, 7.5 

Shot Rock 6"-10" (MoDOT type 2 Rock Ditch Linear) 

Shot Rock 12"-20" (MoDOT type 3 Rock Ditch Linear) 

Shot Rock 19"-28" (MoDOT type 4 Rock Ditch Linear) 
please fill out all categories above you wish to put a bulk bid in for. If you do not wish to bid a certain item please enter 

Please outline Fuel adjustment method here or attach (if choosing to do so): 

City of Republic, Missouri ~ompany legal Name: 
RA- j t.-cE. '-I D(,(fr-/lAJ ~ ,f' I 11\J CI' 
-

IFB for: Rock/Stone as requested 8/16/22 
through 12/31/23 Address: 

213 N Main Street 
q I I ~.s. ~[) {;-IJ,-,J""/ l f {) &)< <-{ °3_ () 

(LG£11\13Lf C' l'h a (o~7-:S? 

Republic, MO 65738 ......-, 

Signature:~ 
a.._ /rL 

-
Name and Titl~ 

,e-l (c-5 /),? th/' .I+-G t4L 

!Telephone: L/ It - 7 3)-- f ;l J'~ Dated: ~/II~ 2--7-

~ellular: '-/I 7- C!t f& - flftf' ;2. Bidder's Federal ID Number: '-/ 5 () f J I t(o 7 

Email: &a M@k)~ LC. 5 , <!..c M 

133

Item 6.



NOTICE AND INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS/VENDORS 

Regarding Sections 285.525 through 285.550 RSMo., effective January 1, 2009, 

and Section 292.675 RSMo., effective August 28, 2009 

Effective January 1, 2009 and pursuant to Section 285.530(1) of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, "[n]o business entity 

or employer shall knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work 

within the state of Missouri." 

State law additionally provides that, as a condition for the award of any contract or grant in excess of five thousand 

dollars by the state or by any political subdivision of the state (e.g., the City of Republic) to a business entity (e.g., 

potential bidders in response to this IFB), the business entity (Company) shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 

documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the 

employees working in connection with the contracted services. Every such business entity shall sign an affidavit affirming 

that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services. 

See § 285.530(2), RSMo. 

Section 285.530 RSMo. pertains to all solicitations for services over $5,000, but does not apply to solicitations for goods 
only. If a solicitation is for a combination of services and goods, Section 285.530 RSMo. applies if the services portion of 
the solicitation is over $5,000. 

134

Item 6.



1. Required Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00 (US) - Effective 1-1-2009, the company (submitting a 
Bid) shall comply with the provisions of Section 285.525 through 285.550, RSMo. , which require certain 
statements to be made under penalty of perjury pertaining to employment of unauthorized aliens. The award 
of any contract under this IFB is expressly contingent on the company (submitting a Bid) providing an 
acceptable, notarized affidavit, stating as follows: 

a. that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with respect 
to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 

b. that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection 
with the contracted services. 

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et 
seq. 

2. Additionally, Company must provide documentation evidencing current enrollment in a federal work 
authorization program (e.g. electronic signature page from E-Verify Program's Memo of Understanding 
(MOU). See attached sample. 

A copy of the required affidavit is included on the following page. A digital copy of the affidavit can also 
be accessed and downloaded from the City of Republic's official website, URL address: 
https://www.republicmo.com/DocumentCenterN iew/77/Affidavit-of-Compliance-with-Section-285500-RSMO
PDF?bidld= 

The City of Republic is an E-Verify employer. The City of Republic encourages companies that are not already enrolled 
and participating in a federal work authorization program to do so. E-Verify is an example of a federal work authorization 
program. Information regarding E-Verify is available at http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify or by calling 888-464-4218. 

135

Item 6.



Affidavit of Compliance with Section 285.500, RSMo., et seq. 

for all agreements providing services in excess of $5,000.00 

Effective 1/1/2009 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF GREENE ) 

Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for the County of ________ , State of 
_____________ , personally appeared ____________ (Name) who is __ _ 
__________ (Title)of _________________ (Name of company), a (circle 
one) corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, limited liability company, and is competent and authorized to make 
this affidavit, and being duly sworn upon oath deposes and says as follows: 

( 1) that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with 
respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 

(2) that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in 
connection with the contracted services. 

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et seq. 

Documentation of participation in a federal work authorization program is attached to this affidavit. 

Signature 

Printed Name 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ______ day of ________ _ 

Notary Public 

My commission expires: ________ _ 

136

Item 6.



Company ID Number: XXXXXX 

The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between the SSA, OHS (Department of Homeland 
Security), and the Employer. 

The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enter into this Memorandum of 
Understanding on behalf of the Employer and OHS respectively. 

To be accepted as a participant in E-Verify, you should only sign the Employer's Section of the signature page. If you have 
any questions, contact E-Verify Operations at 888-464-4218. 

Employer, Your Company Namer .> -';, \ ·5 5 ) 
:) _;> 

~\~ 

137

Item 6.



City of Republic, Missouri 

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH INVITATION FOR BID 

To be submitted with all Bids in response to this IFB 

__ We DO NOT take exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements. 

__ We TAKE exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements as follows: 

I have carefully examined the Invitation for Bid and agree to abide by all submitted pricing, delivery, terms and 
conditions of this IFB unless otherwise stipulated herein. 

Company Name _____________ _ 

By _ ________________ _ 

(Authorized Person's Signature) 
Company Address ____________ _ 

Telephone Number _ __________ _ 

Fax Number ___ ___________ _ 

Date _______ ______ ___ _ 

ADDENDA 

Offeror acknowledges receipt of t he following addendum: 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Email _ ________________ _ 

Federal Tax ID No. _____________ _ 

DBE Vendor (Yes/No): __ _ Minority Owned: __ 
Women Owned: 
Veteran Owned: 

138

Item 6.



State of Missouri 
EXEMPTION FROM MISSOURI SALES AND USE TAX ON PURCHASES 

Replace this page with pdf of tax exempt form 

Issued t o : 

CITY OF REPUBLIC 
213 N. MAIN AVENUE REPUBLIC , MO 65 7 38 

Missouri Tax ID Number : 12492990 
Effective Date : 

07/11/2002 

Your application for sales/use tax exempt status has been 
approved , pursuant t o Section 144 . 030 . 1 , RSMo . This letter is 
issued as documentation of you r exemp t status . 

Purch ases by your Agency are not subject to sales or use 
tax i f withi n the conduct of your Agency ' s exempt functions 
and a ctivities . When purchasing with this exemption , 
furnishall sellers or vendors a copy of this letter . This 
exemp tionmay not be used by individuals making personal 
purchases . 

A contractor may purchase and pay for construction materials 
exempt from sales tax when fulfilling a contract with your Agency 
only i f you r Age ncy issues a project exemption certif i cate and 
thecontractor makes purchases in compliance with the provisions of 
Section 144 . 062 , RSMo. 

Sales by your Agency a r e subject to al l applicable state 
and local sales taxes . If you engage in the business of 
selling tangible personal property or taxable services at 
re t a i l , you mus t obtain a Missouri Retail Sales Tax License 
and collec t andremit sales tax . 

Th i s i s a continuing exemption s ubject t o l egi s l ative 
changes and revi ew by t h e Director of Revenue. If your 
Agency ceases to quali f y as an exempt entity , this 
exemption will cease to bevalid . This exemption is not 
assign able or transferab l e . 

It is an exemption from sales and use taxes only and is not 
an exe mption from real or personal property tax . 

Any a lteration to this exemption letter renders it invalid . 

If you have any questions regarding the use of this letter, 
pleasecontact the Division of Taxation and Collection , P . O . Box 
3300 , Jefferson City , MO 65105-3300 , phone 5 7 3 - 751 - 2836 . 

!PI U JO) 

139

Item 6.



MISSOURI PROJECT EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE 

Authorization for Purchasing Construction Materials for Tax Exempt Project 
(The Form and Content of this Exemption Certificate have been approved by the Missouri Department of 

Revenue) 

EXEMPT ENTITY JSSJJING CERTIFICATE 
Name: City of Republic, Missouri 
Address: 213 N. Main Avenue 
City/State/Zip: RepubJic, Missouri 65738 

MO Tax Exempt I.D. #: 12492990 
Contract Date: 
Contract#: ______ _ 
Project Description: _______ _ 

Project Location: _______ _ 
Project Completion Date: _________ _ 
Auth. Signature: _____________ _ 
Date: 

Letter Effective Date: 
Certificate Expiration Date: 
Revised Expiration Date: 

The Missouri exempt entity named above hereby authorizes the purchase, without sales tax, of tangible personal 
propertyto be incorporated or consumed in the construction of the project identified herein and no other, pursuant to 
Section 144.62, RSMo. 

PURCHASING CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR 
Name: ______________________ _ 

Address: ____________________ _ 

City/State/Zip: _________________ _ 

INSTRUCTIONS 

EXEMPT ENTITY -A signed copy of this certificate, along with your MO Tax Exemption Letter, must be furnished 
to each contractor and/or subcontractor who will be purchasing tangible personal property for use in the project. It is 
the exempt entity's responsibility to ensure the validity of the certificate. You must issue a certificate with a Revised 
Expiration Date if purchases will be required to complete the project beyond the original Project Exemption Date. 

CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR - The contractor shall furnish a completed copy of this exemption 
certificate, along with a copy of the exempt entity' s MO Tax Exemption Letter, to all subcontractors, and any contractor 
or subcontractor purchasing materials shall present copies of such documents to all material suppliers as authorization 
to purchase, on behalf of the exempt entity, all tangible personal property and materials to be incorporated or consumed 
in the construction of that project and no other on a tax-exempt basis. A copy of each certificate must be retained by the 
purchaser for a period of five years. 

MATERIAL SUPPLIER - A completed copy of this exemption certificate, along with the MO Tax Exemption Letter 
of the exempt entity contracting for the project, must be obtained from the contractor or subcontractor making purchases 
of tangible personal property for use in the project, and retained for audit purposes. Invoices issued for such purchases 
must reflect the name of the exempt entity and the project number assigned by the exempt entity shown above. 

140

Item 6.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 22-R-43 A Resolution of the City Council Awarding the Bids for Asphalt 
Supply for the Remainder of 2022 through 2023 to APAC Central Inc., 
Blevins Asphalt Construction Co., Inc., Capital Materials, LLC., and Emery 
Sapp & Sons, Inc. 

Submitted By: Garrett Brickner, Engineering Manager 

Date: August 16 ,2022 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To award the above stated bid to APAC Central Inc., Blevins Asphalt Construction Co., Inc., Capital 

Materials, LLC., and Emery Sapp & Sons, Inc. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City requested bids to supply various asphalts for the rest of 2022 and all of 2023.   

The City had 4 bidders, APAC Central Inc., Blevins Asphalt Construction Co., Inc., Capital Materials, LLC., 

and Emery Sapp & Sons, Inc. The prices for materials, as well as the method for fuel adjustment for each 

supplier can be seen on the attached exhibits. The City intends to approve these four at the prices they 

have listed so that if the lowest priced supplier cannot provide the requested materials, the City can 

move on to the next lowest bidder and so on. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

141

Item 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-43    

  
RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-43    1 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AWARDING THE BIDS FOR ASPHALT SUPPLY FOR THE 
REMAINDER OF 2022 THROUGH 2023 TO APAC CENTRAL INC., BLEVINS ASPHALT CONSTRUCTION CO., 

INC., CAPITAL MATERIALS, LLC., AND EMERY SAPP & SONS, INC. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 
Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City recently solicited sealed bids for supplying the City its asphalt needs for the 
remainder of 2022 through 2023 (“Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City received four bids from the following companies: APAC Central Inc., Blevins 

Asphalt Construction Co., Inc., Capital Materials, LLC., and Emery Sapp & Sons, Inc.; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City intends to approve all four entities who submitted a bid at the prices listed 

on their respective bids, each of which is attached hereto, and subsequently obtain the requested 

materials from the lowest bidder capable of providing said materials; and   

WHEREAS, based on the recommendations of City staff, the Council finds that the Project may 

be awarded to APAC Central Inc., Blevins Asphalt Construction Co., Inc., Capital Materials, LLC., and 

Emery Sapp & Sons, Inc. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, 
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The following four suppliers are awarded the Project at the rates shown in their 
respective bids, attached hereto and labeled consecutively as follows:  APAC 
Central Inc. (“Exhibit 1”), Blevins Asphalt Construction Co., Inc. (“Exhibit 2”), 
Capital Materials, LLC (“Exhibit 3”), and Emery Sapp & Sons, Inc. (“Exhibit 4”). 
The City shall obtain the requested supplies from the lowest capable provider 
among the four suppliers approved herein.  

 
Section 2: The City Administrator, and/or his designee, is authorized to take the necessary 

steps to execute this Resolution. 
 
Section 3: The WHEREAS clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Section 4: This Resolution shall become effective on and after the date of passage and 

approval as provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, this __________ day of __________________, 2022. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
        Matt Russell, Mayor 
 
 

142

Item 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-43    

  
RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-43    2 
 

Attest: 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form:   

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

 

Final Passage and Vote: 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

143

Item 7.



Description Emery Sapp & Sons, Inc. Blevins Asphalt Construction Co., Inc. APAC-Central Inc. Capital Materials LLC

Unit Bid (No Delivery) $63.00 $63.00 $70.60 $70.00

Unit Bid with Bulk Discount $62.00 $0 $70.60 N/A

Quantity Required for Disount (tons) 100 N/A N/A N/A

Delivered Unit Bid or additional cost per mile N/A $5.95 N/A N/A

Units per ton per ton per ton per ton

Description Emery Sapp & Sons, Inc. Blevins Asphalt Construction Co., Inc. APAC-Central Inc. Capital Materials LLC

Unit Bid (No Delivery) $61.00 $62.50 $66.80 $68.00

Unit Bid with Bulk Discount $60.00 $0 $66.80 N/A

Quantity Required for Disount (tons) 100 N/A N/A N/A

Delivered Unit Bid or additional cost per mile N/A $5.95 N/A N/A

Units per ton per ton per ton per ton

Description Emery Sapp & Sons, Inc. Blevins Asphalt Construction Co., Inc. APAC-Central Inc. Capital Materials LLC

Unit Bid (No Delivery) $62.00 $63.00 $70.60 $70.00

Unit Bid with Bulk Discount $61.00 $0 $70.60 N/A

Quantity Required for Disount (tons) 100 N/A N/A N/A

Delivered Unit Bid or additional cost per mile N/A $5.95 N/A N/A

Units per ton per ton per ton per ton

Description Emery Sapp & Sons, Inc. Blevins Asphalt Construction Co., Inc. APAC-Central Inc. Capital Materials LLC

Unit Bid (No Delivery) $77.00 $95.00 No Bid $130.00

Unit Bid with Bulk Discount $76.00 $0 No Bid N/A

Quantity Required for Disount (tons) 100 N/A No Bid N/A

Delivered Unit Bid or additional cost per mile N/A $5.95 No Bid N/A

Units per ton per ton per ton per ton

Cold Mix

Bituminous Base

Commercial Surfance Mix (MODOT BP-2)

MODOT BP-1

Asphalt Bids

144

Item 7.



145

Item 7.



146

Item 7.



147

Item 7.



148

Item 7.



149

Item 7.



150

Item 7.



151

Item 7.



152

Item 7.



153

Item 7.



154

Item 7.



155

Item 7.



156

Item 7.



157

Item 7.



158

Item 7.



159

Item 7.



160

Item 7.



161

Item 7.



162

Item 7.



163

Item 7.



164

Item 7.



165

Item 7.



166

Item 7.



City of Republic - Invitation for Bid 
Asphalt as Requested for the Remainder of 2022 and 

through 2023 

SEALED BIDS MUST BE PHYSICALLY RECEIVED AT REPUBLIC CITY HALL PRIOR TO 3:00 P.M. on Monday, 
August 1, 2022. Bids will be opened by the City at Republic City Hall at said time and place. 

BIDS SHOULD BE ADDRESSED AS FOLLOWS: 

City of Republic 
c/o City Clerk, Laura Burbridge 
213 N. Main Avenue 
Republic, MO 65738 

Bids must be submitted on the forms provided and must be manually signed by the individual authorized 
to legally bind the Bidder. Bidders can add their own sheets for clarification of pricing on certain products 
if they choose . 

• Bids shall be submitted with the Invitation for Bid ("IFB") project name or item clearly indicated 

on the outside of the mailing envelope. 

• Bids received after the opening date and time will be rejected . 
• The attached Terms and Conditions shall become part of any contract, agreement or award 

resulting from this Invitation for Bid . 

• FAXED/EMAILED BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. 

• You are invited to submit your Bid to furnish the materials and/or services described herein . 
Please submit your prices/fees net of all discounts. Bidders do not necessarily need to bid all 
requested categories, but it is encouraged. 

• August 16th
, 2022 until December 31' \ 2023 or until superseded by another bid. 

• City intends to award all responsive bidders to the on-call list for service so if the lowest bidder 

is unable to provide material/service in an acceptable time, the next lowest bidder may be used . 
• Bids will be taken to City Council for approval on Tuesday August 16, 2022. Notice to proceed 

shall follow immediately upon and following approval granted by City Council. 

DESCRIPTION: 

Asphalt as requested by City of Republic of in the below listed categories, priced to be picked up or 
delivered if available. 

• Commercial Surface Mix (MODOT BP-2) 

• Bituminous Base 

• MODOT BP-1 

• Cold Mix 

Hot Mix will be picked up at the plant during normal working hours. Hot Mix temperature shall be a minimum of 375 
degrees at the plant. Delivered Asphalt will be not less than 20 Tons, daily order delivered within the City Limits of the 
City of Republic and shall at the time of delivery meet all the requirements for placement of Hot Mix Asphalt as defined 
by MODOT Standard Specifications for Highway Construction . 

167

Item 7.



The City of Republic will call the plant to verify availability prior to travel to the plant. If material is not readily available, 
the City reserves the right to purchase material from the next lowest bidder. 

Costs 
As part of this Bid, a fuel index or surcharge shall be permitted however, needs to be outlined in this bid. Please outline 
fuel cost adjustment method in the space provided under bid table. E.g. - "if Diesel price exceeds $7.00 per gallon, an 
additional $2.00 will be added to per/ton cost." Or, attach table with adjustment values based on cost of fuel. 

The City of Republic will utilize the U.S. Energy Information Administration Weekly Retail Gasoline and Diesel Prices for 
the Midwest region (PADD 2), to verify adjustments as necessary. 

https:ljwww.eia.gov/dnav/pet/PET PRI GND A EPD2D PTE DPGAL W.htm 

Materials 
MoDOT Standard Specification, Section 401. Type BP-2 or approved Commercial Mix Material Specifications 

1. The description of aggregate, filler and asphalt cement for Type BP-2 is contained in Section 401§ of the 
Missouri Standard Specifications for Highway Construction. A copy of this specification can be provided 
by the City upon request or may be accessed by internet at 
www.modot.state.mo. us/busi ness/h ighwayspecs. htm. 

2. As an alternate to Type BP-2, the vendor may supply a commercial mix pursuant to 401.3.8 of the 
Missouri Standard Specifications for Highway Construction. 

Inquiries: All inquiries for information should be directed to: 

Garrett Brickner, Engineering Manager 
BUILDS Department, City of Republic 
gbrickner@republicmo.com 
(417) 732-3405 

Important Notice Regarding Competitive Bidding: 

It is the City's intent and desire that this Invitation for Bid promotes competitive Bidding. To the extent 
any language, requirements, terms and/or requests contained within this Invitation for Bid result in the 
elimination of all but one source from which a responsive and responsible Bid may be submitted, such 
restriction/limitation is not intended by the City, but is merely an unintentional error. In the event such error 
is discovered by any potential Bidder, the potential Bidder must notify the City contact listed above of the error, 
in writing, no later than three (3) days prior to the Bid opening day. Upon receipt of any such notice, the City 
will take reasonable efforts to correct the error and resubmit the Invitation for Bid once corrected. 

168

Item 7.



TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

01. Opening Location: Bids submitted in response to this Invitation for Bid ("IFB") will be opened at Republic City 
Hall, located at 213 N. Main Avenue, on 3:00 P.M. on Monday, August 1, 2022. All Bidders (individually, 
"Bidder"; collectively, "Bidders") and/or their authorized representative(s) are permitted to attend the opening 
of the Bids. 

02. IFB Delivery Requirements: Any Bids received after the above stated time and date will not be considered. It 
shall be the sole responsibility of the Bidder to have their Bid delivered to Republic City Hall for receipt on or 
before the due date and time indicated. 

a. If a Bid is sent by U.S. Mail, the Bidder shall be responsible for its timely delivery to Republic City Hall. 
b. Bids delayed by mail shall not be considered, shall not be opened, and shall be rejected. 
c. Arrangements may be made for their return at the Bidder's request and expense. 
d. Bids may be mailed to Republic City Hall and accepted if the signed Bid form and required information 

was mailed and received prior to the due date and time. 
e. Bids sent by email will not be accepted. 

Sealed and Marked: If sent by mail, one original signed Bid shall be submitted in one sealed package, clearly 
marked on the outside of the package with the IFB project name clearly indicated on the outside of the mailing 
envelope and addressed to: 

City of Republic 
C/0 City Clerk, Laura Burbridge 
213 N. Main 

Republic MO 65738 

03. Legal Name and Signature: Bids shall clearly indicate the legal name, address, and telephone number of the 
Bidder (company, firm, corporation, partnership, or individual). 

a. Bids shall be manually signed above the printed name and title of signer on the Affidavit of Compliance 
page. 

b. The signer shall have the authority to bind the Bidder to the submitted Bid. 
c. Failure to properly sign the Bid form shall invalidate the Bid, and it shall not be considered for award. 

04. Corrections: No erasures are permitted. 

a. In the event a correction is necessary, in order for the City to consider the correction, the following 
formatting must be applied: 

1. A single line (strike-through) to the entered text needing correction, and 
2. The corrected text written above the strike-through text, and 
3. The signer(s) of the Bid must initial all corrections. 

05. Clarification and Addenda: Bidders are expected to examine all documents attached to and/or provided by the 
City with this IFB, and prior to submitting any Bid in response to this IFB, make any necessary and/or reasonable 
inquiries of the City to ensure all such Bidders understand the entirety of the documents. 

a. Any inquiries or suggestions concerning interpretation, clarification, or other additional information 
pertaining to the IFB shall be made through the listed City contact in writing (email is permitted). 

b. The City of Republic shall not be responsible for verbal interpretations or other information given by 
any individual purporting to be employed by or otherwise representing the City. 

c. The issuance of written addenda is the official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or 
additional information can be given. 

d. It shall be the responsibility of each Bidder, prior to submitting their Bid, to direct any inquiries to the 
listed City contact. 

169

Item 7.



06. IFB Expenses: There is no expressed or implied obligation for the City of Republic to reimburse responding 
Bidders and the City will not reimburse for any expenses incurred in preparing responses to this IFB. 

07. Bid Security: All Bids must be accompanied by a Bid Security, which shall constitute the Bidder's guarantee that, 
if awarded the contract under this IFB, the Bidder will promptly execute all contract documents and other 
documents required under this IFB, and will furnish good and sufficient bond for the performance of the same. 

a. The Bid Security shall consist of a certified check, cashier's check or a Bid bond, guaranteed by a surety 
company authorized by the Director of the Missouri Department of Insurance and Commerce to conduct 
surety business in the state of Missouri, in an amount no less than ten percent (10%) of the Bid, and 
made payable to the City of Republic. 

b. Bids submitted without the required Bid Security will not be considered for award under this IFB. 

c. The Bid Securities of all Bidders, except for the three apparent lowest Bidders, will be returned as soon 
as reasonably possible after the opening and review of Bids. 

d. The City shall have the right to retain the Bid Security of the three apparent lowest Bidders until either: 
(1) all contract documents have been duly executed and all required bonds and proof of insurance, 
including certificates of insurance, have been furnished by the Bidder to the City; or (2) all Bids have 
been rejected, whichever occurs first. 

08. Irrevocable Offer: Any Bid may be withdrawn up until the due date and time set for opening of the IFB. Any 
Bid not so withdrawn shall, upon opening, constitute an irrevocable offer for a minimum period of ninety (90} 
days to provide to the City the goods or services set forth in the IFB, until one or more of the Bids have been 
duly accepted by the City. 

09. Responsive and Responsible Bidder: To be a responsive Bidder, a Bidder shall submit a Bid which conforms in 
all material respects to the requirements set forth in the IFB. To be a responsible Bidder, the Bidder shall have 
the capability in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements, and the tenacity, perseverance, 
experience, integrity, reliability, capacity, facilities, equipment and credit which will ensure good faith 
performance. The lowest responsible Bidder shall mean the Bidder who makes the lowest Bid to sell goods or 
services of a quality which conforms closest to the quality of goods or services set forth in the specifications or 
otherwise required by the City and who is known to be fit and capable to perform the Bid as made. 

10. Reserved Rights: The City reserves the right to make such investigations as it deems necessary to make the 
determination ofthe Bidder's responsiveness and responsibility. Such information may include, but shall not be 
limited to: current financial statement, verification of availability of equipment and personnel, and past 
performance records. 

11. The Right to Audit: The Bidder agrees to furnish supporting detail as may be required by the City to support 
charges or invoices, to make available for audit purposes all records covering charges pertinent tothe purchase, 
and to make appropriate adjustments in the event discrepancies are found. 

a. The City shall have the right to audit the Bidder's records pertaining to the work/product for a period of 
three (3) years after final payment. 

b. The cost of any audit conducted pursuant to this term will be paid by the City. 

12. Applicable Law: All applicable laws and regulations of the State of Missouri and the City including the City 
Procurement Regulations and Procedures will apply to any resulting agreement, contract, or purchase order 
entered into under the terms of this IFB. Any involvement with the City Procurement shall be in accordance 
with the Procurement Regulations and Procedures. 

13. Right to Protest: Appeals and remedies are provided for in the City Procurement Regulations. 

170

Item 7.



a. Protestors shall seek resolution of their complaints initially with the City Purchasing Agent. 
b. Any protest shall state the basis upon which the solicitation or award is contested and shall be submitted 

within ten (10) calendar days after such aggrieved person knew or could have reasonably been expected 
to know of the facts giving rise thereto. 

14. Ethical Standards Applicable: With respect to this IFB, if any Bidder violates or is a party to a violation of the 
general ethical standards of the City Procurement Code or the State of Missouri Statues, such Bidder will be 
disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Bid is submitted and shall be further disqualified 
from submitting any future Bids. 

15. Collusion Absolutely Prohibited: All Bidders offering a submission in response to this IFB hereby expressly 
acknowledge and certify that they have not divulged, discussed, or compared their Bid to the Bids of any other 
Bidder(s), and further that they have not colluded or conspired with any other Bidder or parties to this IFB, to 
violate the terms and conditions governing submission of responses to this IFB whatsoever. All Bidders offering 
a submission in response to this IFB additionally promise that: 

a. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have been arrived at independently, without consultation, 
communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to 
such prices and/or cost data, with any other Bidder or with any competitor. 

b. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have not knowingly been disclosed by the Bidder and will not 
knowingly be disclosed by the Bidder prior to the scheduled opening directly or indirectly to any other 
Bidder or to any competitor. 

c. No attempt has been made or will be made by the Bidder to induce any other person or firm to submit 
or not to submit a Bid for the purpose of restricting competition. 

d. The only person or persons interested in this Bid, principal or principals are named therein and that no 
person other than therein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in any contract awarded under this 
IFB. No person or agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure the contract awarded under 
this IFB upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 
fee exempting bona fide employees or established commercial agencies maintained by the Purchaser 
for the purpose of doing business. 

16. Contract Forms: Any agreement, contract, or purchase order resulting from the acceptance of a Bid shall be on 
forms either supplied by or approved by the City. 

17. Liability and Indemnity: 
a. In no event shall the City be liable to the successful Bidder for special, indirect, liquidated, incidental, or 

consequential damages, except those caused by the City's gross negligence or willful or wanton 
misconduct arising out of or in any way connected with a breach of any agreement or contract under the 
terms of this IFB. The maximum liability of the City shall be limited to the amount of money to be paid or 
received by the City under any agreement or contract awarded under the terms of this IFB. 

b. The successful Bidder shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City, its elected or appointed 
officials, agents and employees from and against any and all liability, suits, damages, costs (including 
attorney fees), losses, outlays, expenses, and claims, caused or allegedly caused by, or arising out of or 
related in any way whatsoever to (1) any agreement or contract awarded under this IFB, or {2) the work 
performed pursuant to such contract or agreement or any subcontract thereunder (the successful Bidder 
expressly acknowledging and assuming full responsibility for its subcontractors), including, but not 
limited to, claims for personal injuries, death, property damage, or for any other alleged damages. 

c. The successful Bidder shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from all wages or overtime 
compensation due any employees in rendering services pursuant to this agreement or any subcontract, 
including payment of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs in the defense of any claim made under the 
Fair Labor Standards Act, the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law or any other federal or state law. 

18. IFB Forms, Variances, and Alternates: Bids must be submitted on the forms attached to this IFB as provided by 
the City; however, additional information may be attached. Bidders must indicate any variances from the City 

171

Item 7.



requested specifications and/or terms and conditions, on the IFB Affidavit of Compliance. Otherwise, Bidders 
must fully comply with the City requested specifications and terms and conditions. Alternate Bids may or may 
not be considered at the sole discretion of the City Purchasing Agent. 

19. Bid Form: All blank spaces must be completed with the appropriate response. 
a. Bidders must state the price, written in ink, for what is proposed to complete each item of the project. 
b. Bidders must insert the words "no Bid" in the space provided for any item for which no Bid is made. 
c. Bidders must submit an executed Bid form, affidavit of compliance with other requested documents. 

20. Modifications or Withdrawal of Bid: A modification of a Bid already submitted will be considered only if the 
modification is received prior to the time announced for opening of Bids, and is made in writing; executed and 
submitted on the same form and manner as the original Bid. Modifications submitted by telephone, fax, or email 
will not be considered. 

21. No Bid: If not submitting a Bid, respond by returning the "Statement of No Bid" no later than the statedBid 
opening time and date, and explain the reason in the space provided. 

22. Errors in Bids: Bidders are expected to fully inform themselves as to the conditions, requirements, and 
specifications before submitting Bids; failure to do so will be at the Bidder's own risk. Applicable law and 
regulations do not make allowance for errors either of omission or inclusion on the part of Bidders. In case an 
error regarding extension of prices in the Bid, the unit price shallgovern. 

23. Prices: Bids must include both unit price and extended total. 
a. Price must be stated in units of quantity specified in the Bidding specifications. In case of discrepancy in 

computing the amount of the Bid, the unit price of the Bid will govern. 
b. All prices shall be F.O.B. destination, freight prepaid (unless otherwise stated in special conditions). FOB, 

as used in this IFB, shall mean that the successful Bidder, at their own expense, shall transport the 
equipment and/or materials and bear the risk of loss from successful Bidder's location to a specified 
location in the City of Republic. City shall not take title to the materials or equipment until it is delivered 
and accepted by City at the address specified within the City of Republic. 

c. Each item must be Bid separately and no attempt is to be made to tie any item or items in with any other 
item or items. 

d. If a Bidder offers a discount on payment terms, the discount time will be computed from the date of 
satisfactory delivery at place of acceptance and receipt of correct invoice at the office specified. 

e. Payment terms shall be Net 30 if not otherwise specified. 
f . Pre-payment terms are not acceptable. 

24. Discounts: Any and all discounts, except cash discounts for prompt payments, must be incorporated as a 
reduction in the Bid price and not shown separately. The price as shown on the Bid shall be the price used in the 
City's determination of award(s). 

25. Descriptive Information: All equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the product/work coveredby 
this IFB are to be new and of suitable grade for the purpose intended. 

a. Brand or trade names referenced in specifications are for comparison purposes only. 
b. Bidders may submit Bids on items manufactured by an individual/entity other than the manufacturer 

specified so long as an "or equal" is expressly stated. 

26. Deviations to Specifications and Requirements: When Bidding on an "or equal," Bids must be accompanied 
with all descriptive information necessary for an evaluation of the proposed material orequipment such as the 
detailed drawings and specifications, certified operation and test data, and experience records. 

a. Failure of any Bidder to furnish the data necessary to determine whether the product is equivalent, may 
be cause for rejection of the specific item(s) to which it pertains. 

b. All deviations from the specifications must be noted in detail by the Bidder on the Affidavit of Compliance 
172

Item 7.



form, at the time of submittal of Bid. 
c. The absence of listed deviations at the time of submittal of the Bid will hold the Bidder strictly 

accountable to the specifications as written. 
d. Any deviation from the specifications as written and accepted by the City may be grounds for rejection 

of the material and/or equipment when delivered. 

27. Quality Guaranty: If any product delivered does not meet applicable specifications or otherwise fails to compare 
with the quality represented by the Bidder, the Bidder shall retrieve the product from the City as its own 
expense. The Bidder shall refund to the City any money the City has remitted to the Bidder for same. In the 
event the successful Bidder fails or refuses to retrieve the product and refund to the City any money previously 
remitted to the Bidder for such product in accord with the terms of this paragraph, the Bidder shall be 
responsible for the City's attorney fees and other costs it incurs in enforcing its rights under this paragraph. 

28. Quality Terms: The City reserves the right to reject any or all materials if, in its judgment, the item reflects 
unsatisfactory workmanship, manufacturing, or shipping damages. 

29. Tax-Exempt: The City is exempt from sales taxes and Federal Excise Taxes: Missouri Tax ID Number 12492990. 

30. Bid Awards: Awards will be made to the Bidder whose Bid (1) meets the specifications and all other 
requirements of the IFB and (2) is the lowest and best Bid, considering price, delivery, responsibility of the 
Bidder, and all other relevant factors. 

a. Unless otherwise stated in the IFB, cash discounts for prompt payment of invoices will not be considered 
in the evaluation of prices. However, such discounts are encouraged to motivate prompt payment. 

b. As the best interest of the City may require, the right is reserved to make awards by item, group(s) of 
items, all or none or a combination thereof; and to reject any and all Bids or waive any minor or non
material irregularity or technicality in Bids received. 

31. Authorized Product Representation: The successful Bidder(s) by virtue of submitting the name and 
specifications of a manufacturer's product will be required to furnish the named manufacturer's product. By 
virtue of submission of the stated documents, it will be presumed by the City that the Bidder(s) is legally 
authorized to submit and the successful Bidder(s) will be legally bound to perform according to the documents. 

32. Regulations: It shall be the responsibility of each Bidder to assure compliance with OSHA, EPA, Federal, State 
of Missouri, and City rules, regulations, or other requirements, as each may apply. 

a. E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS: All contractors or subcontractors to be utilized by 
Bidder on contracts exceeding five thousand dollars shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program 
with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services and affirm 
that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with 
the contracted services. 

b. Bidders are herein informed that the work to be performed under this IFB is subject to the 
requirements of Section 292.675, RSMo., which requires all contractors or subcontractors 
perform work such to provide and require its on-site employees to complete a ten (lO)hour 
course in construction safety and health approved by the Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration ("OSHA") or a similar program approved by the Missouri Department of Labor 
and Industrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program. The 
training must be completed within sixty (60) days of the date work on the Project commences. 
On-siteemployees found on the worksite without documentation of the required training shall 
have twenty (20) days to produce such documentation. 

c. Pursuant to Section 292.675 RSMo., the successful Bidder shall forfeit to the City as a penalty 
two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00), plus one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each on
site employee employed by it, or any contractors or subcontractors hired by it, for each 
calendar day, or portion thereof, Such on-site employee isemployed without the construction 

173

Item 7.



safety training required in the above paragraph. 
d. Section 208.009 RSMo. shall apply to any contracts awarded under this Bid. 

33. Termination of Award: Any failure of the Bidder to satisfy the requirements of the City shall be reason 
fortermination of the award. Any Bid may be rejected in whole or in part for any reason by the City. 

34. Royalties and Patents: The successful Bidder{s) shall pay all royalties and license fees for equipment or 
processes in conjunction with the equipment being furnished. Bidder shall defend all suits or claims for 
infringement of any patent right and shall hold the City harmless from loss on account or cost and 
attorney's fees incurred. 

35. Equal Employment Opportunity Clause: The City of Republic, in accordance with the provision of Title 
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252) and the Regulations of the Department of Commerce (15 
CFR,Part 8) issued pursuant to the aforementioned Civil Rights Act, hereby notifies all Bidders that the 
City takes all reasonably necessary steps to affirmatively ensure t hat all Bidders, including minority 
businesses, will be afforded full opportunity to submit Bids in response to this IFS and that no Bidder 
will be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in determining the 
successful Bidder for award. 

36. Insurance Requirements: For the duration of any contract awarded under this IFS, {which, for projects 
including any labor, means until the work is completed and accepted by the City; and which, for projects 
involving supply of materials only, means until the materials are delivered and accepted by the City), 
the successful Bidder is required to maintain certain insurance to protect it and the City against risks of 
loss in connection with the Project , as defined more fully below. The Successful Bidder will be required 
to provide the City with proof of insurance that satisfies the requirements stated below, unless 
otherwise specified by the City. The insurance requirements below may be modified or waived by t he 
City at the City's sole discretion. 

a. Workers' Compensation: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Employers Liability and Workers 
Compensation Insurance for all persons it will employ or retain to perform any work in 
connection with a contract awarded under this IFS, and in the event t he Successful Bidder will 
sublet or subcontract any such work, the Successful Bidder shall require the subcontractor to 
provide similar Workers Compensation Insurance for the subcontractor's employees, unless 
such employees are covered by the Successful Bidder's coverage. Workers Compensation 
coverage shall meet the minimum requirements under Missouri law of $500,000 each 
employee and $500,000 each accident. 

b. Commercial General Liability: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Commercial General 
Liability coverage for personal and advertising injury, bodily injury including accidental death, 
and broad-form property damage, which may arise from the performance of any contract 
awarded under this IFB, in an aggregate amount of not less than $2,000,000 each occurrence 
and $1,000,000 each person. 

c. Commercial Automobile Liability (applies only to projects involving the Successful Bidder's 
operation of vehicles in performing the work awarded under this IFB): The Successful Bidder 
shall maintain Commercial Automobile Liability coverage of not less than $2,000,000 each 
occurrence and $1,000,000 each person for "any auto" on an occurrence basis. 

37. Performance Bond and Labor & Materials Payment Bond (applies only to projects involving labor): 
Pursuant to Section 107.170, RSMo., if the total cost of the project is estimated to exceed $50,000.00, 
the successful Bidder shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Bond and a Labor and Materials 
Payment Bond with surety, approved by the City and on forms approved by the City, each bond shall be 
in the amount of the total project cost, conditioned upon the full and fa ithful performance of all major 

174

Item 7.



terms and conditions of the IFB and payment of all labor and material supplies. 

38. Nonresident/Foreign Contractors: To the extent the successful Bidder utilizes non-resident/foreign 
contractors to provide services or supplies in connection with this IFB, the successful Bidder shall 
procure and maintain: 

a. A certificate of authority to transact business in the State of Missouri from the Secretary of 
State, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 351.570, RSMo. 

b. A certificate from the Missouri Director of Revenue evidencing compliance with the transient 
employer financial assurance law, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 285.230, 
RSMo. 

39. Bid Tabulation: Bidders may request a copy of the Bid tabulation of the IFB. 

40. Budgetary Constraints: The City reserves the right to reduce or increase the quantity, retract any item 
from the Bid, or upon notification, terminate entire agreement without any obligations or penalty based 
upon availability of funds. 

41. Additional Purchases by Other Public Agencies: By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, the Bidder 
authorizes other publicagencies to "Piggy-Back" or purchase equipment and services being proposed in 
this IFB unless otherwise noted on the Affidavit of Compliance Form. 

42. Order of Precedence: Any and all Special/General Conditions and Specifications attached hereto, which 
varies from the instruction to Bidders, shall take precedence. 

43. Affidavit for Service Contracts: The successful Bidder represents, in accordance with Section 285.530.2, 
RSMo., that it has not employed, or subcontracted with, unauthorized aliens in connection with the 
scope of work to be done under this IFB and agrees to provide an affidavit to the City of Republic 
affirming that it has not, and will not at any point in time relating to this IFB, knowingly employ, or 
subcontract with, any person who is an unauthorized alien. 

44. Inspection and Acceptance: No item(s) received by the City pursuant to any agreement or contract 
awarded under this IFB shall be deemed accepted by the City until the City has had reasonable 
opportunity to inspect the item(s). 

a. Any item(s) which are discovered to be defective, or which do. not conform to any warranty of 
the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s), upon inspection, may be 
returned by the City to the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s) for 
full credit and reimbursement or replacement. 

b. If, at a later time, any defect is discovered which was not ascertainable upon the initial 
inspection, the City may also return the defective item(s) to the successful Bidder and/or 
entity/individual who sold the item(s) for full credit and reimbursement or replacement. 

c. The City's return of defective items shall not exclude any other legal, equitable or contractual 
remedies the City has under applicable Missouri or Republic law and/or any agreement or 
contract awarded under this IFB. 

45. Davis-Bacon Act: If the Instructions to Bidders have indicated that the Project is financed, in whole or 
in part, from Federal funds, then all work performed pursuant to any contract awarded under this IFB 
shall be subject to all applicable federal statutes, rules and regulations, including provisions of the 
Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. §3141 et seq., and the "Federal Labor Standards Provisions," incorporated 
into this any agreement or contract awarded under this IFB .. Where the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law 
and the Davis-Bacon Act require payment of different wages for work performed pursuant to any 
contract awarded under this IFB, all contractors, subcontractors and other individuals/entities hired by 
the successful Bidder to perform work under this IFB shall pay the greater of the wages required under 
either law. 

175

Item 7.



46. Jurisdiction and Venue: This IFB and any executed agreement required pursuant to the terms of this 
IFB, shall be taken and deemed to have been fully executed and made by the parties herein and 
governed by the laws of the State of Missouri for all purposes and intents. Venue under this 
Agreement or any disputes that come from it shall be in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri. 
THE PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL UNDER ANY APPLICABLE STATUTE, 
COMMON LAW OR FEDERAL OR STATE CONSTITUTION. 

47. Conflict of Interest: By participating in this IFB and/or accepting an agreement pursuant to the IFB's 
terms, the successful Bidder certifies that no salaried officer or employee of the City, and no member 
of the City Council or Mayor of the City of Republic, has a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this 
Agreement. Any federal regulations and applicable provisions in Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo. shall 
not be violated. 

48. Sovereign Immunity: In no event shall any language or requirement in this IFB or any Agreement that 
comes from this IFB be construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of City's defenses with regard 
to sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, or official immunity under federal or state 
constitutions, states, and/or laws. 

49. Terms: The City of Republic reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received from this Bid. It 
further has the right to negotiate with any qualified source, or to cancel in part or in its entirety this 
Bid. The City also reserves the right to modify, suspend, or terminate at its sole discretion any and all 
aspects of this bud process, to obtain further information from any and all respondents, and to waive 
any defectsas to form or content of the Bid or any submissions by any firm. This bud does not commit 
the City to award a contract, to defray any costs incurred in the preparation of a response to this 
request, or to procure or contract for services. All submissions become the property of the City as 
public record. All submissions may be subject to public review upon request. 

176

Item 7.



ATTACHMENT A - BID SUBMISSION FORM 

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: 

Item Description of Work Price 

• Asphalt as requested 

• All Bids to include: 

0 Travel Expenses 

0 Delivery Costs 
0 Administrative costs 

• This bid shall serve from execution, expected on August 
16th

, 2022 until December 3l5t, 2023 or until superseded by $ Fill out Table on next 

another bid. ~ 

Base Bid Please note any of the following: 

• Any labor personnel requests of the City of Republic 
for this project. 

• Any other requests or responsibilities of the City 
of Republic for this project. 

In compliance with this Invitation for Bid and to all terms, conditions, and specifications imposed therein and hereby 
incorporated byreference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the goods and/or services described herein. 

177

Item 7.



Description 
Unit Bid (no Unit Bid with Quantity Required Delivered Unit Bid or 

Units 
delivery) Bulk Discount for Discount (tons) additional cost per mile 

Commercial Surface 
$ 63.00 $ 62.00 100 $ NIA per 

Mix (MODOT BP-2) ton 

Bituminous Base $ 61.00 $ 60.00 100 $ NIA per 
ton 

MODOT BP-1 $ 62.00 $ 61.00 100 $ NIA per 
ton 

Cold Mix $ 77.00 $ 76.00 100 $ NIA per 
ton 

please fill out all categories above you wish to put a bulk bid in for. If you do not wish to bid a cert ain item please enter N/A. 

Please outline Fuel adjustment method here or attach (if choosing to do so): 

FOB Springfield Asphalt Plant 

City of Republic, Missouri Company Legal Name: 
Emerv Sann & Sons Inc. 

IFB for: Asphalt as requested 8/16/22 through 
12/31/23 Address: 

213 N Main Street 5350 E State Highwa~ AA 

SQringfield, MO 65803 

Republic, MO 65738 

Signature: 

Name and Title: 
Nathan Murohv, Material Sales 

tTelephone: 417-833-9915 Dated: 7/25/2022 

Cellular: 417-830-2700 Bidder's Federal ID Number: 43-1708848 

Email: nathan.murphy@emerysapp.com 

178

Item 7.



NOTICE AND INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS/VENDORS 

Regarding Sections 285.525 through 285.550 RSMo., effective January 1, 2009, 

and Section 292.675 RSMo., effective August 28, 2009 

Effective January 1, 2009 and pursuant to Section 285.530(1) of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, "[n]o business entity 

or employer shall knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work 

within the state of Missouri." 

State law additionally provides that, as a condition for the award of any contract or grant in excess of five thousand 

dollars by the state or by any political subdivision of the st ate (e.g., the City of Republic) to a business entity (e.g., 

potential bidders in response to this IFB), the business entity (Company) shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 

documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program w ith respect to the 

employees working in connection with the contracted services. Every such business entity sha ll sign an affidavit affirming 

that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized al ien in connection with the contracted services. 

See§ 285.530(2), RSMo. 

Section 285.530 RSMo. pertains to all solicitations for services over $5,000, but does not apply to solicitations for goods 
only. If a solicitation is for a combination of services and goods, Section 285.530 RSMo. applies if the services portion of 
the solicitation is over $5,000. 

179

Item 7.



1. Required Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00 {US) - Effective 1-1-2009, the company (submitting a 
Bid) shall comply with the provisions of Section 285.525 through 285.550, RSMo. , which require certain 
statements to be made under penalty of perjury pertaining to employment of unauthorized aliens. The award 
of any contract under this IFB is expressly contingent on the company (submitting a Bid) providing an 
acceptable, notarized affidavit, stating as follows: 

a. that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with respect 
to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 

b. that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection 
with the contracted services. 

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo. , et 
seq. 

2. Additionally, Company must provide documentation evidencing current enrollment in a federal work 
authorization program (e.g. electronic signature page from E-Verify Program's Memo of Understanding 
(MOU). See attached sample. 

A copy of the required affidavit is included on the following page. A digital copy of the affidavit can also 
be accessed and downloaded from the City of Republic's official website, URL address: 

https://www.republicmo.com/DocumentCenterNiew/77/Affidavit-of-Compliance-with-Section-285500-RSMO
PDF?bidld= 

The City of Republic is an E-Verify employer. The City of Republic encourages companies that are not already enrolled 
and participating in a federal work authorization program to do so. E-Verify is an example of a federal work authorization 
program. Information regarding E-Verify is available at http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify or by calling 888-464-4218. 

180

Item 7.



Affidavit of Compliance with Section 285.500, RS Mo., et seq. 

for all agreements providing services in excess of $5,000.00 

Effective 1/1/2009 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF GREENE ) 

Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for the County of Barry , State of 
Missouri , personally appeared Nathan Murphy (Name) who is __ _ 
Material Sales (Title) of Emery Sapp & Sons, Inc. (Name of company), a ( circle 

one) corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, limited liability company, and is competent and authorized to make 
this affidavit, and being duly sworn upon oath deposes and says as follows: 

(1) that said company is enrol led in and participates in a federal work authorization program with 
respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 

(2) that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in 
connection with the contracted services. 

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et seq. 

Documentation of participation in a federal work authorization pro am is attached to 

Nathan Murphy 
Printed Name 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this_-'2""'5'""th-'--___ day of Jul __.2""0"""22=--------

My commission expires: February 9 2026 

No~ h 17nML 
DEANNA M. MARTIN 

~ft?~~~R:'8' 
MyCOf!ll'llilllone;Feb.9,2026 

'14381475 

181

Item 7.



Company ID Number: XXXXXX 

The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between the SSA, OHS (Department of Homeland 
Security), and the Employer. 

The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enter into this Memorandum of 
Understanding on behalf of the Employer and OHS respectively. 

To be accepted as a participant in E-Verify, you should only sign the Employer's Section of the signature page. If you have 
any questions, contact E-Verify Operations at 888-464-4218. 

~~ 
Emolover- Your Company Namer > --',, \ 5 5 i ~ :;_/ :)_....\ 

182

Item 7.



City of Republic, Missouri 

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH INVITATION FOR BID 

To be submitted with all Bids in response to this IFB 

A_ We DO NOT take exception to the IFB Documents/ Requirements. 

__ We TAKE exception t o the IFB Documents/Requirements as follows: 

I have carefully examined the Invitation for Bid and agree to abide by all submitted pricing, delivery, terms and 
conditions of this IFB unless otherwise stipulated herein. 

Telephone Number --'-4-'-17'--..:C.8"'-33=--..::.99=-1.;._;5:__ ______ _ 

Fax Number 417-833-9981 

Date -~0~7~/2=5=/2=0=2=2 ____________ _ 

ADDENDA 

Offeror acknow ledges receipt of the following addendum: 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Email nathan.murphy@emerysapp.com 

Federal Tax ID No. 43-1 708848 --------------
DBE Vendor (Yes/No): _N_o __ Minority Owned: _ _ 

Women Owned: 
Veteran Owned: 

183

Item 7.



City of Republic, Missouri 

STATEMENT OF "NO PROPOSAL"/ "NO BID" 

RETURN THIS PAGE ONLY IF YOUR COMPANY PROVIDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVICES BEING BID AND DECLINES TO DO SO. 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE DECLINED TO BID ON YOUR IFB FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON(S): 

_ ____ SPECIFICATIONS ARE TOO "TIGHT," I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER 

ONLY(PLEASE EXPLAIN IN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW). 

_____ INSUFFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID. 

_____ OUR PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PERFORM. 

_____ UNABLE TO MEET SPECIFICATIONS. 

_____ UNABLE TO MEET INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. 

_____ SPECIFICATIONS UNCLEAR (PLEASE EXPLAIN IN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW). 

_____ OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY IN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW). 

REMARKS: 

COMPANY NAME: ___________________ _ 

ADDRESS: _____________________ _ 

TITLE: _______________________ _ 

SIGNATURE: ____________________ _ 

TELEPHONE NUMBER: __________________ _ 

DATE: ________ _ 

184

Item 7.



State of Missouri 
EXEMPTION FROM MISSOURI SALES AND USE TAX ON PURCHASE S 

Replace this page with pdf of tax exempt form 

Issued to: 

CITY OF REPUBLI C 
21 3 N. MAIN AVENUE REPUBLIC, MO 65738 

Missouri Tax ID Numbe r : 12492990 
Effective Date : 

07/11/2002 

Your application for sales/use tax exempt status has been 
approved , pursuant to Section 144 . 030.1 , RSMo . This letter is 
issued as documentation of your exempt status . 

Purchases by your Agency are not subject to sales or use 
taxif within the conduct of your Agency's exempt functions 
and activities . When purchasing with this exemption , 
furnishall sellers or vendors a copy of this letter . This 
exemptionmay not be used by individuals making personal 
purchases . 

A contractor may purchase and pay for construction material s 
exemptfrom sales tax when fulfilling a contract with your Agency 
only if your Agency issues a project exemption certificate and 
thecontractor makes purchases in compliance with the provisions of 
Section 144 . 062 , RSMo. 

Sales by your Agency are subject to all applicable state 
and local sales taxes. If you engage in the business of 
selling tangible personal property or taxable services at 
retail , you must obtain a Missouri Retail Sales Tax License 
and collect andremit sales tax. 

This is a continuing exemption subject to legislative 
changes and review by the Director of Revenue. If your 
Agency ceases to qualify as an exempt entity , this 
exemption will cease to bevalid. This exemption is not 
assignable or transferable . 

It is an exemption from sales and use taxes only and is not 
an exemption from real or personal property tax. 

Any alteration to this exemption letter renders it invalid. 

If you have any questions regarding the use of this letter , 
pleasecontact the Division of Taxation and Collection, P.O. Box 
33 00, Jefferson City , MO 65105 - 3300, phone 573-751-2836 . 

IPIU JO) 

185

Item 7.



MISSOURI PROJECT EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE 

Authorization for Purchasing Construction Materials for Tax Exempt Project 
(The Form and Content of this Exemption Certificate have been approved by the Missouri Department of 

Revenue) 

EXEMPT ENTITY ISSUING CERTIFICATE 
Name: City of Republic, Missouri 
Address: 213 N. Main Avenue 
City/State/Zip: Republic, Missouri 65738 

MO Tax Exempt I.D. #: 12492990 
Contract Date: 
Contract#: ______ _ 
Project Description: _______ _ 

Project Location: _______ _ 
Project Completion Date: _________ _ 
Auth. Signature: ____________ _ 
Date: 

Letter Effective Date: 
Certificate Expiration Date: 
Revised Expiration Date: 

The Missouri exempt entity named above hereby authorizes the purchase, without sales tax, of tangible personal 
propertyto be incorporated or consumed in the construction of the project identified herein and no other, pursuant to 
Section 144.62, RSMo. 

PURCHASING CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR 
Name: _____________________ _ 

Address: ____________________ _ 

City/State/Zip: _________________ _ 

INSTRUCTIONS 

EXEMPT ENTITY -A signed copy of this certificate, along with your MO Tax Exemption Letter, must be furnished 
to each contractor and/or subcontractor who will be purchasing tangible personal property for use in the project. It is 
the exempt entity's responsibility to ensure the validity of the certificate. You must issue a certificate with a Revised 
Expiration Date if purchases will be required to complete the project beyond the original Project Exemption Date. 

CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR - The contractor shall furnish a completed copy of this exemption 
certificate, along with a copy of the exempt entity' s MO Tax Exemption Letter, to all subcontractors, and any contractor 
or subcontractor purchasing materials shall present copies of such documents to all material suppliers as authorization 
to purchase, on behalf of the exempt entity, all tangible personal property and materials to be incorporated or consumed 
in the construction of that project and no other on a tax-exempt basis. A copy of each certificate must be retained by the 
purchaser for a period of five years. 

MATERIAL SUPPLIER - A completed copy of this exemption certificate, along with the MO Tax Exemption Letter 
of the exempt entity contracting for the project, must be obtained from the contractor or subcontractor making purchases 
of tangible personal property for use in the project, and retained for audit purposes. Invoices issued for such purchases 
must reflect the name of the exempt entity and the project number assigned by the exempt entity shown above. 

186

Item 7.



Description 
Unit Bid (no Unit Bid with Quantity Required Delivered Unit Bid or 

Units delivery) Bulk Discount for Discount (tons) additional cost per mile 

Commercial Surface 
$ (/;og $ ~A $ -5. ,~ 

per 
Mix (MODOT BP-2) 18 ton 

Bituminous Base $~;. ~ $ -8'" $ 5.1/< 
per 

AJA ton 

MODOT BP-1 $ ~ ~p_!!. $ ~ AJJ $ 5. 9t; 
per 
ton 

Cold Mix $ 95~ $ ,I)- #A $ ~.,~ per 
ton 

please fill out all categories above you wish to put a bulk bid in for. If you do not wish to bid a certain item please enter N/A. 

Please outline Fuel adjustment method here or attach (if choosing to do so): 

A,p~/.I Air f k-l' ,ulll ~ /Jl;1v,U b,sJ "(Olf. J.'4. Au,-1- A'fw ;r.J.t:£ 

4.,-l-"j C LI p,t~s . k J,h1t'7 wJt/ I;,, L.,J .. , ... tL f-:J:)..7..., .,, b;,k. 

1fos wl/1 obo prJ,,i,.. k A},..J..u,I t,s f>t''t-! «;, ,~ tut 1} 

City of Republic, Missouri 

IFB for: Asphalt as requested 8/16/22 through 
12/31/23 

213 N Main Street 

Republic, MO 65738 

elephone: t/Jf,t/JJ, f15$ 

ellular: '/J1, 1v I✓ t/511 

Email: abo,wt //eblNill~MPkll toy.,.., 
I 

Company Legal NcBleVins Asphalt 
• 

ddress: 
Blevins Asphalt Const. Co., Inc. 
P.O. Box230 
Mt \lemon, MO 85712 

ignature: 

Dated: _ .....:...i -'-,1-'-, ~-=-6---_ _ _ _ __ _ 

Bidder's Federal ID Number: t/f-rfl{AJ6$ 

187

Item 7.



NOTICE AND INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS/VENDORS 

Regarding Sections 285.525 through 285.550 RSMo., effective January 1, 2009, 

and Section 292.675 RSMo., effective August 28, 2009 

Effective January 1, 2009 and pursuant to Section 285.530(1) of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, "[n]o business entity 

or employer shall knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work 

within the state of Missouri." 

State law additionally provides that, as a condition for the award of any contract or grant in excess of five thousand 

dollars by the state or by any political subdivision of the state (e.g., the City of Republic) to a business entity (e.g., 

potential bidders in response to this IFB), the business entity (Company) shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 

documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the 

employees working in connection with the contracted services. Every such business entity shall sign an affidavit affirming 

that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services. 

See§ 285.530(2), RSMo. 

Section 285.530 RSMo. pertains to all solicitations for services over $5,000, but does not apply to solicitations for goods 
only. If a solicitation is for a combination of services and goods, Section 285.530 RSMo. applies if the services portion of 
the solicitation is over $5,000. 

188

Item 7.



1. Required Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00 (US) - Effective 1-1-2009, the company (submitting a 
Bid) shall comply with the provisions of Section 285.525 through 285.550, RSMo., which require certain 
statements to be made under penalty of perjury pertaining to employment of unauthorized aliens. The award 
of any contract under this IFB is expressly contingent on the company (submitting a Bid) providing an 
acceptable, notarized affidavit, stating as follows: 

a. that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with respect 
to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 

b. that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection 
with the contracted services. 

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo. , et 
seq. 

2. Additionally, Company must provide documentation evidencing current enrollment in a federal work 
authorization program (e.g. electronic signature page from E-Verify Program's Memo of Understanding 
(MOU). See attached sample. 

A copy of the required affidavit is included on the following page. A digital copy of the affidavit can also 
be accessed and downloaded from the City of Republic's official website, URL address: 
https://www.republicmo.com/DocumentCenterNiew/77/Affidavit-of-Compliance-with-Section-285500-RSMO
PDF?bidld= 

The City of Republic is an E-Verify employer. The City of Republic encourages companies that are not already enrolled 
and participating in a federal work authorization program to do so. E-Verify is an example of a federal work authorization 
program. Information regarding E-Verify is available at http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify or by calling 888-464-4218. 

189

Item 7.



Affidavit of Compliance with Section 285.500, RSMo., et seq. 

for all agreements providing services in excess of $5,000.00 

Effective 1/1/2009 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF GREENE ) 

\lefore me, the unders~ned Notary Public, in an~ the County of /4,,.,,,.,__ , State of 
/Ito ' ~ rsonally p ppeared ~ . ... e h~u.fl' (Name) who is ---vr (Title) of f,/,,1t'd:S .4¥,lwfk (Name of company), a (circle 

one)@~eorat@TI? partnership, sole proprietorship) mited liability company, and is competent and authorized to make 
this affidavit, and being duly sworn upon oath deposes and says as follows: 

(1) that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with 
respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 

(2) that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in 
connection with the contracted services. 

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et seq. 

Documentation of participation in a federal work authorizati program is attached to this affidavit. 

Printed Name 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this \ day of Av..-3 \,{ s-\-- , {)_,O ~ t1\ 

~ud~ 
My commission expires: -:Jlu::)u.~ ~ l b/Dd-5 

MELINDA WILLIFORD 
Notary Public, N-otary Seal 

State of Missouri 
Greene County 

Commission# 13735152 
My Commission Expires 01 -21 -2025 

190

Item 7.



Company ID Number: XXXXXX 

The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between the SSA, OHS (Department of Homeland 
Security) , and the Employer. 

The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enter into this Memorandum of 
Understanding on behalf of the Employer and OHS respectively. 

To be accepted as a participant in E-Verify, you should only sign the Employer's Section of the signature page. If you have 
any questions, contact E-Verify Operations at 888-464-4218. 

(J\B 
Employer. Your Company Namer > ---;, \ ) ) ) J 

~ _.,J 

191

Item 7.



City of Republic, Missouri 

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH INVITATION FOR BID 

To be submitted with all Bids in response to this IFB 

--j{._we DO NOT take exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements. 

__ We TAKE exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements as follows: 

I have carefully examined the Invitation for Bid and agree to abide by all submitted pricing, delivery, terms and 
conditions of this IFB unless otherwise stipulated herein. 

Blevins Asphalt 
Company Nal'l1@- · t t' e C von~ llJ~IOII O. , 11C . 
By ________ ________ _ 

(Authorized Person's Signature) 

Company Address 70. YQ)r no 
tfl.,l , l/4t!Y2J{, & . ~$7/J.---

Telephone Number t/17,1J/i , ~15~ 

Fax Number '/11, t/ltlr 1f/ t/ 
Date i✓ I/ a ')..., 

ADDENDA 

Offeror acknowledges receipt of the following addendum: 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Email ky..t,, e ii"',' ljt>kll: . tt),,.,._ 
I 

Federal Tax ID No. _..L,.l/..L.1_,,,tJ'-'-t-=l,_;,t/....:....j ...::....(f=------ -

DBE Vendor (Yes/!!W: #o Minority Owned: _ _ 
Women Owned: 
Veteran Owned: 

192

Item 7.



City of Republic, Missouri 

STATEMENT OF "NO PROPOSAL"/ "NO BID" 

RETURN THIS PAGE ONLY IF YOUR COMPANY PROVIDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVICES BEING BID AND DECLINES TO DO SO. 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE DECLINED TO BID ON YOUR IFB FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON(S): 

_____ SPECIFICATIONS ARE TOO "TIGHT," I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER 

ONLY(PLEASE EXPLAIN IN THE " REMARKS" SECTION BELOW). 

_____ INSUFFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID. 

_____ OUR PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PERFORM. 

_____ UNABLE TO MEET SPECIFICATIONS. 

_____ UNABLE TO MEET INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. 

_____ SPECIFICATIONS UNCLEAR (PLEASE EXPLAIN IN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW). 

_____ OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY IN THE " REMARKS" SECTION BELOW). 

REMARKS: 

COMPANY NAME: ________ _______ ____ _ 

ADDRESS: _____ _________________ _ 

TITLE: _______________________ _ 

SIGNATURE: _____________________ _ 

TELEPHONE NUMBER: ________________ _ 

DATE: _______ _ 

193

Item 7.



REPUBLIC 
M!SSOUF< 

City of Republic - Invitation for Bid 
Asphalt as Requested for the Remainder of 2022 and 

through 2023 

SEALED BIDS MUST BE PHYSICALLY RECEIVED AT REPUBLIC CITY HALL PRIOR TO 3:00 P.M. on Monday, 
August 1, 2022. Bids will be opened by the City at Republic City Hall at said time and place. 

BIDS SHOULD BE ADDRESSED AS FOLLOWS: 

City of Republic 
c/o City Clerk, Laura Burbridge 
213 N. Main Avenue 
Republic, MO 65738 

Bids must be submitted on the forms provided and must be manually signed by the individual authorized 
to legally bind the Bidder. Bidders can add their own sheets for clarification of pricing on certain products 
if they choose. 

• Bids shall be submitted with the Invitation for Bid ("IFB") project name or item clearly indicated 
on the outside of the mailing envelope. 

• Bids received after the opening date and time will be rejected. 

• The attached Terms and Conditions shall become part of any contract, agreement or award 
resulting from this Invitation for Bid . 

• FAXED/EMAILED BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. 

• You are invited to submit your Bid to furnish the materials and/or services described herein. 
Please submit your prices/fees net of all discounts. Bidders do not necessarily need to bid all 
requested categories, but it is encouraged. 

• August 16th
, 2022 until December 3151, 2023 or until superseded by another bid . 

• City intends to award all responsive bidders to the on-call list for service so if the lowest bidder 

is unable to provide material/service in an acceptable time, the next lowest bidder may be used. 
• Bids will be taken to City Council for approval on Tuesday August 16, 2022. Notice to proceed 

shall follow immediately upon and following approval granted by City Council. 

DESCRIPTION: 
Asphalt as requested by City of Republic of in the below listed categories, priced to be picked up or 

delivered if available. 

• Commercial Surface Mix (MODOT BP-2) 

• Bituminous Base 

• MODOT BP-1 

• Cold Mix 

Hot Mix will be picked up at the plant during normal working hours. Hot Mix temperature sh~II _be a mi~im~~ of 375 
degrees at the plant. Delivered Asphalt will be not less than 20 Tons, daily order delivered within t~e City Limits of ~he 
City of Republic and shall at the time of delivery meet all the requirements for placement of Hot Mix Asphalt as defined 

by MODOT Standard Specifications for Highway Construction. 
194

Item 7.



The City of Republic will call the plant to verify availability prior to travel to the plant. If material is not readily available, 
the City reserves the right to purchase material from the next lowest bidder. 

Costs 
As part of this Bid, a fuel index or surcharge shall be permitted however, needs to be outlined in this bid. Please outline 
fuel cost adjustment method in the space provided under bid table. E.g. - "if Diesel price exceeds $7.00 per gallon, an 
additional $2.00 will be added to per/ton cost." Or, attach table with adjustment values based on cost of fuel. 

The City of Republic will utilize the U.S. Energy Information Administration Weekly Retail Gasoline and Diesel Prices for 
the Midwest region {PADD 2), to verify adjustments as necessary. 

https://www.eia.gov/dnav/pet/PET PRI GND A EPD2D PTE DPGAL W.htm 

Materials 
MoDOT Standard Specification, Section 401, Type BP-2 or approved Commercial Mix Materia I Specifications 

l. The description of aggregate, filler and asphalt cement for Type BP-2 is contained in Section 401§ of the 
Missouri Standard Specifications for Highway Construction. A copy of this specification can be provided 
by the City upon request or may be accessed by internet at 
www.modot.state.mo.us/business/highwayspecs.htm. 

2. As an alternate to Type BP-2, the vendor may supply a commercial mix pursuant to 401.3.8 of the 
Missouri Standard Specifications for Highway Construction. 

Inquiries: All inquiries for information should be directed to: 

Garrett Brickner, Engineering Manager 
BUILDS Department, City of Republic 
gbrickner@republicmo.com 
(417) 732-3405 

Important Notice Regarding Competitive Bidding: 

It is the City's intent and desire that this Invitation for Bid promotes competitive Bidding. To the extent 
any language, requirements, terms and/or requests contained within this Invitation for Bid result in the 
elimination of all but one source from which a responsive and responsible Bid may be submitted, such 
restriction/limitation is not intended by the City, but is merely an unintentional error. In the event such error 
is discovered by any potential Bidder, the potential Bidder must notify the City contact listed above of the error, 
in writing, no later than three (3) days prior to the Bid opening day. Upon receipt of any such notice, the City 
will take reasonable efforts to co rrect the error and resubmit the Invitation for Bid once corrected. 

195

Item 7.



TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

01. Opening Location: Bids submitted in response to this Invitation for Bid ("IFB") will be opened at Republic City 
Hall, located at 213 N. Main Avenue, on 3:00 P.M. on Monday, August 1, 2022. All Bidders (individually, 
"Bidder"; collectively, "Bidders") and/or their authorized representative(s) are permitted to attend the opening 
of the Bids. 

02. IFB Delivery Requirements: Any Bids received after the above stated time and date will not be considered. It 
shall be the sole responsibility of the Bidder to have their Bid delivered to Republic City Hall for receipt on or 
before the due date and time indicated. 

a. If a Bid is sent by U.S. Mail, the Bidder shall be responsible for its timely delivery to Republic City Hall. 
b. Bids delayed by mail shall not be considered, shall not be opened, and shall be rejected. 
c. Arrangements may be made for their return at the Bidder's request and expense. 
d. Bids may be mailed to Republic City Hall and accepted if the signed Bid form and requiredinformation 

was mailed and received prior to the due date and time. 
e. Bids sent by email will not be accepted. 

Sealed and Marked: If sent by mail, one original signed Bid shall be submitted in one sealed package, clearly 
marked on the outside of the package with the IFB project name clearly indicated on the outside of the mailing 
envelope and addressed to: 

City of Republic 
C/O City Clerk, Laura Burbridge 

213 N. Main 
Republic MO 65738 

03. Legal Name and Signature: Bids shall clearly indicate the legal name, address, and telephone number of the 
Bidder (company, firm, corporation, partnership, or individual). 

a. Bids shall be manually signed above the printed name and title of signer on the Affidavit of Compliance 
page. 

b. The signer shall have the authority to bind the Bidder to the submitted Bid. 
c. Failure to properly sign the Bid form shall invalidate the Bid, and it shall not be considered for award. 

04. Corrections: No erasures are permitted. 
a. In the event a correction is necessary, in order for the City to consider the correction, the following 

formatting must be applied: 
1. A single line (strike-through) to the entered text needing correction, and 
2. The corrected text written above the strike-through text, and 
3. The signer(s) of the Bid must initial all corrections. 

OS. Clarification and Addenda: Bidders are expected to examine all documents attached to and/or provided by the 
City with this IFB, and prior to submitting any Bid in response to this IFB, make any necessary and/or reasonable 
inquiries of the City to ensure all such Bidders understand the entirety of the documents. 

a. Any inquiries or suggestions concerning interpretation, clarification, or other additional information 
pertaining to the IFB sha ll be made through the listed City contact in writing (email is permitted). 

b. The City of Republic shall not be responsible for verbal interpretations or other information given by 
any individual purporting to be employed by or otherwise represent ing the City. 

c. The issuance of written addenda is the official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or 

additional information can be given. 
d. It shall be the responsibility of each Bidder, prior to submitting their Bid, to direct any inquiries to the 

listed City contact. 

196

Item 7.



06. IFB Expenses: There is no expressed or implied obligation for the City of Republic to reimburse responding 
Bidders and the City will not reimburse for any expenses incurred in preparing responses to this IFB. 

07. Bid Security: All Bids must be accompanied by a Bid Security, which shall constitute the Bidder's guarantee that, 
if awarded the contract under this IFB, the Bidder will promptly execute all contract documents and other 
documents required under this IFB, and will furnish good and sufficient bond for the performance of the same. 

a. The Bid Security shall consist of a certified check, cashier's check or a Bid bond, guaranteed by a surety 
company authorized by the Director of the Missouri Department of Insurance and Commerce to conduct 
surety business in the state of Missouri, in an amount no less than ten percent (10%) of the Bid, and 
made payable to the City of Republic. 

b. Bids submitted without the required Bid Security will not be considered for award under this IFB. 

c. The Bid Securities of all Bidders, except for the three apparent lowest Bidders, will be returned as soon 
as reasonably possible after the opening and review of Bids. 

d. The City shall have the right to retain the Bid Security of the three apparent lowest Bidders until either: 
(1) all contract documents have been duly executed and all required bonds and proof of insurance, 
including certificates of insurance, have been furnished by the Bidder to the City; or (2) all Bids have 
been rejected, whichever occurs first. 

08. Irrevocable Offer: Any Bid may be withdrawn up until the due date and time set for opening of the IFB. Any 
Bid not so withdrawn shall, upon opening, constitute an irrevocable offer for a minimum period of ninety (90) 
days to provide to the City the goods or services set forth in the IFB, until one or more of the Bids have been 
duly accepted by the City. 

09. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

Responsive and Responsible Bidder: To be a responsive Bidder, a Bidder shall submit a Bid which conforms in 
all material respects to the requirements set forth in the IFB. To be a responsible Bidder, the Bidder shall have 
the capability in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements, and the tenacity, perseverance, 
experience, integrity, reliability, capacity, facilities, equipment and credit which will ensure good faith 
performance. The lowest responsible Bidder shall mean the Bidder who makes the lowest Bid to sell goods or 
services of a quality which conforms closest to the quality of goods or services set forth in the specifications or 
otherwise required by the City and who is known to be fit and capable to perform the Bid as made. 

Reserved Rights: The City reserves the right to make such investigations as it deems necessary to make the 
determination of the Bidder's responsiveness and responsibility. Such information may include, but shall not be 
limited to: current financial statement, verification of availability of equipment and personnel, and past 
performance records. 

The Right to Audit: The Bidder agrees to furnish supporting detail as may be required by the City to support 
charges or invoices, to make available for audit purposes all records covering charges pertinent tothe purchase, 
and to make appropriate adjustments in the event discrepancies are found. 

a. The City shall have the right to audit the Bidder's records pertaining to the work/product for a period of 

three (3) years after final payment. 
b. The cost of any audit conducted pursuant to this term will be paid by the City. 

Applicable Law: All applicable laws and regulations of the State of Missouri and the City including the City 
Procurement Regulations and Procedures will apply to any resulting agreement, contract, or purchase order 
entered into under the terms of this IFB. Any involvement with the City Procurement shall be in accordance 

with the Procurement Regulations and Procedures. 

Right to Protest: Appeals and remedies are provided for in the City Procurement Regulations. 

197

Item 7.



14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

a. Protestors shall seek resolution of their complaints initially with the City Purchasing Agent. 
b. Any protest shall state the basis upon which the solicitation or award is contested and shall be submitted 

within ten (10) calendar days after such aggrieved person knew or could have reasonably been expected 
to know of the facts giving rise thereto. 

Ethical Standards Applicable: With respect to this IFB, if any Bidder violates or is a party to a violation of the 
general ethical standards of the City Procurement Code or the State of Missouri Statues, such Bidder will be 
disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Bid is submitted and shall be further disqualified 
from submitting any future Bids. 

Collusion Absolutely Prohibited: All Bidders offering a submission in response to this IFB hereby expressly 
acknowledge and certify that they have not divulged, discussed, or compared their Bid to the Bids of any other 
Bidder(s), and further that they have not colluded or conspired with any other Bidder or parties to this IFB, to 
violate the terms and conditions governing submission of responses to this IFB whatsoever. All Bidders offering 
a submission in response to this IFB additionally promise that: 

a. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have been arrived at independently, without consultation, 
communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to 
such prices and/or cost data, with any other Bidder or with any competitor. 

b. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have not knowingly been disclosed by the Bidder and will not 
knowingly be disclosed by the Bidder prior to the scheduled opening directly or indirectly to any other 
Bidder or to any competitor. 

c. No attempt has been made or will be made by the Bidder to induce any other person or firm to submit 
or not to submit a Bid for the purpose of restricting competition. 

d. The only person or persons interested in this Bid, principal or principals are named therein and that no 
person other than therein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in any contract awarded under this 
IFB. No person or agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure the contract awarded under 
this IFB upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 
fee exempting bona fide employees or established commercial agencies maintained by the Purchaser 
for the purpose of doing business. 

Contract Forms: Any agreement, contract, or purchase order resulting from the acceptance of a Bid shall be on 
forms either supplied by or approved by the City. 

Liability and Indemnity: 
a. In no event shall the City be liable to the successful Bidder for special, indirect, liquidated, incidental, or 

consequential damages, except those caused by the City's gross negligence or willful or wanton 
misconduct arising out of or in any way connected with a breach of any agreement or contract under the 
terms of this IFB. The maximum liability of the City shall be limited to the amount of money to be paid or 
received by the City under any agreement or contract awarded under the terms of this IFB. 

b. The successful Bidder shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City, its elected or appointed 
officials, agents and employees from and against any and all liability, suits, damages, costs (including 
attorney fees), losses, outlays, expenses, and claims, caused or allegedly caused by, or arising out of or 
related in any way whatsoever to (1) any agreement or contract awarded under this IFB, or (2) the work 
performed pursuant to such contract or agreement or any subcontract thereunder (the successful Bidder 
expressly acknowledging and assuming full responsibility for its subcontractors), including, but not 
limited to, claims for personal injuries, death, property damage, or for any other alleged damages. 

c. The successful Bidder shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from all wages or overtime 
compensation due any employees in rendering services pursuant to this agreement or any subcontract, 
including payment of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs in the defense of any claim made under the 
Fair Labor Standards Act, the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law or any other federal or state law. 

IFB Forms, variances, and Alternates: Bids must be submitted on the forms attached to thi_s IFB as provided ?Y 
the City; however, additional information may be attached. Bidders must indicate any variances from the City 

198

Item 7.



requested specifications and/or terms and conditions, on the IFB Affidavit of Compliance. Otherwise, Bidders 
must fully comply with the City requested specifications and terms and conditions. Alternate Bids may or may 
not be considered at the sole discretion of the City Purchasing Agent. 

19. Bid Form: All blank spaces must be completed with the appropriate response. 
a. Bidders must state the price, written in ink, for what is proposed to complete each item of the project. 
b. Bidders must insert the words "no Bid" in the space provided for any item for which no Bid is made. 
c. Bidders must submit an executed Bid form, affidavit of compliance with other requested documents. 

20. Modifications or Withdrawal of Bid: A modification of a Bid already submitted will be considered only if the 
modification is received prior to the time announced for opening of Bids, and is made in writing; executed and 
submitted on the same form and manner as the original Bid. Modifications submitted by telephone, fax, or email 
will not be considered. 

21. No Bid: If not submitting a Bid, respond by returning the "Statement of No Bid" no later than the statedBid 
opening time and date, and explain the reason in the space provided. 

22. Errors in Bids: Bidders are expected to fully inform themselves as to the conditions, requirements, and 
specifications before submitting Bids; failure to do so will be at the Bidder's own risk. Applicable law and 
regulations do not make allowance for errors either of omission or inclusion on the part of Bidders. In case an 
error regarding extension of prices in the Bid, the unit price shallgovern. 

23. Prices: Bids must include both unit price and extended total. 

24. 

25. 

26. 

a. Price must be stated in units of quantity specified in the Bidding specifications. In case of discrepancy in 
computing the amount of the Bid, the unit price of the Bid will govern. 

b. All prices shall be F.O.B. destination, freight prepaid (unless otherwise stated in special conditions). FOB, 
as used in this IFB, shall mean that the successful Bidder, at their own expense, shall transport the 
equipment and/or materials and bear the risk of loss from successful Bidder's location to a specified 
location in the City of Republic. City shall not take title to the materials or equipment until it is delivered 
and accepted by City at the address specified within the City of Republic. 

c. Each item must be Bid separately and no attempt is to be made to tie any item or items in with any other 
item or items. 

d. If a Bidder offers a discount on payment terms, the discount time will be computed from the date of 
satisfactory delivery at place of acceptance and receipt of correct invoice at the office specified. 

e. Payment terms shall be Net 30 if not otherwise specified. 
f. Pre-payment terms are not acceptable. 

Discounts: Any and all discounts, except cash discounts for prompt payments, must be incorporated as a 
reduction in the Bid price and not shown separately. The price as shown on the Bid shall be the price used in the 

City's determination of award(s). 

Descriptive Information: All equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the product/work coveredby 

this IFB are to be new and of suitable grade for the purpose intended. 
a. Brand or trade names referenced in specifications are for comparison purposes only. 
b. Bidders may submit Bids on items manufactured by an individual/entity other than the manufacturer 

specified so long as an "or equal" is expressly stated. 

Deviations to Specifications and Requirements: When Bidding on an "or equal," Bids must be accompanied 
with all descriptive information necessary for an evaluation of the proposed material orequipment such as the 
detailed drawings and specifications, certified operation and test data, and experience records. 

a. Failure of any Bidder to furnish the data necessary to determine whether the product is equivalent, may 

be cause for rejection of the specific item(s) to which it pertains. . . . 
b. All deviations from the specifications must be noted in detail by the Bidder on the Affidavit of Compliance 

199

Item 7.



form, at the time of submittal of Bid. 
c. The absence of listed deviations at the time of submittal of the Bid will hold the Bidder strictly 

accountable to the specifications as written . 
d. Any deviation from the specifications as written and accepted by the City may be grounds for rejection 

of the material and/or equipment when delivered. 

27. Quality Guaranty: If any product delivered does not meet applicable specifications or otherwise fails to compare 
with the quality represented by the Bidder, the Bidder shall retrieve the product from the City as its own 
expense. The Bidder shall refund to the City any money the City has remitted to the Bidder for same. In the 
event the successful Bidder fails or refuses to retrieve the product and refund to the City any money previously 
remitted to the Bidder for such product in accord with the terms of this paragraph, the Bidder shall be 
responsible for the City's attorney fees and other costs it incurs in enforcing its rights under this paragraph. 

28. Quality Terms: The City reserves the right to reject any or all materials if, in its judgment, the item reflects 
unsatisfactory workmanship, manufacturing, or shipping damages. 

29. Tax-Exempt: The City is exempt from sales taxes and Federal Excise Taxes: Missouri Tax ID Number 12492990. 

30. Bid Awards: Awards will be made to the Bidder whose Bid (1) meets the specifications and all other 
requirements of the IFB and (2) is the lowest and best Bid, considering price, delivery, responsibility of the 
Bidder, and all other relevant factors. 

a. Unless otherwise stated in the IFB, cash discounts for prompt payment of invoices will not be considered 
in the evaluation of prices. However, such discounts are encouraged to motivate prompt payment. 

b. As the best interest of the City may require, the right is reserved to make awards by item, group(s) of 
items, all or none or a combination thereof; and to reject any and all Bids or waive any minor or non
material irregularity or technicality in Bids received. 

31. Authorized Product Representation: The successful Bidder(s) by virtue of submitting the name and 
specifications of a manufacturer's product will be required to furnish the named manufacturer's product. By 
virtue of submission of the stated documents, it will be presumed by the City that the Bidder(s) is legally 
authorized to submit and the successful Bidder(s) will be legally bound to perform according to the documents. 

32. Regulations: It shall be the responsibility of each Bidder to assure compliance with OSHA, EPA, Federal, State 
of Missouri, and City rules, regulations, or other requirements, as each may apply. 

a. E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS: All contractors or subcontractors to be utilized by 
Bidder on contracts exceeding five thousand dollars shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program 
with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services and affirm 
that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with 

the contracted services. 
b. Bidders are herein informed that the work to be performed under this IFB is subject to the 

requirements of Section 292.675, RSMo., which requires all contractors or subcontractors 
perform work such to provide and require its on-site employees to complete a ten (lO)hour 
course in construction safety and health approved by the Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration ("OSHA") or a similar program approved by the Missouri Department of Labor 
and Industrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program. The 
training must be completed within sixty (60) days of the date work on the Project commences. 
On-siteemployees found on the worksite without documentation of the required training shall 

have twenty (20) days to produce such documentation. 

C. Pursuant to Section 292.675 RSMo., the successful Bidder shall forfeit to the City as a penalty 
two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00), plus one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each on
site employee employed by it, or any contractors or subcontractors hired by it, for each 
calendar day, or portion thereof, Such on-site employee isemployed without the construction 

200

Item 7.



safety training required in the above paragraph. 
d. Section 208.009 RSMo. shall apply to any contracts awarded under this Bid. 

33. Termination of Award: Any failure of the Bidder to satisfy the requirements of the City shall be reason 
fortermination of the award. Any Bid may be rejected in whole or in part for any reason by the City. 

34. Royalties and Patents: The successful Bidder(s) shall pay all royalties and license fees for equipment or 
processes in conjunction with the equipment being furnished. Bidder shall defend all suits or claims for 
infringement of any patent right and shall hold the City harmless from loss on account or cost and 
attorney's fees incurred. 

35. Equal Employment Opportunity Clause: The City of Republic, in accordance with the provision ofTitle 
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252) and the Regulations of the Department of Commerce (15 
CFR,Part 8) issued pursuant to the aforementioned Civil Rights Act, hereby notifies all Bidders that the 
City takes all reasonably necessary steps to affirmatively ensure that all Bidders, including minority 
businesses, will be afforded full opportunity to submit Bids in response to this IFB and that no Bidder 
will be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in determining the 
successful Bidder for award. 

36. Insurance Requirements: For the duration of any contract awarded under this IFB, (which, for projects 
including any labor, means until the work is completed and accepted by the City; and which, for projects 
involving supply of materials only, means until the materials are delivered and accepted by the City), 
the successful Bidder is required to maintain certain insurance to protect it and the City against risks of 
loss in connection with the Project, as defined more fully below. The Successful Bidder will be required 
to provide the City with proof of insurance that satisfies the requirements stated below, unless 
otherwise specified by the City. The insurance requirements below may be modified or waived by the 
City at the City's sole discretion. 

a. Workers' Compensation: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Employers Liability and Workers 
Compensation Insurance for all persons it will employ or retain to perform any work in 
connection with a contract awarded under this IFB, and in the event the Successful Bidder will 
sublet or subcontract any such work, the Successful Bidder shall require the subcontractor to 
provide similar Workers Compensation Insurance for the subcontractor's employees, unless 
such employees are covered by the Successful Bidder's coverage. Workers Compensation 
coverage shall meet the minimum requirements under Missouri law of $500,000 each 
employee and $500,000 each accident. 

b. Commercial General Liability: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Commercial General 
Liability coverage for personal and advertising injury, bodily injury including accidental death, 
and broad-form property damage, which may arise from the performance of any contract 
awarded under this IFB, in an aggregate amount of not less than $2,000,000 each occurrence 
and $1,000,000 each person. 

c. Commercial Automobile Liability (applies only to projects involving the Successful Bidder's 
operation of vehicles in performing the work awarded under this IFB): The Successful Bidder 
shall maintain Commercial Automobile Liability coverage of not less than $2,000,000 each 
occurrence and $1,000,000 each person for "any auto" on an occurrence basis. 

37. Performance Bond and Labor & Materials Payment Bond (applies only to projects involving labor): 
Pursuant to Section 107.170, RSMo., if the total cost of the project is estimated to exceed $50,000.00, 
the successful Bidder shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Bond and a Labor and Materials 
Payment Bond with surety, approved by the City and on forms approved by the City, each bond shall be 
in the amount of the total project cost, conditioned upon the full and faithful performance of all major 

201

Item 7.



terms and conditions of the IFB and payment of all labor and material supplies. 

38. Nonresident/Foreign Contractors: To the extent the successful Bidder utilizes non-resident/foreign 
contractors to provide services or supplies in connection with this IFB, the successful Bidder shall 
procure and maintain: 

a. A certificate of authority to transact business in the State of Missouri from the Secretary of 
State, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 351.570, RSMo. 

b. A certificate from the Missouri Director of Revenue evidencing compliance with the transient 
employer financial assurance law, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 285.230, 
RSMo. 

39. Bid Tabulation: Bidders may request a copy of the Bid tabulation of the IFB. 

40. Budgetary Constraints: The City reserves the right to reduce or increase the quantity, retract any item 
from the Bid, or upon notification, terminate entire agreement without any obligations or penalty based 
upon availability of funds. 

41. Additional Purchases by Other Public Agencies: By submitting a Bid in response to this IFB, the Bidder 
authorizes other publicagencies to "Piggy-Back" or purchase equipment and services being proposed in 
this IFB unless otherwise noted on the Affidavit of Compliance Form. 

42. Order of Precedence: Any and all Special/Genera l Conditions and Specifications attached hereto, which 
varies from the instruction to Bidders, sha ll take precedence. 

43. Affidavit for Service Contracts: The successful Bidder represents, in accordance with Section 285.530.2, 
RSMo., that it has not employed, or subcontracted with, unauthorized aliens in connection with the 
scope of work to be done under this IFB and agrees to provide an affidavit to the City of Republic 
affirming that it has not, and will not at any point in time relat ing to this IFB, knowingly employ, or 
subcontract with, any person who is an unauthorized alien. 

44. Inspection and Acceptance: No item(s) received by the City pursuant to any agreement or contract 
awarded under this IFB shall be deemed accepted by the City until the City has had reasonable 
opportunity to inspect the item(s). 

a. Any item{s) which are discovered to be defective, or which do not conform to any warranty of 
the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s), upon inspection, may be 
returned by the City to the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item{s) for 
full credit and reimbursement or replacement. 

b. If, at a later time, any defect is discovered which was not ascertainable upon the initial 
inspection, the City may also return the defective item(s) to the successful Bidder and/or 
entity/individual who sold the item{s) for full credit and reimbursement or replacement. 

c. The City's return of defective items shall not exclude any other legal, equitable or contractual 
remedies the City has under applicable Missouri or Republic law and/or any agreement or 

contract awarded under this IFB. 

45. Davis-Bacon Act: If the Instructions to Bidders have indicated that the Project is financed, in whole or 
in part, from Federal funds, then all work performed pursuant to any contract awarded under this IFB 
shall be subject to all applicable federal statutes, rules and regulations, including provisions of the 
Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. §3141 et seq., and the "Federal Labor Standards Provisions," incorporated 
into this any agreement or contract awarded under this IFB .. Where the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law 
and the Davis-Bacon Act require payment of different wages for work performed pursuant to any 
contract awarded under this IFB, all contractors, subcontractors and other individuals/entities hired by 
the successful Bidder to perform work under this IFB shall pay the greater of the wages required under 

either law. 
202

Item 7.



46. Jurisdiction and Venue: This IFB and any executed agreement required pursuant to the terms of this 
IFB, shall be taken and deemed to have been fully executed and made by the parties herein and 
governed by the laws of the State of Missouri for all purposes and intents. Venue under this 
Agreement or any disputes that come from it shall be in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri. 
THE PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL UNDER ANY APPLICABLE STATUTE, 

COMMON LAW OR FEDERAL OR STATE CONSTITUTION. 

47. Conflict of Interest: By participating in this IFB and/or accepting an agreement pursuant to the IFB's 
terms, the successful Bidder certifies that no salaried officer or employee of the City, and no member 
of the City Council or Mayor of the City of Republic, has a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this 
Agreement. Any federal regulations and applicable provisions in Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo. shall 
not be violated. 

48. Sovereign Immunity: In no event shall any language or requirement in this IFB or any Agreement that 
comes from this IFB be construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of City's defenses with regard 
to sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, or official immunity under federal or state 
constitutions, states, and/or laws. 

49. Terms: The City of Republic reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received from this Bid. It 
further has the right to negotiate with any qualified source, or to cancel in part or in its entirety this 
Bid. The City also reserves the right to modify, suspend, or terminate at its sole discretion any and all 
aspects of this bud process, to obtain further information from any and all respondents, and to waive 
any defectsas to form or content of the Bid or any submissions by any firm. This bud does not commit 
the City to award a contract, to defray any costs incurred in the preparation of a response to this 
request, or to procure or contract for services. All submissions become the property of the City as 
public record. All submissions may be subject to public review upon request. 

203

Item 7.



ATTACHMENT A- BID SUBMISSION FORM 

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: 

Item Description of Work Price 

• Asphalt as requested 

• All Bids to include: 

0 Travel Expenses 

0 Delivery Costs 

0 Administrative costs 

• This bid shall serve from execution, expected on August 
161

\ 2022 until December 31'1, 2023 or until superseded by $ Fill out Table on next 

another bid. ~ 

Base Bid Please note any of the following: 

• Any labor personnel requests of the City of Republic 
for this project. 

• Any other requests or responsibilities of the City 
of Republic for this project. 

In compliance with this Invitation for Bid and to all terms, conditions, and specifications imposed therein and hereby 
incorporated byreference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the goods and/or services described herein. 

204

Item 7.



State of Missouri 
EXEMPTION FROM MISSOURI SALES AND USE TAX ON PURCHASES 

Replace this page with pdf of tax exempt form 

Issued to: 

CITY OF REPUBLIC 
213 N. MAI N AVENUE REPUBLIC , MO 65738 

Missouri Tax ID Number : 12492990 
Effective Date : 

07/11/2002 

Your application for sales/use tax exempt status has been 
approved , pursuant to Section 144.030 . 1 , RSMo . This letter is 
issued as documentati on o f your exempt status . 

Purchases by your Agency are not subject to sales or use 
taxif within the conduct of your Agency ' s exempt functions 
and activities . When purchasing with this exemption , 
furnishall sellers or vendors a copy of this letter. This 
exemptionmay not be used by individuals making personal 
purchases . 

A con t ractor may purchase and pay for construction materials 
exemptfrom sales tax when fulfilling a contract wi th your Agency 
only if your Agenc y issues a project exemption certificate and 
thecontractor makes purchases in compliance with the provis i ons of 
Section 144 . 062 , RSMo . 

Sales by your Agency are subject to all applicable state 
and l oca l sa l es taxes . If you engage in the business of 
se l l i ng tang i ble personal property or taxable services at 
retail , you must obtain a Missouri Retail Sales Tax License 
and collect andremit sales tax . 

This is a continuing exemption subject to legislative 
changes and review by the Director of Revenue . If your 
Agency ceases to qualify as an exempt entity , this 
exemption will cease to bevalid . This exemption is not 
assignable or transferable . 

It is an exemption from sales and use taxes only and is not 
an exemption from real or personal property tax . 

Any alteration to this exemption letter renders it invalid . 

If you have any questions regarding the use o f this letter , 
pleasecontact the Division of Taxation and Collection , P . O . Box 
3300 , Jefferson City , MO 65105 - 3300 , phone 573 - 751-2836. 

!PI U .10) 

205

Item 7.



MISSOURI PROJECT EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE 

Authorization for Purchasing Construction Materials for Tax Exempt Project 
(The Form and Content of this Exemption Certificate have been approved by the Missouri Department of 

Revenue) 

EXEMPT ENTITY ISSUING CERTIFICATE 
Name: City of Republic, Missouri 
Address: 213 N. Main Avenue 
City/State/Zip: Republic, Missouri 65738 

MO Tax Exempt I.D. #: 12492990 
Contract Date: 
Contract#: ______ _ 
Project Description: _______ _ 

Project Location: --------
Project Completion Date: ----------
Au th. Signature: _____________ _ 
Date: 

Letter Effective Date: 
Certificate Expiration Date: 
Revised Expiration Date: 

The Missouri exempt entity named above hereby authorizes the purchase, without sales tax, of tangible personal 
propertyto be incorporated or consumed in the construction of the project identified herein and no other, pursuant to 
Section 144.62, RSMo. 

PURCHASING CONTRACTOR QR SUBCONTRACTOR 
Name: ______________________ _ 

Address: ----------------------
City/St ate/Zip:-------------------

INSTRUCTIONS 

EXEMPT ENTITY - A signed copy of this certificate, along with your MO Tax Exemption Letter, must be furnished 
to each contractor and/or subcontractor who will be purchasing tangible personal property for use in the project. It is 
the exempt entity's responsibility to ensure the validity of the certificate. You must issue a certificate with a Revised 
Expiration Date if purchases will be required to complete the project beyond the original Project Exemption Date. 

CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR - The contractor shall furnish a completed copy of this exemption 
certificate, along with a copy of the exempt entity 's MO Tax Exemption Letter, to all subcontractors, and any contractor 
or subcontractor purchasing materials shall present copies of such documents to all material suppliers as authorization 
to purchase, on behalf of the exempt entity, all tangible personal property and materials to be incorporated or consumed 
in the construction of that project and no other on a tax-exempt basis. A copy of each certificate must be retained by the 
purchaser for a period of five years. 

MATERIAL SUPPLIER- A completed copy of this exemption certificate, along with the MO Tax Exemption Letter 
of the exempt entity contracting for the project, must be obtained from the contractor or subcontractor making purchases 
of tangible personal property for use in the project, and retained for audit purposes. Invoices issued for such purchases 
must reflect the name of the exempt entity and the project number assigned by the exempt entity shown above. 

206

Item 7.



Company ID Number: 197724 

THE E-VERIFY PROGRAM FOR EMPLOYMENT VERIFICATION 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

ARTICLE I 

PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) sets forth the points of agreement between the 
Department of Homeland Security (OHS) and Blevins Asphalt Construction Co., Inc. 
(Employer) regarding the Employer's participation in the Employment Eligibility Verification 
Program (E-Verify). This MOU explains certain features of the E-Verify program and 
enumerates specific responsibilities of OHS, the Social Security Administration (SSA) , and the 
Employer. E-Verify is a program that electronically confirms an employee's eligibility to work in 
the United States after completion of the Employment Eligibility Verification Form (Form 1-9). 
For covered government contractors, E-Verify is used to verify the employment eligibility of all 
newly hired employees and all existing employees assigned to Federal contracts. 

Authority for the E-Verify program is found in Title IV, Subtitle A, of the Illegal Immigration 
Reform and Immigrant Responsibility Act of 1996 (IIRIRA) , Pub. L. 104-208, 110 Stat. 3009, as 
amended (8 U.S.C. § 1324a note). Authority for use of the E-Verify program by ~e?~~al 
contractors and subcontractors covered by the terms of Subpart 22.18, "Employment Ellg1b1llty 
Verification" of the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) (hereinafter referred to in this M_OU as 
a "Federal ~ontractor") to verify the employment eligibility of certain employees working on 
Federal contracts is also found in Subpart 22 .18 and in Executive Order 12989, as amended. 

Page 1 of 41E-Venfv MOL; for E111ployerRev1s1on Date 10!29108 

207

Item 7.



Company ID Number: 197724 

To be accepted as a participant in E-Verify, you should only sign the Employer's Section 
of the signature page. If you have any questions, contact E-Verify at 888-464-4218. 

Employer Blevins Asphalt Construction Co., Inc. 

Rick R Bekemeier 
Name (Please Type or Print) 

Electronically Signed 
Signature 

Department of Homeland Security - Verification Division 

USCIS Verification Division 
Name (Please Type or Pnnl) 

Electronically Signed 
Signature 

Page 2 of 4,E-Vei fy MOL; for E 11ployer Rev1s1or Date 1 'l 29108 

Title 

03/13/2009 
Date 

Title 

03/13/2009 
Date 

208

Item 7.



Company ID Number: 197724 

Information Required for the E-Verify Program 

Information relating to your Company: 

Company Name: Blevins Asphalt Construction Co., Inc. 

Company Facility Address: 11837 Lawrence 1163 -----------------
Mount Vernon, MO 65712 

Company Alternate 
Address: PO BOX 230 

Mount Vernon, MO 65712 

County or Parish: LAWRENCE ---------------

Employer Identification 
Number: 430964288 

North American Industry 
Classification Systems 

Code: 237 ----------------------------

Parent Company: ----------------------------

Number of Employees: 20 to 99 ----------------------------

Number of Sites Verified 
for: 1 ------~---~---~-~~----~--

Are you verifying for more than 1 site? If yes, please provide the number of sites verified for in 

each State: 

• MISSOURI site(s) 

Page 3 of 4'E-Ver-fy MOI.J for E111ployer1Rev1s1on Date 10 29108 

209

Item 7.



Company ID Number: 197724 

Information relating to the Program Administrator(s) for your Company on policy questions or 
operational problems: 

Name: Rick R Bekemeier 
Telephone Number: (417) 466 - 3758 Fax Number: (417) 466 - 7914 
E-mail Address: rbekemeier@aol.com 

Name: Susie L Osterloh 
Telephone Number: (417) 466 - 3758 Fax Number: (417) 466 - 7914 
E-mail Address : sosterloh@blevinsasphalt.com 

Page 4 of 4,E-Verify MOU for E111ployeqRev1s1or Date 10'29108 

210

Item 7.



Description Unit Bid (no Unit Bid with Quantity Required Delivered Unit Bid or 
delivery) Bulk Discount for Discount (tons) additional cost per mile 

Commercial Surface 
$ rto. ~o $ '10 . Ct,0 N /A $ N/A Mix (MODOT BP-2) 

Bituminous Base $ ~lo. io $ VJ~. io N/A- $ N/A 
MODOT BP-1 $ 10. ~o $ '10 . l:JO N l.4 $ N}A 
Cold Mix $,Jo \,:ol $ No b,· tl N o 6,·J._ $ N o b,·A_ 

please fill out all categories above you wish to put a bulk bid in for. If you do not wish to bid a certain item please enter N/ A. 

Please outline Fuel adjustment method here or attach (if choosing to do so) : 

C:Je l. A--ft~ch~~ [5c(A_,l{A...-t,•o"' Le..-ftev-

City of Republic, Missouri Company Legal Name: 
~+v~t '::kAc.. 

IFB for: Asphalt as requested 8/16/22 through 
12/31/23 

213 N Main Street 

Republic, MO 65738 

elephone: _ __,tf.......,_l 1__,__- _i=.,:(o.._'t>.........._., ...,.,.( a ...... :1-4-X-o .X..o __ _ 

Units 

per 
ton 

per 
ton 

per 
ton 

per 
ton 

ellular: ______________ Bidder' s Federal ID Number: 58 -/ t.fO / 4-{o 1 
Email: d CV('(' iv\ • \,g_ r O O V\@ °'--ftlC. · 

VVl. 

211

Item 7.



ATTACHMENT A - BID SUBMISSION FORM 

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: 

Item Description of Work Price 

• Asphalt as requested 

• All Bids to include: 

0 Travel Expenses 

0 Delivery Costs 
0 Administrative costs 

• This bid shall serve from execution, expected on August 

16th
, 2022 until December 31'\ 2023 or until superseded by 

$ Fill out Table on next 

another bid. ~ 

Base Bid Please note any of the following: 

• Any labor personnel requests of the City of Republic 
for this project. 

• Any other requests or responsibilities of the City 
of Republic for this project. 

In compliance with this Invitation for Bid and to all terms, conditions, and specifications imposed therein and hereby 
incorporated byreference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the goods and/or services described herein. 

212

Item 7.



AP AC-Central, Inc. 

August 1, 2022 

Dear City of Republic: 

*FUEL ESCALATION**(PRODUCTION) 

P.O. Box 1187 
Springfield, MO 65801 
Tel: (417) 868-6700 
Fax: (417) 868-6785 
www .apaccentralinc.com 

Diesel fuel pricing in this proposal is firm up to $4.00 / gallon. If the EIA Midwest 

(PADD 2) weekly diesel on-highway price is greater than the price per gallon mentioned 

above at time of purchase, the customer will be billed $0.66 per ton for every 

$0.25/gallon increase above $4.00 / gallon. The current EIA Midwest (PADD 2) weekly 

diesel price will be rounded up to the nearest $0.25/gallon. All diesel fuel consumption 

factors are based on MODOT fuel price factors. The link to the EIA Midwest (PADD2) 

weekly diesel price is: 

https://www.eia.gov/dnav/pet/pet pri gnd deus r20 w.htm 

**ASPHALT CEMENT** 

The asphalt cement price will be based on MODOT's index. The formula for the price 

adjustment will be: 

Asphalt Tons x Asphalt Cement % x Current Price Increase from Bid Date. 

The customer may choose to base this entire quote off the MO DOT Asphalt Cement 

Index. if so, APAC can requote the project with current pricing and all increases and/or 

decreases in the index will be billed to the customer. 

The link to MODOT's Asphalt Cement Index is: 

https://spexternal.modot.mo.gov/sites/de/Lists/AC lndex/Allltems.aspx 

Thank you for understanding the significant changes to our industry and to the global 

market. Please feel free reach out to me about any questions you may have about this 

change. 

213

Item 7.



NOTICE AND INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS/VENDORS 

Regarding Sections 285.525 through 285.550 RSMo., effective January 1, 2009, 

and Section 292.675 RSMo., effective August 28, 2009 

Effective January 1. 2009 and pursuant to Section 285.530(1) of the Revised Statutes of M issouri, " [n]o business entity 

or employer shall knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work 

within the state of Missouri." 

State law additionally provides that, as a condition for the award of any contract or grant in excess of five thousand 

dollars by the state or by any political subdivision of the state (e.g., the City of Republic) to a business entity (e.g., 

potential bidders in response to this IFB), the business entity (Company) shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of 

documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the 

employees working in connection with the contracted services. Every such business entity shall sign an affidavit affirming 

that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services. 

See§ 285.530(2), RSMo. 

Section 285.530 RSMo. pertains to all solicitations for services over $5,000, but does not apply to solicitations for goods 
only. If a solicitation is for a combination of services and goods, Section 285.530 RS Mo. applies if the services portion of 
the solicitation is over $5,000. 

214

Item 7.



1. Required Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00 (US) - Effective 1-1-2009, the company (submitting a 
Bid) shall comply with the provisions of Section 285.525 through 285.550, RSMo., which require certain 
statements to be made under penalty of perjury pertaining to employment of unauthorized aliens. The award 
of any contract under this IFB is expressly contingent on the company (submitting a Bid) providing an 
acceptable, notarized affidavit, stating as follows: 

a. that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with respect 
to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 

b. that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection 
with the contracted services. 

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et 
seq. 

2. Additionally, Company must provide documentation evidencing current enrollment in a federal work 
authorization program (e.g. electronic signature page from E-Verify Program's Memo of Understanding 
(MOU). See attached sample. 

A copy of the required affidavit is included on the following page. A digital copy of the affidavit can also 
be accessed and downloaded from the City of Republic's official website, URL address: 
https://www.republicmo.com/DocumentCenterNiew/77/Affidavit-of-Compliance-with-Section-285500-RSMO
PDF?bidld= 

The City of Republic is an E-Verify employer. The City of Republic encourages companies that are not already enrolled 
and participating in a federal work authorization program to do so. E-Verify is an example of a federal work authorization 
program. Information regarding E-Verify is available at http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify or by calling 888-464-4218. 

215

Item 7.



Affidavit of Compliance with Section 285.500, RSMo., et seq. 

for all agreements providing services in excess of $5,000.00 

Effective 1/1/2009 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF GREENE ) 

Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for the Count of llie <!kt£ , State of 
~ ~V\ ,· ~ L (Name)who is __ _ 

---"-~===,;...-~J....>...::+---'-.,--"'fL.!....' (Title) of · V\.. (Name of company), a (circle 
one corporation pa n hip, sole proprietorship, limited liability company, and is competent and authorized to make 

av1 , and 6eing duly sworn upon oath deposes and says as follows: 

(1 ) that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with 
respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and 

(2) that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in 
connection with the contracted services. 

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., et seq. 

Documentation of participation in a federal work authorization program is attached to this affidavit. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _ ___c._.J_<S_.l--___ day of A ~ U .Sf ,;)., 0 d d--. 
, 

My commission expires: ---'/_J..__,_/ -'--t _'1-+/_d_d-' __ 
I • 

{t( cm o&. ~~ 
Notary Public 

RONDA STIDHAM 
Notary Public - Notary Seal 

STATE OF MISSOURI 
Dallas County 

My Commission Expires Dec. 19, 2022 
Commission #14426247 

216

Item 7.



Company ID Number: XXXXXX 

The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between the SSA, OHS (Department of Homeland 
Security), and the Employer. 

The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enter into this Memorandum of 
Understanding on behalf of the Employer and DHS respectively. 

To be accepted as a participant in E-Verify, you should only sign the Employer's Section of the signature page. If you have 
any questions, contact E-Verify Operations at 888-464-4218. 

·c)\9 
Employer. Your Company Namer > J \ 5 5 ~ ~ 

:)!;> 

217

Item 7.



i 

Company ID Number: 165031 

lJIJ L-\'tHIIYl'IHH 'H\MH>Hf'l\11'10\M)~I \JIUIJ◄ \ 110 

ARTICLE I 

PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) sets forth the points of agreement between the 
Social Security Administration (SSA), the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) and APAC 
Central, Inc. (Employer) regarding the Employer's participation in the Employment Eligibility 
Verification Program (E-Verify). E-Verify is a program in which the employment eligibility of all 
newly hired employees will be confirmed after the Employment Eligibility Verification Form 
(Form 1-9) has been completed. 

Authority for the E-Verify program is found in Title IV, Subtitle A, of the Illegal Immigration 
Reform and Immigrant Responsibility Act of 1996 (JIRIRA), Pub. L. 104-208, 110 Stat. 3009, as 
amended (8 U.S.C. § 1324a note). 

ARTICLE II 

FUNCTIONS TO BE PERFORMED 

A. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SSA 

I. Upon completion of the Form I-9 by the employee and the Employer, and provided the 
Employer complies with the requirements of this MOU, SSA agrees to provide the Employer 
with available information that allows the Employer to confirm the accuracy of Social Security 
Numbers provided by all newly hired employees and the employment authorization of U.S. 
citizens. 

2. The SSA agrees to provide to the Employer appropriate assistance with operational 
problems that may arise during the Employer's participation in the E-Verify program. The SSA 
agrees to provide the Employer with names, titles, addresses, and telephone numbers of SSA 
representatives to be contacted during the E-Verify process. 

3. The SSA agrees to safeguard the information provided by the Employer through the E
Verify program procedures, and to limit access to such information, as is appropriate by law, to 
individuals responsible for the verification of Social Security Numbers and for evaluation of the 
E-Verify program or such other persons or entities who may be authorized by the SSA as 
governed by the Privacy Act (5 U.S.C. § 552a), the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. l 306(a)), and 
SSA regulations (20 CFR Part 40 I). 

4. SSA agrees to establish a means of automated verification that is designed (in 
conjunction with DHS's automated system if necessary) to provide confirmation or tentative 
nonconfirmation of U.S. citizens' employment eligibility and accuracy of SSA records for both 
citizens and aliens within 3 Federal Government work days of the initial inquiry. 

218

Item 7.



Company ID Number: 165031 

5. SSA agrees to establish a means of secondary verification (including updating SSA 
records as may be necessary) for employees who contest SSA tentative nonconfirmations that is 
designed to provide final confirmation or nonconfirmation of U.S. citizens' employment 
eligibility and accuracy of SSA records for both citizens and aliens within 10 Federal 
Government work days of the date of referral to SSA, unless SSA determines that more than I 0 
days may be necessary. In such cases, SSA will provide additional verification instructions. 

B. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 

I. Upon completion of the Form 1-9 by the employee and the Employer and after SSA 
verifies the accuracy of SSA records for aliens through E-Verify, DHS agrees to provide the 
Employer access to selected data from DHS's database to enable the Employer to conduct: 

• Automated verification checks on newly hired alien employees by electronic means, and 
• Photo verification checks (when available) on newly hired alien employees. 

2. DHS agrees to provide to the Employer appropriate assistance with operational problems 
that may arise during the Employer's participation in the E-Verify program. DHS agrees to 
provide the Employer names, titles, addresses, and telephone numbers of DHS representatives to 
be contacted during the E-Verify process. 

3. DHS agrees to provide to the Employer a manual (the E-Verify Manual) containing 
instructions on E-Verify policies, procedures and requirements for both SSA and DHS, including 
restrictions on the use ofE-Yerify .. DHS agrees to provide training materials on E-Yerify. 

4. DHS agrees to provide to the Employer a notice, which indicates the Employer's 
participation in the E-Verify program. DHS also agrees to provide to the Employer anti
discrimination notices issued by the Office of Special Counsel for Immigration-Related Unfair 
Employment Practices (OSC), Civil Rights Division, and U.S. Department of Justice. 

5. DHS agrees to issue the Employer a user identification number and password that permits 
the Employer to verify information provided by alien employees with DHS's database. 

6. DHS agrees to safeguard the information provided to DHS by the Employer, and to limit 
access to such information to individuals responsible for the verification of alien employment 
eligibility and for evaluation of the E-Yerify program, or to such other persons or entities as may 
be authorized by applicable law. Information will be used only to verify the accuracy of Social 
Security Numbers and employment eligibility, to enforce the Immigration and Nationality Act 
and federal criminal laws, and to ensure accurate wage reports to the SSA. 

7. DHS agrees to establish a means of automated verification that is designed (in 
conjunction with SSA verification procedures) to provide confirmation or tentative 
nonconfirmation of employees' employment eligibility within 3 Federal Government work days 
of the initial inquiry. 

219

Item 7.



Company ID Number: 165031 

8. DHS agrees to establish a means of secondary verification (including updating DHS 
records as may be necessary) for employees who contest DHS tentative nonconfirmations and 
photo non-match tentative nonconfirmations that is designed to provide final confirmation or 
nonconfirmation of the employees' employment eligibility within 10 Federal Government work 
days of the date of referral to DHS, unless DHS determines that more than 10 days may be 
necessary. In such cases, DHS w ill provide additional verification instructions. 

C. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE EMPLOYER 

I. The Employer agrees to display the notices supplied by DHS in a prominent place that is 
clearly visible to prospective employees. 

2. The Employer agrees to provide to the SSA and DHS the names, titles, addresses, and 
telephone numbers of the Employer representatives to be contacted regarding E-Yerify. 

3. The Employer agrees to become familiar with and comply with the E-Verify Manual. 

4. The Employer agrees that any Employer Representative who will perform employment 
verification queries will complete the E-Yerify Tutorial before that individual initiates any 
queries. 

A. 

B. 

The employer agrees that all employer representatives will take the refresher 
tutorials initiated by the E-Yerify program as a condition of continued use of E
Yerify. 
Failure to complete a refresher tutorial will prevent the employer from continued 
use of the program. 

5. The Employer agrees to comply with established Form 1-9 procedures, with two 
exceptions: 

• lf an employee presents a "List B" identity document, the Employer agrees to only accept 
"List B" documents that contain a photo. (List B documents identified in 8 C. F.R. § 
274a.2 (b) (I) (B)) can be presented during the Form I-9 process to establish identity). 

• If an employee presents a DHS Form 1-551 (Permanent Resident Card) or Form I-766 
(Employment Authorization Document) to complete the Form I-9, the Employer agrees 
to make a photocopy of the document and to retain the photocopy with the employee's 
Form 1-9. The employer will use the photocopy to verify the photo and to assist the 
Department with its review of photo non-matches that are contested by employees. Note 
that employees retain the right to present any List A, or List B and List C, documentation 
to complete the Form 1-9. DHS may in the future designate other documents that activate 
the photo screening tool. 

6. The Employer understands that participation in E-Yerify does not exempt the Employer 
from the responsibility to complete, retain, and make available for inspection Forms 1-9 that relate 
to its employees, or from other requirements of applicable regulations or laws, except for the 
following modified requirements applicable by reason of the Employer's participation in E
Verify: ( 1) identity documents must have photos, as described in paragraph 5 above; (2) a 

220

Item 7.



Company ID Number: 165031 

rebuttable presumption is established that the Employer has not violated section 274A(a)( 1 )(A) of 
the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA) with respect to the hiring of any individual if it 
obtains confirmation of the identity and employment eligibility of the individual in compliance 
with the terms and conditions of E-Verify ; (3) the Employer must notify OHS if it continues to 
employ any employee after receiving a final nonconfirmation, and is subject to a civil money 
penalty between $500 and $1,000 for each failure to notify OHS of continued employment 
following a final nonconfirmation; (4) the Employer is subject to a rebuttable presumption that it 
has knowingly employed an unauthorized alien in violation of section 274A(a)( 1 )(A) if the 
Employer continues to employ any employee after receiving a final nonconfirmation; and (5) no 
person or entity participating in E-Verify is civilly or criminally liable under any law for any 
action taken in good faith on information provided through the confirmation system. OHS 
reserves the right to conduct Form I-9 compliance inspections during the course of E-Verify, as 
well as to conduct any other enforcement activity authorized by law. 

7. The Employer agrees to initiate E-Verify verification procedures within 3 Employer 
business days after each employee has been hired (but after both sections I and 2 of the Form 1-9 
have been completed), and to complete as many (but only as many) steps of the E-Verify process 
as are necessary according to the E-Verify Manual. The Employer is prohibited from initiating 
verification procedures before the employee has been hired and the Form 1-9 completed. If the 
automated system to be queried is temporarily unavailable, the 3-day time period is extended 
until it is again operational in order to accommodate the Employer's attempting, in good faith, to 
make inquiries during the period of unavailability. In all cases, the Employer must use the SSA 
verification procedures first, and use OHS verification procedures and photo screening tool only 
after the the SSA verification response has been given. 

8. The Employer agrees not to use E-Verify procedures for pre-employment screening of 
job applicants, support for any unlawful employment practice, or any other use not authorized by 
this MOU. The Employer must use E-Verify for all new employees and will not verify only 
certain employees selectively. The Employer agrees not to use E-Verify procedures for re
verification, or for employees hired before the date this MOU is in effect. The Employer 
understands that if the Employer uses E-Verify procedures for any purpose other than as 
authorized by this MOU, the Employer may be subject to appropriate legal action and the 
immediate termination of its access to SSA and OHS information pursuant to this MOU. 

9. The Employer agrees to follow appropriate procedures (see Article lll.B. below) 
regarding tentative nonconfirmations, including notifying employees of the finding, providing 
written referral instructions to employees, allowing employees to contest the finding, and not 
taking adverse action against employees if they choose to contest the finding. Further, when 
employees contest a tentative nonconfirmation based upon a photo non-match, the Employer is 
required to take affirmative steps (see Article III.B. below) to contact OHS with information 
necessary to resolve the challenge. 

IO. The Employer agrees not to take any adverse action against an employee based upon the 
employee's employment eligibility status while SSA or OHS is processing the verification request 
unless the Employer obtains knowledge (as defined in 8 C.F.R. § 274a. l (1)) that the employee is 
not work authorized. The Employer understands that an initial inability of the SSA or OHS 
automated verification to verify work authorization, a tentative nonconfirmation, or the finding of 

221

Item 7.



Company ID Number: 165031 

a photo non-match, does not mean, and should not be interpreted as, an indication that the 
employee is not work authorized. In any of the cases listed above, the employee must be provided 
the opportunity to contest the finding, and if he or she does so, may not be terminated or suffer 
any adverse employment consequences until and unless secondary verification by SSA or DHS 
has been completed and a final nonconfirmation has been issued. If the employee does not choose 
to contest a tentative nonconfirmation or a photo non-match, then the Employer can find the 
employee is not work authorized and take the appropriate action. 

I I. The Employer agrees to comply with section 274B of the INA by not discriminating 
unlawfully against any individual in hiring, firing, or recruitment or referral practices because of 
his or her national origin or, in the case of a protected individual as defined in section 274B(a)(3) 
of the INA, because of his or her citizenship status. The Employer understands that such illegal 
practices can include selective verification or use of E-Yerify, discharging or refusing to hire 
eligible employees because they appear or sound "foreign", and premature termination of 
employees based upon tentative nonconfirmations, and that any violation of the unfair 
immigration-related employment practices provisions of the INA could subject the Employer to 
civil penalties pursuant to section 274B of the INA and the termination of its participation in E
Yerify. If the Employer has any questions relating to the anti-discrimination provision, it should 
contact OSC at 1-800-255-7688 or 1-800-237-2515 (TDD). 

12. The Employer agrees to record the case verification number on the employee's Form I-9 
or to print the screen containing the case verification number and attach it to the employee's Form 
I-9. 

13. The Employer agrees that it w ill use the information it receives from the SSA or OHS 
pursuant to E-Yerify and this MOU only to confirm the employment eligibility of newly-hired 
employees after completion of the Form 1-9. The Employer agrees that it will safeguard this 
information, and means of access to it (such as PINS and passwords) to ensure that it is not used 
for any other purpose and as necessary to protect its confidentiality, including ensuring that it is 
not disseminated to any person other than employees of the Employer who are authorized to 
perform the Employer's responsibilities under this MOU. 

14. The Employer acknowledges that the information which it receives from SSA is 
governed by the Privacy Act (5 U.S.C. § 552a (i) (I) and (3)) and the Social Security Act (42 
U.S.C. I 306(a)), and that any person who obtains this information under false pretenses or uses it 
for any purpose other than as provided for in this MOU may be subject to criminal penalties. 

15. The Employer agrees to allow OHS and SSA, or their authorized agents or designees, to 
make periodic visits to the Employer for the purpose of reviewing E-Verify -related records, i.e., 
Forms 1-9, SSA Transaction Records, and OHS verification records, which were created during 
the Employer's participation in the E-Verify Program. In addition, for the purpose of evaluating 
E-Verify, the Employer agrees to allow DHS and SSA or their authorized agents or designees, to 
interview it regarding its experience with E-Yerify, to interview employees hired during E-Yerify 
use concerning their experience with the pilot, and to make employment and E-Yerify related 
records available to OHS and the SSA, or their designated agents or designees. Failure to comply 
with the terms of this paragraph may lead OHS to terminate the Employer' s access to E-Yerify. 

222

Item 7.



Company ID Number: 165031 

ARTICLE III 

REFERRAL OF INDIVIDUALS TO THE SSA AND THE DEPARTMENT OF 
HOMELAND SECURITY 

A. REFERRAL TO THE SSA 

I. If the Employer receives a tentative nonconfirmation issued by SSA, the Employer must 
print the tentative nonconfirmation notice as directed by the automated system and provide it to 
the employee so that the employee may determine whether he or she will contest the tentative 
nonconfirmation. 

2. The Employer will refer employees to SSA field offices only as directed by the 
automated system based on a tentative nonconfirmation, and only after the Employer records the 
case verification number, reviews the input to detect any transaction errors, and determines that 
the employee contests the tentative nonconfirmation. The Employer will transmit the Social 
Security Number to SSA for verification again if this review indicates a need to do so. The 
Employer will determine whether the employee contests the tentative nonconfirmation as soon as 
possible after the Employer receives it. 

3. ff the employee contests an SSA tentative nonconfirmation, the Employer will provide 
the employee with a referral letter and instruct the employee to visit an SSA office to resolve the 
discrepancy within 8 Federal Government work days. The Employer will make a second inquiry 
to the SSA database using E-Verify procedures on the date that is IO Federal Government work 
days after the date of the referral in order to obtain confirmation, or final nonconfirmation, unless 
otherwise instructed by SSA or unless SSA determines that more than IO days is necessary to 
resolve the tentative nonconfirmation .. 

4. The Employer agrees not to ask the employee to obtain a printout from the Social 
Security Number database (the Numident) or other written verification of the Social Security 
Number from the SSA. 

B. REFERRAL TO THE DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 

l. If the Employer receives a tentative nonconfirmation issued by DHS, the Employer must 
print the tentative nonconfirmation notice as directed by the automated system and provide it to 
the employee so that the employee may determine whether he or she will contest the tentative 
nonconfirmation. 

2. If the Employer finds a photo non-match for an alien who provides a document for which 
the automated system has transmitted a photo, the employer must print the photo non-match 
tentative nonconfirmation notice as directed by the automated system and provide it to the 
employee so that the employee may determine whether he or she will contest the finding. 

3. The Employer agrees to refer individuals to DHS only when the employee chooses to 
contest a tentative nonconfirmation received from DHS automated verification process or when 

223

Item 7.



Company ID Number: 165031 

the Employer issues a tentative nonconfirmation based upon a photo non-match. The Employer 
will determine whether the employee contests the tentative nonconfirmation as soon as possible 
after the Employer receives it. 

4. If the employee contests a tentative nonconfirmation issued by OHS, the Employer will 
provide the employee with a referral letter and instruct the employee to contact the Department 
through its toll-free hotline within 8 Federal Government work days. 

5. If the employee contests a tentative nonconfirmation based upon a photo non-match, the 
Employer will provide the employee with a referral letter to OHS. OHS will electronically 
transmit the result of the referral to the Employer within IO Federal Government work days of the 
referral unless it determines that more than IO days is necessary. 

6. The Employer agrees that if an employee contests a tentative nonconfirmation based 
upon a photo non-match, the Employer will send a copy of the employee's Form 1-551 or Form 1-
766 to OHS for review by: 

• Scanning and uploading the document, or 
• Sending a photocopy of the document by an express mail account (furnished and paid for 

by OHS). 

7. The Employer understands that if it cannot determine whether there is a photo 
match/non-match, the Employer is required to forward the employee's documentation to OHS by 
scanning and uploading, or by sending the document as described in the preceding paragraph, and 
resolving the case as specified by the Immigration Services Verifier at OHS who will determine 
the photo match or non-match. 

ARTICLE IV 

SERVICE PROVISIONS 

The SSA and OHS will not charge the Employer for verification services performed under this 
MOU. The Employer is responsible for providing equipment needed to make inquiries. To access 
the E-Yerify System, an Employer will need a personal computer with Internet access. 

ARTICLE V 

PARTIES 

This MOU is effective upon the signature of all parties, and shall continue in effect for as long as 
the SSA and OHS conduct the E-Yerify program unless modified in writing by the mutual 
consent of all parties, or terminated by any party upon 30 days prior written notice to the others. 
Any and all system enhancements to the E-Yerify program by OHS or SSA, including but not 
limited to the E-Yerify checking against additional data sources and instituting new verification 
procedures, will be covered un8er this MOU and will not cause the need for a supplemental MOU 
that outlines these changes. OHS agrees to train employers on all changes made to E-Verify 
through the use of mandatory refresher tutorials and updates to the E-Yerify manual. Even 

224

Item 7.



Company ID Number: 165031 

without changes to E-Verify, the Department reserves the right to require employers to take 
mandatory refresher tutorials. 

Termination by any party shall terminate the MOU as to all parties. The SSA or OHS may 
terminate this MOU without prior notice if deemed necessary because of the requirements of law 
or policy, or upon a determination by SSA or OHS that there has been a breach of system 
integrity or security by the Employer, or a failure on the part of the Employer to comply with 
established procedures or legal requirements. Some or all SSA and OHS responsibilities under 
this MOU may be performed by contractor(s), and SSA and OHS may adjust verification 
responsibilities between each other as they may determine. 

Nothing in this MOU is intended, or should be construed, to create any right or benefit, 
substantive or procedural, enforceable at law by any third party against the United States, its 
agencies, officers, or employees, or against the Employer, its agents, officers, or employees. 

Each party shall be solely responsible for defending any claim or action against it arising out of or 
related to E-Verify or this MOU, whether civil or criminal, and for any liability wherefrom, 
including (but not limited to) any dispute between the Employer and any other person or entity 
regarding the applicability of Section 403( d) of IIRIRA to any action taken or allegedly taken by 
the Employer. 

The employer understands that the fact of its participation in E-Verify is not confidential 
information and may be disclosed as authorized or required by law and OHS or SSA policy, 
including but not limited to, Congressional oversight, E-Verify publicity and media inquiries, 
and responses to inquiries under the Freedom oflnformation Act (FOIA). 

The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between the SSA, OHS, and the 
Employer. 

The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enter into 
this MOU on behalf of the Employer and OHS respectively. 

To be accepted as a participant in E-Verify, you should only sign the Employer's Section of 
the signature page. If you have any questions, contact E-Verify Operations at 888-464-
4218. 

Employer AP AC Central, Inc. 

Evans F Richard 

Name (Please type or print) 

Electronical(v Signed 

Signature 

Title 

11/18/2008 

Date 

Department of Homeland Security- Verification Division 

225

Item 7.



Company ID Number: 165031 

USCIS Verification Division 

Name (Please type or print) 

Electronical(v Signed 

Signature 

Title 

11/18/2008 

Date 

226

Item 7.



Company ID Number: 165031 

INFORMATION REQUIRED 
FOR THEE-VERIFY PROGRAM 

Information relating to your Company: 

Company Name: APAC Central, Inc. 

Company Facility Address: 755 E Millsap 
Fayetteville, AR 72703 

Company Alternate Address: P.O. Box 9208 

Fayetteville, AR 72703 

County or Parish: ..;.W.;.;;A.;..S;;;,;H;.;;.;.;IN..;..G~T..::O.;..N,;.._ ___________________ _ 

Employer Identification Number: 581401469 
...;;..;;."'---'.;...;.;;.;_., ____________________ _ 

North American Industry 
Classification Systems Code: 237 ---'-------------------------
Parent Company: 

Number of Employees: 

500 to 
999 Number of S ites Verified for: 3 

Are you verifying for more than I site? If yes, please provide the number of sites verified for in each State. 

• 
• 

ARKANSAS 
OKLAHOMA 

2 site(s) 
site(s) 

Information relating to the Program Administrator(s) fo r your Company on policy questions or operational problems: 

Name: 
Telephone Number: 
E-mail Address: 

Name: 
Telephone Number: 
E-mail Address: 

Name: 
Telephone Number: 
E-mail Address: 

Name: 

Arianna Heras 
(479) 788 - 6365 
arianna.heras@apac.com 

Betancourt Erica 
(479) 587 - 3339 
erica.betancourt@apac.com 

Jeanette Morgans 
(918) 556 - 2249 
jeanette.morgans@apac.com 

Evans F Richard 

Fax Number: 

Fax Number: (479) 443 - 4018 

Fax Number: 

227

Item 7.



Company ID Number: 165031 

Telephone Number: (479) 587 - 3356 Fax Number: (479) 443 - 4018 
E-mail Address: richard.evans@apac.com 

228

Item 7.



a https /e··,entv.uscis.gov'en p ... a C 

E-Verify 
Employment Eligibility Verification 

Click any G for heJp 

Home 

New Case 

View Cases 

Search Cases 

My Profile 

Edit Profile 

Change Password 

Change Secumy Questions 

My Comp;:my 

Edrt Company Profile 

Add New User 

View Eiusling Users 

Close Company Accoonl 

My Reports 

View Reports 

My Resources 

View Essential Resources 

Take Tutonal 

Company Information 

Company Name: 

Company 10 Number: 

Doing Business As (OBA) 
Name: 

DUNS Number: 

Physical Location: 

Address 1: 

Address 2: 

City: 

State: 

Zlp Code: 

County: 

Additional Information: 

WC"lcome 

Evans Richard 

APAC Central. Inc. 

165031 

755 E Millsap 

Fayetteville 

AR 

72703 

WASHINGTON 

View User Manual Employer Identification Number: 581401469 

Share Ideas Total Number of Employees: 1.000 to 2,499 

Contact Us 
Parent Organization: APAC-Holdlngs. Inc. 
Administrator: 

Organization Designation: 

User IO LHI l ogin 

ERIC2148 09·3S AM • 03/0117016 LogOul 

Mailing Address: 

Address 1: P.O. Box 9208 

Address 2: 

City: Fayetteville 

State: AR 

Zip Code: 72703 

View / Edit 

229

Item 7.



M I ~ htt.ps•t/e -, er.fy.uscis.g.ov.'ert p • a C, _Qjinterchange 

View Essential Resources 

Take Tutorial 

View User Manual 

Share Ideas 

Contact Us 

Additional Information: 

Employer Identification Number: 581401469 

Total Number of Employees: 1,000 to 2.499 

Parent OrganJzaUon: APAC-Holdlngs. Inc. 

Administrator: 

Organization Designation: 

Employer Category: Federal Contractor 'With FAR E-Verify Clause 
Federal Contractor Category: 

Employees being verified: 

NAICS Code: 237 - HEAVY AND CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION 

Total Hiring Sites: 4 

Total Points of Contact: 5 

View MOU 

View / Edit 

View , Edit 

View/Edit 

u .s Depanment of Homeland 5ecuflly - www.<ffls gov U S. cttlZensl'llp and lmmlgratloo Services - www.UScis.gov Enat>te Permattel'lt TOOfUl)s ~bitity OOYi'lllOa<J Viewers 

230

Item 7.



~ http~ '/e Vt'nf.r.USciS.90V/e<l J) .,. fi (j £!}interchange 

E-Verify 
Employment Eligibility Verification 

Cbck any G for help 

Home Hiring Sites 

We.kome 1.t, .. , 10 Lall lOj!ln 

Evans R ichard ERIC2t48 09 35 AM - 03/01/2016 Log Out 

New Case 

Viev,Cases 

Search Cases 

@ You are verifying for multiple sites at your location. List the number of hiring sites by state for which 

your company vtill be performing verifications. 

My Profile 

Edit Profile 

Change Password 

Change Secunty Questions 

My Comp3ny 

Edrt Company Profile 

Add New User 

Vtew Existing Users 

Close Company Account 

My Reports 

View Reports 

My Resources 

View Essentaal Resources 

Take Tutorial 

View User Manual 

Share Ideas 

Contad Us 

Previous Next 

~ ; ----. St.lte : NumbuofH1r1ng SrtH :: 

I ~ I ARKANSAS 

I ~ I MISSOURI 

, ~ I OKl.AHOMA 

2 

Previous Next 

u .s Department of Homeland securtty • www.dtls.gov U.S. CitiZensfllp anCI lrnmigratlOn Servk:e5. www.uscls.gov Enable Permanent TOOClps Accessibility DownlOa<l Viewers 

231

Item 7.



~ https event, uscis.gov/ f!ri p - Q ~ S!Jinterchange 

E-Verify. 
Employment Eligibility Verification 

Clld< any G for help -~~--
Home 

My C.Jses 
Points of Contact Summary List 

Previous Next 

Welcome 

Evans R1ch3rd 
UacdO 
ERIC2148 

LHI login 

09 35 AM· 03!0112016 Log Out 

New Case 

View Cases 

Search Cases 

l.Ewtl ~1 
g._m i .----. First N.lme ~ Last N.1me ~ Middr. Name ~ Phone Number ~ Fax Num~r ~ E-mail Address ~ 

My Profile 

Edit Profile 

Change Password 

Change Secuoty Questions 

My Comp.Jny 

Edrt Company Profile 

Add New User 

View Ex1shng Users 

Close Company A a:ou:nt 

My Reports 

View Reports 

My Resources 

View EssentJal Resou~ 

Take Tutorial 

View User Manual 

Share Ideas 

Contact Us 

jEditj Delete I 
if.ml! ~, 
lfgjll ~, 
IEJml ~, 
Previous Next 

< 

u s . Department of HOmeland Secunty • www <ms.gov 

Betancourt Errca 

Evans Richard F 

Debra Moms K 

Lisa Chapman L 

Kevm Farmer R 

Cancel 

(479} 587 . 33l9 (479) 443 . 4018 enca.betancourt@apac 

(479) 587 • 3356 (479) 684 • 5402 ncnard evans@apac co1 

(479) 788 • 6365 (479) 684. 5402 de.bra moms@apac.corr 

(918) 556. 2236 (918) 828. 4643 l1sa chapman@apaccor 

(417) 868. 6714 (417) 868. 7064 kev,nfarmer@apac corr 

> 

Save & Continue 

Enable Permanellt Toortips AcceSSibihty Download Vlewe(S 

232

Item 7.



City of Republic, Missouri 

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH INVITATION FOR BID 

To be submitted with all Bids in response to this IFB 

.){._we DO NOT take exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements. 

__ We TAKE exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements as follows: 

I have carefully examined the Invitation for Bid and agree to abide by all submitted pricing, delivery, terms and 
conditions of this IFB unless otherwise stipulated herein. 

(Authorize 

Company Address H..J'---'-''--=----'-"'~-----'-..,___,_<--::----

0 

Telephone Number 4/ 1 .,, ~~~, ~7 OD 
j Ca 2 - 0 t cg , 

Fax Number 411 · ~8< (p::1 5---

Date _ _ 2-l.,,,LJ-/ _.__1 /,._,;)~ ,;)., ____ _ _ _ _ 

Offeror acknowledges receipt of the following addendum: 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Addendum No. 

Email d a...rrr:,·f"I . bfe5m@ C-t. pC{.c, t-Om 

Federal Tax ID No. 5 i - / 4 0 f L/-{p q 
DBE Vendor (Yes/ No}: N 0 Minority Owned: _ _ 

Women Owned: 
Veteran Owned: 

233

Item 7.



City of Republic, Missouri 

STATEMENT OF "NO PROPOSAL"/ "NO BID" 

RETURN THIS PAGE ONLY IF YOUR COMPANY PROVIDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVICES BEING BID AND DECLINES TO DO SO. 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE DECLINED TO BID ON YOUR IFB FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON(S): 

_____ SPECIFICATIONS ARE TOO "TIGHT," I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER 

ONLY(PLEASE EXPLAIN IN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW). 

_____ INSUFFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID. 

_____ OUR PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PERFORM. 

_____ UNABLE TO MEET SPECIFICATIONS. 

_____ UNABLE TO MEET INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. 

_____ SPECIFICATIONS UNCLEAR (PLEASE EXPLAIN IN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW). 

_____ OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY IN THE "REMARKS" SECTION BELOW). 

REMARKS: 

COMPANY NAME: _ __________________ _ 

ADDRESS: _______ _______________ _ 

TITLE: _______________________ _ 

SIGNATURE: _____________________ _ 

TELEPHONE NUMBER: __________________ _ 

DATE: --------

234

Item 7.



State of Missouri 
EXEMPTION FROM MISSOURI SALES AND USE TAX ON PURCHASES 

Replace this page with pdf of tax exempt form 

Issued to : 

CITY OF REPUBLIC 
213 N . MAIN AVENUE REPUBLIC , MO 65738 

Missouri Tax ID Number : 12 4 92990 
Effective Date : 

07/11/2002 

Your application for sales/use tax exempt status has been 
approved, p u rsuant to Section 144 . 030 . 1 , RSMo . This letter is 
issued as documentation of your exempt status . 

Purchases by your Agency are not subject to sales or use 
taxif within the conduct of your Agency ' s exempt functions 
and activities . When purchasing with t his exemption , 
furnishall sellers or vendors a copy of this letter. This 
exemptionmay not be used by individuals making personal 
purchases . 

A contractor may purchase and pay for construction materials 
exemptfrom sales tax when fulfilling a contract with your Agency 
only if your Agency issues a project exemption certificate and 
thecontractor makes purchases in compliance wi t h the provisions of 
Section 144.062 , RSMo . 

Sales by your Agency are subject to all applicable state 
and local sales taxes . If you engage in the business of 
selling tangible personal property o r taxable services at 
retail , you must obtain a Missouri Retail Sales Tax License 
and collect andremit sales tax. 

This is a continuing exemption subject to l egislative 
changes and r eview by the Director of Revenue . If your 
Agency ceases to qualify as an exempt entity , this 
exempt i on will cease to bevalid . This exemption is not 
assignable or transferable . 

It is an exemption from sales and use taxes only and is not 
an exemption from real or personal p r operty tax . 

Any alteration to this exemption letter renders it invalid . 

If you have any questions regarding the use of this letter , 
pleasecontact the Division of Taxation and Collection , P . O . Box 
3300 , Jefferson City , MO 65105-3300 , phone 573-751-2836 . 

!PIU JO) 

235

Item 7.



MISSOURI PROJECT EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE 

Authorization for Purchasing Construction Materials for Tax Exempt Project 
(The Form and Content of this Exemption Certificate have been approved by the Missouri Department of 

Revenue) 

EXEMPT ENTITY ISSUING CERTIFICATE 
Name: City of Republic, Missouri 
Address: 213 N. Main Avenue 
City/State/Zip: Republic, Missouri 65738 

MO Tax Exempt l.D. #: 12492990 
Contract Date: 
Contract#: -------
Project Description: _______ _ 

Project Location: --------
Project Completion Date: _________ _ 
Auth. Signature: _____________ _ 
Date: 

Letter Effective Date: 
Certificate Expiration Date: 
Revised Expiration Date: 

The Missouri exempt entity named above hereby authorizes the purchase, without sales tax, of tangible personal 
propertyto be incorporated or consumed in the construction of the project identified herein and no other, pursuant to 
Section 144.62, RSMo. 

PURCHASING CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR 
Name: ______________________ _ 

Address: _____________________ _ 

City/State/Zip: __________________ _ 

INSTRUCTIONS 

EXEMPT ENTITY - A signed copy of this certificate, along with your MO Tax Exemption Letter, must be furnished 
to each contractor and/or subcontractor who will be purchasing tangible personal property for use in the project. It is 
the exempt entity ' s responsibility to ensure the validity of the certificate. You must issue a certificate with a Revised 
Expiration Date if purchases will be required to complete the project beyond the original Project Exemption Date. 

CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR - The contractor shall furnish a completed copy of this exemption 
certificate, along with a copy of the exempt entity's MO Tax Exemption Letter, to all subcontractors, and any contractor 
or subcontractor purchasing materials shall present copies of such documents to all material suppliers as authorization 
to purchase, on behalf of the exempt entity, all tangible personal property and materials to be incorporated or consumed 
in the construction of that project and no other on a tax-exempt basis. A copy of each certificate must be retained by the 
purchaser for a period of five years. 

MATERIAL SUPPLIER-A completed copy of this exemption certificate, along with the MO Tax Exemption Letter 
of the exempt entity contracting for the project, must be obtained from the contractor or subcontractor making purchases 
of tangible personal property for use in the project, and retained for audit purposes. Invoices issued for such purchases 
must reflect the name of the exempt entity and the project number assigned by the exempt entity shown above. 

236

Item 7.



THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS 

A/A Document A310 

Bid Bond 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we APAC-Central, Inc. 

as Principal, hereinafter called the Principal, and Federal Insurance Company 

a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Indiana 
as Surety, hereinafter called the Surety, are held and firmly bound unto City of Republic, Missouri 

as Obligee, hereinafter called the Obligee, in the sum of Ten Percent of Amount Bid 

. Dollars ($10%), 
for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, the said Principal and the said Surety, bind ourselves, our 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

WHEREAS, the Principal has submitted a bid for Asphalt as Requested for the Remainder of 2022 & through 2023 

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Obligee shall accept the bid of the Principal and the Principal shall enter into a Contract 
with the Obligee in accordance with the terms of such bid, and give such bond or bonds as may be specified in the 
bidding or Contract Documents with good and sufficient surety for the faithful performance of such Contract and for 
the prompt payment of labor and material furnished in the prosecution thereof, or in the event of the failure of the 
Principal to enter such Contract and give such bond or bonds, if the Principal shall pay to the Obligee the difference 
not to exceed the penalty hereof between the amount specified in said bid and such larger amount for which the 
Obligee may in good faith contract with another party to perform the Work covered by said bid, then this obligation 
shall be null and void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect. 

Signed and sealed this 1st day of August, 2022. 

(Witness) 
{ 

(Witness) 
{ 

AIA DOCUMENT A310 • BID BOND • AIA • • FEBRUARY 1970 ED • THE AMERICAN 

INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS, 1735 N.Y. AVE., N.W., WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 

APAC-Central, Inc. 
(Principal) 

#~---
Michael J. Eshleman (Title) Vice President 

Federal Insurance Company 
ty) 

(Title) Attorney-In-Fact 

(Seal) 

(Seal) 

1 -

237

Item 7.



CHUl39. 
Power of Attorney 
Federal Insurance Company\ Vigilant Insurance Company I Pacific Indemnity Company 

Know All by These Presents, That FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, an Indiana corporation, VIGILANT INSURANCE COMPANY, a New York corporation, and PACIFIC 
INDEMNITY COMPANY, a Wisconsin corporation, do each hereby constitute and appoint Brandon Lefevre, Murry E. Cline, Michael J. Dugan, James Hawkins, 
Michael Marshall and John Wiles of Fayetteville, Arkansas; Doug Fronick and Michael J. Eshleman of Springfield, Missouri; Kristopher McClanahan 
and Joshua W. Davis of Tulsa, Oklahoma -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

each as their true and lawful Attorney-in-Fact to execute under such designation in their names and to affix their corporate seals to and deliver for and on their behalf as surety 
thereon or otherwise, bid bonds and bid undertakings not to exceed $ 1,000,000.00 (One Million dollars & zero cents) given or executed in the course of business, but not to 
include any instruments amending or altering the same nor consents to the modification or alteration of any instrument referred to in said bonds or obligations, on behalf of 
APAC CENTRAL, INC. and all Subsidiaries, as principal, in connection with bids or proposals to or with the United States of America, any State or political subdivision thereof or 
any person, firm or corporation. And the execution of such bid bonds or bid undertakings by such Attorney-in-Fact in the Company's name and on its behalf as surety thereon or 
otherwise, under its corporate seal, in pursuance of the authority hereby conferred shall, upon delivery thereof, be valid and binding upon the Company. 

In Wlmess Whereof, said FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, VIGILANT INSURANCE COMPANY. and PACIFIC INDEMNITY COMPANY have each executed and attested these 
presents and affixed their corpor.ite seals on this 4"' day of June, 2019. 

Dawn M. Ch loros, Assist:111 I Secret:iry S1cphcn M. 1-1:lncy. Vice Prc,sidcnr 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

County of Hunterdon ss. 

On this 4"' day of June, 2019, before me, a Notary Public of New Jersey, personally came Dawn M. Chloros, to me known to be Assistant Secretary of FEDERAL INSURANCE 
COMPANY, VIGILANT INSURANCE COMPANY, and PACIFIC INDEMNITY COMPANY, the companies which executed the foregoing Power of Attorney, and the said Dawn M. 
Chloros, being by me duly sworn, did depose and say that she is Assistant Secretary of FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, VIGILANT INSURANCE COMPANY, and PACIFIC 
INDEMNITY COMPANY and knows the corpor.ite seals thereof, that the seals affixed to the foregoing Power of Attorney are such corporate seals and were thereto affixed by 
authority of said Companies: and that she signed said Power of Attorney as Assistant Secretary of said Companies by like authority; and that she is acquainted with Stephen M. 
Haney, and knows him to be Vice President of said Companies: and that the signature of Stephen M. Haney, subscribed to said Power of Attorney is in the genuine handwriting of 
Stephen M. Haney, and was thereto subscribed by authority of said Companies and in deponent's presence. 

Notarial Seal ROSE CURTIS 
IK>TARY PUBLIC OF NEW JERSEY 

"""-50072400 
~ E>ot'9- 22, 2022 

\r>1ary Pulfa· 

CERTIFICATION 
n~,viu,iuns adopted by the Boards ofDireltors of FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, VIGILANT INSURANCE COMPANY, and PACIFIC INDEM NITY COMPANY on August 30, 2016: 

"RESOLVED, _chat the following authorizations relate to the execution. for and on behalf of the Company, of bonds. undertakings, recognizances, contracts and other written commitments of the Company 
entered mto m the ordinary course of business (each a ·written Commitment"): 

(I) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

Each of the Chairman, the President and the Vice Presidents of the Company is hereby authorized to execute any Written Commitment for and on behalf of the Company. under the 
seal of the Company or otherwise. 

Each duly appointed attorney-in-fact of the Company is hereby authorized to execute any Written Commitment for and on behalf of the Company, under the seal of the Company or 
otherwise, to the extent that such action is authorized by the grant of powers provided for in such person"s written appointment as such attorney-in-fact. 

Each of the Chairman, the President and the Vice Presidents of the Company is hereby authorized. for and on behalf of the Company. to appoint in writing any person the attorney
in-fact of the Company with full power and authori ty to execute. for and on behalf of the Company. under the seal of the Company or otherwise, such Written Commitments of the 
Company as may be specified in such written appointment. which specification may be by general type or class of Written Commitments or by specification of one or more particular 

Written Commitments. 

Each of the Chairman. the President and the Vice Presidents of the Company is hereby authorized. for and on behalf of the Company. to delegate in writing to any other officer of the 
Company the authority ro execute. for and on behalf of the Company. under the Company's seal or otherwise, such Written Commitments of the Company as are specified in such 
written delegation, which specification may be by gener.il type or class of Written Commitments or by specification of one or more particular Written Commitments. 

(5) The signature of any officer or other person executing any Written Commitment or appointment or delegation pursuant to this Resolution, and the seal of the Company, may be atlixed by 
facsimile on such Written Commitment or written appointment or delegation. 

FURTHER RESOLVED. that the foregoing Resolution shall nor be deemed to be an exclusive statement of the powers and authority of officers. employees and other persons to act for and on behalf of 
the Company. and such Resolution shall not limit or otherwise afl'ect the exercise of any such power or authority othenvise validly granted or vested." 

I, Dawn M. Chloros, Assistant Secretary of FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, VIGILANT INSURANCE COMPANY. and PACIFIC INDEMNITY COMPANY (the "Companies") do hereby 
certify that 

(i) the foregoing Resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors of the Companies are true, correct and in full force and effect, 
(ii) the foregoing Power of Attorney is true, correct and in full force and effect. 

Given under my hand and seals of said Companies at Whitehouse Station, NJ, this 1st day of August, 2022. 

C)~ '{1\. ~'~ 
[bwn M. Ch Ion:~. 1\ ssist:1111 S..x:rei;trf . 

IN THE EVENT YOU WISH TO VERIFY THE illJl'HENTICITY OF THIS BOND OR NOTIFY US OF ANY OTHER MA"ITER, PLEASE CONTACT US AT, 
Tele hone (908) 903- 3493 Fax (908) 903-3656 e-mail, sure @chubb.com 

APAC PROGRAM POA-FED- VIG-Pl (rev 08-18) 238

Item 7.



SURETY ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

ST ATE OF MISSOURI 

COUNTY OF GREENE 

On this 1st day of August, 2022, before me personally came Douglas Fronick to me 
known, who, being by me duly sworn, did depose and say that he is an Attorney-In
Fact of FEDERAL INSURANCE COMP ANY the corporation described in and 
which executed the within instrument; that he knows the corporate seal of said 
corporation, that the seal affixed to the within instrument is such corporate seal, 
and that he signed the said instrument and affixed the said seal as Attorney-In-Fact 
of the Board of Directors of said corporation and by authority of this office under 
the Standing Resolutions thereof. 

Notary Public 

RONDA STIDHAM 
Notary Public - NotaryRSea

1 
I 

STATE OF MISSOU 
Dallas County 

My Commission Expires Dec. 19, 2022 
commission #1~26247 

239

Item 7.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 22-48 An Ordinance of the City Council Amending Bill No. 21-65  to 
Authorize Execution of a Revised Intergovernmental Agreement with 
Missouri Department of Social Services Family Support Division for the 
Low Income Household Water Assistance Program. 

Submitted By: Meghin Cook, Finance Director  

Kyle Sutton, Finance Manager 

Date: August 16, 2022 
 

Issue Statement 

To authorize the execution of a revised agreement with the Missouri Department of Social Services Family 

Support Division for the Low-Income Household Water Assistance Program for utility customers. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City of Republic approved an agreement with the Missouri Department of Social Services for the Low-

Income Household Water Assistance Program Supplier Agreement (LIHWAP) on October 19, 2021. However, 

Missouri Department of Social Services has since changed the agreement to amend section 4.2 of the 

document. Therefore, they need a revised agreement signed before they can issue further payments for the 

program. The changes are listed below:  

Original: 

“If the Supplier fails to return a CEL within a thirty (30) calendar day timeframe, direct payments will be made 

on behalf of all customers who appeared on said listing.” 

Revised: 

“If the Supplier notifies the Department that they cannot accept payment on behalf of a particular eligible 

customer for reasons other than those stipulated in this agreement, or the Supplier fails to return a CEL 

within a thirty (30) calendar day timeframe, no payment will be made by the Department on behalf of the 

eligible customer.” 

Originally the Department of Social Services could make direct payments to individuals if the billing company 

did not apply the credit to their bill correctly. That portion was removed, and it was restated so that no 

payments will be made if they are not accepted by the billing company.  

Recommended Action 

City staff recommends approval.  

240

Item 8.



BILL NO. 22-48  ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-48  ORDINANCE NO. 22- 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL AMENDING BILL NO. 21-65 TO AUTHORIZE EXECUTION OF A 
REVISED INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES 
FAMILY SUPPORT DIVISION FOR THE LOW INCOME HOUSEHOLD WATER ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 26, 2021, via Bill No. 21-65, the Council authorized the City Administrator 
to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Missouri Department of Social Services-Family 
Support Division (“DSS”), to govern funds for low-income households to have access to drinking and 
wastewater services (“IGA”); and    

 
WHEREAS, following the passage of Bill No. 21-65 but prior to executing the IGA, DSS proposed 

revisions to a material term of the IGA pertaining to method of payments (“Revised IGA”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has no objection to the revision in the Revised IGA and wishes to proceed 

with executing the same; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council finds the Revised IGA is fair and reasonable and in the best interest of 

the City, as it will not only benefit low-income households within Republic, but additionally the 
community citizenship as a whole.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, 
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The City Administrator or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized 
to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the Missouri Department of 
Social Services Family Support Division in substantially the same form as the   
“Low Income Household Water Assistance Program Supplier Agreement 
Between Missouri Department of Social Services Family Support Division and 
Water/Wastewater Suppliers,” attached hereto as Exhibit 1.  

 
Section 2: The City Administrator or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized 

to take the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance. 
 
Section 3: The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
  
Section 4:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof are   

declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall 
not affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 
Section 5: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, this __________ day of __________________, 2022. 
 

241

Item 8.



BILL NO. 22-48  ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-48  ORDINANCE NO. 22- 
 

 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 

 

242

Item 8.



�������������	�
	
�����������	������
���	��	����������������������	������
������	���	��	����	��	����	���	����	�	��������	�������	��
	���
	����
	�����
	���������
 ����
!	����	�
��	"�#����
	��
��$�	%�������
���	��&����	������	���	�����	$��	��	'()*�**�������	���	����	����+

,-./012-34	5-3467849	:;;<;87124=9->973	?,056:=@ABCD	EF	GHIAJKL
MNOFDEPQFLR������	���
	�����	����
�����	�$����	��DEQSNTUVWPXYGHIZJK[C\OQWEOF	��
	]���������
	#����	XŜFFVXPV\P_YNDEUEDS[CFFEFDCQWO	��
��
�	����
�������	

�
�	
����������	��
	�����$	���	���������	��
���
	�����
�	�	̀�����
�	
��������
�	�	a�%�	����b��	�
	��#�	����	��$������������	��
	��
������	
����������#�	'cd***	�
	����	��	���
	���ed	
���
�����d�
	��#�������	��������`���	���	������	$���������	������	�����+
f��	���	��	���$����	��
	����	��	���+	JX	H	OUE\EgUOL

��&����
�	����	���	��
#����	�
�	�#�������	����
�]����	��	����#������	����	�������������	���f+	h**�(c)�ijkkd	l����	̀�����
�+	(mm�

n opqpnn oprqstnptusr opqvwnotqsxnouqpspouqwtposqrnp otuqrwuoupqvsvosnqypnoswqnvuorxqtuv
zOCTUS	HQWPXOIPNFOBPÛ	{E|O }PQDBUS	HQWPXOABOQ	~EUU	H	\OD	XS	gOQO�EDL����	���	������	���
	�����������	���	
�]��
�����������d	���
	�����������	����	��	
�#�����	�������	c*	��������	�����	f��	����	
����#�	�	�����
��	���	����	����	�����	���	��	���	]������	��
	�������	���	������	���	����	$���	

IP~	̂P	H	C��USL�����	������	��	XŜFFVXPV\P_YNDEUEDS[CFFEFDCQWO		�
	����	vss[txt[urtr	��	��e	�	����	�����
	��	�������	��	������������f��	����	����	��	������	���
	��������������������	��	���
	�����	����
���	�$����	������	�����	����	��$�	��	���	������	������������
243

Item 8.



 

Revised 9/27/21  Page 1  

ER110SW________ 
LOW INCOME HOUSEHOLD WATER ASSISTANCE PROGRAM  

SUPPLIER AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN 

MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES 
FAMILY SUPPORT DIVISION 

And 
WATER/WASTERWATER SUPPLIERS 

1. Purpose 
1.1 This agreement, made by and between the Department of Social Services, Family Support Division 

(hereinafter referred to as the Department) and the Home Water/Wastewater Supplier stated below, 
(hereinafter referred to as the Supplier) shall be as follows: 

 
                                                                                 _____________________________________ 

(Name of Company) 

1.2 Missouri’s Low Income Household Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP) is authorized under Section 

553 Title V of Division H of the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021, Public Law No: 116-260. 

Consistent with legislative instructions, program requirements use existing processes, procedures, and 

policies currently in place to provide assistance to low-income households. In particular, Office of 

Community Services (OCS) has closely modeled the LIHWAP terms and conditions on assurances and 

requirements outlined in the Low Income Household Energy Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. 8621 et seq.   

1.3 This agreement shall govern the purchase of water/wastewater services from the Supplier on behalf of 
households eligible for LIHWAP.   Funds awarded shall be used as part of an overall emergency effort to 
prevent, prepare for, and respond to the COVID-19 pandemic, with the public health focus of ensuring that 
low-income households have access to drinking water and wastewater services. The funds will be used to 
cover or reduce arrearages, rates, and fees associated with reconnection or preventions of disconnections of 
service, and rate reduction to eligible households for such services. This agreement is for the provision of 
water bill payments to assist low-income households with water and wastewater reconnection and ongoing 
services. 

1.4 The parties acknowledge that this agreement and the services provided by the Supplier are governed by and 
subject to the federal and state laws and regulations in accordance with the LIHWAP supplemental terms and 
conditions. 

2. Definitions 
2.1 Credit Balance – any surplus of funds remaining on the account of an eligible customer created as the result 

of a LIHWAP payment to the supplier at the conclusion of the appropriate program period defined in the 
agreement. 

2.2 Eligible Customer – a household that makes application for assistance under LIHWAP, is determined eligible 
for benefits by the Department or contractor, and is accepted by the Supplier as an active account. 

2.3 Payment – a line of credit payment to the Supplier equal to the maximum subsidy per eligible customer as 
set forth in Attachment A of this agreement. 

3. Terms of Agreement/Modifications 
3.1 The agreement period shall be effective October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2023. This agreement shall 

not bind, nor purport to bind, the Department for any commitment in excess of the original agreement 
period. This agreement shall become effective upon signature by authorized representatives of the Supplier 
and the Department and shall apply to water/wastewater assistance to eligible customers under LIHWAP in 
accordance with the following program period, as established above. 

a. Water/Wastewater: home drinking water and wastewater consumed beginning on or after October 1st of 
each year and ending no later than the end of the first billing cycle for an eligible customer after 
September 30th of each year – not to extend past September 30, 2023. 

3.2 Changes to this agreement must be made by a formal agreement amendment signed and approved by and 
between the duly authorized representative of the Supplier and the Department prior to the effective date of 

244

Item 8.



 

Revised 9/27/21  Page 2  

such modification.  No other document, including correspondence, e-mail, acts, or oral communications by or 
from any person, shall be used or construed as an amendment or modification to the agreement. 

3.3 This document expresses the complete agreement of the parties. Performance of the agreement shall be 
governed solely by the specifications and requirements contained in the agreement.  The exclusive venue 
for any litigation arising under this agreement shall be Cole County, Missouri. This agreement shall be 
interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Missouri. 

4. Responsibilities of the Parties 
4.1 The Department agrees to: 

a. Provide the Supplier with a weekly listing of eligible customers (Customer Eligibility Listing or CEL) who 
have designated the company as their primary water/wastewater supplier. These listings shall include at 
least the following data elements: 

1. Complete name of eligible customer; 
2. Complete address of eligible customer; 
3. Customer account number provided on the Supplier’s billing information; 
4. Amount of payment the Department will make on behalf of each eligible customer whose name appears 

on the listing; and 
5. Social Security Number of the customer supplied by the Department. 

b. Secure from each eligible customer and from its agents or contractors, written authorization for the 
release of information concerning the eligible customer’s account with the Supplier. 

4.2 The Supplier agrees to: 

a. Require any of its districts, regional or local companies who provide services to eligible customers in 
Missouri, to comply with all provisions of this agreement. The Supplier shall complete and submit to the 
Department Exhibit #1 – Supplier Information and the signed agreement the complete name and address 
of any sub-suppliers who will be involved under the terms of this agreement. 

b. As conditions for receiving payment for its eligible customers under Missouri’s Low Income Household 
Water Assistance Program, the Supplier: 

1. Shall not discriminate with regard to the terms or conditions of the sale, availability of credit, or price 
of home water offered to eligible customers in relation to its other residential customers. 

2. Shall return Customer Eligibility Listings (CEL's) to the Department within fifteen (15) calendar 
days after they are received, indicating whether the LIHWAP payment to be made on behalf of the 
eligible customer can be accepted by the Supplier. If the Supplier notifies the Department that they 
cannot accept payment on behalf of a particular eligible customer for reasons other than those 
stipulated in this agreement, or the Supplier fails to return a CEL within a thirty (30) calendar day 
timeframe, no payment will be made by the Department on behalf of the eligible customer. 

3. Shall accept the LIHWAP payment to be made on behalf of an eligible customer; and not use any 
portion of the LIHWAP payment made on behalf of the eligible customer for reimbursement of fees 
charged by collection agencies. 

4. Shall credit, through normal billing process, the full amount of the LIHWAP pledge received to an 
eligible customer’s account. The Supplier may apply any portion of the received LIHWAP pledge to an 
eligible customer’s previous account balance, provided the pledge will continue/restore services for 
at least thirty (30 ) calendar days after the LIHWAP pledge is applied to the eligible customer’s 
previous account balance. 

5. Should make an effort to offer eligible customers, on whose behalf the Department has made 
payment, a deferred payment plan for any balance due on their account that exceeds the amount 
made by the Department and consider continued provision of water and wastewater services to the 
eligible customer who maintains their deferred payment plan for the duration of this agreement. 

6. Shall provide water and wastewater services at least equivalent to the amount of the pledge made by 
the Department on behalf of the eligible customer. Services shall be restored or continued during the 
service period covered by the payment for at least thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the 
pledge made on behalf of the eligible customer.  

7. Should consider waiving deposits, name change or late payment fees for an eligible customer for 
whom the Supplier agrees to accept a LIHWAP payment. 245

Item 8.



 

Revised 9/27/21  Page 3  

8. Shall not transfer any portion of the LIHWAP payment made on behalf of an eligible customer to any 
other customer’s account. 

9. Should notify each eligible customer in writing of the amount of any credit balance remaining on their 
account because of the LIHWAP payment, no later than the end of the first billing cycle for the eligible 
customer after September 30th of each year. In the case of payments received after September 30th, 
notification of any credit balance must be made no later than the next regular billing cycle for the 
customer on whose behalf the LIHWAP payment is received. 

10. Shall refund any LIHWAP credit balance remaining on an eligible customer’s account to the 
Department and any remaining customer credit balance directly to the customer, when the customer 
voluntarily terminates service with the Supplier or leaves the Supplier’s designated service area, no 
later than sixty (60) calendar days after their final billing statement or by the end of the program year 
(September 30th). 

11. In the event the designated customer dies during the program coverage period and the credit balance 
on their account is not used by a surviving household member over the age of eighteen (18) at the 
same address, it will be refunded to the Department.  Any credit balances that cannot be utilized 
under the terms of this agreement will be refunded to the Department no later than September 30th 
of each program year. 

12. Refunds must include the following information: Customer name and address, date of LIHWAP 
payment to the Supplier, and reason for return. 

13. Shall not accept the LIHWAP payment on behalf of customers with the following account status: 

a. Inactive Account: an account on which service was terminated and the Supplier does not agree 
to restore or continue service to this customer under the provisions of this agreement; 

b. Commercial Account: an account identified by the Supplier via rate structures or other means as 
generally being utilized by a commercial business; 

c. Not Our Customer: an account which the Supplier is unable to identify via existing records as 
being a customer of the company; 

d. Invalid Account Number: an account which the Supplier is unable to identify via existing 
records the customer account number; 

e. Needs Additional Payment: an account on which the Supplier needs additional funds to restore 
and continue services; 

f. Negative Customer Response: an account which the Supplier is able to verify, but, the customer 
failed to call and make an appointment to restore services; or 

14. Must utilize the identifying information below concerning eligible customers served when 
corresponding with the Department: 

 Complete name of eligible customer (account holder); 
 Complete address of eligible customer; 
 Customer account number of eligible customer; and 
 Social Security Number of the customer supplied by the Department. 

5. Payments 

5.1 The Department agrees to provide payment to the Supplier within fifteen (15) calendar days for those 
customers on whose behalf the Supplier has agreed to accept payment.  

a. Failure to submit the CELs within the time frames set forth in this agreement may delay payment to the 
Supplier. 

5.2 The Supplier is encouraged to participate in the Department’s direct deposit program and to complete an 
Automatic Clearing House/Electronic Funds Transfer (ACH/EFT) application. 

5.3 If funds for payment of service costs of eligible customers are not sufficient to permit the Department to 
reimburse the Supplier in accordance with the payment maximums specified in Attachment A, the 
Department will prorate payments to the Supplier on the basis of the total obligations for water and 
wastewater services costs of all eligible customers in Missouri and the amount of funding available to meet 
these obligations.  The Department will utilize this procedure until all available funding for the payment of 
water and wastewater services costs of eligible customers has been expended. 

246

Item 8.



 

Revised 9/27/21  Page 4  

6. Monitoring/Reporting 
6.1 The Department is required to perform a review of actual usage data of eligible customers served during 

the program year.  The Department will provide a report to the Supplier at the end of the program year.  
The Supplier shall submit to the Department actual usage data for each eligible customer in each billing 
cycle or calendar month of the pertinent period set forth under the program period defined in this 
agreement.  Actual usage data submitted shall include: 

a. The complete name and address of each eligible customer; 
b. The customer’s account number; 
c. The Social Security Number of each customer; 
d. The amount of any credit balance remaining on the account of an eligible customer at the end of the 

first billing cycle for an eligible customer after September 30th of each year; 
e. The amount of an eligible customer’s outstanding account balance at the time the Supplier agreed to 

accept the LIHWAP payment if the Supplier used the payment in accordance with this agreement; 
7. Confidentiality 
7.1 The Supplier shall understand that all discussions with the Supplier and all information gained by the 

Supplier as a result of the Supplier’s performance under this agreement shall be confidential.  The Supplier 
shall not release reports, documentation, or material prepared required by this agreement without the 
prior written consent of the Department. 

7.2 The Department shall only use information provided by the Supplier about the account of an eligible 
customer for administering LIHWAP. The Department shall obtain the same agreement from any of its 
Suppliers. 

7.3 The Supplier agrees not to use or disclose any information related to its eligible customers to any parties 
except the Department with all applicable state and federal laws dealing with privacy and confidentiality of 
information related to eligible customers of LIHWAP. This agreement shall immediately be declared null 
and void if the Supplier is determined to be out of compliance with privacy and confidentiality laws 

7.4 The Supplier shall ensure that all persons in its employ who are authorized to have access to or use 
information obtained from the Department understand the conditions of this agreement. In the case of 
information obtained electronically or by using the web-based access, attest to such understanding in 
writing by signing a DSS Security Access and Confidentiality Agreement form.  Availability of this 
information must be limited to employees with a “need to know”.  The Department shall deny access to 
information if the Supplier is determined to be out of compliance.  The Department may declare this 
agreement null and void if the Supplier is determined to be out of compliance with the agreement. 

7.5 The Supplier agrees to retain all books, records, and other documents relevant to this agreement for a 
minimum of five (5) years or until any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, or other action involving the 
records that was initiated prior to the expiration of this five (5) year period has been completed. Upon 
request of the Department, the Supplier shall permit authorized representatives of the Department, and 
such other Federal or State agencies as may require such information, to have access to such records as 
may be necessary to confirm the Supplier’s compliance with the provisions of this agreement. 

8. Fraud Prevention and Reporting 

8.1 The Supplier shall report any financial fraud or abuse or misconduct in the administration of LIHWAP to 
the Department of Social Services (DSS), Division of Legal Services (DLS).  The Supplier shall call 877-770-
8055 or report by email at DLS.ReportVendorFraud@dss.mo.gov. Suppliers shall cooperate with all DLS 
investigations of suspected fraud or abuse or misconduct. 

8.2 The Supplier may be prosecuted under applicable federal or state law or both for false claims, statements, 
or documents, or concealment of material fact. 

9. Termination 
9.1 Termination of this agreement without cause may occur by either party terminating its duties under this 

agreement upon provision of thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the other, except that the duties of 
Section 4.2b 9 through 13, 5.3 and 6.1 shall survive. Additionally: 

a. It is understood and agreed upon that in the event funds or appropriation authority from local, state, 
and federal sources are not obtained and continued at an aggregate level sufficient to allow for the 
purchase of the indicated quantity of services, as determined by the Department, the obligation of each 247

Item 8.

mailto:DLS.ReportVendorFraud@dss.mo.gov


 

Revised 9/27/21  Page 5  

party hereunder shall thereupon terminate immediately upon receipt of written notice from the 
Department; 

b. Either party may terminate this agreement immediately by written notice for cause related to the 
adequacy of performance. Any written notification shall be effective upon deposit in the mail; and  

c. The Supplier shall not incur new obligations for the terminated portion of the agreement after the 
effective date of the termination for cause.  The Supplier shall cancel as many outstanding obligations 
as possible. 

10. Debarment Certification 
10.1 The Supplier, by signing the signature page of this original agreement and any amendment signature 

page(s), certifies that the Supplier is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible, voluntarily excluded from participation, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for 
participation under federal assistance programs.  The Supplier should complete and return the attached 
certification regarding debarment, etc., Exhibit #2 with the agreement. The Supplier must satisfactorily 
complete this certification prior to award of this agreement. 

11. Business Compliance   
11.1 The Supplier must comply with the laws regarding conducting business in the State of Missouri.  The 

Supplier certifies by signing the signature page of this original document and any amendment page(s) that 
the Supplier and any proposed subcontractors either are presently in compliance with such laws or shall 
comply with such laws prior to any resulting agreement.  The Supplier shall provide documentation of 
compliance upon request by the Department.  The compliance to conduct business in the state shall 
include, but not necessarily be limited to: 

a. Registration of business name (if applicable); 
b. Certificate of authority to transact business/certificate of good standing (if applicable); 
c. Taxes (e.g., city/county/state/federal); 
d. State and local certifications (e.g., professions/occupations/activities); 
e. Licenses and permits (e.g., city/county license, sales permits); and 
f. Insurance (e.g., worker's compensation/unemployment compensation). 

11.2 The provider must complete and submit Exhibit #3, Registration of Business Name (if applicable) with the 
Missouri Secretary of State, prior to award of contract. 

11.3 In the event the Supplier contracts with any other party (subcontractor) to carry out the terms of this 
agreement, the Supplier shall include in its contracts with any other party this agreement as an 
incorporation by reference. 

This agreement and any attachments thereto set forth all promises, agreements, and understandings between the 
Department and the Supplier. In witness thereof, the Department and the Supplier hereby execute this agreement. 
 
 
______________________________________________________  _______________________________________________________ 
Authorized Representative of Supplier   Authorized Representative of the  
        Department of Social Services  
 
 
_________________________________     ___________________________________ 
Date        Date 
 

  

248

Item 8.



 

Revised 9/27/21  Page 6  

EXHIBIT #1: SUPPLIER INFORMATION 
 
PLEASE COMPLETE THE INFORMATION BELOW AND RETURN WITH THE SIGNED AGREEMENT AND 
EXHIBIT #2.  THE DIVISION WILL COMPLETE THE LAST LINE AND RETURN WITH THE SUPPLIER COPY OF 
THE SIGNED AGREEMENT. 
 
Please attach a complete listing of all your branch offices, including their names, address, telephone and fax 
numbers and current e-mail addresses. 
 
COMPANY NAME_____________________________________________________________ 
 
COMPANY MAILING ADDRESS__________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CITY________________________________ STATE_______ ZIP CODE__________________ 
 
COUNTY__________________________________________ 
 
TELEPHONE NUMBER (_____)________________________ 
 
FAX NUMBER (_____)_______________________________ 
 
E-MAIL ADDRESSES  (Primary)_____________________________________________________________ 
 
   (Other)_____________________________________________________________ 
 
   (Other)_____________________________________________________________ 
 
   (Other)_____________________________________________________________ 
 
   (Other)_____________________________________________________________ 
 
   (Other)_____________________________________________________________ 
 
 

Water and wastewater services _________________________________________________________ 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
For State Office Use Only: 
 

Supplier Number Assigned: ___________________________________________ 

249

Item 8.



 

Revised 9/27/21  Page 7  

ATTACHMENT A: FY22 INCOME RANGES AND BENEFIT AMOUNTS    FY22 LIHWAP Agreement 

 
 
 
 
 
 

HOUSEHOLD MONTHLY INCOME AMOUNTS 

SIZE 
 

0%-60% STATE MEDIAN INCOME (SMI) 

1 $0-2,211 

2 $0-2,891 

3 $0-3,571 

4 $0-4,252 

5 $0-4,932 

6 $0-5,612 

7 $0-5,740 

8 $0-5,868 

9 $0-5,996 

10 $0-6,124 

11 $0-6,252 

12 $0-6,380 

13 $0-6,508 

14 $0-6,636 

15 $0-6,764 

16 $0-6,892 

17 $0-7,020 

18 $0-7,148 

19 $0-7,276 

20 $0-7,404 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Benefit Amount 

Not to exceed $750.00 

250

Item 8.



 

Revised 9/27/21  Page 8  

Exhibit 2 - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion 
Lower Tier Covered Transactions 

This certification is required by 2 CFR Part 180. 
 

(BEFORE COMPLETING CERTIFICATION, READ INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION) 

(1) The prospective recipient of Federal assistance funds certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its 
principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded 
from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency. 

(2) Where the prospective recipient of Federal assistance funds is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 

 

   

Company Name  DUNS # 

   

   

Authorized Representative’s Printed Name 

 

 

 Authorized Representative’s Title 

 

 

Authorized Representative’s Signature   Date 

Instructions for Certification 

1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective recipient of Federal assistance funds is providing the certification as set out below. 

2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into.  If it is later 
determined that the prospective recipient of Federal assistance funds knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies 
available to the Federal Government, the Department of Labor (DOL) may pursue available remedies, including suspension or debarment. 

3. The prospective recipient of Federal assistance funds shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted if at any 
time the prospective recipient of Federal assistance funds learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason 
of changed circumstances. 

4. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered 
transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage 
sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549.  You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a 
copy of those regulations. 

5. The prospective recipient of Federal assistance funds agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, 
it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the DOL. 

6. The prospective recipient of Federal assistance funds further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled "Certification 
Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification, in all lower tier 
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, 
suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous.  A participant may decide 
the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals.  Each participant may but is not required to check the List of Parties 
Excluded from Procurement or Nonprocurement Programs. 

8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification 
required by this clause.  The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person 
in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier 
covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntary excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to 
other remedies available to the Federal Government, the DOL may pursue available remedies, including suspension or debarment.  

  

251

Item 8.



 

Revised 9/27/21  Page 9  

EXHIBIT # 3: 

Registration of Business Name (if applicable) with the Missouri Secretary of State: 

The vendor should indicate the vendor’s charter number and company name with the Missouri Secretary of 
State.  Additionally, the vendor should provide proof of the vendor’s good standing status with the Missouri 
Secretary of State.  If the vendor is exempt from registering with the Missouri Secretary of State pursuant to section 
351.572, RSMo, identify the specific section of 351.572 RSMo, which supports the exemption. 

 
 
Charter Number (if applicable) 

 
 
Company Name 

If exempt from registering with the Missouri Secretary of State pursuant to section 351.572 RSMo, identify the section of 
351.572 to support the exemption: 
 
 

If your business entity is not registered, you may go to the link provided below to register: 

www.sos.mo.gov/fileonline 

If you believe your business entity is exempt from registering with the Secretary of State due to one of the specific 
exemptions contained in the Missouri Revised Statutes, please indicate in your response the specific exemption 
that applies to your business entity. 

Below are the exemption sections of the Missouri Revised Statutes for the most popular business entity types: 

1. General Business - section 351.572, RSMo, located at: 

http://revisor.mo.gov/main/OneSection.aspx?section=351.572&bid=18804&hl= 

2. Limited Liability Company - section 347.163.5, RSMo, located at: 

http://revisor.mo.gov/main/OneSection.aspx?section=347.163&bid=18500&hl= 

3. Limited Partnership - section 359.551.5, RSMo, located at: 

http://revisor.mo.gov/main/OneSection.aspx?section=359.551&bid=19476&hl= 

4. Non-Profit - section 355.751.2, RSMo, located at: 

http://revisor.mo.gov/main/OneSection.aspx?section=355.751&bid=19289&hl= 

5. Professional Corporation - section 356.231, RSMo, located at: 

http://revisor.mo.gov/main/OneSection.aspx?section=356.231&bid=19340&hl= 

Note:  Limited Liability Partnerships have no exemptions. 

 

For questions regarding registration, contact the Missouri Secretary of State at: 

corporations@sos.mo.gov or (573) 751-4153 (toll free 866-223-6535) 

 

252

Item 8.

http://www.sos.mo.gov/fileonline
http://revisor.mo.gov/main/OneSection.aspx?section=351.572&bid=18804&hl
http://revisor.mo.gov/main/OneSection.aspx?section=347.163&bid=18500&hl
http://revisor.mo.gov/main/OneSection.aspx?section=359.551&bid=19476&hl
http://revisor.mo.gov/main/OneSection.aspx?section=355.751&bid=19289&hl
http://revisor.mo.gov/main/OneSection.aspx?section=356.231&bid=19340&hl
mailto:corporations@sos.mo.gov


 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: A Public Hearing of the City Council Setting the 2022 Property Tax Levies 
for the City of Republic, Missouri. 

Submitted By: Meghin Cook, Finance Director 

Date: August 16, 2022 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To approve property tax levies for the year 2022 in accordance with the recommendations from the 

Missouri State Auditor’s Office. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City of Republic maintains three property tax levies:  General, Parks and Recreation, and Street 
Lighting.  The Greene and Christian County Assessors have provided the assessed valuation information 
to the City and to the State Auditor’s Office.  The City must establish its rates in accordance with those 
approved by the State Auditor.   
 
The attached worksheet and supporting documents illustrate the change in assessed valuation, compared 
to the 2021 tax year.   
 
Per Section 137.073.2, RSMo, when there are changes in assessed valuation, the tax rate ceiling may be 
revised to produce substantially the same amount of tax revenues as the existing tax rate ceiling would 
have produced in the prior year.  Essentially, the City is not allowed to benefit from revenue resulting from 
new construction or newly added territory so to remain revenue neutral, the levies are based on existing 
property in 2021.   
 
Greene County and Christian County officials assess property value, mail property tax statements, and 
collect and remit property tax funds to Republic.  In return, Christian County retains 4% of collections to 
offset their costs while Greene County retains 3%.  
 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 

253

Item 9.



 

 
 
 
 

Recommended Property Tax Levies and Estimated Revenues 
 

Tax Levy Changes 

Type 2021 Levy 2022 Levy Difference 

General Operating 0.4095 0.4326 0.0231 

Parks & Recreation 0.1104 0.1166 0.0062 

Street Lights 0.0630 0.0666 0.0036 

Total 0.5829 0.6158 0.0329 

        

Tax Levy Revenue Changes 

Type 2021 Revenue 2022 Revenue Difference 

General Operating                  946,594.00       1,012,614.00           66,020.00  

Parks & Recreation                  255,091.00           272,998.00           17,907.00  

Street Lights                  145,701.00           155,787.00           10,086.00  

Total               1,347,386.00       1,441,399.00           94,013.00  

 
 
 
Under state law, the tax levy must be set by September 1, or the City can only collect tax sufficient to 
pay interest and principal on any outstanding bonds.   
 

Recommended Action 

Passage of setting of 2022 property tax levies in accordance with the State Auditor’s recommendation of 
0.6158 total levy is recommended.  The maximum amount to be reflected in the City’s 2023 Annual 
Budget of $1,441,339.    

254

Item 9.



255

Item 9.



256

Item 9.



257

Item 9.



258

Item 9.



259

Item 9.



260

Item 9.



261

Item 9.



262

Item 9.



263

Item 9.



264

Item 9.



265

Item 9.



266

Item 9.



267

Item 9.



268

Item 9.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 22-49 An Ordinance of the City Council Setting the 2022 Property Tax 
Levies for the City of Republic, Missouri. 

Submitted By: Meghin Cook, Finance Director 

Date: August 16, 2022 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To approve property tax levies for the year 2022 in accordance with the recommendations from the 

Missouri State Auditor’s Office. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City of Republic maintains three property tax levies:  General, Parks and Recreation, and Street 
Lighting.  The Greene and Christian County Assessors have provided the assessed valuation information 
to the City and to the State Auditor’s Office.  The City must establish its rates in accordance with those 
approved by the State Auditor.   
 
The attached worksheet and supporting documents illustrate the change in assessed valuation, compared 
to the 2021 tax year.   
 
Per Section 137.073.2, RSMo, when there are changes in assessed valuation, the tax rate ceiling may be 
revised to produce substantially the same amount of tax revenues as the existing tax rate ceiling would 
have produced in the prior year.  Essentially, the City is not allowed to benefit from revenue resulting from 
new construction or newly added territory so to remain revenue neutral, the levies are based on existing 
property in 2021.   
 
Greene County and Christian County officials assess property value, mail property tax statements, and 
collect and remit property tax funds to Republic.  In return, Christian County retains 4% of collections to 
offset their costs while Greene County retains 3%.  
 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 

269

Item 10.



 

 
 
 
 

Recommended Property Tax Levies and Estimated Revenues 
 

Tax Levy Changes 

Type 2021 Levy 2022 Levy Difference 

General Operating 0.4095 0.4326 0.0231 

Parks & Recreation 0.1104 0.1166 0.0062 

Street Lights 0.0630 0.0666 0.0036 

Total 0.5829 0.6158 0.0329 

        

Tax Levy Revenue Changes 

Type 2021 Revenue 2022 Revenue Difference 

General Operating                  946,594.00       1,012,614.00           66,020.00  

Parks & Recreation                  255,091.00           272,998.00           17,907.00  

Street Lights                  145,701.00           155,787.00           10,086.00  

Total               1,347,386.00       1,441,399.00           94,013.00  

 
 
 
Under state law, the tax levy must be set by September 1, or the City can only collect tax sufficient to 
pay interest and principal on any outstanding bonds.   
 

Recommended Action 

Passage of setting of 2022 property tax levies in accordance with the State Auditor’s recommendation of 
0.6158 total levy is recommended.  The maximum amount to be reflected in the City’s 2023 Annual 
Budget of $1,441,339.    

270

Item 10.



BILL NO. 22-49  ORDINANCE NO. 22- 
 

BILL NO. 22-49  ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL SETTING THE 2022 PROPERTY TAX LEVIES  
FOR THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Missouri State Auditor’s Office reviews data from local governments and other 
taxing authorities in the State of Missouri on an annual basis to ensure compliance with state law and to 
maintain revenue neutrality; and 

 
WHEREAS, based on the data it receives and reviews, the Missouri State Auditor’s Office provides 

a pro-forma tax rate calculation, which the City utilizes in setting its property tax rate(s) for the applicable 
year; and 
 

WHEREAS, as required by law, a notice of public hearing for the approval of the City’s proposed 
2022 property tax levies was published at least seven (7) days prior to the public hearing; and 

 
WHEREAS, following the public hearing, the City hereby adopts the 2022 property tax levies in 

accordance with the Missouri State Auditor’s Office pro-forma calculations.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: For the year 2022, there is hereby levied a tax upon each $100.00 of assessed 
valuation of real estate within the corporate limits of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, at the following rates and for the following purposes: 

  
A. General Revenue Fund   0.4326 
B. Park Fund     0.1166 
C. Street Lighting Fund   0.0666 

 
TOTAL      0.6158 

 
Section 2: On the day following the effective date of the passage of this Ordinance, the levy 

established herewith shall be certified by the City Clerk and delivered to the 
County Clerk of Greene County, Missouri and the County Clerk of Christian 
County, Missouri. 

 
 Section 3: The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
  

Section 4:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof are   
declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 
Section 5: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 

271

Item 10.



BILL NO. 22-49  ORDINANCE NO. 22- 
 

BILL NO. 22-49  ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2022. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 

Approved as to Form:   

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 

 

 

272

Item 10.



273

Item 10.



274

Item 10.



275

Item 10.



276

Item 10.



277

Item 10.



278

Item 10.



279

Item 10.



280

Item 10.



281

Item 10.



282

Item 10.



283

Item 10.



284

Item 10.



285

Item 10.



286

Item 10.



287

Item 10.



288

Item 10.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 22-R-44 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing a Three-Year 
Agreement with Ring Central for Voice-Over Internet Phone Services for 
the City until 2025. 

Submitted By: Chris Crosby, IT Director 

Date: 8/16/2022 
 

Issue Statement 

Our current VOIP Phone provider Mitel was sold to Ring Central.  

Discussion and/or Analysis 

Our current contract will remain in place with Mitel until July/Aug of 2023 if we do nothing. The risk of 

waiting to migrate to Ring Central is due to Mitel having a 90% reduction in staff, and support if an event 

occurred will be close to zero. Ring Central is motivated to migrate clients with limited-time incentives. If 

we wait, the cost will go up.   

Ring Central/Mitel covers the SOW of $7800.  

Mitel has provided physical phones, e911 service, and a mobile app. All this is managed through a web 

portal. There is limited customer support.  

Ring Central will provide all these same features but also include MS Teams integrations and more 

robust administrator tools with advanced reporting. Analytics for real-time and historical reporting. Ring 

Central provides 24/7-tier customer support. We will also have call center features for call routing we 

did not have. This feature was requested but will be a higher cost through Mitel, but it comes standard 

with Ring Central. These features will greatly enhance the ability to provide higher levels of customer 

service and service response time. All current City VOIP phones are compatible with Ring Central 

through a firmware update.  

Ring Central will honor the rates we established with Mitel. The City will have to agree to a three-year 

contract. Extending our rates and support to 2025.  

No cost change to the city. If we went to bid, the cost to incur a new phone system would be much 

higher, not including the expense of downtime due to migration to a new system. The fees are based on 

the number of phones we have in the city. If no phones are added, the annual cost to the city will be 

$35,589.72. Every additional phone will add $21.14 per month or $253.68 a year to the total cost. 

Recommended Action 

City Staff recommends City Council approve an Agreement with Ring Central for VOIP Phone services for 

the City, for a period of three (3) years, ending in 2025.  

289

Item 11.



RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-44 

  
1 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-44 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING A THREE-YEAR AGREEMENT WITH RING CENTRAL 
FOR VOICE-OVER INTERNET PHONE SERVICES FOR THE CITY UNTIL 2025 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly organized and existing under the laws of the 
State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City’s current voice-over internet provider (“VOIP”), Mitel, was recently sold to 
Ring Central; and 

 
WHEREAS, while the City has the option to remain with Mitel through August of 2023 (at which 

point it would be required to migrate to Ring Central), the City can alternatively migrate to Ring Central 
sooner in order to avoid potential service interruptions and/or inadequate customer service assistance 
that may result from Mitel’s forthcoming reduction in staff and resources; and 

 
WHEREAS, Ring Central has agreed to honor the rates the City currently has established with 

Mitel, if the City enters into a 3-year contract with Ring Central for continuation of services; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ring Central will provide all the same services the City is currently receiving from Mitel 
in addition to MS Teams integrations and more robust administrator tools with advanced reporting, 24/7-
hour customer support and call center features for call routing (which the City currently does not have); 
and 

WHEREAS, the City’s migration to Ring Central now will not require the replacement of any 
current City VOIP phones, all of which are already compatible with Ring Central; and  

 
WHEREAS, considering all of the above, along with the recommendations of City staff, the Council 

finds it is in the best interest of the City to enter into a 3-year services agreement with Ring Central for 
the City’s VOIP services from 2022 until 2025.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The City Administrator, and/or his designee(s), on behalf of the City, is hereby 
authorized to execute and deliver any documents necessary to enter into a 3-year 
agreement for Ring Central’s provision of VOIP services to the City. 

 
Section 2: The WHEREAS clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Section 3: This Resolution shall become effective on and after the date of passage and 

approval as provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2022. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
        Matt Russell, Mayor 

290

Item 11.



RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-44 

  
2 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-44 

Attest: 
 

____________________________________ 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form:  

 

Final Passage and Vote: 
 

 
 

 

 

 

291

Item 11.



292

Item 11.



293

Item 11.



294

Item 11.



295

Item 11.



296

Item 11.



297

Item 11.



298

Item 11.



299

Item 11.



300

Item 11.



301

Item 11.



302

Item 11.



303

Item 11.



304

Item 11.



305

Item 11.



306

Item 11.



307

Item 11.



308

Item 11.



309

Item 11.



310

Item 11.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 22-R-45 A Resolution of the City Council Appointing Authorized Signers 
for the Municipal Court Account with Arvest Bank. 

Submitted By: Meghin Cook 

Date: August 16, 2022 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To appoint check signers to the City of Republic Municipal Court Account with Arvest Bank. 

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

Municipal Court Account 

The City of Republic needs two check signers on the physical checks for the Municipal Court Account. 

The following individuals will be appointed as signers to the Arvest Bank Municipal Court account:  

Penny Mayes    Municipal Court Clerk 

Benjamin McBride   Judge  

 

Recommended Action 

Staff requests approval of the recommended check signers for the City of Republic accounts with Arvest 

Bank.  

311

Item 12.



RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-45 

  
RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-45 1 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPOINTING AUTHORIZED SIGNERS FOR THE MUNICIPAL COURT 
ACCOUNT WITH ARVEST BANK 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly organized and existing under the laws of the 
State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, in Ordinance 20-06, Council approved an intergovernmental agreement with the 
Office of State Courts Administrator for the implementation of the Show-Me-Courts Court Automation 
Software (“Agreement”); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement and as required by the Office of State Courts 

Administrator, the Republic Municipal Court is required to have a separate bank account with/from the 
City through which it may process receipts utilizing Show-Me-Courts (“Municipal Court Account”); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement and as required by the Office of State Courts 

Administrator, the Republic Municipal Court, through the Presiding Judge and Court Clerk, will oversee 
the Municipal Court Account and will be responsible for the funds and the reconciliation of the 
Municipal Court Account; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Republic Municipal Court will be responsible for oversight and compliance with 

established internal controls governing the Municipal Court Account and will submit a completed 
reconciliation of the Municipal Court Account to the City’s Finance Department for review; and 

 
WHEREAS, in Resolution 22-R-34, Council authorized an agreement with Arvest Bank to provide 

depository and banking services to the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement and as required by the Office of State Courts 

Administrator, the City has opened the Municipal Court Account with Arvest Bank, and must designate 
specified individuals with proper authorization to draw upon the same on behalf of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, for all of the foregoing reasons, the Council hereby designates the Presiding Judge 
and Municipal Court Clerk as authorized signers on the Municipal Court Account.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, 
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: Arvest Bank is hereby requested, authorized, and directed to honor checks, 
drafts, or other orders of payment of money drawn in City’s name, including 
those payable to the individual order of any person or persons whose name or 
names appear thereon as signer or signers thereof, when bearing or purporting 
to bear the signatures of the following:  

  
 Benjamin McBride Presiding Judge 
 Penny Mayes  Municipal Court Clerk 
 
Section 2: The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

312

Item 12.



RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-45 

  
RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-45 2 
 

 
Section 3: This Resolution shall become effective on and after the date of passage and 

approval as provided by law. 
 
Section 4: This Resolution supersedes all previous resolutions pertaining to the authorized 

signers on/for any municipal court account held by the City at Arvest Bank. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, this __________ day of __________________, 2022. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
        Matt Russell, Mayor 
Attest: 
 

____________________________________ 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form:   

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

 

Final Passage and Vote: 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

313

Item 12.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 22-R-46 A Resolution of the City Council Appointing Authorized Signers 
for the General Operating Account and Bond Proceeds Account with 
Arvest Bank. 

Submitted By: Meghin Cook 

Date: August 16, 2022 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To appoint signers for the City of Republic General Operating and Bond Proceeds account with Arvest 

Bank. 

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City of Republic accounts for General Operating and Bond Proceeds Account need 3 appointed 

check signers. This is to ensure that routine finance operations are not disrupted when one or more 

check signers are not available. The check signers for these accounts will be the following:  

Matt Russel   Mayor 
Garry Wilson   Ward II Council Member 
Meghin Cook   Finance Director 
 

Recommended Action 

Staff requests approval of the recommended check signers for the City of Republic accounts with Arvest 

Bank.  

 

314

Item 13.



RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-46    

  
1 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-46    

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPOINTING AUTHORIZED SIGNERS FOR THE GENERAL 
OPERATING ACCOUNT AND BOND PROCEEDS ACCOUNT WITH ARVEST BANK 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly organized and existing under the laws of the 
State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has contracted with Arvest Bank for banking services, and in connection with 
such banking services, has opened certain accounts with Arvest Bank which can be drawn upon by 
designated individuals with proper authorization to do so on behalf of the City; and 

 
WHEREAS,  it is necessary to designate the specific individuals who will have such authorization 

to draw upon the above-referenced accounts on behalf of the City;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has previously authorized the Mayor along with other City officials to perform 

such duties on behalf of the City and believes it is in the best interest of the City to provide such 
authorization in connection with the above-referenced accounts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Council may at any time amend the authorized signer(s) as it deems appropriate 
and/or necessary.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: Arvest Bank is hereby requested, authorized, and directed to honor checks, 
drafts, or other orders of payment of money drawn in City’s name, including those 
payable to the individual order of any person or persons whose name or names 
appear thereon as signer or signers thereof, when bearing or purporting to bear 
the signatures of at least two (2) of the following:  

  
 Matt Russell  Mayor 
 Garry Wilson  Council Member, Ward II 
 Meghin Cook  Finance Director 

 
Section 2: The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Section 3: This Resolution shall become effective on and after the date of passage and 

approval as provided by law. 
 
Section 4: This Resolution supersedes all previous resolutions pertaining to the authorized 

signers on/for accounts held by the City at Arvest Bank. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2022. 
 
 
 

315

Item 13.



RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-46    

  
2 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-46    

      __________________________________________ 
        Matt Russell, Mayor 
Attest: 
 

____________________________________ 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form:   

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

 

Final Passage and Vote: 
 

 
 

 

 

 

316

Item 13.


	Top
	Item 1.	minutes
	Special Session Minutes_20220726_final

	Item 2.	Records
	Record Destruction Request Form 8-16-22

	Item 3.	vendor list
	Vendor Audit Report July 2022

	Item 4.	UB adjustments
	ub adjustments August 2022 (1)

	Item 5.	Waterline Materials Supplier 2022 & 2023 bid Award
	Waterline Materials Supplier 2022 & 2023 bid Award - Resolution Exhibit
	22-RES-XX - Awarding Bid for Waterline Materials to Core and Main LP_MEM FINAL
	Core and Main

	Item 6.	Aggregate Suppliers 2022 & 2023 bid Award
	Aggregate Suppliers 2022 & 2023 bid Award - Resolution Exhibit
	22-RES-XX - Awarding Bid to Supply Aggregates_MEM FINAL
	Bid Tabulation Rock and Stone
	Westside Stone Co. LLC_Exhibit 4
	Conco Quarries_Exhibit 3
	Capital Materials LLC_Exhibit 2
	Bailey Quarries, LLC_ Exhibit 1

	Item 7.	Asphalt Suppliers 2022 & 2023 bid Award
	Asphalt Suppliers 2022 & 2023 bid Award - Resolution Exhibit
	22-RES-XX - Awarding Bid to Supply Asphalt_MEM FINAL
	Asphalt Bids 22 & 23
	Complete Bid Package-Capital Paving_Exhibit 3
	ESS_Exhibit 4
	Blevins Asphalt_Exhibit 2
	APAC_Exhibit 1

	Item 8.	2nd reading of An Ordinance of the City Council AMENDING BILL NO. 21-65 TO AUTHORIZE EXECUTION OF A REVISED INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES FAMILY SUPPORT DIVISION FOR THE LOW INCOME HOUSEHOLD WATER ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
	LIHAP Agreement Exhibit
	22-ORD-XX - Ordinance amending Bill 21-65 re amended DSS_LIHWAP IGA
	LIHWAP Flyer
	LIHWAP Supplier Agreement Revised (EXHIBIT 1 TO ORDINANCE)

	Item 9.	Public Hearing of Tax Levy Hearing
	Property Tax Levy Exhibit (1)
	080822 City of Republic Pro forma

	Item 10.	Tax Levy Hearing
	Property Tax Levy Exhibit Final 08.09.2022
	22-ORD- Property Tax Levy 2022_MEM FINAL
	080822 City of Republic Pro forma
	2022 City Letters
	City of Republic

	Item 11.	Mitel Sold to Ring Central
	ITEM-Staff-Ring Central
	22-RES-XX - Authorizing Agreement with Ring Central for VOIP Services_MEM FINAL
	RingCentral__Phone_Contract

	Item 12.	22-R-xx A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Authorizing Signers for the Municipal Court Account with Arvest Bank.
	Check Signers Exhibit for Muncipal Court Account
	22-RES-XX - Authorizing signers on Muni Court account_MEM FINAL

	Item 13.	22-R-xx A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Authorizing Signers for all Accounts with Arvest Bank
	Check Signers Exhibit Operating and Bond
	22-RES-XX - Appointing Authorized Signers on the Arvest Bank Account for General OP, Bond, Bond Proceeds_MEM FINAL

	Bottom

